Cityorf C : S sm
) ' Worth Lake Worth Beach, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.
\w\\'\, Blgggh 7 North Dixie Highway
% FLORIDA Lake Worth, FL 33460

561.586.1600

AGENDA
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
BY TELECONFERENCE
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 06, 2020 - 6:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Scott Maxwell

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering:

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)
A. Proclamation honoring the heroic actions of Deputy Phillips Duncan

B. Proclamation in honor of National Cybersecurity Awareness Month

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

A. Electric Utility Meeting - August 25, 2020
B. Special Meeting - September 10, 2020
C. Regular Meeting - September 15, 2020
D. Special Meeting - September 24, 2020

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-Agendaed
items)

A. Agreement with RSM US LLP for annual independent financial auditing services

B. Consideration of settlement with Plaintiff, Yoexis Aaron Melendrez Borlot in the amount of
$68,500 (inclusive of attorney’s fees)

. Fifth Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Ben Few & Company, Inc.

. Ratification of Appointments and Reappointment to the various City Advisory Boards

. Proclamation declaring October 11-17, 2020 as Mediation Week

. Proclamation commemorating the 109th National Day of the Republic of China (Taiwan)

.Purchase Authorization with Badger Meters

I @ m m O 0O

. Purchase Authorization for Itron meter transmitters from The Avanti Company




Page 2

I. Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation to purchase Sodium Hypochlorite (Bleach) for
water treatment and odor control

J. Agreement with Shrieve Chemical, Co. to purchase Sulfuric Acid for water treatment

K. Agreement with Department of Environmental Protection for State Revolving Fund loan for 2-
inch Watermain Replacement Project Phases 5 & 6

L. Change Order 01 to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for the Lake Osborne Estates Watermain
Improvement Project Phase 1

M. Change Order 01 to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for the Park of Commerce Phase 1B Project

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Ordinance No. 2020-09 — Second Reading — Amend the Comprehensive Plan to include an
updated water supply plan and transmit the plan to the State of Florida for review

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Grant Request for the Palm Beach County Food Bank to partially offset the City building permit
fees

B. Ordinance No. 2020-13 — First Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23
Land Development Regulations (development orders)

C. Ordinance No. 2020-14 — First Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23
Land Development Reqgulations to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land use
and zoning matters

D. Consideration of PZB 20-00600001 — Request for an Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver for
the specialty distillery Dr. Spirits

E. Ordinance No. 2020-16 — First Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of taxable utility
bonds to fully fund reserves

F. Resolution No. 45-2020 — authorizing the issuance of Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds of
the City

LAKE WORTH ELECTRIC UTILITY:

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-Agendaed
items)

1) Agreement with Wilco Electrical LLC., for electric utility storm restoration services for
disaster recovery

2) Ratification of Emergency Construction Contract with Restore It All, Inc., for installation of
underground conduit and feeder cable at the East Switch Substation

3) Interlocal Agreement with Palm Beach County for Pole Attachments related to the Student
Wi-Fi Project

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:




Page 3

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

ADJOURNMENT:

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission
with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a
record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that
a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

PROCLAMATION

PHILLIPS DUNCAN

WHEREAS, The City of Lake Worth Beach is always grateful for the contributions of
those who make a difference in the lives of our residents; and

WHEREAS, One of our own heroes is Deputy Phillips Duncan who has been with the
Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office since 2018; and

WHEREAS, On September 3, 2020, Deputy Duncan was dispatched to a call of a man
overdosing. It was later learned that there was actually a man and a woman
on the scene who had overdosed. Upon arrival Deputy Duncan heard people
screaming by the pool. Deputy Duncan found that the male victim had fallen
into the pool and was drowning. Without regard for his own safety, he dove
into the deep end of the pool, fully uniformed, to pull the victim to safety.;
and

WHEREAS, Deputy Duncan was able to pull the victim from the pool and even though
the victim had no pulse, he started chest compressions until fire rescue
arrived with proper equipment; and

WHEREAS Many families in our community have been affected by drug abuse and some
have lost children to this disease. It is easy to become less sympathetic over
the loss of these lives, but Deputy Duncan proved that he still cares about all
our residents regardless of their circumstances; and.

WHEREAS, The victim’s life was saved by the quick response and heroic actions of
Deputy Duncan and The City of Lake Worth Beach is a better place by
having heroes like Deputy Phillips Duncan and the other men and women of
The Palm Beach County Sheriff’s office.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, PAM TRIOLO, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, by
virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby recognize the heroic work of all our dedicated
Palm Beach County Deputies, but especially

DEPUTY PHILLIPS DUNCAN
ON THIS MOST HEROIC EVENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Lake
Worth Beach, Florida, to be affixed this 6th day of October, 2020.

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk




CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach recognizes that it has a vital role in
identifying, protecting its citizens from, and responding to cyber threats that
may have significant impact to our individual and collective security and
privacy; and

WHEREAS, critical infrastructure sectors are increasingly reliant on information systems
and technology to support financial services, energy, telecommunications,
transportation, utilities, health care, and emergency response systems; and

WHEREAS, the STOP. THINK. CONNECT.™ Campaign serves as the national
cybersecurity public awareness campaign, implemented through a coalition
of private companies, nonprofit and government organizations, as well as
academic institutions working together to increase the understanding of
cyber threats and empowering the American public to be safer and more
secure online; and

WHEREAS, the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Cybersecurity
Framework has been developed as a free resource to help organizations
(large and small, both public and private) improve their cybersecurity
practices through a practical approach to addressing evolving threats and
challenges; and

WHEREAS, maintaining the security of cyberspace is a shared responsibility in which
each of us has a critical role to play, and awareness of computer security
essentials will improve the security of our information, infrastructure, and
economy; and

WHEREAS, the Federal Government of the United States of America and the U.S.
Department of Homeland Security together with various other agencies all
recognize October as National Cyber Security Awareness Month; and all
citizens are encouraged to visit the STOP. THINK. CONNECT.™
Campaign website (www.stopthinkconnect.org) to learn about cybersecurity
to put that knowledge into practice in their homes, schools, workplaces, and
businesses; and

WHEREAS, The City of Lake Worth Beach is developing its own internal training
programs to bring about the awareness of how sophisticated cyber criminals
have become and the importance of always being aware of; and

NOW, THEREFORE, I, PAM TRIOLO, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby proclaim that October is

National Cybersecurity Awareness Month.

in the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida and we encourage the citizens of the City of Lake
Worth Beach to join this Commission in expressing appreciation for Cybersecurity training.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Lake
Worth Beach, Florida, to be affixed this 6™ day of October, 2020.

Pam Triolo, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk




MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
ELECTRIC UTILITY CITY COMMISSION MEETING
BY TELECONFERENCE
TUESDAY, AUGUST 25, 2020

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Pam Triolo on the above date at 6:00 PM by
teleconference from City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were; Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and
Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy (arrived at 6:04 PM) and Herman Robinson. Also
present were City Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau and City Clerk
Deborah M. Andrea.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso.

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering:
There were no changes to the agenda.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA:

City Clerk Andrea read the public comment submitted by the following:

Ramsay Stevens, former member of the Electric Utility Advisory Board (EUAB) wrote to ask the
Commission to respond to the EUAB’s request to discuss the potential for a demand response
program, a community solar program, and opportunities to faster realize the economic potential of
the South Eastern National Marine Renewable Energy Center.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
the following minutes:

A. July 28, 2020

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Hardy.

NEW BUSINESS:
A. Resumption of City utility disconnects for non-payment

Ed Liberty, Electric Utility Director, introduced the presentation of the accounts in arrears,
customers who had signed up for the payment plan and outreach to agencies. He said that the
delinquent accounts were tracked daily; 1826 customers would have been subject to cut with
delinquent amounts of $658,652 that would have tripped the disconnects but the total balance
due was $1,168,834. He explained that there was an aging report showing 30 and 60 days late
for combined water, sewer and electric, but frequently accounts were paid before 30 days. He
said that electric was 13.7% in arrears, water and sewer were 14.8 in arrears and at least 4%
were 60 days late. He showed the average, minimum and maximum amounts in arrears for
residential and commercial as well as the deposits on hand. He said that only 73% of residential



Pg. 2, Electric Utility Meeting, August 25, 2020

Action:

Action:

accounts were covered by deposits and 94% of commercial. He stated that there was an
outreach program to contact customers and no accounts had been shut off. He reported that
828 customers had requested to go on the payment plan and the County had given $63,327
towards payments but some accounts were still in review. He stated that most municipalities
had resumed disconnects and FPL had not determined a resumption date.

Motion made by Commissioner Robinson and seconded by Commissioner Hardy to not shut
off any water in the City while the eviction moratorium was in force.

Amended motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to
not shut off water in the City while a person was domiciled until a date uncertain.

City Attorney Goddeau said that the motion indicated that water and electric would be treated
separately and explained that a friendly amendment approved by the maker would not require
a vote.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Mayor Triolo asked if the disconnect date could be set until the end of September because
residents had not received their unemployment checks.

2. Commissioner Maxwell stated that the City was now in the sixth month of people not
paying their bills. He said that the longer the issue went on, the more difficult it would be
and almost 1,000 people had not responded to any of the City’s outreach attempts. He said
that the bigger issue was how to get the 1,000 customers to step up and make arrangements
to pay their utility bills.

Commissioner Robinson said that his concern was water so that the resident could be clean
and sanitary while waiting for the eviction process; electric would be a later conversation.

Commissioner Hardy opined that the City should not turn off people’s water because they
did not have the money to pay, which would make the home uninhabitable during these
extraordinary times.

Discussion ensued regarding points of order and information.

Commissioner Hardy asked how relevant it would be that many residents in the City did
not have the means to pay because they did not qualify for any assistance and therefore
would not contact the City.

City Attorney Goddeau stated that according to Robert’s Rules, each Commissioner had
ten minutes in total to speak including all bites of the apple.

Commissioner Hardy said that it was unknown when people would regain their jobs and it
seemed cruel to turn off water when the circumstances were beyond their control and the
health of the customer was the community’s health.

3. Vice Mayor Amoroso stated that there were 1,000 customers who had not stepped up, but
there was County assistance to help them. He said that people had no problem coming to
collect food, but could not contact the City about their utility bills. He iterated that people



Pg. 3, Electric Utility Meeting, August 25, 2020

who were struggling could prioritize to make sure to pay their utility bill in support of their
families.

Commissioner Robinson stated that water was a safety issue and it was understood that
people would leave the City without paying their bills. He said that there was a difference
between not having water and not having electricity.

City Attorney Goddeau pointed out that all dwellings had to have both electricity and water
according to the City’s property maintenance code; a moratorium on the provision would
be necessary to allow someone to stay in a dwelling with just water.

Commissioner Robinson asked for a vote and said that it would be important to allow
people to have water until they left the dwelling.

Commissioner Hardy asked what the cascading effects would be.

City Attorney Goddeau responded that if someone remained in a property without water
and/or electricity, the property owner would be cited. She said that the portion of the
property maintenance code would not be enforced under the emergency powers.

. Vice Mayor Amoroso asked if the City was still under compassionate code.

City Attorney Goddeau said that the City was still under compassionate code, but she
wanted to ensure that there was not a disconnect between utility and code.

Commissioner Maxwell asked how the City would differ from the other cities that had
resumed disconnects.

Mayor Triolo asked Mr. Liberty to show the slide with the resumptions of disconnects.
She read the few cities that had not resumed and the all cities that had resumed
disconnections. She suggested that if a deadline were put on the resumption, perhaps it
would encourage people to get help or get on the payment program.

Mr. Liberty said that the EU looked at trends geographically but there were people from
whom they had not heard in spite of the thousands of phone calls; it was unknown if the
properties were inhabited. He stated that people might call if the power were disconnected,
but some might not call at all because the property was vacant.

Commissioner Hardy asked if 4% of customers had moved out of the City and if there was
a list of the number of people affected in each city.

Mr. Liberty said that the customer count was not taken into consideration and there was a
high degree of turnover in the City. He stated that power was being put into properties that
could be vacant; a new resident could move in and use the power without opening an
account nor getting a bill. He iterated that some mechanism was needed to determine the
status of over 1,000 people who had not contacted the City. He asked for guidance from
the Commission.

Commissioner Hardy asked for particulars of the mountain of debt for water percentage
and dollar-wise. He said that the outstanding debt was a drop in the bucket regarding the
revenue of the utilities.



Pg. 4, Electric Utility Meeting, August 25, 2020

Commissioner Robinson asked if the owner would be notified if the power was shut off
and questioned the $9,000 water bill.

Franco Bellitto, Customer Service Manager, replied that only the account holder would be
notified. He stated that the customer with the $9,000 bill had been contacted and a leak
had been discovered.

City Attorney Goddeau stated that staff had been directed to be compassionate and there
would be ongoing discussion.

Commissioner Maxwell agreed with Mayor Triolo about extending the moratorium until
September 15 and said that facts were needed to see which properties were occupied. He
said that the City could not continue without getting evidence about what should be done
for the future.

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Commissioners Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: Mayor Triolo,
Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner Maxwell.
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to extend the
moratorium on water shutoffs until Tuesday, September 15, 2020.
City Attorney Goddeau stated that someone other than the maker needed to amend a motion.
Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Commissioners Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: Mayor Triolo,
Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner Maxwell.
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to extend the
moratorium on disconnects of water and electric through September 14, 2020.
Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.
ADJOURNMENT:
Action:  Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to adjourn
the meeting at 7:30 PM.
Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.
Pam Triolo, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

Minutes Approved: October 6, 2020

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.



Action:

MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COMMISSION
1st PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE BUGDET
BY TELECONFERENCE
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 10, 2020 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Triolo on the above date at 6:04 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and
Commissioners Scott Maxwell (arrived at 6:25 PM) and Herman Robinson. Also present were
City Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau, and City Clerk Deborah
M. Andrea. Commissioner Omari Hardy was absent.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Herman Robinson.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Resolution No. 35-2020 - First Public Hearing - Adopt the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Tentative Millage Rate and set the second public hearing for September 24, 2020

Mayor Triolo announced that the Special Meeting of the City of Lake Worth Beach
Commission was the first mandatory public hearing on the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 proposed
millage rate and proposed budget as required by section 200.065, Florida Statutes. She stated
that on July 21, 2020, the City Commission had set a proposed millage rate of 5.4945 mils,
which was advertised in the Truth-in-Millage (TRIM) notices sent to all property owners and
the proposed millage rate of 5.4945 mils for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 is 8.29% more than the
roll-back rate of 5.074 mils. She explained that the purpose of the meeting was to adopt the
tentative budget and tentative millage rate and to set the second public hearing to adopt the
final budget and millage rate for September 24, 2020 at 6:00 pm.

City Attorney Goddeau read the resolution by title only.

RESOLUTION NO. 35-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, A
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; LEVYING
MUNICIPAL TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1,
2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS AND
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Resolution No. 35-2020 adopting the tentative millage rate of 5.4945 mils for Fiscal Year
2020-2021 and scheduling the second public hearing for September 24, 2020.

City Clerk Andrea read the public comment submitted by the following:

Edwin Contreras wrote a reminder to Commissioner Hardy to read the backup before giving
the dias his thesis on each resolution as too much time had been wasted as of the late.



Pg. 2, Special Meeting, 9/10/20

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

B. Resolution No. 36-2020 - First Public Hearing - Adopt the Debt Service Rate and set the
second public hearing for September 24, 2020

City Attorney Goddeau read the resolution by title only.

RESOLUTION NO. 36-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, A
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; LEVYING
MUNICIPAL TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR VOTER APPROVED DEBT SERVICE FUND FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER
30, 2021; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Resolution No. 36-2020 adopting the tentative debt service millage rate of 1.1100 mils for
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and scheduling the second public hearing for September 24, 2020.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

C. Resolution No. 37-2020 - First Public Hearing - Adopt the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Proposed
City Budget and set the second public hearing for September 24, 2020

City Attorney Goddeau read the resolution by title only.

RESOLUTION NO. 37-2020, A GENERAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE
OF FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR ITS
NECESSARY OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE
VARIOUS FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; PROVIDING
FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Resolution 37-2020 adopting the proposed operating budget for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and
scheduling the second public hearing for September 24, 2020.

Comments/request summary:

1. Commissioner Robinson said that he looked forward to a discussion about paying a
living wage to City employees of at least $15 per hour.

2. Vice Mayor Amoroso commented that he had spoken with staff regarding raising the
hourly wage to $15, but the union would not allow individual raises; there had to be
raises across the board.



Vote:

Action:

Pg. 3, Special Meeting, 9/10/20

City Manager Bornstein stated that he could provide a report regarding employees
making less than $15 an hour.

Commissioner Robinson suggested that the unions participate in the conversation and
take responsibility for not allowing raises.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

D. Resolution No. 38-2020 - establish the Solid Waste Annual Assessment for Residential

Refuse Rates for Fiscal Year 2020-2021
City Attorney Goddeau read the resolution by title only.

RESOLUTION NO. 38-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF SOLID WASTE SERVICES, FACILITIES AND
PROGRAMS IN THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA; IMPOSING
SOLID WASTE SERVICE ASSESSMENTS AGAINST ASSESSED PROPERTY
LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY; APPROVING THE RATE OF ASSESSMENT,;
CONFIRMING, APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT
ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020; PROVIDING FOR COLLECTION OF THE
ASSESSMENTS PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM COLLECTION METHOD AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Resolution No. 38-2020 - establishing the Solid Waste Annual Assessment for Residential
Refuse Rates for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

City Attorney Goddeau explained that the agenda memo tried to explain the assessment
because the letter that was sent to residents contained statutory language and was difficult
to understand. She clarified that the increase for the year would be $11.68 and was the first
increase since 20009.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Robinson thanked City Attorney Goddeau for reading the backup.

City Clerk Andrea read the public comments submitted by the following:

Emmanuel Marcos, Managing member of Marcos Management LLC, wrote in opposition to
the assessment increase.

Miguel Robles wrote in opposition to the assessment increase.

Linda Weitzman, Member-manager of Liny Leeds LLC, wrote in opposition to the assessment
increase.



Pg. 4, Special Meeting, 9/10/20

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Resolution No. 39-2020 - establish the Stormwater Annual Assessment for Fiscal Year
2020-2021

City Attorney Goddeau did not read the resolution.

RESOLUTION NO. 39-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES,
FACILITIES AND PROGRAMS IN THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA; IMPOSING STORMWATER SERVICE ASSESSMENTS AGAINST
ASSESSED PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY; APPROVING THE RATE
OF ASSESSMENT; CONFIRMING, APPROVING AND ADOPTING THE
STORMWATER ASSESSMENT ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021; PROVIDING FOR
COLLECTION OF THE ASSESSMENTS PURSUANT TO THE UNIFORM
COLLECTION METHOD AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
Resolution No. 39-2020 - establishing the Stormwater Annual Assessment for Fiscal Year
2020-2021.

City Clerk Andrea announced that there were no public comment cards.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

B. Adopt the Fiscal Year 2021 Administrative Charge for Services

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2020 Administrative Charge for Services, subject to final
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Operating Budget on September 24, 2020.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

C. Adopt the Fiscal Year Contribution from Enterprise Operations

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021 Contributions from Enterprise Operations, subject to final
adoption of the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Operating Budget on September 24, 2020.

Comments/requests summary:

1. Commissioner Robinson asked for clarification of the item for the public.



Pg. 5, Special Meeting, 9/10/20

City Manager Bornstein stated that the Enterprise Funds were the City-owned
businesses such as the Electric Utility, Water Utility, etc. He explained that the City
received profits back, which were deposited into the General Fund to help subsidize
the budget.

Commissioner Robinson said that the Enterprise Funds showed how important the
Electric Utility was to the City.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner
Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioners Maxwell and Hardy.

ADJOURNMENT:

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to adjourn
the meeting at 6:25 PM.

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Hardy.

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk
Minutes Approved: October 6, 2020

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.



MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
BY TELECONFERENCE
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2020 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Triolo on the above date at 6:00 PM by
teleconference from City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and
Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy and Herman Robinson. Also present were City
Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Deborah M. Andrea.

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: was led by Mayor Pam Triolo.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: was led by Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso.

AGENDA - Additions/Deletions/Reordering:
There were no changes to the agenda.

PRESENTATIONS: (there was no public comment on Presentation items)
There were no Presentations on the agenda.

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

Vice Mayor Amoroso: did not make any comments.

Commissioner Maxwell: thanked the Electric Utility for their prompt response in addressing
the lighting issues in District One.

Commissioner Robinson: reported that the painting of the Wall of Unity was rained out but
would be held the following Saturday. He stated that the Census should be a priority and was
thankful for the City’s balanced budget. He expressed disappointment in the Palm Beach
County Board of County Commissioner’s budget which did not include money for body
cameras for deputies until 2023. He announced that Viva La Playa had a successful opening
and the library would reopen next week. He said that he looked forward to receiving more
grants and stated that the City should prioritize paying all employees a minimum of $15 an
hour next year.

Commissioner Hardy: congratulated Lee Lipton and his team on the opening of Viva La Playa
at the beach. He said that it was positive that the Sheriff’s office was moving towards using
body cameras, but expressed dismay that they would not be in use until 2023. He stated that
the county should deal with the COVID infection and not re-open the schools, which was very
risky.

Mayor Triolo: announced that she was able to meet the linemen at the Electric Utility and read
the proclamation to them in person; she said that they deserved respect for the risks they took
on behalf of the City. She said that the City needed everyone to fill out the census. She thanked
everyone at Viva La Playa and said that the food was excellent and was a great addition to the
beach.



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT
AGENDA:

Deborah Andrea, City Clerk, stated that there were no public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
the following minutes:

A. Budget Work Session #4 - August 27, 2020
B. Regular Meeting - September 1, 2020

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.

CONSENT AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
the Consent Agenda.

A. Resolution No. 34-2020 — FY 2020 — 2021 Community Development Block Grant
Agreement

B. Community Code Compliance Collections Agreement with Coast Professional, Inc.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:
There were no Public Hearings on the agenda.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
There were no Unfinished Business items on the agenda.

NEW BUSINESS:

A. Discussion about how the Commission will fill the District 2 seat

Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded and amended by Vice Mayor Amoroso
to table the item until one of the first meetings after qualifying.

Commissioner Hardy objected stating that motions were not allowed on discussion items.

City Attorney Torcivia explained that there could be a motion to table any item. He said
that the Commission could appoint a successor by majority vote when the seat was vacated.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioner Maxwell.
NAYS: Commissioners Hardy and Robinson.



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

B. Discussion on how to reduce speeding on Lake and Lucerne Avenues

City Clerk Andrea asked if the Mayor would like to hear public comments read before she
started the timer.

Commissioner Hardy asked to review the rules of the meetings regarding having the
Commissioner who brought forth the item be the first to discuss the item.

Mayor Triolo stated that the TPA would facilitate discussions with FDOT.
City Clerk Andrea asked if she should set the timer for five minutes per Commissioner.

City Attorney Torcivia said that he was not aware of any rules regarding an order of
speaking, but each Commissioner would have five minutes to speak so that the item would
not exceed 30 minutes.

Commissioner Hardy said that there was a hit and run recently and stated that there should
be changes to the corridor to slow the traffic down and it should be a priority.

Commissioner Maxwell said that FDOT would need to be part of a traffic study and that
everyone agreed that the traffic needed to be slowed down. He stated that a plan would be
needed to prevent cars from cutting through the City.

Commissioner Robinson said that speeding in the neighborhoods was always a concern
and that it was a good thing if people were coming to the City. He opined that a work
session date should be set.

Commissioner Maxwell explained that there were a lot of cars downtown and many cars
cut through the City to avoid traffic lights. He said that it would be necessary to know
where the cars came from and that people drove irresponsibly. He stated that a work
session would be needed with input from FDOT.

Mayor Triolo said that discussions were usually for work sessions and then the item would
move to a meeting agenda.

City Manager Bornstein reported that the last time Lake and Lucerne Avenues a major
makeover was with federal funding projects. He said that he had been directed to work
with FDOT about the avenues’ ownership and a major makeover was needed. He stated
that speeding was a problem in many cities and funding would be necessary to proceed;
FDOT did not have any funding available.

Mayor Triolo said that the TPA had plans in the work for those areas and the City could
apply for funding for local initiatives.

Jamie Brown, Public Works Director, explained that there would be two projects involving
Lake and Lucerne Avenues, traffic circle improvements on 8" St. between Lake and
Lucerne in 2022 and roadway millage and resurfacing on Lake and Lucerne in 2023 that
were in preliminary engineering.

Commissioner Hardy said that cars could not move quickly if there was traffic and the two



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

issues required different solutions. He stated that City residents were speeding, not just
people cutting through the City.

Vice Mayor Amoroso agreed with the other Commissioners and said that a work session
would be needed with participation from FDOT and TPA.

Commissioner Robinson said that the City would not have the money to address the issues;
FDOT owned the streets and should pay.

Vice Mayor Amoroso iterated that parking was an issue downtown and that people had
used the Gulfstream Hotel parking area, which would not be available when the hotel was
renovated and open.

City Clerk Andrea read the comment cards submitted by the following:

Lorien DeBruyn wrote that she had witnessed multiple car accidents on the downtown streets
of Lucerne & Lake Avenues and urged the City to act.

Anthony Fall wrote to ask that the Commission put speed bumps and stop signs on Lake and
Lucerne Avenues to address the issues there.

Anna Karabensh wrote to request that the Commission consider ways to slow traffic on Lake
and Lucerne (in particular west of Dixie Hwy) and promote safe passage for cyclists and
pedestrians along those roadways.

Jaime & Star Triana wrote that their vehicle was totaled by a hit and run accident while parked
in front of their unit on Lucerne Avenue.

Nick Nardone wrote that there have been half a dozen accidents on Lucerne by speeding drivers
and requested that pedestrian signs be installed.

C. Resolution stating that the City will not honor nor celebrate Columbus Day and that it will
instead honor and celebrate Indigenous People's Day

Commissioner Hardy asked City Manager Bornstein to search his Administrative Orders
for the meeting procedures.

Mayor Triolo asked where the backup was as she had not received anything.

City Clerk Andrea replied that she had emailed the backup to the Commissioners after she
received it at 4:02 PM that afternoon.

Mayor Triolo asked when the backup had to be added to the agenda.
City Clerk Andrea replied that the backup for the meeting was to have been added by
September 8; according to rule 12 in the rules and procedure resolution, an item had to be

added to the agenda by noon 11 days before the scheduled meeting.

City Attorney Torcivia responded that any changes to the agenda would have to be
submitted in writing by 5 PM the Friday before the meeting.



Action:

Action:

Action:

Action:

Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

Commissioner Hardy stated that he was not seeking to add anything to the agenda and the
item made it to the agenda.

Mayor Triolo stated that the Commission needed to look over the backup, but nothing had
been added so the item was not on the agenda; she moved on to the next item.

No action was taken as the backup had not been added to the agenda in time.

LAKE WORTH ELECTRIC UTILITY:

NEW BUSINESS:

1) Policy Direction regarding the resumption of City utility disconnects for non-payment and
amendment to Resolution 21-2020 to remove the reference to July 16, 2020 and insert “to
the end of the City moratorium on utility disconnects currently in place”

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
the resumption of City utility shutoffs for non-payment effective October 1 and amend
Resolution 21-2020 to remove the reference to July 16, 2020 and insert “to the end of the City
moratorium on utility disconnects currently in place”.

Amendment to the motion by Commissioner Robinson that water should not be disconnected
until an apartment or building was vacant. Amendment was not accepted by Vice Mayor
Amoroso.

Friendly amendment made by Commissioner Maxwell to not bifurcate the utility bill and
continue with the entire disconnect (which reverted back to the original motion).

Comments/requests summary:

1. Mayor Triolo said that FPL had released a statement that they would resume issuing final
notices in September and the City should follow FPL’s policy and not resume
disconnections until October. She stated that the City should continue to work with the
customers who could not pay to set up payment plans and that disconnection might be the
only way to learn if the units were occupied or vacant.

2. Commissioner Robinson insisted that the water be left on in the interest of health and safety
and in service to the community even if the electricity is shut off. He stated that water was
essential for life and it would be inhumane to shut it off.

3. Vice Mayor Amoroso asked for clarity on the motion on the table.

4. Commissioner Maxwell said that operations needed to know which properties were
actually occupied. He stated that the City had gone beyond trying to contact those who
were behind in their payments and perhaps the customers would contact the City when
their utilities were disconnected. He said that the City was not in the position to keep this
going and how would they recoup the unpaid bills.

5. Commissioner Robinson asked if the City could maintain humane conditions by leaving
the water on since it would not break the bank.



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

Action:

City Clerk Andrea explained the motion and the two amendments.

6. Commissioner Maxwell stated that he heard the arguments regarding keeping the water on
and asked what the City should do about all the unpaid bills. He said that he was not being
inhumane, but the City had bent over backwards to contact the customers in arrears and
operations needed to know who was still out there; this was the way to make that
determination because a customer would reach out to the City when their service was
disconnected. He asked Commissioner Robinson how to deal with the finances.

Commissioner Robinson stated that turning off the electricity would get the customers’
attention. He expressed concern with collecting the debts, but it would not be a financial
hardship for the City to keep the water on.

Commissioner Hardy asked what the motion was.

City Attorney Torcivia explained that the original motion was on the table but had not been
seconded.

Commissioner Maxwell seconded the original motion.

Subsidiary motion made by Commissioner Hardy and seconded by Commissioner Robinson
that water shut offs would not be included in the policy.

7. Mayor Triolo said that she had requested that the disconnects be for both electric and water
to resume next month in life with FPL’s policy. She questioned whether she should vote
on the item because her life and livelihood were in danger due to the death threats and hate
mail she had received after the video was posted indicating that she had turned people’s
power Off.

Commissioner Hardy asked for a point of information, if there was a rule about having to
vote on an issue.

City Attorney Torcivia responded that Commissioners had to vote unless there were a
conflict of interest or they were absent from the room.

Commissioner Hardy said that as public officials, criticism should be expected, but
personal attacks were unacceptable. He stated that he had lambasted Mayor Triolo over
not holding a special meeting regarding shutoffs and avoiding responsibility to be a leader.

Mayor Triolo explained that there were no orders for virtual meetings at that time and she
was moving her father to Florida. She stated that Commissioner Hardy called the media
after he already knew that disconnections had been stopped.

Commissioner Maxwell said that there had been untold negative publicity for the City
because there was documentation that Commissioner Hardy already knew that no one was
without service at the time of the meeting.

Commissioner Robinson left the meeting at 7:21 PM.



Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, September 15, 2020

8. Commissioner Hardy explained that he had put forth the motion because he said that no
one should have their utilities shut off and wondered if there was support to continue the
full moratorium and if not, at least to keep the water on.

9. Commissioner Maxwell agreed with Mayor Triolo that the moratorium should continue
until the end of September and that would be the end of the road for the conversation.

Action:  Subsidiary motion withdrawn by Commissioner Hardy and replaced by a motion made by
Commissioner Hardy to extend the moratorium until October 6, the next City Commission
regular meeting. Motion failed for lack of a second.

10. Vice Mayor Amoroso stated that if the City was going to match FPL then the disconnects
should resume on October 1 without having another meeting and continuing the issue.

Vote on Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
original and Hardy. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Robinson.
motion:

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:

City Attorney Torcivia did not provide a report.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

City Manager Bornstein did not provide a report.

ADJOURNMENT:

Action:  Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to adjourn
the meeting at 7:30 PM.

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Hardy. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Robinson.

Pam Triolo, Mayor
ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk
Minutes Approved: October 6, 2020

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.



MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
SPECIAL CITY COMMISSION MEETING
2ND PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE BUDGET
BY TELECONFERENCE
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 24, 2020 - 6:00 PM

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Triolo on the above date at 6:00 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, Florida.

ROLL CALL: Present were Mayor Pam Triolo; Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso; and
Commissioners Scott Maxwell, Omari Hardy (arrived at 6:05 PM) and Herman Robinson.
Also present were City Manager Michael Bornstein, City Attorney Christy L. Goddeau, and
City Clerk Deborah M. Andrea.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Herman Robinson.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Resolution No. 35-2020 - Second Public Hearing - Adopt the Fiscal Year 2020-2021
Millage Rate

RESOLUTION NO. 35-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, A
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; LEVYING
MUNICIPAL TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1,
2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS AND
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR THE
EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF

Mayor Triolo announced that the purpose of the Special Meeting of the City of Lake Worth
Beach Commission was to convene the second mandatory public hearing on the Fiscal Year
2020-2021 millage rate and budget as required by sections 166.241 and 200.065, Florida
Statutes. She stated that on July 21, 2020, the City Commission had set a proposed millage
rate of 5.4945 mils, which was advertised in the Truth-in-Millage (TRIM) notices sent to all
property owners. She said that the first public mandatory hearing was held on September 10,
2020, where the City Commission adopted the proposed millage rate of 5.4945 mils for Fiscal
Year 2020-2021, a proposed tax increase over the rolled-back rate; adopted a tentative Debt
Service Rate for Fiscal Year 2020-2021; and a tentative budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.
She declared that the second public hearing was advertised in the Palm Beach Post on
September 21, 2020, announcing the proposed tax increase over the rolled-back rate and the
budget appropriation summary (the City received the proof of publication). She stated that the
City’s proposed millage rate was 5.4945, which was an 8.27% increase over the rolled-back
rate, necessary to fund the budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and the ad valorem tax revenues
would be increased to cover City operating costs. She announced that first public hearing was
regarding the millage rate for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.



Pg. 2, Special Meeting, 9/24/20

Action:

Vote:

Action:

Vote:

Mayor Triolo opened the public hearing. She asked if there were any public comment
cards.

Deborah Andrea, City Clerk. stated that there were no public comments.
Mayor Triolo closed the public hearing and called for a motion.

Motion made by Commissioner Maxwell and seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso to approve
Resolution No. 35-2020 adopting the millage rate of 5.4945 mils for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Hardy.

B. Resolution No. 36-2020 - Second Public Hearing - Adopt the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Debt
Service Rate

RESOLUTION NO. 36-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, A
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA; LEVYING
MUNICIPAL TAXES ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, FOR VOTER APPROVED DEBT SERVICE FUND FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER
30, 2021; REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT
HEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF

Mayor Triolo announced that the next item was a public hearing to adopt the final debt
service rate for FY 2020-2021. She opened the public hearing and asked if there were any
public comment cards.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.
Mayor Triolo closed the public hearing and called for a motion.

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
Resolution No. 36-2020 adopting the final debt service millage rate of 1.1100 mils for Fiscal
Year 2020-2021.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Robinson. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Hardy.

C. Resolution No. 37-2020 - Second Public Hearing - Adopt the fiscal year 2020-2021 City
Budget

RESOLUTION NO. 37-2020, A GENERAL APPROPRIATION RESOLUTION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE
OF FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL APPROPRIATIONS FOR ITS
NECESSARY OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE
VARIOUS FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2021; PROVIDING
FOR THE EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF



Action:

Vote:

Action:

Pg. 3, Special Meeting, 9/24/20

Commissioner Hardy arrived at 6:05 PM.

Mayor Triolo announced that the next item was the public hearing to adopt the final budget
for FY 2020-2021. She asked if there were any public comment cards.

City Clerk Andrea stated that there were no public comments.
Mayor Triolo closed the public hearing and called for a motion.

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Maxwell to approve
Resolution 37-2020 adopting the final budget for the Fiscal Year 2020-2021.

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners Maxwell
and Robinson. NAYS: Commissioner Hardy.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS:

City Clerk Andrea read the public comments submitted by the following:

Edwin Contreras wrote to request that Commissioner Robinson check his sarcasm at the door,
keep control of his emotions, focus on his own efforts, provide backup for items he put on the
agenda and practice Roberts Rules of Order. He expressed appreciation for everyone’s hard
work during difficult times.

Cheryl Leventhal wrote in opposition to the electric rate resolution which included a minimum
bill on low usage customers including solar customers.

Joan Brewer wrote requesting a repeal of the minimum bill requirement.

Anna Schafer wrote congratulating the EU on its growth and suggested that the City do
something about the EU’s bad reputation.

Brian Luongo wrote in opposition to charging net metering customers a minimum bill.
Steve Helsby wrote with objections to the net metering billing policy.

Andrew Mearns wrote to request the elimination of the unfair $30 monthly extra fee levied
against customers with solar panels.

CONSENT AGENDA:

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to approve
the Consent Agenda.

A. Resolution No. 40-2020 — Establish the FY 21 rates, fees and charges for the Water System
RESOLUTION NO. 40-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,

PROVIDING FOR WATER SYSTEMS RATES AND CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR
2020-2021; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF



Pg. 4, Special Meeting, 9/24/20

\Vote:

Action:

F.

ALL RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Resolution No. 41-2020 — Establish the FY21 rates, fees and charges for the City Sub-
Regional Sewer Utility

RESOLUTION NO. 41-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE OF THE REGIONAL
SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF
CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS OR CONFLICTING PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Resolution No. 42-2020 — Establish the FY21 rates, fees and charges for the Local Sewer
System

RESOLUTION NO. 42-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR USE OF SEWAGE DISPOSAL
SYSTEM OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE

Resolution No. 43-2020 — Establish the FY21 Electric Utility rates

RESOLUTION NO. 43-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
PROVIDING FOR RATES, FEES AND CHARGES, AND REGULATIONS FOR ALL
ELECTRICITY SOLD BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA FOR
USE OF ELECTRIC LIGHT AND POWER SYSTEM FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021,;
REPEALING ALL RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Resolution No. 44-2020 — Establish the FY21 fees and charges for City services
RESOLUTION NO. 44-2020 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA,
ESTABLISHING REASONABLE FEES FOR CITY SERVICES AND OTHER
CHARGES FOR THE 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Adopt the FY21 Position Count

Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.

ADJOURNMENT:

Motion made by Vice Mayor Amoroso and seconded by Commissioner Robinson to adjourn
the meeting at 6:13 PM.



Pg. 5, Special Meeting, 9/24/20

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Triolo, Vice Mayor Amoroso and Commissioners
Maxwell, Hardy and Robinson. NAYS: None.

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk
Minutes Approved: October 6, 2020

A digital audio recording of this meeting will be available in the Office of the City Clerk.



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services

TITLE:
Agreement with RSM US LLP for annual independent financial auditing services

SUMMARY:

The Agreement with RSM US LLP authorizes the consultant to provide the annual
financial auditing services for the City of Lake Worth Beach and City of Lake Worth Beach
CRA for the period of 3 consecutive years with possibility to extend for 2 additional 1-
year terms.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

Financial Services Department Purchasing Division issued Request for Proposal
RFP#20-208 for provision of the independent annual financial auditing services in
accordance with the Florida Statute 218.391 Auditor Selection Procedure. The audits are
to be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, the standards
set forth for financial audits in the U.S. General Accounting Office's (GAO) Government
Auditing Standards, the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act of 1996 and the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local
Governments, and Nonprofits, and the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of
Florida, as amended from time to time. It is the intention of the City to enter into the long-
term agreement for the services for three (3) consecutive years with possibility to extend
for two (2) one (1) year terms. The City received 9 responses by July 22, 2020. The
Auditor Selection Committee established in accordance to Florida Statute 218.391
Auditor Selection Procedure evaluated and scored 9 proposals at the virtual public
meeting held on August 13, 2020. Proposal submitted by RSM US LLP was the highest
scoring responsive and responsible respondent and is being recommended for an award.
Annual fees for the services are $115,000 for FY2020, $115,000 for FY2021, $118,400
for FY2022, $118,400 for FY2023 and $118,400 for FY2024.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with RSM US LLP for the annual financial
auditing services.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Agreement



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 115,000 115,000 118,400 118,400 118,400
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 115,000 115,000 118,400 118,400 118,400
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Number Account Project FY21 Budget Current Agenda Balance
Description | Number Balance Expenditure
001-1220-513.32-00 $50,208.00
401-6010-531.32-00 | Accounting $19,874.00
402-7010-533.32-00 | & Auditing $29,288.00
405-7421-535.32-00 $5,230.00
101-2010-515.34-51 | Contractual $10,400.00
Services




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(ANNUAL INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AUDITING SERVICES)

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on
by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”’) and RSM US
LLP, a limited liability partnership authorized to do business in the State of Florida (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City issued a Request for Proposal number 20-208 for Annual Independent
Financial Auditing Services in accordance with the section 218.391, Florida Statutes (Auditor selection
procedure) (the “RFP”); and

WHEREAS, the necessary auditing services are to be performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the U.S. General Accounting
Office's (GAO) Government Auditing Standards, the provisions of the Federal Single Audit Act of 1996
and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local
Governments, and Nonprofits, and the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida, as amended
from time to time; and

WHEREAS, Consultant has provided the City with a written proposal in response to the RFP to
provide the services as described and set out in the RFP; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to accept Consultant’s proposal in order for Consultant to render the
services to the City as provided herein; and

WHEREAS, Consultant further warrants that it is experienced and capable of performing the
services hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the
provision of services by Consultant to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained,
the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and Consultant agree as follows:

SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this
Agreement as true and correct statements.

SECTION 2: CONSULTANT’S SERVICES. The Consultant shall provide independent financial auditing
services to the City as more specifically described in RFP, which is incorporated herein by reference. The
City may request additional services as needed based upon mutual agreement between the parties.

SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. No relationship of employer or
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Consultant will act hereunder as an
independent contractor and none of Consultant’s, officers, directors, employees, independent contractors,
representatives or agents performing services for Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall have any
claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this
Agreement. The relationship between the City and Consultant is that of independent contractors, and neither
shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the
other for any purpose expressly or by implication.

SECTION 4: TERM, TIME AND TERMINATION.

Page 1 of 11



a. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the approval of this Agreement
by the City Commission and shall be for an initial term of three (3) years (inclusive of audits for the fiscal
years ending September 30, 2020, 2021 and 2022) unless earlier terminated as stated herein. The parties
may extend the term for two (2) additional fiscal years (inclusive of audits for the fiscal years ending
September 30, 2023 and 2024).

b. Time for Completion. Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement.
Consultant shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as expeditiously as possible and in
accordance with the project schedule as set forth in RFP.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due
to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies,
sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations. The
Consultant or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result of a force majeure event
without being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure event, the
Consultant or City shall resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the Consultant’s
request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services and, if the
Consultant’s failure to perform was without its or its sub-consultant’s fault or negligence, the schedule
and/or any other affected provision of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to the City’s
rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the services at any time. No extension shall be made for
delay occurring more than seven (7) days before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in writing to
the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is necessary.

d. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with or
without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination.

e. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event
that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or
condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement for breach shall provide the
other party with written notice specifying the nature of the breach. The party receiving the notice shall then
have three (3) business days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective
action is not taken within three (3) business days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three
(3) business day period without further notice or demand.

f. Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by
either party, the Consultant shall:

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services
of any sub-consultants.

2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated
services to the City in the format acceptable to City.

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated, to the extent
permissible under applicable professional standards.

g Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights,
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of services provided prior to the date of termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation
existing under the laws of the State of Florida, and as such, this Agreement (and all Exhibits hereto) are
subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith
in any fiscal year of the City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that
no funds are appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs
associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or

Page 2 of 11




appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s
obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Consultant of such occurrence and either
the City or Consultant may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall
specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice. Termination
in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind
whatsoever; however, City shall pay Consultant for all services performed under this Agreement through
the date of termination.

h. Parties’ Understandings Concerning Situation Around COVID-19. Consultant and the
City acknowledge that, at the time of the execution of this Agreement, federal, state and local governments,
both domestic and foreign, have restricted travel and/or the movement of their citizens due to the ongoing
and evolving situation around COVID-19. In addition, like many organizations and companies in the United
States and around the globe, Consultant has restricted its employees from travel and onsite work, whether
at a client facility or Consultant facility, to protect the health of both Consultant’s and its clients’ employees.
Accordingly, to the extent that any of the services described in this Agreement requires or relies on
Consultant or City personnel to travel and/or perform work onsite, either at the City’s or Consultant’s
facilities, including, but not limited to, maintaining business operations and/or IT infrastructure, Consultant
and the City acknowledge and agree that the performance of such work may be delayed, significantly or
indefinitely, and thus certain services described herein may need to be rescheduled and/or suspended.
Consultant and the City agree to provide the other with prompt written notice (not less than five (5) calendar
days) in the event any of the services described herein will need to be rescheduled and/or suspended due to
COVID-19 and this Agreement shall be amended to address changes in scope and/or cost.

SECTION 5: COMPENSATION.

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate Consultant in accordance with the Annual Fees (total all-
inclusive maximum price) set forth in Exhibit “A”. The City shall not reimburse Consultant for any
additional costs incurred as a direct or indirect result of Consultant providing services to the City under this
Agreement and not set forth in Exhibit “A”.

b. Invoices. Consultant shall render invoices to the City for services that have been rendered in
conformity with this Agreement, the RFP and Exhibit “A”. The invoices shall specify the services
performed and the time spent on such work. All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on
the invoice with supporting documentation. Invoices will be reviewed for approval and if an invoice is not
approved, the City will notify Consultant within ten (10) days of deficiencies in the invoice. Once the
deficiencies are corrected and a new or amended invoice submitted, the City shall make payment within
twenty (20) days. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of
Consultant’s invoice.

SECTION 6: INDEMNIFICATION. Consultant, its officers, employees and agents shall indemnify and
hold harmless the City, including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs,
including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused
by the negligence, of Consultant, its officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents employed or
utilized by Consultant in the performance of the services under this Agreement. The City agrees to be
responsible for its own negligence. In no event shall either party be liable to the other for claims of punitive,
consequential, special, or indirect damages. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or Consultant, nor shall
this Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver provided in
section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7: COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION. Each of the parties agrees to perform its
responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative
instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement.

Page 3 of 11



SECTION 8: PERSONNEL. Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall
be performed by Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services
shall be fully qualified and authorized or permitted under federal, state and local law to perform such
services.

SECTION 9: SUB-CONSULTANTS. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a sub-consultant or
to reject the selection of a particular sub-consultant and approve all qualifications of any sub-consultant in
order to make a determination as to the capability of the sub-consultant to perform properly under this
Agreement. All sub-consultants providing professional services to Consultant under this Agreement will
also be required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement. In
the event that a sub- consultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance limits as stated in
this Agreement, Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any claim in excess of the sub-
consultant’s insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the sub-consultant.

SECTION 10: FEDERAL AND STATE TAX. The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales
and Use Tax. Consultant is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number.

SECTION 11: INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, Consultant shall provide proof of
insurance coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must
have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and
Consultant. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written
authorization of the City.

Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage

Professional liability/ $1,000,000 per claim
Errors and Omissions

Commercial general liability $1, 000,000 per occurrence
(Products/completed operations
Contractual, insurance broad form property,

Independent Consultant, personal injury) $2,000,000 annual aggregate
Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired) $ 1,000,000 single limits
Worker’s Compensation $ statutory limits

The commercial general liability and excess liability policies will name the City as an additional insured on
a primary, non-contributing basis and proof of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way
of an endorsement to same or certificate of insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall
clearly indicate that Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required
for strict compliance with this section. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve
Consultant of its liability and obligations under this Agreement.

SECTION 12: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The City and Consultant each binds itself and its partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners,
successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this
Agreement. Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable.

SECTION 13: DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW., VENUE AND REMEDIES. All claims arising out of

Page 4 of 11



this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s fee
equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County. Agreements reached in mediation shall be
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement
will be held in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive
of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No
single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or
further exercise thereof.

SECTION 14: WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE
RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL
BY JURY AND AGREE ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE
RESOLVED BY A STATE OR FEDERAL JUDGE IN PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA.

SECTION 15: ACCESS AND AUDITS. Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all payments
made by the City under this Agreement for at least three (3) years after completion of this Agreement and
longer if required by applicable federal or state law. The City shall have access to such books, records, and
documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours,
at Consultant’s place of business. In no circumstances will Consultant be required to disclose any
confidential or proprietary information regarding its products and service costs.

SECTION 16: NONDISCRIMINATION. Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees are
treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national
origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation.

SECTION 17: AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE. Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has and
will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide the services
required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the services
under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the
City upon request.

SECTION 18: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to
any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this
Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

SECTION 19: PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Consultant will advise the City
immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute.

SECTION 20: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified
mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the City shall be sent to:

City of Lake Worth Beach
Attn: City Manager

Page 5 of 11



7 N. Dixie Highway
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460

and if sent to Consultant, shall be sent to:

RSM US LLP

Attn: Brett Friedman

1555 Palm Beach Lakes Blvd, Suite 700
West Palm Beach, FL 33401

with a copy of any and all legal notices to:

RSM US LLP

Attn: Office of the General Counsel
200 South Wacker Dr., Suite 3900
Chicago, IL 60606

The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other party.
Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt.

SECTION 21: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and Consultant agree that this Agreement sets
forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other than
those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may be
added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties
hereto.

SECTION 22: WAIVER. Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement
shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter.

SECTION 23: PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE. This Agreement shall not be construed more
strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. This is a non-
exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the
same or similar services.

SECTION 24: MATERIALITY. All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material. In the event
Consultant fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, amendments
and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and City
may at its option provide notice to Consultant to terminate for cause.

SECTION 25: LEGAL EFFECT. This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved
by the City. The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City.

SECTION 26: NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS. Each party
will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced
against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement. Each party
agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit
in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance
coverage.

SECTION 27: SURVIVABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or
imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or
earlier termination.

Page 6 of 11



SECTION 28: COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding upon the parties as of the effective
date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 29: PALM BEACH COUNTY IG. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number
2011-009, Consultant acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by
the Palm Beach County Inspector General. Consultant has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number
2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

SECTION 30: AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. The agreement
of the parties consists of this Agreement, Consultant’s Arrangement Letter (which is incorporated herein
by reference), the RFP (which is incorporated herein by reference), and Exhibit “A”. The parties agree
to be bound by all the terms and conditions set forth in the aforementioned documents. To the extent that
there exists a conflict between the terms and conditions of the aforementioned documents, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit “A” shall prevail with the RFP next taking precedence.
Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid
conflicts between provisions of the various documents.

SECTION 31: OWNERSHIP OF DELIVERABLES. The deliverables, work product, specifications,
calculations, supporting documents, or other work products which are listed as deliverables by Consultant
in Exhibit “A” to the City shall become the property of the City. Consultant may keep copies or samples
thereof and shall have the right to use the same for its own purposes. The City accepts sole responsibility
for the reuse of any such deliverables in a manner other than as initially intended or for any use of
incomplete documents. For clarity, the Audit Documentation for this engagement is the property of
Consultant and constitutes confidential information. For the purposes of this Agreement, the term “Audit
Documentation” shall mean the confidential and proprietary records of Consultant’s audit procedures
performed, relevant audit evidence obtained, other audit-related workpapers, and conclusions reached.
Audit Documentation shall not include custom-developed documents, data, reports, analyses,
recommendations, and deliverables authored or prepared by Consultant for the City under this Agreement,
or any data, reports, analyses, workpapers or other documents belonging to the City and/or furnished to
Consultant by the City.

SECTION 32: REPRESENTATIONS AND BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on
behalf of Consultant, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority and full
legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement
the terms of this Agreement on behalf of Consultant for whom he or she is signing and to bind and obligate
such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement.

SECTION 33: PUBLIC RECORDS. Consultant shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, Chapter
119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section
119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to:

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service.

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a copy
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

(©) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement
and following completion of this Agreement if Consultant does not transfer the records to the City.

(d) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession
of Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If Consultant

Page 7 of 11



transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall destroy any
duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt from public records disclosure
requirements. If Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement,
Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored
electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or
designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City.

IF CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO CONSULTANT'S DUTY TO
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT,
PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR
DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, ATTN: DEBBIE
ANDREA, AT (561) 586-1662, DANDREA@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOYV,
7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460.

SECTION 34: CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Each party (the “Receiving
Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly
and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential
Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the
Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of
disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving
Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to
whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is
or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing
Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of
disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law and professional, regulatory, and/or ethical
standards. If either party plans to disclose or use the other party’s information due to professional,
regulatory, and/or ethical standards, the disclosing party shall, to the extent legally permissible, provide
prior written notice to the other party.

SECTION 35: EXPORT ADMINISTRATION. Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and
regulations of the United States ("Export Laws") to assure that no software deliverable, item, service,
technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly
or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws.

SECTION 36: SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.

(a) Consultant certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott
Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the
City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if Consultant or any of its subcontractors
are found to have submitted a false certification; or if Consultant or any of its subcontractors, are placed on
the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of
this Agreement.

(b) If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, Consultant certifies that it and its
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in
Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may
immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if Consultant, or any of its subcontractors are found
to have submitted a false certification; or if Consultant or any of its subcontractors are placed on the
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran
Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during
the term of this Agreement.

Page 8 of 11



(©) Consultant agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into for
the performance of work under this Agreement.

(d) Consultant agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the City
for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals.

(e) Consultant agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any certification
herein, Consultant shall immediately notify the City of the same.

€3} As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-stated

contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Page 9 of 11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Professional

Services Agreement (Annual Independent Financial Auditing Services) as of the day and year set forth
above.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:
ATTEST: Pam Triolo, Mayor
By:
Deborah M. Andrea. City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR
FINANCIAL LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY
By: By:
Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director
CONSULTANT: RSM US LLP
By: PRl ToR, PR
[Corporate Seal] Print Name: Brett Friedman
Title: Partner

STATE OF Florida )

COUNTY OF___ Broward )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this__15th day of September, 2020, by
Brett Friedman who was physically present, as_Partner (title), of RSM US LLP, a
limited liability partnership, which is authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who is personally
known to me or who has produced the following_n/a — personally known _as identification.

Notary Public (_(U.ﬂ{ m{}‘lﬁ’ajb {}ﬁM(UJ‘L-
Print Name: Cﬁ}ol Morga.n(kuzava
My commission expires:_7/24/2023

SORHG.,  CAROLMORGAN KUZAVA

%% MY COMMISSION # GG 316654
¥ EXPRES: Juy 24,2023
Bonded Thes Hotasy Publc Underrhers 1y

F
% v’
“,

Page 10 of 11



EXHIBIT “A”

(Fees)

Page 11 of 11



COST EFFECTIVENESS

a. Total all-inclusive maximum price. The proposal should contain all pricing information relative to performing
the audit engagement as described in this Request for Proposals. The total all-inclusive maximum price
proposal is to contain all direct and indirect costs including all out-of-pocket expenses. The audit firm shall
provide a truth in negotiations certificate stating that the fees, rates and costs proposed are accurate and
complete. The certificate shall express the audit firm’s understanding that if the proposal is accepted, the fees
will not increase over the agreed upon contractual amount for the entire contract term, regardless of changes
in accounting principles, or State or federal laws, rules and requirements associated with the annual financial
report. The City will not be responsible for expenses incurred in preparing and submitting the proposal. Such
costs should not be included in the proposal.

Fee assumptions

As a national firm, we provide a level of resources and expertise that is unmatched by that of a local firm and
is needed by a city of your size. Resources that are extremely valuable to our clients and help them with
challenges as they arise. In these unusual times with the pandemic and a constantly changing regulatory
environment, we believe that provides a level of cost effectiveness and value for your professional service
dollar that exceeds that of our competitors. We are the leading provider of government audit services to
the South Florida market but we are not a low cost provider. We believe the value, expertise and
reliability we bring to our clients far exceeds the difference in cost for our services. Audit services
provide a critical function to governments especially in difficult times. As this section is titled, we agree that it
is the kind of service that should be based on maximizing quality and cost effectiveness and not about
choosing the lowest cost provider not when the public trust is at stake.

We agree to provide a fixed fee that will not increase over the term of the contract provided the following
assumptions are met:

e Assistance will be supplied by the City personnel, including preparation of requested schedules
and analyses of accounts before we commence fieldwork.

e There will be no significant changes in the nature and scope of the audit.

e Significant changes in the nature and scope of your business may result in annual professional fee
increases. Significant changes may include the addition of new locations, businesses or lines of business;
unpreparedness on the part of the City; an unusual number of adjustments to the financial statements;
and changes in the scope of work as required by management. This does not include new accounting
principles or state or federal laws as noted above.

Should it be necessary to extend the scope of our services due to unpreparedness on the part of the City,
significant accounting revisions requiring multiple adjusting journal entries, or other significant changes in the
nature and scope of the engagement, we will contact you to discuss these items before proceeding with the
out-of-scope work.

First-year costs

We plan to absorb the first-year costs of gathering historical information, building permanent files and
understanding your accounting system and business objectives. We estimate these costs to be approximately
$10,000.

Our acceptance of this engagement is subject to completion of our acceptance procedures.

16



TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATION

RSM hereby cerlifies Inat the fees, rales and costs proposed: are accurate and complete

REM US LLP
peame of Consultant

e 7 S '.?"%-

Authorized Signatune

duly 22, 2020
Date

17




b. Rates provided for partner, specialist, supervisory and staff level employees with hours anticipated for
each. The proposal should include a schedule of professional fees and expenses that supports the total all-
inclusive maximum price. The cost of special services should be disclosed as separate components of the
total all-inclusive maximum price.

| paner | Director | manager | supervisor I senior | ssociate

Rate $500 $400 $300 $250 $200 $150

We understand that the City is looking for value in the professional relationship they have with their auditors.
Value comes from the knowledge, experience and dedication that the auditing firm employs. We have
developed an hourly budget and timeline that we feel will accomplish the objectives of the City and meet your
specific needs. The information which you have shared with us, combined with our experience, has been
used to develop the following plan and audit timeline detailing the amount of time planned by segment and by
level as follows:

Number of hours anticipated

Supervisors
Partners Managers & Seniors Staff Total
22 44 66 88 220

Planning

Fieldwork 66 132 198 264 660
Reporting 22 44 66 88 220
Total Hours by Level 110 220 330 440 1,100

c. Out-of-pocket expenses included in the total all-inclusive maximum price and reimbursement rates. Out-of-
pocket expenses for firm personnel (e.q., travel, lodging and subsistence) will be reimbursed at the rates used
by the City for its employees. All expense reimbursements will be charged against the total all-inclusive
maximum price submitted by the firm. In addition, a statement must be included in the proposal that the firm
will accept reimbursement for travel, lodging and subsistence at the prevailing City rates for its employees.

Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed and the time
required by the individuals assigned to the engagement plus directly billed expenses, including report
processing, travel, meals and fees for services from other professionals, as well as a charge of 5% of fees for
all other expenses, including indirect administrative expenses such as technology, research and library
databases, communications, photocopying, postage and clerical assistance. RSM will accept reimbursement
for travel, lodging and subsistence at the prevailing City rates for its employees.

d. Manner of payment. Progress payments will be made on the basis of hours of work completed during the
course of the engagement and out-of-pocket expenses incurred in accordance with the firm's dollar cost
proposal. Interim billing shall cover a period of not less than a calendar month.

RSM acknowledges and accepts the manner of payment requirement above for the City. Client payments can
be mailed via paper check to our lockbox or distributed to RSM via ACH or wire transfers.

18



e. Annual fees. The fee proposed for each year of the engagement should be separately stated for each fiscal
year end (FY 2020, FY 2021, FY 2022, FY 2023 & FY 2024).

Summary of deliverables Estimated fees

Audit services 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Audit Services - City $104,600 $104,600 $107,700 $107,700  $107,700
Audit Services - CRA 10,400 10,400 10,700 10,700 10,700
Annual Fees

(Total all-inclusive maximum price) 5115000 8115000  $118400  $118400  $118,400

MANAGE
:,. — > ___________ > ______ f
MONITOR
PERFORM
<.
COMMUNICATE

19



RSM

September 1, 2020 RSMUSLLP

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Commission,
City Manager

City of Lake Worth Beach

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460

Attention: Finance Director

This Arrangement Letter is entered into by and between the City of Lake Work Beach, Florida (the “City”,
“you”, or “your”) and RSM US LLP (“RSM”, “we”, “us”, or “our”) pursuant to the Professional Services
Agreement for Annual Independent Financial Auditing Services dated XX/XX/XXXX (the Contract)
between RSM and the City, and reflects our understanding of the arrangements for the services we are to
perform for the City for the term of the Contract.

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

The City has requested that we audit the financial statements of the City’s governmental activities,
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information as of and for the year-ended September 30, 2020 (and thereafter), and as
further described in the City’s Request for Proposal, issued XX/XX/XXX (the RFP), which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our
understanding of this audit engagement by means of this Arrangement Letter.

Our audit will be conducted with the objective of our expressing an opinion on the financial statements.

We will also perform the audit of the City for the year ended September 30, 2020 (and thereafter) to
satisfy the audit requirements imposed by Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General.

We will also perform the audit of the City for the year ended September 30, 2020 (and thereafter) to
satisfy the audit requirements imposed by the Single Audit Act and Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), the Florida Single Audit Act, and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida.

The Responsibilities of the Auditor

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS); Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States (GAS); the provisions of the Single Audit Act; Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. CFR Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards; and the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Compliance Supplement, the Florida Single Audit Act, and
the Rules of the Auditor General for the State of Florida. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

HE POWER OF BEING UNDERSTOOD

TAX | CONSULTINC



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 2

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS. Also, an audit is not designed to detect errors
or fraud that are immaterial to the financial statements. The determination of abuse is subjective;
therefore, GAS does not expect us to provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse.

In making our risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified
during the audit.

We will also communicate to the City (a) any fraud involving senior management and fraud (whether
caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement of the financial
statements that becomes known to us during the audit, and (b) any instances of noncompliance with laws
and regulations that we become aware of during the audit (unless they are clearly inconsequential).

The funds that the City has told us are maintained by the City and that are to be included as part of our
audit are listed in the City’s 2019 financial statements.

The federal and state financial assistance programs and awards that you have told us that the City
participates in and that are to be included as part of the single audit are as listed in the City’s 2019 single
audit report:

We are responsible for the compliance audit of major programs and projects under the Uniform Guidance
and the Florida Single Audit Act, including the determination of major programs and projects, the
consideration of internal control over compliance, and reporting responsibilities.

Our report on internal control will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in controls
of which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal control and performing
tests of internal control consistent with requirements of the standards and regulations identified above.
Our report on compliance matters will address material errors, fraud, abuse, violations of compliance
obligations, and other responsibilities imposed by state and federal statutes and regulations or assumed
by contracts; and any state or federal grant, entitlement or loan program questioned costs of which we
become aware, consistent with requirements of the standards and regulations identified above.

The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting
Framework

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with
governance, acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility:

1. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America;

2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or available to
be issued, and to disclose the date through which subsequent events were evaluated in the financial
statements. Management also agrees that it will not conclude on subsequent events earlier than the
date of the management representation letter referred to below;



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 3

3. For the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error;

4. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for informing
us of all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of such controls
of which it has knowledge;

5. For report distribution; and
6. To provide us with:

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence;

d. When applicable, a summary schedule of prior audit findings for inclusion in the single audit
reporting package; and

e. |If applicable, responses to any findings reported on the schedule of findings and questioned
costs.

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged
with governance, written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit,
including among other items:

1. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this Arrangement Letter;
and

2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management is responsible for identifying and ensuring that the City complies with the laws and
regulations applicable to its activities, and for informing us about all known material violations of such
laws or regulations. In addition, management is responsible for the design and implementation of
programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud or abuse, and for informing us about all known or
suspected fraud or abuse affecting the entity involving management, employees who have significant
roles in internal control, and others where the fraud or abuse could have a material effect on the financial
statements or compliance. Management is also responsible for informing us of its knowledge of any
allegations of fraud or abuse, or suspected fraud or abuse, affecting the entity received in
communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Management is responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Management agrees to include
the auditor’s report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the supplementary
information and indicates that the auditor has reported on such supplementary information. Management
also agrees to present the supplementary information with the audited financial statements or, if the
supplementary information will not be presented with audited financial statements, to make the audited



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 4

financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than
the date of issuance of the supplementary information and the auditor’s report thereon.

Because the audit will be performed in accordance with the Florida Single Audit Act and the Uniform
Guidance, management is responsible for (a) identifying all federal awards and state financial assistance
received and expended; (b) preparing the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance (including notes and noncash assistance received) in accordance with Uniform Guidance
requirements and the Florida Single Audit Act; (c) internal control over compliance; (d) compliance with
federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards and state financial
assistance; (e) making us aware of significant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for
program compliance; (f) following up and taking corrective action on audit findings, including the
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan; and (g) submitting
the reporting package and data collection form.

The City is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud or abuse within the City, and
its knowledge of any fraud or abuse or suspected fraud or abuse affecting the City.

The City’s Records and Assistance

If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the City’s records, the availability of appropriate audit
evidence or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements because
of error, fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets which, in our professional judgment,
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any
course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or issue a
report, or withdrawing from the engagement.

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be
reflected in the City’s books and records. The City will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be
so reflected. Accordingly, the City will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our possession.

The assistance to be supplied by City’s personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of
accounts, has been discussed and coordinated with the City’s Financial Services Director. The timely and
accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of
our audit report.

Nonaudit Services
In connection with our audit, you have requested us to perform certain nonaudit services:

1) Preparation of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
GAS independence standards require that the auditor maintain independence so that opinions, findings,
conclusions, judgments and recommendations will be impartial and viewed as impartial by reasonable
and informed third parties. Before we agree to provide a non-audit service to the City, we determine
whether providing such a service would create a significant threat to our independence for GAS audit
purposes, either by itself or in aggregate with other non-audit services provided. A critical component of
our determination is consideration of management’s ability to effectively oversee the non-audit services to
be performed. The City has agreed that the Financial Services Director possesses suitable skill,
knowledge or experience and that the individual understands the services to be performed sufficiently to
oversee them. Accordingly, the management of the City agrees to the following:

1. The City has designated the Financial Services Director as a senior member of management who
possesses suitable skill, knowledge and experience to oversee the services;



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 5

2. The Financial Services Director will assume all management responsibilities for subject matter and
scope of the preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report;

3. The City will evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and
4. The City accepts responsibility for the results and ultimate use of the services.

GAS further requires that we establish an understanding with the City’s management and those charged
with governance of the objectives of the non-audit services, the services to be performed, and the entity’s
acceptance of its responsibilities, the auditor’s responsibilities and any limitations of the non-audit
services. We believe this Arrangement Letter documents that understanding.

Other Relevant Information

RSM may mention the City’s name and provide a general description of the engagement in RSM ’s client
lists and marketing materials.

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may use third-party service providers to
assist us in providing professional services to the City. In such circumstances, it may be necessary for us
to disclose confidential client information to them. We enter into confidentiality agreements with all third-
party service providers and we are satisfied that they have appropriate procedures in place to prevent the
unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In addition, we may utilize financial
information the City has provided to us in connection with this engagement for purposes of creating
benchmarking data to be used by the City professionals and other clients. This benchmarking data is
aggregated with data from a minimum of five other entities so that users of the data are unable to
associate the data with any single entity in the database.

If any term or provision of this Arrangement Letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such term
or provision will be deemed stricken and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and effect.

In accordance with GAS, a copy of our most recent peer review report is enclosed for your information.

Access to Workpapers

In the event we are requested by the City or authorized by the City to produce our documents or our
personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagement for the City, the City will, so long as we are not a
party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our professional time and
expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to such requests.

The Audit Documentation (as discussed in Section 31 of the Contract) for this engagement is the property
of RSM and constitutes confidential information. However, the City acknowledges and grants your assent
that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their designee, other government audit staffs,
and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access to the Audit Documentation upon their
request and that we shall maintain the Audit Documentation for a period of at least three years after the
date of the report, or for a longer period if we are requested to do so by the cognizant or oversight agency.
Access to requested documentation will be provided under the supervision of RSM’s audit personnel and
at a location designated by our firm.

Termination

Provisions for termination are as described in the Contract.



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 6

Information Security - Miscellaneous Terms

RSM is committed to the safe and confidential treatment of the City’s Confidential Information (as set forth
in Section 34 of the Contract). RSM is required to maintain the confidential treatment of the City’s
Confidential Information consistent with the Contract. The City agrees that it will not provide RSM with any
unencrypted electronic confidential or proprietary information, and the parties agree to utilize
commercially reasonable measures to maintain the confidentiality of the City information, including the
use of collaborate sites to ensure the safe transfer of data between the parties.

RSM or the City may terminate this relationship immediately in either party’s sole discretion if it
determines that continued performance would result in a violation of law, regulatory requirements,
applicable professional standards or other documented standards (which have been previously provided
to the other party), or if either party is placed on a verified sanctioned entity list or if any director or
executive of, or other person closely associated with, either party or its affiliates is placed on a verified
sanctioned person list, in each case, including but not limited to lists promulgated by the Office of Foreign
Assets Control of the U.S. Department of the Treasury, the U.S. State Department, the United Nations
Security Council, the European Union or any other relevant sanctioning authority including the State of
Florida.

Reporting

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the City’s financial statements. Our report
will be addressed to the City Commission. We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will
be expressed. Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an
emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph(s), or withdraw from the engagement.

In addition to our report on the City’s financial statements, we will also issue the following types of reports:

1. Areport on the fairness of the presentation of the City’s schedule of expenditures of federal awards
and state financial assistance for the year ending September 30, 2020 and each fiscal year thereafter
where RSM performs the services under the Contract;

2. Reports on internal control related to the financial statements and major programs and projects.
These reports will describe the scope of testing of internal control and the results of our tests of
internal control;

3. Reports on compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements.
We will report on any noncompliance that could have a material effect on the financial statements and
any noncompliance that could have a material effect, as defined by Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. CFR
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, and the Florida Single Audit Act, on each major program and project;

4. An accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs;
5. A management letter in Accordance with the Rules of the Auditor General of the State of Florida;
6. Independent auditor’s report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional

Standards, AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter
10.800, Rules of the Auditor General.



City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida
September 1, 2020
Page 7

The Contract and this Arrangement Letter constitute the complete and exclusive statement of agreement
between RSM and the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, superseding all proposals, oral or written, and
all other communications with respect to the terms of the engagement between the parties.

Electronic Signatures and Counterparts

Each party hereto agrees that any electronic signature of a party to this Arrangement Letter or any
electronic signature to a document contemplated hereby (including the Contract) is intended to
authenticate such writing and shall be as valid, and have the same force and effect, as a manual
signature. Any such electronically signed document shall be deemed (i) to be "written" or "in writing," (ii)
to have been signed and (iii) to constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of
business and an original written record when printed from electronic files. Each party hereto also agrees
that electronic delivery of a signature to any such document (via email or otherwise) shall be as effective
as manual delivery of a manual signature. For purposes hereof, “electronic signature” includes, but is not
limited to, (i) a scanned copy (as a "pdf" (portable document format) or other replicating image) of a
manual ink signature, (ii) an electronic copy of a traditional signature affixed to a document, (iii) a
signature incorporated into a document utilizing touchscreen capabilities or (iv) a digital signature. This
Arrangement Letter and the Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall
be considered an original instrument, but all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement.
Paper copies or "printouts,” of such documents if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral,
mediation or administrative proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and
under the same conditions as other original business records created and maintained in documentary
form. Neither party shall contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of electronically signed
documents on the basis of the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception to
the hearsay rule.

If the Contract and this Arrangement Letter reflects the arrangements as the City understands them,
please sign and date the enclosed copy and return it to us.

RSM US LLP

i Arndan

Brett Friedman

Partner

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA
By:

ATTEST: Pam Triolo, Mayor

By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR

FINANCIAL LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY

By: By:

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Legal

TITLE:

Consideration of settlement with Plaintiff, Yoexis Aaron Melendrez Borlot in the amount of
$68,500 (inclusive of attorney’s fees)

SUMMARY:

This is a request to settle a lawsuit with Mr. Melendrez Borlot for injuries he sustained in an
automobile accident that occurred in August 2018. If approved, the claimant will execute a
general release in favor of the City.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

This case arises out of an accident that occurred on August 7, 2018, when a garbage truck
driven by a city employee rear-ended Plaintiff, Yoexis Aaron Melendrez Borlot, on I-95, causing
the Plaintiff’s vehicle to in turn impact the vehicle in front of Plaintiff. Plaintiff's vehicle sustained
a significant amount of damage to both the front and rear ends. Plaintiff is a lead professional
dancer with Ballet Palm Beach but has stopped dancing due to the pain allegedly caused by
this accident. To date, Plaintiff has medical bills of approximately $32,000, and there is the
possibility of future surgery.

Recently, the City participated in court ordered mediation where the parties have tentatively
agreed to a settlement of $68,500, which is inclusive of attorney’s fees and costs. The
settlement agreement is contingent upon City Commission approval, and is recommended.

MOTION:

Move to approve the settlement with Plaintiff in the amount of $68,500 (inclusive of attorney’s
fees), in exchange for a complete release.

ATTACHMENT(S):
Fiscal Impact Analysis



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $68,500 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact $68,500 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project FY20 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

520-1332- Self-

513-45-60 Insurance




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Legal/Risk

TITLE:

Fifth Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Ben Few & Company, Inc.

SUMMARY:

The Amendment authorizes Ben Few & Company, Inc., to continue providing risk management
services for the period from September 30, 2020 to September 30, 2021, at the same fee of
$48,000.00 annually or $4,000 monthly.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City of Lake Worth Beach has utilized the services of Ben Few & Company (“Consultant”)
for many years. In 2011, the Consultant was selected through an RFP process as the City’'s
insurance consultant. Since then, the City entered into a new professional services agreement
in 2015, for comprehensive risk management services with Consultant. The Agreement allows
Consultant to work closely with in-house staff to facilitate, among other things, RFPs for the
selection of an insurance broker for appropriate insurance coverages, RFPS for the selection
of third-party managers/administrators, and investigations and adjustments of claims. In
addition, Consultant continues to assist staff with risk management issues throughout the City.

The Fifth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement extends the agreement for one
year at a rate of $48,000 annually. The Agreement may be terminated at any time with a 30
day notice to either party.

MOTION:

Move to approve the Fifth Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement with Ben Few
& Company, Inc.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Fifth Amendment
Original Agreement



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $48,000 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact $48,000 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Number | Account Project Fy21 Current Agenda Balance
Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure
52013315133450 | Contractual $81,000.00 | $81,000.00 | $48,000.00 | $33,000.00
Services

C. Department Fiscal Review:




FIFTH AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS FIFTH AMENDM% TO _PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Fifth
Amendment”) is made this _2 g y of 2020, between the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation (“City”), and Ben Few & Company, Inc., a corporation authorized
to do business in the State of Florida (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City has utilized Consultant's risk management services since 2011, when
Consultant was selected through a competitive selection process; and

WHEREAS, the City and Consultant entered into a new Professional Services Agreement for
Comprehensive Risk Management Services (the “Agreement”) on September 30, 2015, which expanded
the services provided by Consultant, and that Agreement was extended by First Amendment from
September 30, 2016 to September 30, 2017, by Second Amendment from September 30, 2017 to
September 30, 2018, by Third Amendment from September 30, 2018 to September 30, 2019, and by
Fourth Amendment from September 30, 2019 to September 30, 2020 (“Amendments”); and

WHEREAS, the City and Consuitant desire to amend the Agreement to extend the term to
September 30, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the remainder of the Agreement and relevant Amendments, including the current
compensation of $48,000 per year, will remain in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and Consultant agree as follows:

SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this Fifth
Amendment as true and correct statements.

SECTION 2: AMENDMENTS TO AGREEMENT AND FIFTH AMENDMENT.

a. The Term of the Agreement which was extended by the Amendments is further extended by this
Fifth Amendment to September 30, 2021, unless earlier terminated as set forth in the
Agreement.

b. The total compensation to be paid to Consultant shall not exceed forty-eight thousand dollars
($48,000) for the additional year of service, said payment to be made at a rate of $4,000 per
month.

SECTION 3: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and the Consultant agree that the Agreement, the
Amendments and this Fifth Amendment set forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there
are no promises or understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and
conditions contained in the Agreement, the Amendments, or this Fifth Amendment may be added to,
modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

SECTION 4: EFFECTIVENESS. Except for the provisions of the Agreement specifically modified by the
Amendments and this Fifth Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Fifth Amendment on
the day and year first above written.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:
Pam Triolo, Mayor
ATTEST: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:
Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney

/phr

Approved for financial sufficiency:

Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Dir.

BEN FE COMPANYyINC
[Corporate Seal] .
By:

ZBén Few, Il CEO

STATE OF FLORJDA —~ — )

COUNTY OF )

The forefoing i ment was acknowledg(gd before me thisﬂ(’)_cég day of
by a8 (e of Ben Few & Company, Ifc.,

authorized to do’ business in the State of Florida, and who is personally known to

produced the following ~_as idenftificatiom:

cofporation
e or who has

Notary Public

Print Name:
My commission expires:

WG BRUCE D. GREEN
%5 MY COMMISSION # GG 933213

EXPIRES: March 20, 2024




L,

e —
[ ~
| <.
N -
. ————
< ~
. N - .
. - A -
;
. L N
e )
RN .

l’ W33RD 0 30UR8
CISEER DD § MOIZBIMMOD w
' 1508 05 dowM ;233
m.lmohnuaﬂdﬂmcum bsbnoa

P R S 15 o




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
(Comprehensive Risk Management Services)

THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on.3y _ day of O£ & . 2015,
by and between the City of Lake Worth, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”) and Ben Few
& Company, Inc., a Florida corporation (“Consultant™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, since February 3, 2011, pursuant to a competitive selection process, the
City has been utilizing the Consultant for Risk Management advisory services including, but not
limited to, analyzing claims, identifying risk, reviewing insurance policies, assisting in closing
reserve accounts and advising on risk-related issues; and

WHEREAS, the City’s Agreement with the Consultant is set to expire in February 2016;
and

WHEREAS, the City is in need of additional risk management consultant services
including, without limitation, acting as the City’s liaison with the City’s third party
administrators for claims, developing claims and insurance budget for each fiscal year and
providing claims analysis for City staff; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has submitted a proposed scope of services to address the
City’s current and additional risk management needs; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to engage the Consultant as its primary risk management
consultant; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 2-112(c)(6) of the City’s procurement code, the City is
authorized to directly contract with Consultant for the provision of professional services; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for
the provision of services by the Consultant to the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the Consultant agree as
follows:

SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into
this Agreement as true and correct statements.

SECTION 2: CONSULTANT’S SERVICES. The Consultant shall provide those risk
management services as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated herein. The
parties existing Professional Services Agreement, entered on February 3, 2011 and expiring
February 2, 2016 is hereby terminated.

Page 1 of 14



SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. No relationship of employer
or employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Consultant will act hereunder as
an independent contractor and none of the Consultant’s, officers, directors, employees, independent
contractors, representatives or agents performing services for Consultant pursuant to this Agreement
shall have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any
kind under this Agreement. The relationship between the City and Consultant is that of independent
contractors, and neither shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative
or other relationship of the other for any purpose expressly or by implication.

SECTION 4: TERM, TIME, LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND TERMINATION.

a. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the approval of this
Agreement by the City Commission and shall be for one (1) year unless earlier terminated as
stated herein. The term may be extended by written agreement of the parties.

b. Time for Completion. Time is of the essence in the performance of this
Agreement. The CONSULTANT shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as
expeditiously as possible.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform
hereunder due to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars,
riots, national emergencies, sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws,
ordinances, rules, or regulations. The Consultant or City may suspend its performance under this
Agreement as a result of a force majeure without being in default of this Agreement, but upon
the removal of such force majeure, the Consultant or City shall resume its performance as soon
as is reasonably possible. Upon the Consultant’s request, the City shall consider the facts and
extent of any failure to perform the services and, if the Consultant’s failure to perform was
without its or its subconsultants’ fault or negligence, the schedule and/or any other affected
provision of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to the City’s rights to change,
terminate, or stop any or all of the services at any time. No extension shall be made for delay
occurring more than seven (7) days before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in writing
to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is
necessary.

e. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any
time with or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination.

f. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in
the event that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material
breach of any term or condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this
Agreement shall provide the other party with written notice specifying the nature of the breach.
The party receiving the notice shall then have three (3) days from the date of the notice in which
to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken within three (3) days, then this
Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without further notice or
demand.

Page 2 of 14



g. Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all
services by either party, the Consultant shall:

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation
services of any subconsultants.

2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the
terminated services to the City in the format acceptable to City.

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated.

h. Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights,
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to
termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of Florida, and as such, this
Agreement (and all Exhibits hereto) are subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of
funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith in any fiscal year of the City.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that no funds are
appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs
associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted
or appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated
with the City’s obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Consultant of
such occurrence and either the City or Consultant may terminate this Agreement by notifying the
other in writing, which notice shall specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four (24)
hours after giving of such notice. Termination in accordance with the preceding sentence shall
be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind whatsoever; however, City shall pay
Consultant for all services performed under this Agreement through the date of termination.

SECTION 5: COMPENSATION.

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate the Consultant in accordance with the fee
schedule set forth in Exhibit “A”; provided that, the total amount to be paid the Consultant
under this Agreement shall not exceed sixty thousand dollars ($60,000.00) for the initial one
year term. The City shall not reimburse the Consultant for any additional costs incurred as a
direct or indirect result of the Consultant providing service to the City under this Agreement and
not set forth in Exhibit “A”.

b. Invoices. The Consultant shall render monthly invoices to the City for services that have
been rendered in conformity with this Agreement in the previous month. The invoices shall
specify the work performed and the time spent on such work. Invoices will normally be paid
within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of the Consultant’s invoice.

SECTION 6: INDEMNIFICATION. The Consultant, its officers, employees and agents shall
indemnify and hold harmless the City, including its officers, employees and agents from
liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees (at
the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused by the negligence of the Consultant, its

Page 3 of 14



officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents employed or utilized by the Consultant
in the performance of the services under this Agreement. The City agrees to be responsible for
its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship
with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the Consultant, nor
shall this Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the
waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes.

SECTION 7: COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION. Each of the parties agrees to
perform its responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and
administrative instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement.

SECTION 8: PERSONNEL. The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own
expense, all necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the
services required hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all
personnel engaged in performing the services shall be fully qualified and authorized or permitted
under federal, state and local law to perform such services.

SECTION 9: SUB-CONSULTANTS. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a sub-
consultant or to reject the selection of a particular sub-consultant and approve all qualifications of
any sub-consultant in order to make a determination as to the capability of the sub-consultant to
perform properly under this Agreement. All sub-consultants providing professional services to the
Consultant under this Agreement will also be required to provide their own insurance coverage
identical to those contained in this Agreement. In the event that a sub-consultant does not have
insurance or does not meet the insurance limits as stated in this Agreement, the Consultant shall
indemnify and hold harmless the City for any claim in excess of the sub-consultant’s insurance
coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the sub-consultant.

SECTION 10: FEDERAL AND STATE TAX. The City is exempt from payment of Florida State
Sales and Use Tax. The Consultant is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number.

SECTION 11: INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the Consultant shall provide
proof of insurance coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the
United States Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of
Florida, and who must have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed
upon by the City and the Consultant. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated
without the express written authorization of the City.

Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage

Professional liability/ $1,000,000 per occurrence
Errors and Omissions

Commercial general liability $1, 000,000 per occurrence

(Products/completed operations
Contractual, insurance broad form property,

Page 4 of 14



Independent Consultant, personal injury) $2,000,000 annual aggregate

Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired) $ 1,000,000 single limits
Worker’s Compensation $ statutory limits

The commercial general liability and excess liability policies will name the City as an additional
insured and proof of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an endorsement
to same or certificate of insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly
indicate that the Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as
required for strict compliance with this section. Failure to comply with the foregoing
requirements shall not relieve Consultant of its liability and obligations under this Agreement.

SECTION 12: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The City and the Consultant each binds itself
and its partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this
Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other
party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Except as agreed in writing by all parties,
this Agreement is not assignable.

SECTION 13: DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES. All claims
arising out of this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall
share the mediator’s fee equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County.
Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court
having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement will be held in Palm Beach
County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or
otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

SECTION 14: WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND
EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS
RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

SECTION 15: ACCESS AND AUDITS. The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to
justify all payments made by the City under this Agreement for at least three (3) years after
completion of this Agreement and longer if required by applicable federal or state law. The City
shall have access to such books, records, and documents as required in this section for the
purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours, at the Consultant’s place of
business. In no circumstances will Consultant be required to disclose any confidential or
proprietary information regarding its products and service costs.

Page 5 of 14



SECTION 16: NONDISCRIMINATION. The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its
employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion,
disability, sex, age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation.

SECTION 17: AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE. The Consultant hereby represents and warrants
that it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its
business and provide the services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times
conduct its business and provide the services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof
of such licenses and approvals shall be submitted to the City upon request.

SECTION 18: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to
remainder of this Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be
affected, and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall be deemed valid and
enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

SECTION 19: PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that a person
or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public
entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids,
proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform
work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity; and may
not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in
Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months following the
date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Consultant will advise the City
immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute.

SECTION 20: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery,
certified mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall
be sent to:

City of Lake Worth
Attn: City Manager
7 N. Dixie Highway
Lake Worth, FL. 33460

and if sent to the Consultant, shall be sent to:
Ben Few & Company, Inc.
4560 Via Royale, Suite 3
Fort Myers, FLL 33919

The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the
other party. Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt.

Page 6 of 14



SECTION 21: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and the Consultant agree that this
Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or
understandings other than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except
by written instrument executed by the parties hereto.

SECTION 22: WAIVER. Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this
Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s)
at any time thereafter.

SECTION 23: PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE. This Agreement shall not be
construed more strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its
preparation. This is a non-exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with
individuals or firms to provide the same or similar services.

SECTION 24: MATERIALITY. All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material. In
the event Consultant fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or
exhibits, amendments and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material
breach of this Agreement and City may at its option provide notice to the Consultant to terminate
for cause.

SECTION 25: LEGAL EFFECT. This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until
approved by the City. The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City.

SECTION 26: NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS .
Each party will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action
threatened or commenced against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the
performance of this Agreement. Each party agrees to cooperate with the other in any
investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit in which either party is named,
and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance coverage.

SECTION 27: SURVIVABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing
nature or imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive
its expiration or earlier termination.

SECTION 28: COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding
upon the parties as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a
counterpart of this Agreement.

SECTION 29: PALM BEACH COUNTY IG. In accordance with Palm Beach County
ordinance number 2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be
subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. The
CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of
its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

Page 7 of 14



SECTION 30: AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. This
Agreement consists of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”. The parties agree to be bound by all the
terms and conditions set forth in the aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a
conflict between the terms and conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”, the terms and
conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents
shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid conflicts between provisions of the various
documents.

SECTION 31: OWNERSHIP OF DELIVERABLES. The deliverables, work product,
specifications, calculations, supporting documents, or other work products which are listed as
deliverables by the Consultant in Exhibit “A” to the City shall become the property of the City
upon delivery. The Consultant may keep copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to
use the same. The City accepts sole responsibility for the reuse of any such documents in a
manner other than as initially intended or for any use of incomplete documents.

SECTION 32: REPRESENTATIONS and BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this
Agreement, Michael E. Burton hereby represents to the City that he has the authority and full
legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and
implement the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant for whom he is signing and
to bind and obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement.

SECTION 33: PUBLIC RECORDS. The Consultant shall comply with Florida’s Public
Records Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and specifically agrees to:

a. Keep and maintain all public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be
required by the CITY to keep and maintain in order to perform the services under this
Agreement.

b. Provide the public with access to said public records on the same terms and
conditions that the CITY would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

c. Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law.

d. Meet all requirements for retaining said public records and transfer, at no cost, to
the City all said public records in possession of the Consultant upon termination of this
Agreement and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically
must be provided to the City in a format that is compatible with the information technology
systems of the City.

SECTION 34: CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Each party (the
“Receiving Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use
(except as expressly and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information,
technology or software (“Confidential Information”) obtained from the other party (the

Page 8 of 14



“Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the Receiving Party will not be prohibited from
disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of disclosure is publicly available or
becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving Party, (ii) that is or has
been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to whom the
Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is
or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the
Disclosing Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s
possession at the time of disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this
Professional Services Agreement (Comprehensive Risk Management Services) as of the day and
year set forth above.

CITY OF LAKE WQRTH, FLORIDA

By: /Y\/

Pagn Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST: Approved as to form and legal sufficiency:

Pamela J. Lop€z, City-Clerk Glen J-Torcivid, City Attorney

BEN FEW & COMPANY, INC.

By: R/ Cc,,/é(;c/b\x
[Corporate Seal] Ben Few, 111 CEO
STATE OF FLORIDA)
COUNTY OF .
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Jd day of g% At , 2015,
by Ben Few, III, as CEO of Ben Few & Company, Inc., a Florida corporatiodf, and who is

personally known to me or who has produced the following
as identification.

LINDA S. COHEN Notary Public
Netary Public - State of Florida

Commission @ FF 171827
Bonded through National Notary Assn.

Page 9 of 14



EXHIBIT “A”

CONSULTANT’s Scope of Services

For your reference, the following scope represents the services offered in a full-time consulting capacity and offers a
glimpse into our working relationship with clients. Your program will consist of, but not be limited to the following
services:

1. Be available on a daily basis to assist the Client’s staff with general questions, process development, and contract
reviews.

Ben Few 111 and Ben Few IV are available on a daily basis to all accounts they handle. They can be
reached either by phone or email 24/7, and can be on the Client’s premises in three hours, if need be.
Process development and contract review are part of our standard service package delivered to clients to
stay consistent with the risk transfer methods chosen.

2. Organize a systematic collection of data that is required for renewals and policy maintenance. This is done in a
manner to minimize time demands on staff.

All client data is initially collected by our firm and electronically stored in our secured system in order to
build a baseline for necessary future information. This information is kept on file in our office, so that
minimal requests for information are made to the Client’s staff. We offer our ‘total policy management
system’ so that staff does not have to be involved at all, should they so desire. Once we have stored the
information in our system, only that information that is subject to change may necessitate a request for an
update from Client’s staff (i.e. annual revenue basis, payrolls, etc.) We would anticipate regular
communication with the Client’s staff in general, so there would be constant dialogue with regard to any
changes being made.

3. Complete all policy applications (except signatures) and present to the Client’s staff for review and signature.

This is done for all clients, and is part of our total policy/data management system. Once the information is
in our system, only minor adjustments need to be made, thus requiring less man hours from the Client’s
staff.

4. Act as a liaison between the Client’s staff, brokers and other service providers to review policies for accuracy and
follow up with brokers to resolve issues.

Ben Few & Company, Inc. acts the main point of contact between all risk management service providers
and all of our clients. In this way, we are able to streamline any requests for information that may become
necessary, again relieving pressure on the Client’s for man hours.

5. Direct bidding and placement of all coverage and services associated with the Self Insurance Program.

Ben Few & Company, Inc. not only handles this particular service for our self-insured
governmental/municipal clients, but for all of our private clients as well. Normally, it is our standard
practice to engage the marketplace on behalf of clients every three years, but ultimately it is the client’s
decision on the frequency with which we go to bid. We prepare the specifications, issue the RFP, manage
inquiries, receive proposals, evaluate proposals and present them to the Client’s staff with an analysis and
recommendation for approval. The entire process is facilitated by our office, so that client staff is free for
other priorities.

Ben Few & Company, Inc. is well known and respected in the Florida market place as an independent,
unbiased and well versed Risk Management Consulting firm and will be able to fairly bring all possible

Page 10 of 14



markets into the RFP process. We have specific and extensive experience working with the major
municipal insurance markets (PGIT, FMIT, Gallagher, etc.).

6. Provide a copy of all exposure data, loss information and applications that are submitted for marketing.

As part of our client filing system, all data—whether exposure, loss, financial or otherwise—is safely
stored in our secured system, and electronically available to our clients at any time.

7. Follow-up on all policy maintenance requirements, such as workers compensation audits and builders risk
reports.

Again, our firm maintains all policies for our clients, as part of our total policy ~management system, so
this part of the scope of services is simply an extension of that. We prepare audit projections for all of our clients,
both municipal and private, so that they know what to expect well before the audit takes place. We also like to be on
premises when audits take place to ensure they are done accurately, as many times, questions from auditors can
result in unnecessary reclassification of certain exposures.

8. Manage Certificate of Insurance issuances to assure they are in compliance with Client’s coverage and internal
procedures (Brokers will issue certificates, but the certificate terms should be monitored by the consultant).

This has become a necessary process with the newer Acord forms causing quite a bit of confusion between
insureds and certificate holders of all sorts. Ben Few & Company, Inc. monitors all certificate specifics, both
required of our clients and required by them to make sure all risk transfer methods are consistent.

9. Present a preliminary risk management budget to the Client each year.

This is done with all clients. We will prepare projected budgets based on perceived market conditions,
along with expected loss results.

10. Present a final risk management budget to the Client each year.
The preliminary budget will be amended to reflect the actual costs of the new program.
11. Assist with developing needs for insurances not directly related to the self-insured program.

We help our clients develop all types of unique loss transfer methods, from the traditional purchase of
insurance to self-insurance programs and reserving for losses not necessarily thought to be insurable.

12. Identify risk exposures and update exposure data to determine insurance policies’ need for amendment.

This function goes hand-in-hand with our policy management system. Since we meet (and communicate)
with clients on a regular basis, we are able to stay on top of any new or different exposures they may be
facing due to change in business landscape, re-structuring, new endeavors, etc. We are able to advise all
our clients on best practices for identifying new exposures as they are created, in ways that fit seamlessly
into the clients’ daily routines, so nothing is overlooked. The policy management system helps to support
this as the information is accessible at any time, making it easy to manipulate at a moment’s notice.

13. Provide loss fund recommendation reports to the Client each year, based on the corresponding actuarial reports.

Again, this a function provided to our current self-insured clients, and we anticipate providing the service
for the City of Lake Worth.

14. Obtain & review all binders prior to submission to the Client.

Follow-up for receipt of and review all issued policies to assure they are complete and in compliance with quotes.
Confirm accuracy, resolve any deficiencies in writing with the broker/carrier and provide the Client with
documentation of the outcome.

Page 11 of 14



This part of Ben Few & Company, Inc.’s total policy management system is to review binders upon receipt,
and subsequently, policies for accuracy. This is included in our standard service package.

15. Review all policies prior to delivering to the Client, providing comments to show endorsements’ impact within
the policy wording. Also, PDF copies of all policies should be prepared for the Client and provided on DVD/CD.

As mentioned in point 14, policies are reviewed for accuracy, but a risk analysis of the various endorsement
implications can be provided to the Client. Generally, we like to specify which endorsements/exclusions
our clients want or do not want before we go to bid for certain coverages, so that our clients know what to
expect throughout the process.

16. Assist with the development of documents as needed for any insurance related competitive process, i.e. Request
for Proposals, Request for Information, Request for Qualifications, etc.

As mentioned in point 5, this is contemplated under our standard service package. Should the risk manager
not want us to completely handle the competitive process in question, we are happy to help in any capacity.

17. Advise the Client of new options or funding techniques in insured and self-insured areas as well as any major
new or pending legislation in any field which would affect Client’s total benefit programs.

Ben Few & Company, Inc. strives to stay abreast of the latest trends and developments in the insurance
industry as a whole and is dedicated to providing this information to its clients. Through membership in
various professional organizations (SRMC, RIMS, PRIMA, FAIA), subscriptions to industry publications,
and extensive continuing education, we are able to keep clients apprised of the latest developments in risk
transfer methods, whether through self-insurance or fully-transferred products and the accompanying
legislative mandates.

18. Acting on behalf of the Client, if authorized to do so by the Client in any claims.

Our firm is able to offer claim support if requested to do so by the Client. We currently provide claim
support to many of our clients, both public and private.

19. Assist as committee review member or assist in the evaluation of responses to Request for Proposals, Request
for Information, Request for Qualifications or as needed for any insurance related competitive process, i.e. brokers
and TPA services.
As mentioned in the response to point 5, this is a standard service we provide to all of our clients. Should
the Client wish, we can either handle these processes in a completely independent fashion or as part of a
committee.

20. Attend Client Board meetings as needed.

In addition to meetings, Ben Few & Company, Inc. is available—and prefers—to meet face-to-face with
our assigned point of contact on a regular basis, whether it be quarterly, monthly, etc.

Page 12 of 14



21. Analyze claims against the Client on a periodic basis to determine trend of losses, and to project the effect of
such trends upon the insured and self-insured programs. Analyze claims and loss experience to determine trend of
losses and to project the effect of such trends upon the level of fund balance in the self insurance fund and to
recommend appropriate levels of fund balance to maintain.

This is an integral part of the risk management process. In the response to point 13, it is mentioned that we
provide loss fund recommendations to the Client—claims data plays a significant role in figuring various
risk retention levels and loss funding techniques. We provide loss control and subsequent loss data analysis
to most, if not all, of our clients to keep track of any developing trends. While it is our goal to eliminate
any trend before it has the chance to begin, we are able to identify problematic areas and implement safety
programs or other loss control measures to act as preventative maintenance through our program.

22. Continuously monitor the Client’s program in order to recommend structure changes in the program, procedures
or administration.

As with our monitoring the industry as a whole, we monitor our clients’ programs to make sure they are as
efficient and effective as possible. The biggest part of the fundamental risk management process is to make
sure that the program that has been implemented is gauged for success along the way and adjusted if
necessary for maximum impact.

23. Assist the Client in closing reserve accounts under prior Client insurance programs with insurance carriers.

This process is handled regardless of any anticipation of insurance-related competitive bid processes.

24. Assist with education, as needed, with City staff.

Page 13 of 14



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: City Commission
TITLE:

Ratification of Appointments and Reappointment to the various City Advisory Boards

SUMMARY:

Requesting ratification of appointments and reappointment to various City advisory
boards.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

On February 5, 2013, the Commission adopted an ordinance amending the board member
appointment process to allow for the selection of board members by individual elected
officials. In accordance with the ordinance, the board appointments would be effective
upon ratification by the Commission as a whole.

The following appointment and reappointments are requested to be ratified.

Planning and Zoning Board:

Mayor Triolo’s appointment of Robert Lepa to the Planning and Zoning Board to fill an
unexpired term ending on July 31, 2023 (District 2 appointment).

Commissioner Robinson’s appointment of Juan Contin to the Planning and Zoning Board
for a term ending on July 31, 2023

Historic Resources Preservation Board:

Mayor Triolo’s reappointment of Bernard Guthrie to the Historic Resources Preservation
Board for a term ending on July 31, 2023.

Vice Mayor Amoroso’s appointment of Geoffrey Harris Historic Resources Preservation
Board to fill an unexpired term ending on July 31, 2023.

Finance Advisory Board:

Mayor Triolo’s reappointment of Sherry Schmidt to the Finance Advisory Board for a term
expiring on July 31, 2022.

Police Retirement System Board of Trustees

Mayor Triolo’s appointment of Lonney Moral to the Police Retirement System Board of
Trustees to fill an unexpired term ending on July 31, 2022.



MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the ratification of Mayor Triolo’s appointment of Robert Lepa
to the Planning and Zoning Board to fill an unexpired term ending on July 31, 2023, Lonney
Moral to the Police Retirement System Board of Trustees to fill an unexpired term ending
on July 31, 2022, reappointment of Bernard Guthrie to the Historic Resources Preservation
Board for a term ending on July 31, 2023, Sherry Schmidt to the Finance Advisory Board
for a term expiring on July 31, 2022, Vice Mayor Amoroso’s appointment of Geoffrey Harris
to the Historic Resources Preservation Board to fill an unexpired term ending on July 31,
2023, and Commissioner Robinson’s appointment of Juan Contin to the Planning and
Zoning Board for a term ending on July 31, 2023.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis: N/A
Membership board logs
Board applications



cfty O]E
ﬂ Lake Worth
'\ Z:Beach"

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD

Three -Year Terms
MEMBERS APPOINTED

Laura Starr 08/06/2019
2010 Holy Cross

Istarr@yourfloridacounsel.com

(Professional/law)

(Mayor’s Appointment)

Daniel Tanner 05/02/17
1740 12" Avenue North

Drtan464@yahoo.com

(Citizen at large)

(Vice Mayor’s Appointment - District 3)

Greg Rice - CHAIR 06/25/2012
511 Lucerne Ave.

greg@bugs.com

(Professional/real estate)
(Commissioner District 1 Appointment)

VACANT (due to Brock Grill’s resignation)
(Commissioner District 2 Appointment)

VACANT (due to Michael Glaser’s resignation)
(Commissioner District 4 Appointment)

Anthony Marotta — VICE CHAIR 01/28/2014
327 North Lakeside Dr.

anthony@alliedpmg.com

(Professional / property management)

(Mayor’s Appointment)

Mark Humm 07/02/2013
708 North H Street

marknwpb@yahoo.com

(Citizen at large)

(Vice Mayor’s Appointment — District 3)

Meetings: First Wednesday of each month at t 6:00 pm.

PHONE

C:561-414-5686

H: 561-908-1235

W: 561-686-7171

C:561-602-0193

W:561-818-1184

C: 561-351-3057
W: 561-848-5556

Page 1 of 2 - 9/29/20

ETHICS TRAINING

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

TERM EXPIRES

07/31/2022

07/31/2021

07/31/2022

07/31/2023

07/31/2023

07/31/2022

07/31/2023


mailto:lstarr@yourfloridacounsel.com
mailto:Drtan464@yahoo.com
mailto:greg@bugs.com
mailto:anthony@alliedpmg.com
mailto:marknwpb@yahoo.com

Cftg af
,\ Lake Worth
'\ f?Beach"

The Board’s function is to review and approve site plans for three units or more of residential development and all commercial
development. This Board also reviews community appearance and has the ability to grant variance from the Lake Worth Zoning
Code.

Ord. No. 2014-02 - Sec. 23.2-8. - Planning and zoning board, established that the planning and zoning board shall consist of seven (7)
members. All members of the board shall be residents of or property owners in the city. Members of the planning and zoning board
shall serve without compensation. The seven (7) members shall be appointed by the city commission. All members of the board shall
be appointed for a term of three (3) years. If any member of the board shall fail to be present at three (3) consecutive regularly
scheduled meetings or at twenty-five (25) percent of the public meetings of the board held within any 12-month period, the city clerk
shall declare the member's office vacant and the city commission shall promptly fill such vacancy. Vacancies in the board membership
by resignation, illness or other causes shall be filled by the city commission for the unexpired term of the member involved. Members
of the planning and zoning board may be removed from office by the city commission at its discretion. The board shall select its own
chairman and vice-chairman annually at the first meeting in January. The city's community planner shall serve as secretary and advisor
to the board.

To carry out its responsibilities under this article, the membership of the planning and zoning board shall include, to the extent
available, three (3) members from the disciplines of architecture, landscape architecture, planning, real estate sales, land
development, banking, law or related fields. Two (2) members of the planning and zoning board shall be citizen at large members.
One (1) member shall be from a professional discipline as described above and one (1) member shall be a citizen at large. The city
commission shall determine whether or not the existing members of the planning and zoning board meet these requirements may
appoint up to two (2) additional members to the planning and zoning board, if needed. Whenever a new member is appointed to the
planning and zoning board, the city commission shall consider the professional requirements of the new member to ensure that the
requirements of this article are met.

Ord. 2013-34 - Section 23.2, effective August 16, 2013 deletes alternate members and increases membership to seven (7) board
members and amends absentee policy to three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or at twenty five percent (25%) of the
public meetings of the Board held within any 12-month period, the City clerk shall declare the member's office vacant and the City
Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 2012-17, effective April 27, 2012, changed qualifications to include three (3) members from the disciplines of architecture,
landscape architecture, planning, real estate sales, land development, banking, law or related fields. Two (2) members shall be
citizens at large. One (1) alternate member shall be a professional and one (1) alternate shall be citizen at large.

Ord. No. 2012-17, effective April 27, 2012, reduced from seven (7) voting members to five (5) voting and two (2) alternate members.
Ord. No. 2011-10, effective July 15, 2011, deleted the two alternate members and changed advisor to Com. Dev. Department or
designee instead of City Planner

Ord. No. 2010-16, effective October 1, 2010, removed the criteria for members to have professional qualifications, such as attorney,
professional planner, architect, landscape architect, real estate agent or broker, and land developer.

Ord. No. 2008-14, effective 7/10/08, amended attendance requirements: a member who fails to attend three consecutive regularly
scheduled meetings or 20% of regularly scheduled meetings held within a 12-month period shall have his/her seat declared vacant
by the City Clerk and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 2003-25, enacted 8/5/03, established attendance requirements: a member who fails to attend three consecutive regularly
scheduled meetings or 25% of all meetings held within a 12-month period shall have his/her seat declared vacant by the City Clerk
and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 97-8, enacted 4/22/97, enabling/merged/created Planning Board & Board of Appeals.

Ord. No. 95-27, enacted 10/3/95, requiring gift disclosure.

Financial Disclosure Forms are required.
Secretary: Sherrie Coale

Page 2 of 2 - 9/29/20



VOLUNTEER
ADVISORY BOARD
APPLICATION

BOARD/S YOU ARE APPLYING TO BE
ON

NAME
RESIDENCE ADDRESS

DO YOU HAVE A DIFFERENT MAILING
ADDRESS?

PHONE
BUSINESS PHONE
CELL PHONE
EMAIL

ARE YOU A CITIZEN OF THE UNITED
STATES?

ARE YOU A REGISTERED PALM BEACH
COUNTY VOTER?

ARE YOU A REGISTERED LAKE WORTH
VOTER?

HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A
RESIDENT OF LAKE WORTH BEACH?

LIST ALL PROPERTIES OWNED AND/OR
BUSINESS INTERESTS IN LAKE WORTH

WHAT IS YOUR OCCUPATION?
EMPLOYER?

ARE YOU CURRENTLY SERVING ON
ANY CITY ADVISORY BOARD?

HAVE YOU EVER SERVED ON A CITY OF
LAKE WORTH BOARD?

IF YES, WHEN AND WHICH BOARD(S)?

DO YOU SERVE ON ANY BOARDS IN
FLORIDA, OR ARE YOU AN ELECTED OR
APPOINTED STATE, COUNTY, OR
MUNICIPAL OFFICE HOLDER, OR PALM
BEACH COUNTY EMPLOYEE?

HIGH SCHOOL

DATE OF GRADUATION
COLLEGE

DATE OF GRADUATION
WORK EXPERIENCE
INTEREST/ACTIVITIES
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

6. A - WHY DO YOU DESIRE TO SERVE
ON THIS BOARD (FIRST PREFERENCE)

cffy af
Lake Worth

/}/g Beach
FLORIDA

- Planning & Zoning Board * **

Robert Lepa

124 N Golfview Rd
Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460
United States

No

(561) 308-5093
(561) 273-4555
(561) 308-5093

robert.lepa@ampf.com

Yes

Yes

Yes

1985

1124 N Golfview Rd

Financial Advisor
Ameriprise Financial
No

Yes

GE Pension Board late 90s - Early 2000s FAB 2018
No

Eastlake North High

06/09/1976

Cleveland State Unversity

06/06/1984

Banker / Finances

Running, gardening, cooking,

currently volunteer at the Hatch on Tuesday mornings

| was asked to serve

/2



6. B - WHY DO YOU DESIRE TO SERVE
ON THIS BOARD (SECOND
PREFERENCE)

CONSENT

SIGNATURE

It's good to know what is happening with the future of the City

¥ | agree to the privacy policy.
| understand the responsibilities associated with being a board/committee
member, and | have adequate

time to serve if appointed.
I have read the attached Ordinance No. 2010-29 and Article Xlll (Palm Beach

County) Code of Ethics and
understand the policy on the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ethics. Within 30

days after appointment, |
understand that | am required to participate in Ethics Training and submit an

Acknowledgement of Receipt
form to the City Clerk's Office in order to continue to serve on my appointed

board.
*THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONE (1} YEAR FROM THE DATE SIGNED

ABOVE.
*THIS APPLICATION IS NOT VALID WITHOUT APPLICANT'S PROOF OF

RESIDENCY.
Robert A. Lepa




APA Banner

Location Address 1124 N GOLFVIEW RD
Municipality LAKE WORTH BEACH
Parcel Control Number 38-43-44-21-15-360-0100
Subdivision LAKE WORTH TOWN OF
Official Records Book 30526 Page441
Sale Date APR-2019

TOWN OF LAKE WORTH LT 10 /LESS W 15 FT/ & N 25 FT
Legal Description OF LT 11 /LESS W 15 FT/ & W 20 FT OF GOLFVIEW RD
IMMEDIATLEY E OF & ADJ THERETO BLK 360

i 1 Mailing address |
TERARQEERLS: 1124 N GOLFVIEW RD
LEPA ROBERT A TR
LAKE WORTH FL 33460 2306
ROBERT A LEPA TR TITL HLDR \ _
( v Sales Date Price OR Book/Page Sale Type Owner
[ APR-2019  $545,000 30526/00441 DEEDOF TRUST  LEPA ROBERT A
(\ JAN-1978 $75,000 02904 /01435 HERTHUM MARK
5'/ Exemption Applicant/Owner Year Detail
LLEPA ROBERT A 2020
i *'
Riiberottig] 0 Sq‘F‘:'; 2425 Acres 0.2410
0100 - SINGLE . SFR- Single Fanily Residential ( 38-LAKE
Use Codey ity Zoming v\ ORTH BEACH)
Tax Year 2020pP 2019 2018
Improvement Value $215,158 $218,301 $186,372
Land Value $240,000 $240,000 $244,839
kTotal Market Value $455,158 $458,301 $431,211
p= .
- All values are as of January 1st each year
" Tax Year 2020p 2019 2018
Assessed Value $385,260 $219,963 $215,862
Exenption Amount $50,000 $50,000 $50,000
Taxable Value $335,260 $169,963 $165,862
Tax Year 2020 p 2019 2018)
Ad Valorem $8,074 $4,219 $4,021
Non Ad Valorem $508 $487 $484
Total tax $8,582 $4,706 $4,505




Lake Worth, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.*™

VOLUNTEER ADVISORY BOARD APPLICATION
7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, FL 33160 — Phone: 561-586-1730 ~ Fax: 561-586-1750

\/(//7/\/ Ciisropae Coniin

(Print name)

APPLICANT’S NAME:

THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FORONLY ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE ENTERED ON PAGE FIVE (5).

Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Lake Worth. The City Commission recognizes that volunteering
is important, and your contribution is what makes Lake Worth a great community. Completion of this application
is necessary so that the members of the City Commission can thoroughly review each application as part of their

consideration for your appointment.

If applying for more than one Board/Committee, please number in order of preference. If you have previously
submitted an application, it will be removed from our files unless you mark the board(s) previously applied for
on this application. Please choose no more than three Boards/Committees for which you wish to apply. When
selecting, indicate your first, second, and third preference. You may not serve on two of the following
boards/committees at one time: Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals, Community Redevelopment
Agency, Historic Resources Preservation, or Planning & Zoning Boards.

Board of Trustees Employees’ Retirement System *
Board of Trustees Police Retirement System *
Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund *
Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund — Division Il *
City Recreation Advisory Board

City Tree Board

Community Redevelopment Agency *

Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals **
Electric Utility Advisory Board

Finance Advisory Board

Historic Resources Preservation Board **

Library Board

Planning & Zoning Board * **

Sister City Board

Vg

* Requires that appointee fill out an annual financial disclosure form to be filed with the Supervisor of
Elections Office

** Certain skill-set disciplines required

ALL BOARD/COMMITTEES ARE SUBJECT TO THE SUNSHINE LAW

lakeworth.org WO Lonoworhenae
Page 1 of 5 - Updated January 2017



1. PERSONAL

Name: M‘r. Mrs./Ms. (circle one) (/(//}_ ~ C%IJ’W gﬁL C&/VT/’J
Residence Address: 87/6 E' FEDENA~ H/éH WAY

City: MKé (/‘/d ILm State: 07;(/ Zip Code: 27 l7/60

Proof of residency attached:

Mailing Address: (if different from residence)

City: State: ZIP Code:
Home Phone: Business Phone: 56/ -2 ¥¢ - ‘Yoo 3
Cell Phone: %0 f}‘?-j'ZOZZ Email Address: JZDN/ZB@/"LOTMATL Com
Are you a citizen of the United States? yé-f
Are you a registered Palm Beach County voter? YES
YES

Are you a registered Lake Worth voter?

/0 YEFLS
BIL Spuny FEVERFC

How long have you been a resident of Lake Worth?

List all properties owned and/or business interests in Lake Worth

Hicrwhy LwB

What is your occupation? /f”ﬂ_@/—f{ TECT

employer?____CONVTYP e (7T TECTVEY _pvg DES [ 4~/
Business Address: (CRA board only) &le SooTH W ll’f"”,l, Lwh

Are you currently serving on any City advisory Board? /(IO

If yes, which board?

Have you ever served on a City of Lake Worth board? Yf: S

Wl & G alewWnnhBRe

lakeworth.org Page 2 of 5 - Updated January 2017 EF



If yes, when and which board(s)? /'l‘/(?D/L/&, Idmé LVATTIO S ﬂo;ﬁ,a

Do you serve on any boards in Florida, or are you an elected or appointed state, county, or municipal
office holder, or Palm Beach County employee? =T
I

If yes, please name the board, position, etc. __ A/ TRA~COATTH L  SoU 72 Codvdeo M'N/U;'!
ooy focA AATON [Fo -~ LA EVT

2. EDUCATION
High School: /"/S ofa /?ﬂ—'f\ Mo ﬂ gj‘/é ﬁ/Date of Graduation: /?}5‘
cH ggo
College: CovErc. UM ‘/ﬂ(—j/{?f)egree: 6. #- Date of Graduation: ki
v MS AAD 2022
Resume attached? Yes No

3. WORK EXPERIENCE
PEC AEXAr6

4. INTEREST/ACTIVITIES

//ff':/"'/ri/i. /’/75)7‘06//.41/(7/{9(, JEW N

lakeworth.org Page 3 of 5 - Updated January 2017 nF G oo



5. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
SIRRATIN & FED EVAL  HIGHN AY Com MU 1 f‘?«
/%*Soc/ AT 10N

6. a-Why do you desire to serve on this board (first preference)
NS pv  ArctiTesr £ < Bk
o S o e EXPEVLEVCE P THE
o AP

6. b -Why do you desire to serve on this board (second preference)

cer (4)

6. c-Why do you desire to serve on this board (third preference)

Sex(a)

lakeworth.org

i
0

Page 4 of 5 - Updated January 2017



| understand the responsibilities associated with being a board/committee member, and | have adequate
time to serve if appointed.

I have read Ordinance No. 2010-29 and Article XIll (Palm Beach County) Code of Ethics attached hereto, and
understand the policy on the City of Lake Worth’s Code of Ethics. Within 30 days after appointment, |
understand that | am required to participate in Ethics Training and submit an Acknowledgement of Receipt
form to the City Clerk’s Office in order to continue to serve on my appointed board.

PLEASE INITIAL t@
IS seops 2020

Signature \ Date

THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONLY ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE SIGNED ABOVE.

NOTE: Information regarding the duties and responsibilities of any board/committee can be
found by visiting our website at www.lakeworth.org, then select Services and
Departments, then select Advisory Boards. For the application, please select Services and
Departments, then select Forms, scroll down to Volunteers and select Advisory Board
Application. If you need additional information, please contact Silvina Donaldson,
Volunteer Coordinator at sdonaldson@lakeworth.org or by calling 561-586-1730.

EMAIL APPLICATION TO: sdonaldson@lakeworth.org (preferred method)

or

FAX APPLICATION TO: Volunteer Coordinator (561) 586-1750

or

RETURN APPLICATION TO: Volunteer Coordinator
Lake Worth City Hall
7 North Dixie Highway
Lake Worth, FL 33460

SUNSHINE LAW: The primary purpose of government in the Sunshine Law is to assure public access to the
decision making processes of public boards and committees. The Sunshine Law extends to discussions and
deliberations as well as to formal actions taken by boards and committees.

LRI M

lakeworth.org Page 5 of 5 - Updated January 2017 W o§ E o



JUAN CRISTOBAL CONTIN, AlA
826 S. Federal Highway #4, Lake Worth, Fl 33460
305-778-2082 FLORIDA AR94935

SUMMARY: An energetic, results oriented architect with 25 years experience in development of
architecture, engineering, design, and construction management. Major strengths include
project development ,project management, architectural design, project finance,
construction administration, planning, real estate and corporate negotiation. Excellent
communication skills, computer skills, teamwork and leadership qualities.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
Florida International University, Miami Florida 2015-2019
Graduate School of Architecture

Adijunct Professor

Teach core graduate school classes which include housing, urban planning, building design, building
technology and interior design. Responsible for class syllabus, lectures and studio coordination for projects
and student expositions. Lectured in architectural theory, Design and Professional Practice

Contin Architecture and Design Lake Worth, Florida 2004~ 2020

Director, Architect
Provided architectural and financial management services to clients through out Florida. Responsibilities
included architectural design, planning and construction of commercial, residential and institutional projects;
building systems analysis; space development strategy; estimating; bidding; project management, contract
negotiation, construction quality control. Client list includes:

High End Residential Renovations, Florida Provided architectural services for the development and
construction of a several homes: Swan Residence West Palm Beach 7,500 sf. $ 2 Million, Joerger

Residence Sarasota, Florida 6,500 sf $1.5 Million, Mighault Residence Sea Ranch Lakes 1000sf .3 Million

High End Residential New Construction, Florida Provided architectural services for the development and
construction for several Homes: Appel Residence Lantana Florida $2.1 Million 4,500 SF, Basile Residence

Pinecrest, Florida $8 Million 11,000 SF, Cabral Residence West Palm Beach 6,500 sf. $3 Million

Sarasota Conservation Foundation, Florida Provided development services for strategic implementation
and construction of historic campus with 8 buildings. Services included site implementation, historical

building evaluation, infrastructure and landscape development. Construction Cost $14.2 Million.

CDG International Ltd, Hong Kong 1999- 2004

Architect Managing Director {Asla Pacific Redlon)

Provided project management, architectural and financial management services to clients through out the
Asia Pacific region. Responsibilities included marketing analysis, planning and construction of facilities;
standardization of corporate design standards; building systems analysis; space development strategy;
commercial real estate benchmarking; project finance; estimating; bidding; project management, contract
negotiation, construction quality control and construction variation negotiation. Client list includes: Credit

Suisse First Boston, Asia Pacific and Goldman Sachs, New York, NY

Credit Suisse / First Boston, Central, Hong Kong 1997-1999

Regional Architect/ Project Manager (Vice President), Asia Pacific
Provided corporate regional strategy for development, planning, leasing, architectural and real estate
management services. Services included corporate real estate architectural planning, highest and best use
analysis, space development strategy; budgeting and construction of regional offices; component sourcing;
information technology systems integration, design, building systems analysis; bidding; project management
and construction quality control, opportunity cost valuations, lease disposal and subleasing.

*Project Architect for CSFB Shanghai Office 15,000 SF fit-out . Project scope included computer rooms, a
trading floor, sublease area, construction risk planning, design planning, budget control $2.2 M USD,
consultant selection, advisor to legal team on real estate, planning and construction negotiation issues.

*Project Architect for CSFB Sydney Office 60, 000 SF fit-out for 400 CSFB employees,. Project scope
included leasing negotiations, planned CSFB's main computer room, planned 3 trading floors (112 traders),




budgeting, financial projections and planning for lease and construction opportunity costs. Project Cost $5.0
M USD. Lease and Financiai planning for $33.0 M USD

*Project Architect for CSFB Melbourne Office. Responsibilities included architectural design, sourcing
additional space, and highest and best use studies for CSFB relocation $1.2 million.

*Project Architect for CSFB Seoul Office. Provided ongoing architecture and management services.
Responsibilities included sourcing additional space, facility design for equipment upgrade, space utilization,
contractor sourcing and highest and best use studies for CSFB relocation.

New World Telephone Ltd., North Point, Hong Kong 1996- 1997

Architect! Project Manager
Services included planning, design, budgeting and construction of high tech corporate headquarters; Set
corporate design standards; highest and best use analysis, building systems analysis; space development
strategy; bidding; project management and construction quality control.

* Planned for corporate development strategy for New World Telephone expansion for 7
divisions and 28 departments, Growth exceeded 200% of staff in one year, total staff 1300,

* Planned and implemented corporate headquarters featuring a high tech corporate entertainment/
marketing facility. Tasks included conceptual design, design, construction management for "Telecom City

i

* Applied value added design approach achieving a 20% reduction in construction budget.

International Business Machines Inc. (IBM), Boca Raton, Fl 1993- 1996

Architect Real Estate and Site Operations Division
Provided project management architectural and real estate management services to all divisions and affiliates,
including planning and construction of facilities; standardization of corporate design
standards; building systems analysis; estimating; bidding; project management and construction quality control.

*  Regional IBM architect ( South East United States) responsible of the development and implementation of
IBM's high tech facilities. Development focus based on coordination with iIBM's Global restructuring plan.

*  Technical Leader for Architectural design of IBM Boca Raton Industrial Park 500 acres, 2.1 million SF
office and industrial facility. Sale price $118 million US. Coordination with Codina, Bush, Kiein Real Estate.

*  Lead IBM architect responsible for architectural design and construction, roads, parking, traffic control, site
drainage, represented IBM with the Clty of Boca Raton Building department and planning board.

*  Design and project management of 300,000 sf of computer rooms, robotics labs, sound testing facilities,
vibration isolation chambers, clean rooms for micro chip assembly and testing, handicap computer interaction
labs, AS 400 networking tabs, voice recognition testing labs, central uninterrupted power supply (UPS) facilities

ASSOCIATIONS American Institute of Architects (AIA) Registered: Florida, New York, Massachusetls
National Council of Architectural Accreditation Boards (NCARB)
Cornell ambassador, interviewer and counselor for Cornell alumni network

EDUCATION Bachelor of Architecture, Gornell University, lthaca, New York 1990
Awarded Edlitz Prize for excellence in architectural design
AlA Scholarship for outstanding achievement in architecture
AlA Honor and Merit Awards for Residential Design

Master of Architecture, Cornell University, ithaca New York 2020
Cornell Real Estate Program
Full Stipend Teaching Assistant

LANGUAGES Fluent Spanish and English, Business writing and verbal, Proficient French

SKILLS Microsoft-Project, Microsoft Office , Adobe, AutoCAD, Revit ,




APA Banner

Location Address 826 S FEDERAL HWY
Municipality LAKE WORTH BEACH
Parcel Control Number 38-43-44-27-01-022-0020
Subdivision LAKE WORTH TOWN OF ADD |
Official Records Book 11591 Pagel1328
Sale Date JAN-2000
Legal Description ADD 1 TO TOWN OF LAKE WORTH LT 2 BLK 22

Mailing address
Orenern 826 S FEDERAL HWY APT 4
CONTIN JUAN C
_ LAKE WORTH FL 33460 5074
Sales Date Price OR Book/Page Sale Type Owner

JAN-2000  $110,000 11591/01328 WARRANTY DEED  CONTIN JUAN C
OCT-1995 $90,000 08974/01942 WARRANTY DEED

MAR-1988  $100,000 05619/00416 WARRANTY DEED

JAN-1977 $60,000 02773 /01302

JAN-1972 $45,000 01979/01187 WARRANTY DEED

Exemption Applicant/Owner Year Detail
CONTIN JUAN C 2020
Number of Units 3 “Total Square Feet 3164 Acres 0.1550
MU-FH - Mixed Use Federal
0801 - MULTIFAMILY < 10 P
Use Code UNITS-COMM ZONING Zoning Hwy ( 38-LAKE WORTH
BEACH )
Tax Year 2020pP 2019 2018
Improvement Value $181,494 $183,946 $155,326
Land Value $59,198 $56,363 $54,743
Total Market Value $240,692 $240,309 $21 0,06%
P=
Pichhiiasy All values are as of January 1st each year
Tax Year 2020 P 2019 2018
Assessed Value $226,089 $218,202 $202,995
Exemption Amount $40,547 $39,073 $37,878
Taxable Value $185,542 $179,129 $165,117
Tax Year 2020p 2019 2018
Ad Valorem $4,480 $4,403 $3,924
Non Ad Valorem $1,279 $1,226 $1,221
Total tax $5,759 $5,629 $5,145




City of
/\ Lake Worth
'\ J?Beach"

HISTORIC RESOURCES PRESERVATION BOARD

Three-Year Terms

MEMBERS APPOINTED PHONE
Judith Fox 05/01/118 C:561-253-4895
514 N. Palmway

Email: TBD

(Citizen at large)
(Mayor’s Appointment)

VACANT (due to Dave Cavorsi’s absence)
(Vice Mayor’s Appointment - District 3)

Judith Just VICE CHAIR 07/23/12 H: 561-202-8081
306 N. Lakeside Dr. W: 561-547-0549
Judithjust0l@hotmail.com C: 561-379-5372
(Law)

(Commissioner District 1 Appointment)

William Feldkamp CHAIR 04/04/17 C: 561-248-5769
108 Lake Avenue, #205

billfeldkamp @gmail.com

(Commissioner District 2 Appointment)

Oswaldo Ona 01/7/20 C: 561-706-9078
826 N. Palmway

Ozzie.ona@gmail.com

(Commissioner District 4 Appointment)

Bernard Guthrie 04/3/18 C: 561-719-6696
823 South Palmway

bguthrie@pottydoctor.com

(Contractor)

(Mayor’s Appointment)

Robert D’Arinzo 08/16/16 C: 561-662-8370
531 North Ocean Breeze

bobpier@hotmail.com

(Real Estate Sales)

(Vice Mayor’s Appointment - District 3)

Meetings: Second Wednesday of each month at 6:00 PM

Page 1 of 2 - 8/27/20

ETHICS TRAINING

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES

TERM EXPIRES

07/31/2021

07/31/2023

07/31/2022

07/31/2022

07/31/2023

07/31/2020

07/31/2023


mailto:Judithjust01@hotmail.com
mailto:billfeldkamp@gmail.com
mailto:Ozzie.ona@gmail.com
mailto:bguthrie@pottydoctor.com
mailto:bobpier@hotmail.com

Ca'ty af'
/N Lake Worth
'\ -—‘a"‘?Beach"

The Board’s function is to consider historic preservation issues and shall consist of five resident members plus two alternates
appointed by the City Commission. Four members constitute a quorum. Initial appointments: one member to serve three
years; two members to serve one year; two members for a term of two years; thereafter, all regular terms three years and
alternate terms one year.

Ord. No. 2014-02 - Section 23.2-7 establishes that the historic resources preservation board shall consist of seven (7) members.
All members of the board shall be residents of or property owners in the city. Members of the historic resources preservation
board shall serve without compensation. The seven (7) members shall be appointed by the city commission. All members of
the board shall be appointed for a term of three (3) years. If any member of the board shall fail to be present at three (3)
consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or at twenty-five (25) percent of the public meetings of the board held within any
twelve-month period, the city clerk shall declare the member's office vacant and the city commission shall promptly fill such
vacancy. Vacancies in the board membership by resignation, illness or other causes shall be filled by the city commission for
the unexpired term of the member involved. Members of the historic resources preservation board may be removed from
office by the city commission at its discretion. The board shall select its own chairman and vice-chairman annually at the first
meeting in January. The city's preservation planner shall serve as secretary and advisor to the board. The membership of the
HRPB shall include, to the extent available, members from the disciplines of architecture, architectural history, planning,
archeology or related fields. At least two (2) members of the HRPB shall be experienced in the areas of real estate sales, land
development, banking or law. One (1) member shall be from a professional discipline as described above and one (1) member
shall be a citizen at large. The city commission shall determine whether or not the existing members of the HRPB meet the
requirements of the certified local government program and may appoint up to two (2) additional members to the HRPB, if
needed. Whenever a new member is appointed to the HRPB, the city commission shall consider the professional requirements
of the new member to ensure that the requirements of the certified local government program are met. When necessary,
persons serving on the HRPB shall attend educational meetings to develop a special interest, expertise, experience or
knowledge in history, architecture, or related disciplines.

Ord. 2013-34 - Section 23.2, effective August 16, 2013 deletes alternate members and increases membership to seven (7)
board members and amends absentee policy to three (3) consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or at twenty five percent
(25%) of the public meetings of the Board held within any 12-month period, the City clerk shall declare the member's office
vacant and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 2012-17, effective 04/27/12, changed qualifications to include disciplines of architecture, architectural history,
planning, archaeology, or related fields. At least (2) members shall be experienced in the areas of real estate sales, land
development, banking or law. One (1) alternate shall be from a professional discipline, and one (1) alternate member shall be
a citizen at large.

Ord. No. 2010-16, HRPB was created.

Effective July 2017, Financial Disclosure Forms are required.

Secretary: Sherrie Coale

Page 2 of 2 - 8/27/20



c;ty 01[
Lake Worth
Beach

FLORIDA™

VOLUNTEER ADVISORY BOARD — REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION

7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 — Phone: 561-586-1600 — Fax: 561-586-1750

SECTION 1 >
Full Name: fggf/ufﬂﬂ F Qf/f/frf//z' \/\/L

Name of the Advisory Board / Committee you are currently serving on, for which you wish to be considered
for reappointment: 7L / /Q 'D /j

Has your information changed since your appointment or last reappointment?  YES no ™

If you selected YES, please fill out below. If you selected NO, please go to SECTION 2.

Residence Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

Business Address: (If applicable)

City: State: Zip Code:

Mailing Address: (If different from residence / business)

City: State: ZIP Code:
Home Phone: - Business Phone:
Cell Phone: Email Address:

Proof of residency attached:

SECTION 2

By signing this form | acknowledge that the information above is true and correct and that | am required to
complete Ethics Training and submit the Ethics Training Certificate of Acknowledgement to the City Clerk’s Office
at least once a year and that the attendance policy will be in effect as per the ordinance governing the board for

which | am seeking reappointment.
9 / £ / 2o

Date

—
Signature

Information regarding the duties and responsibilities of any board/committee can be found by visiting our website at www.iakeworthbeachfl.gov. Ifyou
need additional information, piease contact Silvina Donaldson at sdonaldson @!akeworthbeachfl.gov, 561-586-1730.
This form has been updated on October 2019




t

Lake Worth, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.s™

VOLUNTEER ADVISORY BOARD APPLICATION
7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth, FL 33160 — Phone: 561-586-1730 — Fax: 561-586-1750

APPLICANT'S NAME: _ oo« 2. vwseeis
(Print name)

THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FORONLY ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE ENTERED ON PAGE FIVE (5).

- Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Lake Worth. The City Commission recognizes that volunteering

-is important, and your contribution is what makes Lake Worth a great community. Completion of this application
is necessary so that the members of the City Commission can thoroughly review each application as part of their
consideration for your appointment.

If applying for more than one Board/Committee, please number in order of preference. If you have previously
submitted an application, it will be removed from our files unless you mark the board(s) previously applied for
on this application. Please choose no more than three Boards/Committees for which you wish to apply. When
selecting, indicate your first, second, and third preference. You may not serve on two of the following
boards/committees at one time: Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals, Commumty Redevelopment
Agency, Historic Resources Preservatlan, or Planning & Zoning Boards.

_ Board of Trustees Employees’ Retirement System *
—_— Board of Trustees Police Retirement System *

___ Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund *
(. Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund — Division I} *
- City Recreation Advisory Board

o City Tree Board

__ Community Redevelopment Agency *

- Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals **
. Electric Utility Advisory Board

—_— Finance Advisory Board

X  Historic Resources Preservation Board **

- Library Board

_— Planning & Zoning Board * **

___ Sister City Board

* Regquires that appointee fill out an annual financial disclosure form to be filed with the Supervisor of
Elections Office

** Certain skill-set disciplines required

ALL BOARD/COMMITTEES ARE SUBJECT TO THE SUNSHINE LAW

{nkowotthoorg

Page 1 of 5 — Updated January 2018




1. PERSONAL

Name: @/Mrs./Ms. (circleone)ét#,c“)‘{”é-”%&r . e e

Residence Address:_ &6 ©. LakEoice e, Hz,

City:  Lbie. o OCTH Seacii State: _ #L..  Zip Code: 2 =mhe <O

Proof of residency attached: ‘\1"}4_}7

Mailing Address: (if different from residence) _2z2-01 -

City: State: ZIP Code:

Home Phone: Business Phone:

Cell Phone; 72420 = 77\ A 27 Email Address:

Are you a citizen of the United States? Y &e¢>

Are you a registered Palm Beach County voter? 2227

Are you a registered Lake Worth voter? & &

How long have you been a resident of Lake Worth? 4 =+ e biE-<

List all properties owned and/or business interests in Lake Worth

gzox—-:?\z,\aﬁ{ e, Usizels HecWWEosT

What is your occupation? _ A CRVTE ST

Employer?_ Xz &

Business Address: (CRA board only) £

Are you currently serving on any City advisory Board? 3O

If yes, which board?

Have you ever served on a City of Lake Worth board? __ v\

lakeworihorg Page 2 of 5 - Updated January 2018




If yes, when and which board(s)?

Do you serve on any boards in Florida, or are you an elected or appointed state, county, or municipal
office holder, or Palm Beach County employee? >

If yes, please name the board, position, etc.

2. EDUCATION

High School: & x & C/H.OO\’ Date of Graduation: \3 52

CMODE. Gl Lzl
College: MO~ F 27 \W\D _ Degree: @A 2-cIA\Date of Graduation: Z

Resume attached? Yes Y. No

3. WORK EXPERIENCE -

_GEE BUACANEND

4. INTEREST/ACTIVITIES

LT, \NTEZMNYOPE DLWy c:(o\,.u-ﬁot.‘ FOOw SwWHE.

cockve oty  WloTeopf, Tgs~El-

Page 3 of 5 - Updated January 2018

lakeworih arg




5. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

HONE T S it

6. a-Why do you desire to serve on this board (first preference)

228 pY Ui EXZ

6. b -Why do you desire to serve on this board (second preference)

6. c¢-Why do you desire to serve on this board (third preference)

ek LT wof
dkeworth.org Page 4 of 5 - Updated January 2018 o




t understand the responsibilities associated with being a board/committee member, and | have adequate
time to serve if appointed.

| have read Ordinance No. 2010-29 and Article XIll (Palm Beach County) Code of Ethics attached hereto, and
understand the policy on the City of Lake Worth's Code of Ethics. Within 30 days after appointment, |
understand that | am required to participate in Ethics Training and submit an Acknowledgement of Receipt
form to the City Clerk’s Office in order to continue to serve on my appointed board.

PLEASE INITIAL <X EZ1I\

7/ &) zoz0
Signature \ﬁj / Date !

THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONLY ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE SIGNED ABOVE.

NOTE: Information regarding the duties and responsibilities of any board/committee can be
found by visiting our website at www.lakeworth.org, then select Services and
Departments, thén select Advisory Boards. For the application, please select Services and
Departments, then select Forms, scroll down to Volunteers and select Advisory Board
Application. [If you need additional information, please contact Silvina Donaldson at
sdonaldson@]lakeworth.org or by calling 561-586-1730.

EMAIL APPLICATION TO: sdonaldson@lakeworth.org

or

FAX APPLICATION TO: Silvina Donaldson at (561) 586-1750
or

RETURN APPLICATION TO: Silvina Donaldson
Lake Worth City Hall
7 North Dixie Highway
Lake Worth, FL 33460

SUNSHINE LAW: The primary purpose of government in the Sunshine Law is to assure public access to the
decision making processes of public boards and committees. The Sunshine Law extends to discussions and
deliberations as well as to formal actions taken by boards and committees.

takeworth.org Page 5 of 5 - Updated January 2018 o




Geoffrey B. Harris
ARCHITECT

605 N. Lakeside Dr., #3

Lake Worth, Fl. 33460

720 71 9276
AR 99020

E-mail gbharch@gmail.com
www.gbharch.com

14 July 2020

I've lived in Lake Worth for 3+ years now and | would like to contribute to the vitality of the
town. The eclectic nature of Lake Worth Beach is something to protect, celebrate and
encourage. The Historic Resources Preservation Board is the best use of my skill set.

Because I'm an Architect, and because | have current Historic projects underway in Lake
Worth Beach, Delray Beach and West Palm Beach, | have the ability to look at a project

that may come before the Board from the vantage point of the proponent of the project as
well as the vantage point of the Board Member trying to make it the most appropriate and

best project for that particular location.

My passion for and delight in Architecture is at all scales and encompasses all styles. |
believe the length of my career and the breadth of my experience from very small
buildings to rather large ones helps me consider a project at all scales: from a small detail,
through the neighborhood context and into the City as a whole.



Geoffrey B. Harris
ARCHITECT

605 N. Lakeside Dr., #3.
Lake Worth, Fl. 33460
720 %71 9276

CO ARC.00201833
FL AR99020

E-mail gbharch@gmail.com
www.gbharch.com

GBH
RESUME
7/13/2020

1

RESUME
7/13/2020

PROFESSIONAL STATUS

Registered Architect - State of Colorado 201833

State of Florida AR99020

e 38 years experience as a licensed Architect in the State of Colorado

e 3years as alicensed Architect in Florida

e  Project experience in single and multi-family residential, commercial, hospitality
and recreation, government and interiors

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

2009 - 2020
1992 - 2007

Geoffrey B. Harris, Architect
Boulder, Colorado; West Palm Beach and Lake Worth Beach, FL.

Principal and Owner
Selected Current projects:

Inn at Tomichi Village, Gunnison, Colorado
Hotel Renovation

Residential Addition, Lake Worth Beach, Florida
2" Story Addition to a Mid-Century House

Commercial Remodeling, Jupiter, Florida

Motorcycle Garage, Lake Worth beach, Florida

Maintenance and Display of Motorcycle Collection in Historically
Compatible Detached Building

Private Residence, Lake Worth Beach, Florida

Addition to Private Residence, Delray Beach, Florida
Addition to a Contributing Historic Property

Detached Garage Renovation, West Palm Beach. Florida
Restoration and Remodel of Contributing Historic Out-Building

Condominium Remodel, Boca Raton, Florida

Remodel and Renovation, West Palm Beach, Florida
Full Interior Remodel, with an Addition, of a Mid-Century Modern House



GBH
RESUME
7/13/2020

2

2007-2009

Additional selected projects:
Betesda Church, Aurora, Colorado

Remodel, Ft. Morgan, Colorado
Remodel and addition to an existing restaurant

1315 Sheridan Apartments, Lakewood, Colorado
15 Unit Apartment Building

3057 West Kentucky Apartments, Denver, Colorado:
Conversion of an existing industrial building into
30 apartments

Earth Sheltered Residence, Park County, Colorado
New residence to replace an existing cabin destroyed by a fire

Shores Residence, Central City, Colorado
New residence within a National Historic District

Carriage House, Denver, Colorado
Accessory Dwelling Unit to an existing house

Main Street Theaters, Elizabeth, Colorado
Triple theater complex in the City of Elizabeth

Speculative Residences: Hualalai, Hawaii
Haney Farm, Boulder, Colorado
Artist’s Residence, Gallery and Sculpture Studio, Buena Vista, Colorado

Offices for Fresh Produce, Boulder, Colorado

Previous Employers

Z Design Group LLC
Boulder, Colorado

Senior Design Architect
Schematic Design and Design Development for the following projects:

Red Ledges, Heber City, Utah:

Clubhouse; Village Center including Bistro/Trading Post, Spa/Fitness Center,
Tennis Academy, Indoor Tennis Building, Sales center, Adventure Cabin,
Kid’s Camp; Village Center including Learning Center, Sales and Retail
Centers.

Casa De Campo Golf Resort, La Domana, Dominican Republic
Golf Lodge and Clubhouse




1989-1992 Pellecchia Olson Architects, P.C.
Denver, Colorado

Design Architect and Project Manager

The Peaks at Telluride Resort Hotel
Schematic Design and Design Development (design team)

Residence, Napa, California
Schematic Design and Design Development, Project Manager

Nevada Bunkhouse, Paradise Valley, Nevada
Schematic Design and Design Development, Project Manager

Lost Creek Lodge, Telluride, Colorado
Schematic Design and Design Development

Trettin Residence, Aspen, Colorado
Schematic Design and Design Development, Project Manager

Telluride Recording Studio, Telluride, Colorado
Schematic Design and Design Development, Project Designer

1988-1989 Fentress Bradburn Architects
(now Fentress Architects)
Denver, Colorado

Architect

Jefferson County Human Services Building, Golden, Colorado
Construction Administration

AWARDS AND PUBLICATIONS

2002 “Fitting in with the Scenery”
“Sunset Magazine”, Summer Supplement
McConnell/Heyman Pool House
Boulder, Colorado

1986 “Tricks of the Trade”
“Boulder Daily Camera”
Bahlman Residence
Boulder, Colorado

1981 Honorable Mention
American Underground Space Association
Earth Sheltered Residence
Boulder, Colorado

GBH
RESUME
7/13/2020

3




1981

1981

1972

EDUCATION

Earth Sheltering: The Form of Energy And The Energy of Form

Pergamon Press
New York
ISBN 0-08-028052-8

Merit Award

Western Mountain Region AlA Awards
Earth Sheltered Residence

Boulder, Colorado

Runner Up
Centre Pompidou (Place Beauborg Competition)
Team under the direction of Raimund Abraham and Freidrich St. Florian

1972 Bachelor of Architecture

1971

1967

GBH
RESUME
7/13/2020

4

Rhode Island School of Design
Providence, Rhode Island

Bachelor of Fine Arts
Rhode Island School of Design
Providence, Rhode Island

Graduated Kent School
Kent, Connecticut




City of
/_\ Lake Worth
'\ ZiBeach'

FINANCE ADVISORY BOARD

Three-Year Terms

MEMBERS APPOINTED

Lindy Seto 05/21/2019
316 Princeton Drive

Lindy.seto@gmail.com

(Mayor’s Appointment)

VACANT (due to Michael Calhoun’s passing)
(Vice Mayor’s Appointment — District 3)

Ben Ellis, Jr.

530 South Federal Highway # 10
bellis@ellisgritter.com

(District 1 Appointment)

03/06/2018

VACANT (due to Judith Just’s resignation)
(District 2 Appointment)

Donald Rosenshine 8/18/2020
131 N. Golfview Rd. #3
Donrosenshine29@gmail.com

(District 4 Appointment)

Sherry Schmidt

4 Indigo Terrace
sherry@cri-re.com
(Mayor’s Appointment)

07/31/2013

VACANT (Caryn Rixey resignation)
(Vice Mayor’s Appointment — District 3)

BOARD LIAISON

Bruce Miller, Finance Director
bmiller@lakeworth.org,
561-586-1641

PHONE

C: 561-490-3225

C: 561-254-3805

C: 443-603-6137

C: 954 551-1655

ETHICS TRAINING

YES

YES

YES

YES

TERM EXPIRES

07/31/2021

07/31/2021

07/31/2019

07/31/2023

07/31/2022

07/31/2019

07/31/2023

The City of Lake Worth Finance Advisory Board was created to serve in an advisory capacity to the City Commission and the
City Manager. The Board shall serve to promote transparency in the City of Lake Worth’s budget process and allow for
additional citizen input on major financial decisions. The Board shall consult with and advise the City Manager and the City
Commission in matters affecting the annual operating budget, capital improvement program and all financial policies.

Page 1 of 2 - 9/23/20


mailto:Lindy.seto@gmail.com
mailto:bellis@ellisgritter.com
mailto:Donrosenshine29@gmail.com
mailto:sherry@cri-re.com
mailto:bmiller@lakeworth.org

City of
/_\ Lake Worth
Beach

Established by Ordinance No. 2010-03, effective 02/26/10, comprised of seven resident members appointed by the City
Commission.

Ord. No. 2010-03, effective 2/26/10, a member who fails to attend three consecutive regularly scheduled meetings or
20% of regularly scheduled meetings held within a 12-month period shall have his/her seat declared vacant by the City
Clerk and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Meetings: First Monday of each month at 6:00 pm in the City Hall Conference Room.

Page 2 of 2 - 9/23/20



Zit of
M=\ Lake Worth
X = Beach

\% FLORIDA

VOLUNTEER ADVISORY BOARD ~ REAPPOINTMENT APPLICATION

Tt Do thnady, e tWorth Brach, Fu 33202 = Shore 361 530 1000~ Taas 555 C64 1750

SECTION 1 & g
Eult Name:__‘éw;l 2
Name of the Advisory Board/Committee you are currently servng on, for whichvou vash to be consldered

for reappaintmens: ,‘.El:ﬁ{&z[c.‘m..:““u. ;

IVeENS) oty 7
.(L.S.Q_.@Jf.w ) QpF=. . *C T 77—2_2:/

By, 2 orbree gnoe dh gzl s vt g i st o gt tegnprmtearar vFS T

Iy celected YES wow ot =ind s aslects 0D Sl ane go

Rut garoe Qdotres

! ’17 U M S AT (S 4ol & e e e Sewn S8 YA e Sl St ks s % 808 e Shat e Seech s s s ! "!‘:‘ R . 3 "' ! “} RoR Gk

Bage oy Adane oy 1 aop! Lanks,
L

fa Ing Socroy o (i arlersnt e o goenee < et

oo ) ati S B

cel b oplerrnaies sliove o

\
|
varsent amst gt |oamy ceganred ’
|
srral the Eong < Tes r<r‘c-r Lorsaie wil fy Theth ‘

eattenadeee pracy Wil beanetfect a0 per ctbe ootivgneg LD A B R E et

’/5526/()/ Zﬁ«’@;‘; u""/l /.z_ §/2020 |




/\ Lake Worth
‘\ Z:Beach"

BOARD OF TRUSTEES — POLICE RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Three-Year Terms
MEMBERS APPOINTED PHONE ETHICS TRAINING TERM EXPIRES

Pam Triolo W:561-586-1730 YES NA
7 North Dixie Highway

ptriolo@lakeworth.org

(Mayor)

Bruce Miller W: 561-586-1654 YES NA
7 North Dixie Highway

bmiller@lakeworth.org

(Finance Director)

Charles Siri 08/02/12 W:561-586-1611 YES 07/31/2019
120 North G Street

Email TBD

(Employee Member)

Christopher Johnson — CHAIR 05/16/13 W:561-586-1611 YES 07/31/2021
120 North G Street

johnsonch@pbso.org

(Employee Member)

VACANT 07/31/2022
(Citizen Member)

The Board shall administer, manage and be responsible for the proper operation of the Police Retirement System.

The Board shall consist of five trustees: The Mayor, member of senior management staff appointed by the city commission, a
citizen who is a resident of the City appointed by the City Commission, and two trustees who are participants of the retirement
system employed by the PBSO or deputy sheriffs who are in the DROP, elected by a majority of the deputy sheriffs who are
participants of the retirement system or a retired participant.

Ord. No. 2003-25, enacted 8/5/03, established attendance requirements: a member who fails to attend three consecutive
regularly scheduled meetings or 25% of all meetings held within a 12-month period shall have his/her seat declared vacant by
the City Clerk and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 2008-14, effective 7/10/08, amended attendance requirements: a member who fails to attend three consecutive
regularly scheduled meetings or 20% of regularly scheduled meetings held within a 12-month period shall have his/her seat
declared vacant by the City Clerk and the City Commission shall promptly fill such vacancy.

Ord. No. 2010-20, effective December 1, 2010, amended the trustees’ composition to include PBSO personnel, replace the

Finance Director with a member of the senior management staff appointed by the Commission, and increase the term from
two to three years

Page 1 of 2 - 8/13/20


mailto:ptriolo@lakeworth.org
mailto:bmiller@lakeworth.org
mailto:johnsonch@pbso.org

Meetings: Quarterly, on the fourth Tuesday of the last month of the quarter at 11:00 am in the City Hall Conference Room.

Citizen members appointed by Commission must be residents; employee members elected by co-workers need not be
residents.

Financial disclosure forms are required.

POLICE OFFICERS’ HOME PHONE NUMBERS AND ADDRESSES ARE EXPEMPT FROM PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.

Pension Administrator: The Resource Centers, LLC
4360 Northlake Blvd. Suite 206
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
Phone: (561) 624-3277 Fax: (561) 624-3278

Page 2 of 2 - 8/13/20



Lake Worth S

Beach
FLORIDA"

VOLUNTEER ADVISORY BOARD APPLICATION

7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 —Phone: 561-586-1600 — Fax: 561-586-1750

APPLICANT'S NAME:

gt Y /Mo;zma

(Please print your full name)

THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE ENTERED ON PAGE FIVE (5). |

Thank you for your interest in serving the City of Lake Worth Beach. The City Commission recognizes that
volunteering is important, and your contribution is what makes Lake Worth Beach a great community.
Completion of this application is necessary so that the members of the City Commission can thoroughly review

each application as part of their consideration for your appointment.

If applying for more than one Board/Committee, please number in order of preference. If you have previously
submitted an application, it will be removed from our files unless you mark the board(s) previously applied for
on this application. Please choose no more than three Boards/Committees for which you wish to apply. When
selecting, indicate your first, second, and third preference. You may not serve on two of the following
boards/committees at one time: Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals, Community Redevelopment

Agency, Historic Resources Preservation, or Planning & Zoning Boards.

Board of Trustees Employees’ Retirement System *

Board of Trustees Police Retirement System *

Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund — Division | *
Board of Trustees Firefighters’ Pension Trust Fund — Division [l *
City Recreation Advisory Board

City Tree Board
Community Redevelopment Agency *
Construction Board of Adjustments and Appeals **

Electric Utility Advisory Board

Finance Advisory Board
Historic Resources Preservation Board **

Library Board
Planning & Zoning Board * **
Citizen’s Advisory Committee — Road Bond

C-51 Canal Advisory Committee

* Requires that appointee fill out an annual financial disclosure form to be filed with the Supervisor of

Elections Office
**  Certain skill-set disciplines required

ALL BOARD/COMMITTEES ARE SUBJECT TO THE SUNSHINE LAW




1. PERSONAL

Name: Mr./Mrs./Ms. (circle one) Mr. Lonney Moral

Residence Address: 182 Harvard Dr

City: Lake Worth Beach State: Fl Zip Code: 33460

Proof of residency attached:

Mailing Address: (if different from residence) 182 Harvard Dr.

City: Lake Worth Beach State: FI 7IP Code: 33460

Business Phone: 5616883000

Home Phone:

Cell Phone: 56143689585 Email Address:

Are you a citizen of the United States? VYag

Are you a registered Palm Beach County voter? Yes

Are you a registered Lake Worth voter? Ye

[¢2)

How long have you been a resident of Lake Worth? 29 years

List all properties owned and/or business interests in Lake Worth None

What is your occupation? Deputy Sheriff

Employer? Palm Beach Sheriffs Office

Business Address: (CRA board only) 3228 Gun Club Rd., WPB FL 33406

Are you currently serving on any City advisory Board? No

If yes, which board?

Have you ever served on a City of Lake Worth board? No

Page 2 of 5



If yes, when and which board(s)?

Do you serve on any boards in Florida, or are you an elected or appointed state, county, or municipal
office holder, or Palm Beach County employee? NO

If yes, please name the board, position, etc.

2. EDUCATION

High School: | ake Worth High Date of Graduation: May 1985

College: — Some Degree: N/A Date of Graduation: N/A

NoX

Resume attached? Yes

3. WORK EXPERIENCE
1995-2008: Police Officer for City of Lake Worth

Currently: Palm Beach County Sheriffs Deputy

4. INTEREST/ACTIVITIES

Hunting & Fishing

Page 3 of 5



5. COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Downtown Deputy

6. A-Why do you desire to serve on this board (first preference)

Monitor and assist in pension decisions

6. B-Why do you desire to serve on this board (second preference)

6. C-Why do you desire to serve on this board (third preference)

Page 4 of 5



I understand the responsibilities associated with being a board/committee member, and | have adequate
time to serve if appointed.

I have read the attached Ordinance No. 2010-29 and Article XlIl (Palm Beach County) Code of Ethics and
understand the policy on the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of Ethics. Within 30 days after appointment, |
understand that | am required to participate in Ethics Training and submit an Acknowledgement of Receipt
form to the City Clerk’s Office in order to continue to serve on my appointed board.

PLEASE INITIAL LTM

LONNEY MORAL 9-16-2020
Date

Signature

e THIS APPLICATION IS VALID FOR ONE (1) YEAR FROM THE DATE SIGNED ABOVE.

e THIS APPLICATION IS NOT VALID WITHOUT APPLICANT’S PROOF OF RESIDENCY.

NOTE:  Information regarding the duties and responsibilities of any board/committee, as well as this
application can be found on our website located at www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. Should you need
additional information, please contact Silvina Donaldson at sdonaldson@Ilakeworthbeachfl.gov or

by calling 561-586-1730.

Please send your application by email, mail, fax or by hand delivering to:

Silvina Donaldson

City of Lake Worth Beach

7 North Dixie Highway

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460
sdonaldson@Ilakeworthbeachfl.gov
Phone: 561-586-1750

Fax: 561-586-1750

SUNSHINE LAW: The primary purpose of government in the Sunshine Law is to assure public access
to the decision-making processes of public boards and committees. The Sunshine Law extends to
discussions and deliberations, as well as to formal actions taken by boards and committees.

This form has been updated on October 2019

Page 5 of 5



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, The Palm Beach County Bar Association’s Alternative Dispute Resolution
Committee seeks to promote to lawyers, the judiciary and the public the use and
value of alternative dispute resolution processes. These processes help parties
resolve disputes without a trial in a less costly and more timely and satisfying
manner; and

WHEREAS, In 2011, the American Bar Association declared the third week of October as
Mediation Week to recognize the utilization of mediation as one of several
appropriate dispute resolution processes; and

WHEREAS, Mediators and other dispute resolution practitioners, through their concentrated
expertise in helping parties find lasting solutions to complex problems, have
continually demonstrated the value of the field of alternative dispute resolution; and

WHEREAS, Mediation practices and skills are being applied in the workplace by leaders,
managers and supervisors who have embraced the power and efficiency of open
communication and collaborative problem solving; and

WHEREAS, Mediation, along with the principles and practices that it embodies, can be a crucial
tool for peacemaking between individuals, groups, units, neighborhoods, as well as
governments and our region continues to be a leader in those efforts; and

WHEREAS, Professional associations of conflict resolvers are promoting the peaceful and
creative resolution of disputes; and

WHEREAS, The City of Lake Worth Beach extends its appreciation to the members of the Palm
Beach County Bar Association and especially to the members of the Alternative
Dispute Resolution Committee for its effort to promote alternative conflict
resolutions throughout Palm Beach County.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pam Triolo, by virtue of the power vested in me as Mayor of the City
of Lake Worth Beach, do hereby proclaim

OCTOBER 11-17, 2020
AS

MEDIATION WEEK

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, to be affixed hereto this 6 day of October, 2020.

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk




WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORD&

PROCLAMATION

The Republic of China (Taiwan) observes the 109" National Day on
October 10", 2020; and since the establishment of the Taipei Economic
and Cultural Office in Miami in 1988 and the consequent establishment
of the sister-state and sister-city relations between the State and cities of
Florida and Taiwan, the Taipei Economic and Cultural Office in Miami
has spared no efforts in the upholding of bilateral economic, cultural, and
educational relations; and

The United States and Taiwan have maintained and enhanced close
friendship over the decades encompassing commercial, cultural, and
other interactions based on the 1979 Taiwan Relations Act (Public Law
96-8 96 Congress), the cornerstone of the U.S.-Taiwan ties which
celebrates the 41% anniversary of its enactment in 2020; and

Taiwan has been a member of the United States Visa Waiver Program
since November 1%, 2012, reflecting the ever-closer cooperation between
the United States and Taiwan and making travel for business and tourism
between the two more convenient; and

Dr. Tsai Ing-wen, the first female President of the Republic of China
(Taiwan) and democratically re-elected in 2020, was warmly welcomed
in Miami on June 24", 2016, further enhancing the bilateral relationship
between Florida and Taiwan, as well as strengthening the common values
it shares with the United States; and

The launch of FORMOSAT-7/COSMIC-2 on June 25", 2019, a joint
U.S.-Taiwan collaborative space program of a constellation of six
satellites designed to enhance the accuracy of atmospheric weather
prediction, has demonstrated the mutual benefit born of U.S.-Taiwan
relations; and

Taiwan is the 9™ largest trading partner of the United States and the 10™
largest export market in the world for U.S. goods as of June of 2020, as
well as Florida’s 6™ largest market in Asia, garnering the Sunshine State
over 7,850 jobs and $944.3 million in trade and investment ties in 2018.
The establishment of a Bilateral Trade Agreement (BTA) between the
United States and Taiwan in order to strengthen further bilateral trade and
economic ties is welcome; and

Taiwan’s bid for meaningful participation in numerous international
organizations, including the International Civil Aviation Organization
(ICAO), the World Health Organization (WHO), the United Nations
Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC) and the
International Criminal Police Organization (INTERPOL) would benefit
regional development, peace, and prosperity; and



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Taiwan is a close strategic partner to the United States in East Asia with
dynamic progress towards political democratization and economic
liberalization, as well as the promotion of education, humanitarian aid,
healthcare, environmental protections, technological innovation, and the
advancement of basic human rights of life, liberty, and security; and

To assist in the fight against the COVID-19 pandemic, the Government
and People of Taiwan has donated over 11.75 million medical masks to
the United States through federal and local governments and from that
amount, over 420,000 medical masks were donated in Florida; and

Taiwan aspires to further contribute to international development and to
promote peace and prosperity. We cherish our traditional cordial sister-
state and sister-city relations with Taiwan and hope to further solidify
them; and we recognize Taiwan’s efforts in its aim to participate
effectively and meaningfully in global affairs, we will continue to support
her mission of economic liberalization, political democratization and
significant participation in the international arena.

NOW, THEREFORE, | PAM TRIOLO, Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida, by virtue of the authority vested in me, do hereby recognize

OCTOBER 10, 2020
as

109™ NATIONAL DAY OF THE REPUBLIC OF CHINA (TAIWAN)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of
Lake Worth Beach, Florida, to be affixed this 6th day of October, 2020.

ATTEST:

Pam Triolo, Mayor

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:
Purchase Authorization with Badger Meters

SUMMARY:
Purchase authorization for purchase of City’s water meters for inventory for Fiscal Year
2021 at a cost not to exceed $120,000.00.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Water Utilities Department provides and installs all water meters up to 2-inch water
services within the water utility service area. The City purchases Badger water meters
as the sole source vendor in Florida. These meters will enable Water Distribution staff
to continue installing water meters for new construction as well as upgrading and
replacing the meters in Lake Osborne Estates. Meters will be purchased as needed for
inventory demand.

MOTION:

Motion to approve/disapprove a purchase authorization with Badger Meters for an
amount not to exceed $ 120,000.00 for fiscal year 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Badger Meter Sole Source Letter
2021 Annual Quote



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $120,000 O 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project FY21 Current Agenda

Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure Balance
402-7034- Water

533.46-60 Utilities N/A $203,540 $203,540 $120,000 $83,540.00

Meters/Line




Badger Meter

September 23, 2020

Chris Walker

Water Meter Foreman | Water Distribution
City of Lake Worth Beach

1900 2" Avenue North

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

RE: Sole Source Letter

Dear Chris Walker:

4545 W Brown Deer Road

PO Box 245036

Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53224-9536
414-355-0400 | 800-876-3837

www.badgermeter.com

This letter will confirm that Badger Meter, Inc. is the sole manufacturer and the sole supplier of

Badger Meter utility products for the state of Florida.

In the event you have any questions regarding this correspondence, | can be reached by
telephone at 800-876-3837 ext. 16220 or via email at bids@badgermeter.com.

Sincerely,

BADGER METER, INC.

/@A/,uvyszw

Rebecca L. Loomans
Assistant Secretary




ANNUAL QUOTATION

Badger Meter

4545 W Brown Deer Rd CREATED DATE:
Milwaukee WI 53223 QUOTED BY:
PHONE: 800-876-3837 REQUESTED BY:

PHONE:

BILL TO: City of Lake Worth Beach FL SHIP TO:

EMAIL:

August 14 2020
Angie Phillips
Chris Walker
561-707-7401
Cwalker@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

City of Lake Worth Beach FL

EFFECTIVE DATES: 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2021

SHIPPING
SALESPERSON PROPOSAL SUBJECT TERMS PAYMENT TERMS
AP 5/8"x 3/4" - 2" METERS Prepay/No Charge For Shipments > $25,000 Net 30 Days
FCA Factory/Warehouse
QTY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT
DISC METERS with ILC - 5’ LEAD
M25 5/8" x 3/4" Lead Free Disc Meter with Plastic Bottom Plate
with HRE (8dial) with Itron In-Line Connector 5' Lead (no
TBD endpoint) S 124.25
M55 1" Lead Free Disc Meter with Bronze Bottom Plate with HRE
TBD (8dial) with Itron In-Line Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 215.76
M120 1-1/2" Lead Free Disc Meter HEX or ELL with Test Plug
with HRE (8dial) with Itron In-Line Connector 5' Lead (no
TBD endpoint) S 444,54
M170 2" Lead Free Disc Meter HEX or ELL with Test Plug with
TBD HRE (8dial) with Itron In-Line Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 630.17
NOTE: MUST SPECIFY HEX or ELL WHEN ORDERING
E-SERIES with ILC - 5' LEAD
E25 5/8" x 3/4" Stainless Steel Ultrasonic Meter with Itron In-
TBD Line Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 176.33
E55 1" Stainless Steel Ultrasonic Meter with Itron In-Line
TBD Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 224.32




ANNUAL QUOTATION
Badger Meter

4545 N Brown Deer Rd CREATED DATE: August 14 2020
Milwaukee WI 53223 QUOTED BY: Angie Phillips
PHONE: 800-876-3837 REQUESTED BY: Chris Walker

PHONE: 561-707-7401
EMAIL: Cwalker@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

BILL TO: City of Lake Worth Beach FL SHIP TO: City of Lake Worth Beach FL

EFFECTIVE DATES: 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2021

SHIPPING
SALESPERSON PROPOSAL SUBJECT TERMS PAYMENT TERMS
AP 5/8" x 3/4" - 2" METERS Prepay/No Charge For Shipments > $25,000 Net 30 Days
FCA Factory/Warehouse

QTY PRODUCT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

E120 1-1/2" Stainless Steel Ultrasonic Meter HEX or ELL with
TBD Itron In-Line Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 515.59

E170 2" Stainless Steel Ultrasonic Meter HEX or ELL with Itron In-
TBD Line Connector 5' Lead (no endpoint) S 626.30

NOTE: MUST SPECIFY HEX or ELL WHEN ORDERING

SUBTOTAL| S -
Sales Tax: To be quoted at time of order. SALES TAX| § -
Est. Lead Time: To be provided at time of order. FREIGH | Add
TOTAL

Notes and Assumptions:

Badger Meter continues to improve and redesign our products to provide our customers with state-of-the-art technology solutions.



Badger Meter

4545 W Brown Deer Rd
Milwaukee WI153223
PHONE: 800-876-3837

BILL TO: City of Lake Worth Beach FL

ANNUAL QUOTATION

CREATED DATE:
QUOTED BY:
REQUESTED BY:
PHONE:

EMAIL:

SHIP TO:

August 14 2020

Angie Phillips

Chris Walker

561-707-7401
Cwalker@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

City of Lake Worth Beach FL

EFFECTIVE DATES: 09/01/2020 - 09/30/2021

SHIPPING
SALESPERSON PROPOSAL SUBJECT TERMS PAYMENT TERMS
AP 5/8" x 3/4" - 2" METERS Prepay/No Charge For Shipments > $25,000 Net 30 Days
FCA Factory/Warehouse
Qry | PRODUCT DESCRIPTION UNITPRICE [ AMOUNT

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS!!

This quotation is an offer, made subject to the terms & conditions found on our website:
www.badgermeter.com/Company/Legal/Sales-terms.aspx




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:
Purchase Authorization for Itron meter transmitters from The Avanti Company

SUMMARY:

The Purchase Authorization with The Avanti Company will allow for the acquisition of
water meter transmitters made by Itron for inventory purposes for Fiscal Year 2021 at a
cost not to exceed $80,000.00.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Water Utilities Department provides and installs all water meters up to 2-inch water
services within the water utility service area. The Meters are retro fitted with Itrons which
are provided by The Avanti Company as the sole source vendor in Florida. These Itrons
will enable the city staff to continue installing water meters for new construction as well
as upgrading and replacing the meters in Lake Osborne Estates. Itrons will be purchased
as needed for inventory demand with Badger Meters.

MOTION:
Move to approve/disapprove a purchase authorization with The Avanti Company for an
amount not to exceed $80,000.00 for fiscal year 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Itron Sole Source Letter
Quote



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $80,000.00 O 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project Fy21 Current Agenda Balance

Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

402-7034- Water

533.46-60 Utilities N/A $203,540 $203,540 $80,000 $123,540

Meters/Line




Ifron

2111 N. Molter Rd., Liberty Lake, WA 99019
509.924.9900 Tel 509.891.3355 Fax
www.itron.com

August 13, 2020

Mr. Chris Walker

City of Lake Worth
301 College St

Lake Worth, FL 33460

Dear Mr. Walker,

Please accept this letter as confirmation that Lake Worth is serviced by The Avanti Company. They are
Itron’s only authorized direct water distributor in Florida to sell Itron’s Automatic Meter Reading and
Advanced Metering Infrastructure products including the 100W+ series Choice Connect endpoint,

external antennas and necessary reading equipment.

If you have any questions, or if | can provide any further information, please feel free to contact me.

Regards,

Rusty Agi
Area Manager



FLOW METERS AND METERING SYSTEMS

? z QZ ‘ %;ﬂ Quote # EC-081320-02-03
CUSTOMER SERVICE 1-800-284-5231 WWW_AVANTICOMPANY.COM
Quotation Date 8/13/20
22 South Lake Avenue Toll Free: 1-800-284-5231
Avon Park, FL 33825-3902 Fax: 863-453-0085 Terms FY21
www.avanticompany.com E-Mail: info@avanticompany.com
Prices FOB Factory
To: Mr. Chris Walker Delivery 3-4 Weeks
City of Lake Worth
1900 2nd Ave. N. Phone #
Lake Worth, FL 33461-4298
CWalker@LakeWorthbeachfl.gov Cell #
We are pleased to quote the following: Reference #
Item Quantity Description Unit Price Total
A 1 100W+ ERT, Encoder with Integral Connector and Antenna $75.00 $75.00
Connector, Part # ERW-1300-402
B 1 100W Through-the-Lid remote mount antenna Kit, $55.00 $55.00
Part # CFG-0900-003
* Above pricing does not include freight charges.
S, _
Quoted By: f:vky_/- ks ( EricJ.Corey ) /| Accepted By:

Prices quoted above are current prices in effect and are subject to acceptance within 30 days from the above date, and are firm on an order resulting from this quote scheduled to ship within 60 days

from date of order entry. All items quoted will be produced in strict accordance to any Government Regulation in effect including Fair Labor-Standards Act, OSHA, and Equal Employment Opportunity



http://www.avanticompany.com/
mailto:CWalker@LakeWorthbeachfl.gov

EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:
Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation to purchase Sodium Hypochlorite (Bleach) for
water treatment and odor control

SUMMARY:

This Agreement authorizes the purchase of bulk Sodium Hypochlorite for the City of Lake
Worth Water Utilities at a cost Not-to-Exceed $130,500.00 for Fiscal Year 2021 from Allied
Universal Corporation.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

Sodium Hypochlorite is a necessary chemical which is added to the finished water supply
and is used for the disinfection of drinking water, killing germs, micro-organisms, algae, etc.
Sodium Hypochlorite is also necessary for odor control at the Reverse Osmosis Water
Treatment Plant and Master Pump Station.

On September 8, 2020, bids were received under IFB 20-107 for the purchase of bulk Sodium
Hypochlorite needed for the Water Treatment Plant and Master Pump Station. These bids
were evaluated by staff taking into account unit costs, minimum quantities, and penalties for
partial deliveries. This agreement will also authorize the City Manager to extend the
agreement, if requested, and with the amount not to exceed amounts set forth in the 2022 and
2023 fiscal year budget.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the agreement to purchase bulk Sodium Hypochlorite from Allied
Universal for an amount not to exceed $130,500.00 for Fiscal Year 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Bid Tabulation
Agreement



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $130,500 O 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact $130,500 O 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project FY21 Budget | Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Balance Expenditure
402-4022- Operating N/A $450,000.00 | $450,000.00 | -$125,000.00 | $298,000.00
533.52-30 Supplies/
Chemicals
403.7231- Operating N/A $20,000.00 $20,000.00 -$3,000.00 $17,000.00
535.52-30 Supplies/
Chemicals
405-7421- Operating N/A $230,000.00 | $230,000.00 -$2,500.00 $227,500.00
535.52-30 Supplies/
Chemicals




Bid Tabulation

IFB 20-107 Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite

Bid Opening: 9/8/2020 - 4:00 PM E.S.T.

UNIVAR SOLUTIONS

Unit of Measure

Unit Price (Per Gallon)

ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP. ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING CORP.
ITEM # Description Unit of Measure | Unit Price (Per Gallon) | Unit of Measure | Unit Price (Per Gallon)
1 Full Truckload - 30,000 + Gallons GAL 0.518 GAL 0.531
2 Partial Truckload - Up to 30,000 Gallons GAL 0.549 GAL 0.531

NO BID




AGREEMENT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES
(Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite)

THIS AGREEMENT is made , between the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, hereinafter the “CITY”, with its office located at
7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460, and Allied Universal Corp.,
a corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter the
“CONTRACTOR?”, with its office located at 3901 NW 115 Avenue, Miami, Florida 33178.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY is a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant
to the Charter and the Constitution of the State of Florida;

WHEREAS, the CITY issued Invitation for Bid #20-107 for the procurement of
Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite on an as needed basis (hereinafter “IFB"); and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR submitted a bid to provide Liquid Sodium
Hypochlorite as described and set out in the IFB; and

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accept the CONTRACTOR’s price bid (attached
hereto as Exhibit “A”) in order for the CONTRACTOR to render the goods and services
to the CITY as provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR further warrants that it is experienced and
capable of performing the tasks hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and

WHEREAS, the CITY finds awarding the IFB to the CONTRACTOR as described
herein serves a valid public purpose.

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY hereby engages the services of the
CONTRACTOR, and in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as follows:

1. TERM

1.1 The term of this Agreement (the "Agreement") shall be for an initial term of one (1)
year, with an option for three (3) additional one (1) year renewals upon the mutual
agreement of both parties. The renewal terms may be approved by the City Manager
upon the same terms, conditions and pricing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this
Agreement may be terminated by the CITY as set forth herein.

2. SCOPE OF WORK



2.1 The scope of work includes the supply and delivery of Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite
on an as needed basis as more specifically set forth in the IFB and the scope of work,
which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Scope of Work”). Services by the
CONTRACTOR shall commence upon the issuance of a Purchase Order by the CITY.

22  The CONTRACTOR represents to the CITY that the materials provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with accepted and established trade practices and
procedures recognized in the CONTRACTOR's trade in general and that the
CONTRACTOR’s work shall conform to the highest standards and in accordance with
this Agreement.

2.3 The CONTRACTOR represents that it is licensed to do business in the State of
Florida and holds and will maintain all applicable licenses required for the work to be
completed under this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR further warrants its capability and
experience to perform the work provided for herein in a professional and competent
manner.

2.4  Alldeliveries of the chemicals shall be made within 48-72 hours of the CITY issuing
the Purchase Order to the CONTRACTOR. In the event of a natural disaster as
determined by the CITY, such as a hurricane, and the CITY places an order, such delivery
shall be made on a "first priority" basis. Deliveries shall only occur between the hours of
7:00 am to 3:00 pm Monday through Friday.

2.5 The Scope of Work shall be completed in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the IFB and this Agreement.

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; USE OF AGENTS OR ASSISTANTS

31 The CONTRACTOR is and shall be, in the performance of the Scope of Work
under this Agreement, an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant
of the CITY. All persons engaged in any of the Scope of Work performed pursuant to this
Agreement shall at all times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR’s sole
direction, supervision, and control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the
means and manner in which it and its employees perform the Scope of Work.

3.2 To the extent reasonably necessary to enable the CONTRACTOR to perform the
Scope of Work hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be authorized to engage the services
of any agents or assistants which it may deem proper, and may further employ, engage,
or retain the services of such other persons or corporations to aid or assist in the proper
performance of its duties. All costs of the services of, or expenses incurred by, such
agents or assistants shall be paid by the CONTRACTOR.

4. MATERIALS



41 The CONTRACTOR shall provide all chemicals as more specifically set forth in the
Scope of Work.

5. FEE AND ORDERING MECHANISM

51  For services to be rendered under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall be
entitled to a fee for actual goods provided and accepted by the City at the price set forth
in CONTRACTOR'’S price bid (Exhibit “A”).

5.2  Should the CITY require additional chemicals, not included in this Agreement, fees
and payment for such work will be set forth in a separate amendment, as authorized in
accordance with the CITY's procurement code and policy prior to any such additional
goods being provided by the CONTRACTOR.

5.3 The City's ordering mechanism for the Scope of Work performed under this
Agreement will be a City Purchase Order(s); however, the terms and conditions stated in
a City Purchase Order shall not apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide any goods or
services under this Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for goods and
services. CONTRACTOR shall not exceed amounts expressed on any Purchase Order.
The City’s Fiscal Year ends on September 30" of each calendar year and the City cannot
authorize the purchase of goods or services beyond September 30" of each calendar
year, prior to the annual budget being approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the
City must have budgeted appropriate funds for the goods and services in any subsequent
Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods and services, the City will issue a
new Purchase Order each Fiscal Year for required and approved goods consistent with
the term and any renewal requirements.

6. MAXIMUM COSTS

6.1 The CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that the total cost to
complete the Scope of Work in accordance with the IFB and this Agreement shall not
exceed One Hundred Thirty-Seven Thousand, Two Hundred Seventy Dollars
($137,270.00) per fiscal year, and no additional costs shall be authorized without prior
written approval from the CITY.

7. INVOICE

74  The CONTRACTOR shall submit an itemized invoice to the CITY for approval prior
to receiving compensation. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid within thirty (30) days of
receipt of an approved invoice for work.

7.2 If the CITY disputes any invoice or part of an invoice, CITY shall notify the
CONTRACTOR within a reasonable time after receipt of the invoice. CITY reserves the



right to off-set, reduce or withhold any payment to the CONTRACTOR until the dispute is
resolved.

8. AUDIT BY CITY

81 The CONTRACTOR shall permit the CITY, or any authorized representatives of
the CITY, at all reasonable times, access to and the right to examine all records, books,
papers or documents related to the CONTRACTOR's performance under this Agreement
including, but not limited to, expenses for sub-contractors, agents or assistants, direct
and indirect charges for work performed and detailed documentation for all such work
performed or to be performed under this Agreement.

9. COPIES OF DATA/DOCUMENTS

9.1  Copies or original documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in relation to work
associated with this Agreement shall be provided to the CITY. Data collected, stored,
and/or provided shall be in a form acceptable to the CITY and agreed upon by the CITY.

10. OWNERSHIP

10.1 Each and every report, draft, work product, map, record, and other document
reproduced, prepared, or caused to be prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to or in
connection with this Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the CITY.

11.  WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED

11.1 The CONTRACTOR shall not make changes in the Scope of Work or perform any
additional services or provide any additional material under this Agreement without first
obtaining written authorization from the CITY for such additional services or materials.
Additional services or materials provided without written authorization shall be done at
the CONTRACTOR's sole risk and without payment from the CITY.

12. DEFAULTS, TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

12.1 If the CONTRACTOR fails to timely perform the Scope of Work or has failed in any
other respect to satisfactorily perform in accordance with this Agreement; or, is in material
breach of a term or condition of this Agreement, the City Manager or designee may give
written notice to the CONTRACTOR specifying defaults to be remedied. Such notice shall
set forth the basis for any dissatisfaction and suggest corrective measures. If the
CONTRACTOR does not remedy defaults within the allotted time or commence good faith
steps to remedy the default to the reasonable satisfaction of the City Manager or
designee, the CITY may take such action to remedy the default and all expenses related
thereto shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR including, without limitation, utilization of
another contractor to provide for such work; and/or, the CITY may withhold any money

4



due or which may become due to the CONTRACTOR for such expense and/or work
related to the claimed default. Alternatively, or in addition to the foregoing, if after three
(3) days the CONTRACTOR has not remedied defaults or commenced good faith steps
to remedy defaults to the satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may
elect to terminate this Agreement. No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization,
take-down, disengagement, wind-down, lost profits or other costs incurred due to
termination of this Agreement under this paragraph.

12.2 Notwithstanding paragraph 12.1, the CITY reserves the right and may elect to
terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without cause, with notice from the City
Manager or designee. At such time, the CONTRACTOR would be compensated only for
that work which has been satisfactorily completed to the date of termination. No
compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement, wind-down,
lost profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this

paragraph.
13. INSURANCE

13.1. Prior to commencing the Scope of Work, the CONTRACTOR shall provide
certificates evidencing insurance coverage as required hereunder. All insurance policies
shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of
Florida. The Certificates shall clearly indicate that the CONTRACTOR has obtained
insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required for strict compliance with
this section and that no material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective
without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the CITY. Failure to comply with the
foregoing requirements shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligations
under this Agreement. All insurance, other than Workers' Compensation, required
hereunder shall specifically include the “City of Lake Worth Beach” as an “Additional
Insured” on a primary, non-contributory basis, and the CONTRACTOR shall provide
additional insured endorsements section of Certificates of Insurance.

13.2. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, commercial
general liability, including contractual fiability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per
occurrence ($2,000,000 aggregate) to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for
damages for bodily and personal injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims
of property damages which may arise from any operations under this Agreement, whether
such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly employed by or
contracting with the CONTRACTOR.

13.3. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement,
comprehensive automobile liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damages liability to protect the

5



CONTRACTOR from claims for damages for bodily and personal injury, including death,
as well as from claims for property damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or
maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, including rented automobiles
whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly
employed by the CONTRACTOR.

13.4. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Workers’
Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for all employees as required
by Florida Statutes.

14. WAIVER OF BREACH

14.1 The waiver by either party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not
operate or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that same or any other
provision.

15. INDEMNITY

15.1 The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless, to the maximum
extent permitted by law, the CITY and its officers, agents, employees and representatives,
from and against any and all liability, suit, actions, proceedings, judgments, claims,
losses, liens, damages, injuries (whether in contract or in tort, including personal injury,
accidental death, patent infringement or property damage, and regardless, of whether the
allegations are false, fraudulent or groundless), costs and expenses (including attorney's
fees, litigation, arbitration, mediation, appeal expenses) to the extent arising out of or
alleged to have arisen out of the acts, omissions or neglect of the CONTRACTOR or any
of its agents, employees, subcontractors or by anyone the CONTRACTOR directly or

indirectly employed.

15.2 The CONTRACTOR'’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall
remain in effect and shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR whether such injury or
damage shall accrue, or may be discovered, before or after termination of this Agreement.

15.3 Compliance with any insurance requirements required elsewhere in this
Agreement shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation to defend, hold
harmless and indemnify the CITY as set forth in this section.

15.4 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or
a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the CITY or CONTRACTOR.
Further, nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as consent
by the CITY to be sued, nor as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided
in section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time.



15,5 The CONTRACTOR's failure to comply with this section's provisions shall
constitute a material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend

this Agreement.
16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

16.1 This Agreement consists of the terms and conditions provided herein (including
Exhibit “B"); the IFB (including all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto
or referenced therein); and, the CONTRACTOR's price bid (Exhibit “A"). To the extent
that there exists a conflict between this Agreement and the remaining documents, the
terms, conditions, covenants, and/or provisions of this Agreement shall prevail with the
IFB (including all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto) next taking
precedence. Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in
such a manner as to avoid conflicts between provisions of the various documents.

16.2 This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing,
between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other
Agreement, statement, or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which
is not contained herein shall be valid or binding.

17. ASSIGNMENT

17.1 Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to
any party other than the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. All duties and responsibilities
under this Agreement shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the CITY and the
CONTRACTOR and not for the benefit or any other party. The CONTRACTOR shall not
assign any right or interest in this Agreement, and shall not delegate any duty owned,
without the CITY’s prior written consent. Any attempted assignment or delegation shall
be void and totally ineffective for all purposes, and shall constitute a material breach upon
which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

17.2 In the event the CITY consents to an assignment or delegation, the assignee,
delegate, or its legal representative shall agree in writing to personally assume, perform,
and be bound by this Agreement’s covenants, conditions, obligations and provisions.

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

18.1 Subject to the provision regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on
the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

19. OF TRIAL BY JURY



19.1 TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY
LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN

ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.
20. GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES

20.1 The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the
rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida and venue shall be in Palm Beach County, Florida.

20.2 No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any
other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in
addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in
equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right,
power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

21. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

21.1 Time is of the essence in the delivery of the goods as specified herein.

22. NOTICES

22.1  All notices hereunder must be in writing and, unless otherwise provided herein,
shall be deemed validly given on the date when personally delivered to the address
indicated below: or on the third (3™) business day following deposit, postage prepaid,
using certified mail, return receipt requested, in any U.S. postal mailbox or at any U.S.
Post Office: or when sent via nationally recognized overnight courier to the address
indicated below. Should the CITY or the CONTRACTOR have a change of address, the
other party shall immediately be notified in writing of such change, provided, however,
that each address for notice must include a street address and not merely a post office
box. All notices, demands or requests from the CONTRACTOR to the CITY shall be given

to the CITY address as follows:

Michael Bornstein, City Manager
City of Lake Worth Beach

7 North Dixie Highway

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460

All notices, demands or requests from the CITY to the CONTRACTOR shall be given to
the CONTRACTOR address as follows:

Allied Universal Corp.
3901 NW 115 Ave
Miami, FL 33178



23. SEVERABILITY

23.1  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement or any document required
herein to be executed be declared invalid, void or unenforceable, all remaining parts,
terms and provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be
invalidated, impaired or affected thereby.

24. DELAYS AND FORCES OF NATURE

241 The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in
timely performance if such delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the
control of the CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence.
Upon the CONTRACTOR's request, the CITY shall consider the facts and extent of any
such delay and failure to timely perform the work for reason beyond the control of the
CONTRACTOR and, if the CONTRACTOR'S delay and failure to timely perform was
without it or its subcontractors’ fault or negligence, as determined by the CITY inits sole
discretion, the time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time that the CITY,
in its sole discretion, may decide; subject to the CITY’S rights to change, terminate, or
stop any or all of the work at any time. If the CONTRACTOR is delayed at any time in
the progress of the work by any act or neglect of the CITY or its employees, or by any
other contractor employed by the CITY, or by changes ordered by the CITY or in an
unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes beyond the
CONTRACTOR'’S control, or by delay authorized by the CITY pending negotiation or by
any cause which the CITY, in its sole discretion, shall decide justifies the delay, then the
time of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the CITY, in its sole
discretion, may decide. No extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more
than five (5) days before a claim therefore is made in writing to the CITY. In the case of
continuing cause of delay, only one (1) claim is necessary. The CONTRACTOR's sole
remedy for a delay in completion of the work for any reason will be an extension of time
to complete the work and CONTRACTOR specifically waives any right to seek any
monetary damages or losses for a delay in completion of the work, including, but not
limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost profits, additional
overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged monetary
losses which may be allegedly suffered by CONTRACTOR due to a delay in completion
of the work.

25. COUNTERPARTS

25.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an
original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same document. Each of the parties
shall sign a sufficient number of counterparts, so that each party will receive a fully
executed original of this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed electronically.



26. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

26.1 Under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any
consequential, incidental, special, punitive, or any other form of indirect or non-

compensatory damages.
27. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

271 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been
placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public
entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals,
or replies on leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform
work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract with any public entity;
and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount
provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36
months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. CONTRACTOR
will advise the CITY immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute.

28. PREPARATION

28.1 This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party
regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation.

29. PALM BEACH COUNTY INSPECTOR GENERAL

29.1 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the
CONTRACTOR acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or
audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. The CONTRACTOR has reviewed
Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or
obligations under such ordinance.

30. ENFORCEMENT COSTS

30.1 All parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees, court costs and
expenses if any legal action or other proceeding is brought for any dispute, disagreement,
or issue of construction or interpretation arising hereunder whether relating to the
execution of this Agreement, or its validity, or the obligations provided therein, or
performance of this Agreement, or because of an alleged breach, default or
misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Agreement.

31. PUBLIC RECORDS

10



CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida's Public Records Laws, Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes, and, if it is acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 119.011(2),

the CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to:

32.

321

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the
services under this Agreement.

(b) Upon request from the CITY's custodian of public records, provide the CITY
with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected
or copied within a reasonable tie at a cost that does not exceed the cost
provided in this Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by
law.

(c) Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt
from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as
authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement term and following
completion of the Agreement, if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the
records to the CITY.

(d) Upon the completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all
public records in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain
public records required by the CITY to perform the services. If the
CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the CITY upon completion
of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public
records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains public
records upon completion of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall meet
all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored
electronically must be provided to the CITY, upon request from the CITY’s
custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the
information technology systems of the City.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN
OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (561) 586-1660,
DANDREA@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, OR BY MAIL AT CITY
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, ATTN: DEBBIE ANDREA, 7 NORTH
DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460.

COPYRIGHTS AND/OR PATENT RIGHTS

CONTRACTOR warrants that there has been no violation of copyrights and/or

patent rights in the manufacturing, producing or selling of the goods, shipped or ordered,

11



as a result of this Agreement and the CONTRACTOR agrees to hold the City harmless
from any and all liability, loss, or expense occasioned by any such violation.

33. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

33.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that all material, equipment, etc., utilized in the performance
of the Scope of Work meets all OSHA requirements. CONTRACTOR further certifies that,
if the material, equipment, etc., delivered is subsequently found to be deficient in any
OSHA requirements in effect on date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material,
equipment, etc. into compliance with the aforementioned requirements shall be borne by

the CONTRACTOR.
34. FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

34.1 The CITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal
Property. The Procurement Official will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the
CONTRACTOR if applicable. The CONTRACTOR shall not otherwise be exempted from
paying sales tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the
CITY, nor shall the CONTRACTOR be otherwise authorized to use the City's tax
Exemption Number in securing such materials.

35. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

35.1 The CONTRACTOR shall at all times guard against damage or loss to the property
of the CITY or of other vendors or contractors and shall be held responsible for replacing
or repairing any such loss or damage. The CITY may withhold payment or make such
deductions as deemed necessary to insure reimbursement or replacement for loss or
damage to property through negligence of the successful CONTRACTOR or its agents.
The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible to safeguard all of their property such as tools
and equipment while on site. The CITY will not be held responsible for any loss of
CONTRACTOR property due to theft or vandalism.

36. DAMAGE TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY

36.1 The responsibility for all damage to person or property arising out of or on account
of work done under this Agreement shall rest upon the CONTRACTOR, and he/she shall
save the CITY harmless from all claims made on account of such damages.

37. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION.

37.1 In the performance of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all
applicable Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR
635). The CONTRACTOR shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective
equipment and take any other needed actions as it determines, or as the CITY, may
determine to be reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the

12



job and the safety of the public and to protect property in connection with the performance
of the work covered by this Agreement.

37 2 It is a condition of this Agreement, and shall be made a condition of each
subcontract, which the CONTRACTOR enters into pursuant to this Agreement (if
authorized), that the CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall not permit any
employee, in performance of the Agreement, to work in surroundings or under conditions
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined
under construction safety and health standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the
Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and
Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).

37 .3 Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this Agreement that the Secretary
of Labor or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of
contract performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the
construction safety and health standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under
Section 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).

38. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDRAL WATER POLUTION
CONTROL ACT (Applicable to all federally funded contracts and any subcontracts of
$100,000 or more.) By execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, if applicable, will be
deemed to have stipulated as follows:

(@) Any CITY facility or property that is or will be utilized in the performance of this
Agreement, unless such Agreement is exempt under the Clean Air Act, as amended (42
U.S.C. 1857 et seq., as amended by Pub.L. 91-6804 ), and under the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as amended by Pub.L. 92-
500), Executive Order 11738, and regulations in implementation thereof (40 CFR 15) is
not listed, on the date of contract award, on the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) List of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20.

(b) CONTRACTOR agrees to comply and remain in compliance with all the
requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act and all regulations and guidelines listed thereunder.

(c) CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the CITY of the receipt of any communication
from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating that a CITY facility or
property that is or will be utilized for this Agreement is under consideration to be listed on

the EPA List of Violating Facilities.

39. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

391 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant

to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement
at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have

13



submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are
placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott
of Israel during the term of this Agreement.

39.2 If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies
that it and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in
Sudan List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector
List, or engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135,
Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this
Agreement at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found
to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors
are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been
engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement.

39.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

39.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective
and relied upon by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals.

39.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes
in regards to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the City

of the same.

39.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to
authorize the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

SURVIVABILITY

40.1 Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an
obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or

earlier termination.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

14



IN WITNESS WHERE OF the parties hereto have made and executed this
Agreement for Goods and Services (Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite) on the day and year

first above written.

ATTEST:

By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

By:

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:

Pam Triolo, Mayor

APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY:

By:

. Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney

CONTRACTOR:

[Corporate Seal]

STATE oF _ Florida

Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director

ALLIED UNIVERSAL CORP.

7R

Print Nam& =7 tu ?p(w—-—
Title: :!51'!5~~w '/d €0

)

COUNTY OF Miami-Dade

)

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this a'{\'h day of %@DOZO,
itle),

by Jim Palmer

“who was physically present, as_President/CEQO

of Allied

Universal Corp. which is authorized to do business in the State of Floﬁi?ﬂk and who is

personally known to me or who has produced the following persona

as identification.

nown

Notary Public:@m H@W

Print Name: _1CU00N0  HOUSTOK)
My commission expires:__(4ne 3, AR

15



Exhibit A
CONTRACTOR'S PRICE BID

(B4)
IFB #20-107
Liquid Sodium Hypachlorite

SCHEDULE OF UNIT PRICES

in order to evaluate the total bid amount, each Bidder must identify the unit grices for the work set forth in
the Scope of Work. In the event additional quantities are added to the contract by Change Order, the
following unit prices will be utiized (as applicable). The quantities below are sstimated annual quantities.
City does not guarantee a minimum order and reserves the right to adjust these guantities as considered
in the bast interest of the City. The bidder acknowledges that no additional payment wifl be made for

adjustments in the quantities. Price submi includes all costs.
E| Unitef |  Annual
2f Description Measure Usage UnkPrice Annual Extended
[Liguid Scdium 265,000
Hypochlorite | Gal
Full Truckload Price 1 Gal $0518 IGal | $137,270.00 IGal
Partial Truckioad Price '
{Up to 30,000 Gallons) 1 Gal $0.549 /Gal | $145,485.00 1Gal
|
|
i i =

Name of Bidder: Allied Universal Corporation

Address: 3901 NW 115 Ave, Miami ST_FL Zip_ 33178

Phone: (305 ) 888-2623 Emati: Bids@Allieduniversal.com

Print Name: _Cristhianne Munguia Titte: Bid Coordinator 3

SIGNATURE: DATE: September 1, 2020

16



Exhibit B
Scope of Work

1 Delivery Location(s). The CITY currently requires delivery of Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite at the

below two (2) addresses. The CONTRACTOR understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the CITY may
elect to add, remove, or revise delivery locations in the future via Purchase Order.

Location | Building Address Qty gftz);age Tank
4 4,500
Gallons
1 Water Plant 301 College Street, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 6.700
1 Gallons
Master Pump . 1,450
2 Station 202 South Golfview Road, Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 1 Gallons

The delivery location(s) is located within a wellfield zone. Contractor shall comply with any and all
Department of Environmental Resources Management (ERM) delivery and handling requirements.

2, Delivery and Order Fulfillment. Delivery shall be successfully completed within 48-72 hours of
order placement by Purchase Order. Pertinent and specific delivery details shall be communicated at time
of order placement.

The Contractor shall be responsible for pumping the Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite into the City's storage
tanks at the delivery sites (City-owned property). Additionally, the Contractor shall be responsible for
supplying all required tools and equipment to safely and efficiently offload the Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite.

The Contractor's vehicle shall be equipped with a 2" Cam Lock Filler Nozzle, or equivalent, for product
dispensing (unload).

The Contractor shall be solely responsible for all spills resulting from the failure of it's, or its subcontractor’s,
equipment or delivery personnel proper performance of their duties. Contractor's delivery personnel, or
contracted courier, shall routinely inspect and observe the offloading operations.

Contractor is required before, during, and after a public emergency, disaster, hurricane, flood, or Act of God
to perform its services for the City on a “first priority". Itis vital and imperative that the citizens are protected
from any situation that threatens public health and safety.

Time of Delivery: Monday through Friday 8:00 am to 3:00 pm; exceptions can be made for emergencies.

3. Quantities. Quantities specified are based on annual estimates. Prices and guantities are to be
quoted based on gallons, NOT weight. There shall be no minimum order requirements. Product shall be
delivered in thoroughly cleaned tank trucks. The City of Lake Worth Beach reserves the right to order in
quantities less than a tanker load (LTL). Quantities specified are based on annual estimates. The City
makes no guarantee regarding the quantity to be purchased and reserves the right to vary the quantities,

based on need.

Product shall be delivered in bulk as follows:

Option 1 — 5,000 Gallons (Full Truckload)
Option 2 — Less Than 5,000 Gallons (Partial Truck Load)

4. Delivery & Invoice Documentation. The City requires all shipments be accompanied by a packing
list or bill of lading stating, at a minimum, a description of the product and quantity. Shipments shall bear

17



warning labels as specified by USDOT regulations. Invoices shall contain, at a minimum, the City Purchase
Order number, delivery date, quantity, product description, price, and unique invoice number.

Delivery Reports: A certified report from the manufacturer shall be submitted for each Liquid Sodium
Hypochlorite delivery to the City of Lake Worth Beach. The report shall contain the following data:

A. Date & Time of Manufacturing Process

B. Percent by weight of:

1. Scdium Hypochlorite
2, Available Chlorine
3. Excess Sodium Hydroxide

C. Specific Gravity (Referenced to a temperature)
D. Suspended Solids Test Time

No deliveries will be accepted by the City of Lake Worth Beach unless accompanied by said certified
laboratory report for the specific batch of sodium hypochlorite delivered showing the above data and that it
conforms to the required specifications.

5. Quality Assurance (QA) & Returned Goods. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for

ensuring that the Liquid Sodium Hypochlarite is the correct quantity and that it meets all the specifications
outlined in the Agreement and the IFB. Deliveries that do not meet bid and purchase order specifications
and requirements, including quality standards, shall be subject to delivery refusal and return to the vendor,
at the expense of the vendor. No costs will be incurred by the City.

The Contractor shall submit a copy of the three (3) most recent years complete NSF samples results
of the product from the facility that will be supplying their product to the City of Lake Worth Beach.
The City of Lake Worth Beach will use these results to ensure compliance with specifications.
Failure to submit this information may result in bid disqualification.

6. Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) and Safety Compliance. A current Material Safety Data

Sheet (MSDS) must be submitted for each applicable item within seven (7) calendar days of notification of
award and with each shipment. The Contractor shall comply with the rules and regulations of the Florida
Department of Commerce regarding industrial safety and with the standards set forth in the Occupational
Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA and its amendments).

7. Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite Technical Specifications.

- Shall be NSF approved
- Product specifications (as per AWWA Standard B300 latest revision}):
« Trade name: Hypochlorite Solution, Bleach
 Chemical formula: NaOCI
« Composition: Minimum: 120 G/L (12.0 Trade %), 10.3 % available chlorine by
weight or 10.8% Sodium Hypochlorite by weight
- Specific gravity: at 20C - 1.1 -1.2
» Molecular weight: 74.5
« Appearance: Light-yellow to green clear liquid solution
« Solubility in water: Complete
« Freezing Temperature: minus 7C to minus 10C
« Total free alkali (expressed as NaOH) < 1.5% by weight

18



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:
Agreement with Shrieve Chemical, Co. to purchase Sulfuric Acid for water treatment

SUMMARY:

This Agreement authorizes the purchase of bulk 93% Sulfuric Acid for the City of Lake
Worth Water Utilities at a cost Not-to-Exceed $25,000.00 for Fiscal Year 2021 from Shrieve
Chemical, Co.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:
Sulfuric Acid is a necessary chemical used in the reverse osmosis treatment process for pH
adjustment and odor control.

On September 10, 2020, bids were received under IFB 20-108 for the purchase of bulk 93%
Sulfuric Acid needed for the Water Treatment Plant. These bids were evaluated by staff taking
into account unit costs, minimum guantities, and penalties for partial deliveries. This agreement
will also authorize the City Manager to extend the agreement if requested, and with the amount
not to exceed amounts set forth in the 2022, 2023 and 2024 fiscal year budget.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the agreement to purchase bulk Sodium Hypochlorite from Allied
Universal for an amount not to exceed $25,000.00 for Fiscal Year 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Agreement



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures $25,000 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact $25,000 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project FY21 Budget | Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Balance Expenditure
402-7022- Operating N/A $25,000.00 $298,000.00 | -$25,000.00 $273,000.00
533.52-30 Supplies/

Chemicals




AGREEMENT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES
(93% Sulfuric Acid)

THIS AGREEMENT is made , 2020, between the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation, hereinafter the “CITY”, with its office located at 7 North
Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460, and Shrieve Chemical Company, a
corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter the “CONTRACTOR?”,
with its office located at 1755 Woodstead Ct., The Woodlands, TX 77380.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY is a municipal corporation organized and existing pursuant to the
Charter and the Constitution of the State of Florida: and

WHEREAS, the CITY issued Invitation for Bid #20-108 for the procurement of 93% Sulfuric
Acid on an as needed basis (hereinafter “IFB”); and

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR submitted a bid to provide 93% Sulfuric Acid as described
and set out in the IFB; and

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to accept the CONTRACTOR’s bid (with the
CONTRACTOR's bid price attached hereto as Exhibit “A”) in order for CONTRACTOR to render
the goods and services to the CITY as provided herein; and

WHEREAS, the CONTRACTOR further warrants that it is experienced and capable of
performing the tasks hereunder in a professional and competent manner; and

WHEREAS, the CITY finds awarding the IFB to the CONTRACTOR as described herein
serves a valid public purpose.

NOW THEREFORE, the CITY hereby engages the services of the CONTRACTOR, and
in consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, the sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged by both parties, the parties agree as follows:

1. TERM

1.1 The term of this Agreement (the "Agreement") shall be for one (1) year, with the option to
renew for three (3) additional one (1) year renewals periods upon the mutual agreement of both
parties and dependent on the annual appropriation of funds by the CITY’s City Commission. The
renewal terms may be approved by the City Manager upon the same terms, conditions and
pricing. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement may be earlier terminated as set forth in
this Agreement.

2, SCOPE OF WORK

2.1 The Scope of Work includes supply and delivery of 93% Sulfuric Acid on an as needed
basis as more specifically set forth in the IFB’s Scope of Work, which is attached hereto as Exhibit
“B”. Work shall commence upon the issuance of a Purchase Order by the City.

2.2 The CONTRACTOR represents to the CITY that the materials provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with accepted and established trade practices and procedures

Page 1 of 16



recognized in the CONTRACTOR's trade in general and that the CONTRACTOR's work shall
conform to the highest standards and in accordance with this Agreement.

2.3 The CONTRACTOR represents that it is licensed to do business in the State of Florida
and holds and will maintain all applicable licenses required for the work to be completed under
this Agreement. The CONTRACTOR further warrants its capability and experience to perform
the work provided for herein in a professional and competent manner.

2.4  All deliveries of the chemicals shall be made within 48-72 hours of the CITY placing the
order with CONTRACTOR. In the event of a natural disaster as determined by the CITY, such as
a hurricane, and the CITY places an order, such delivery shall be made on a "first priority" basis.
Deliveries shall only occur between the hours of 7:00 am to 3:00 pm Monday through Friday.

2.5  The Scope of Work shall be completed in accordance with the terms and conditions set
forth in the IFB and this Agreement.

3. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR; USE OF AGENTS OR ASSISTANTS

3.1 The CONTRACTOR is and shall be, in the performance of the Scope of Work under this
Agreement, an independent contractor, and not an employee, agent, or servant of the CITY. All
persons engaged in any of the Scope of Work performed pursuant to this Agreement shall at all
times, and in all places, be subject to the CONTRACTOR’s sole direction, supervision, and
control. The CONTRACTOR shall exercise control over the means and manner in which it and
its employees perform the Scope of Work.

3.2 To the extent reasonably necessary to enable the CONTRACTOR to perform the Scope
of Work hereunder, the CONTRACTOR shall be authorized to engage the services of any agents
or assistants which it may deem proper, and may further employ, engage, or retain the services
of such other persons or corporations to aid or assist in the proper performance of its duties. All
costs of the services of, or expenses incurred by, such agents or assistants shall be paid by the
CONTRACTOR.

4. MATERIALS
4.1 The CONTRACTOR shall provide all chemicals as more specifically set forth in the IFB.
5. FEE AND ORDERING MECHANISM

5.1 For services to be rendered under this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall be entitled
to a fee for actual goods provided and accepted by the City at the price set forth in
CONTRACTOR’S bid price which is attached as Exhibit “A”.

5.2 Should the CITY require additional chemicals, not included in this Agreement, fees and
payment for such work will be set forth in a separate amendment, as authorized in accordance
with the CITY’s procurement code and policy prior to any such additional goods being provided
by the CONTRACTOR.

5.3 The CITY’s ordering mechanism for the Scope of Work (including each order of chemicals)
under this Agreement will be by a City issued Purchase Order(s): however, the terms and
conditions stated in a City Purchase Order(s) shall not apply. CONTRACTOR shall not provide
goods under this Agreement without a City Purchase Order specifically for the stated goods.

Page 2 of 16



CONTRACTOR shall provide the amount of requested goods and price listed in each Purchase
Order and not exceed amounts expressed on any Purchase Order. CONTRACTOR shall be liable
for any excess goods or costs not specifically stated in the Purchase Order(s). The City’s Fiscal
Year ends on September 30" of each calendar year. The City cannot authorize the purchase of
goods or services beyond September 30" of each calendar year, prior to the annual budget being
approved by the City Commission. Additionally, the City must have budgeted appropriate funds
for the goods and services in any subsequent Fiscal Year. If the budget is approved for said goods
and services, the City will issue a new Purchase Order(s) each Fiscal Year for required and
approved goods.

6. MAXIMUM COSTS

6.1 The CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that the total cost to complete
the Scope of Work in accordance with the IFB and this Agreement is Forty Three Thousand,
Fifty Dollars ($43,050.00) per fiscal year, and no additional costs shall be authorized without
prior written approval from the CITY.

7. INVOICE

71 The CONTRACTOR shall submit an itemized invoice to the CITY for approval prior to
receiving compensation. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of an
approved invoice for work.

7.2 Ifthe CITY disputes any invoice or part of an invoice, CITY shall notify the CONTRACTOR
within a reasonable time after receipt of the invoice. CITY reserves the right to off-set, reduce or
withhold any payment to the CONTRACTOR until the dispute is resolved.

8. AUDIT BY CITY

8.1 The CONTRACTOR shall permit the CITY, or any authorized representatives of the CITY,
at all reasonable times, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers or
documents related to the CONTRACTOR’s performance under this Agreement including, but not
limited to, expenses for sub-contractors, agents or assistants, direct and indirect charges for work
performed and detailed documentation for all such work performed or to be performed under this
Agreement.

9. COPIES OF DATA/DOCUMENTS

9.1 Copies or original documents prepared by the CONTRACTOR in relation to work
associated with this Agreement shall be provided to the CITY, Data collected, stored, and/or
provided shall be in a form acceptable to the CITY and agreed upon by the CITY.

10. OWNERSHIP

10.1  Each and every report, draft, work product, map, record, and other document reproduced,
prepared, or caused to be prepared by the CONTRACTOR pursuant to or in connection with this
Agreement shall be the exclusive property of the CITY.

11.  WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION REQUIRED

Page 3 of 16



11.1  The CONTRACTOR shall not make changes in the Scope of Work or perform any
additional services or provide any additional material under this Agreement without first obtaining
written authorization from the CITY for such additional services or materials. Additional services
or materials provided without written authorization shall be done at the CONTRACTOR's sole risk
and without payment from the CITY.

12, DEFAULTS, TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

12.1  If the CONTRACTOR fails to timely perform the Scope of Work or has failed in any other
respect to satisfactorily perform in accordance with this Agreement: or, is in material breach of a
term or condition of this Agreement, the City Manager or designee may give written notice to the
CONTRACTOR specifying defaults to be remedied. Such notice shall set forth the basis for any
dissatisfaction and suggest corrective measures. If the CONTRACTOR does not remedy defaults
within the allotted time or commence good faith steps to remedy the default to the reasonable
satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may take such action to remedy the default
and all expenses related thereto shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR including, without
limitation, utilization of another contractor to provide for such work; and/or, the CITY may withhold
any money due or which may become due to the CONTRACTOR for such expense and/or work
related to the claimed default. Alternatively, or in addition to the foregoing, if after three (3) days
the CONTRACTOR has not remedied defaults or commenced good faith steps to remedy defaults
to the satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the CITY may elect to terminate this
Agreement. No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-
down, lost profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this
paragraph.

12.2  Notwithstanding paragraph 12.1, the CITY reserves the right and may elect to terminate
this Agreement at any time, with or without cause. At such time, the CONTRACTOR would be
compensated only for that work which has been satisfactorily completed to the date of termination.
No compensation shall be paid for de-mobilization, take-down, disengagement wind-down, lost
profits or other costs incurred due to termination of this Agreement under this paragraph.

13. INSURANCE

13.1. Prior to commencing the Scope of Work, the CONTRACTOR shall provide certificates
evidencing insurance coverage as required hereunder. All insurance policies shall be issued by
companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The Certificates shall
clearly indicate that the CONTRACTOR has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and
classification as required for strict compliance with this Section and that no material change or
cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the
CITY. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the CONTRACTOR of
its liability and obligations under this Contract. All insurance, other than Workers'’ Compensation,
required hereunder shall specifically include the “City of Lake Worth Beach” as an “Additional
Insured”, on a primary, non-contributing basis and the CONTRACTOR shall provide additional
insured endorsements section of Certificates of Insurance.

13.2. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, commercial general
liability, including contractual liability insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence
($2,000,000 aggregate) to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for damages for bodily and
personal injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property damages which may
arise from any operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR
or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with the CONTRACTOR.

Page 4 of 16



13.3. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, comprehensive
automobile liability insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 combined single limit for
bodily injury and property damages liability to protect the CONTRACTOR from claims for
damages for bodily and personal injury, including death, as well as from claims for property
damage, which may arise from the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned
automobiles, including rented automobiles whether such operations be by the CONTRACTOR or
by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the CONTRACTOR.

13.4. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, Workers’ Compensation
Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance for all employees as required by Florida Statutes.

14, WAIVER OF BREACH
14.1 The waiver by either party of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach of that same or any other provision.

15. INDEMNITY

15.1 The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless, to the maximum extent
permitted by law, the CITY and its officers, agents, employees and representatives, from and
against any and all liability, suit, actions, proceedings, judgments, claims, losses, liens, damages,
injuries (whether in contract or in tort, including personal injury, accidental death, patent
infringement or property damage, and regardiess, of whether the allegations are false, fraudulent
or groundless), costs and expenses (including attorney’s fees, litigation, arbitration, mediation,
appeal expenses) to the extent arising out of or alleged to have arisen out of the acts, omissions
or neglect of the CONTRACTOR or any of its agents, employees, subcontractors or by anyone
the CONTRACTOR directly or indirectly employed.

15.2 The CONTRACTOR's obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall remain in
effect and shall be binding upon the CONTRACTOR whether such injury or damage shall accrue,
or may be discovered, before or after termination of this Agreement.

156.3 Compliance with any insurance requirements required elsewhere in this Agreement shall
not relieve CONTRACTOR of its liability and obligation to defend, hold harmless and indemnify
the CITY as set forth in this section.

15.4  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause
of action in favor of a third party against either the CITY or CONTRACTOR. Further, nothing
contained in this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as consent by the CITY to be sued,
nor as a waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Florida
Statutes, as amended from time to time.

16.5 The CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with this section’s provisions shall constitute a
material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

16. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

16.1  This Agreement consists of the terms and conditions provided herein; Exhibit “A”, the
Contractor’'s bid price; Exhibit “B”, the IFB's Scope of Work and the remainder of the IFB
(including all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto or referenced therein). To the
extent that there exists a conflict between this Agreement and the remaining documents, the
terms, conditions, covenants, and/or provisions of this Agreement shall prevail with the Exhibit

Page 5 of 16



“B” and the IFB (including all specifications, exhibits and addenda attached thereto) next taking
precedence. Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a
manner as to avoid conflicts between provisions of the various documents.

16.2 This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between
the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and no other Agreement, statement,
or promise relating to the subject matter of this Agreement which is not contained herein shall be
valid or binding.

17.  ASSIGNMENT

17.1  Nothing under this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to any party
other than the CITY and the CONTRACTOR. All duties and responsibilities under this Agreement
shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the CITY and the CONTRACTOR and not for the
benefit or any other party. The CONTRACTOR shall not assign any right or interest in this
Agreement, and shall not delegate any duty owned, without the CITY’s prior written consent. Any
attempted assignment or delegation shall be void and totally ineffective for all purposes, and shall
constitute a material breach upon which the CITY may immediately terminate or suspend this
Agreement.

17.2  In the event the CITY consents to an assignment or delegation, the assignee, delegate,
or its legal representative shall agree in writing to personally assume, perform, and be bound by
this Agreement’s covenants, conditions, obligations and provisions.

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

18.1  Subject to the provision regarding assignment, this Agreement shall be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the respective parties.

19. OF TRIAL BY JURY

19.1  TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION,
EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION
RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT.

20. GOVERNING LAW AND REMEDIES

20.1 The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights
and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and
venue shall be in Palm Beach County, Florida.

20.2 No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other
remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or
otherwise. No single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder
shall preclude any other or further exercise thereof.

21. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE

21.1 Time is of the essence in all respects under this Agreement.

Page 6 of 16



22. NOTICES

22,1 All notices hereunder must be in writing and, unless otherwise provided herein. shall be
deemed validly given on the date when personally delivered to the address indicated below: or
on the third (3™) business day following deposit, postage prepaid, using certified mail, return
receipt requested, in any U.S. postal mailbox or at any U.S. Post Office; or when sent via
nationally recognized overnight courier to the address indicated below. Should the CITY or the
CONTRACTOR have a change of address, the other party shall immediately be notified in writing
of such change, provided, however, that each address for notice must include a street address
and not merely a post office box. All notices, demands or requests from the CONTRACTOR to
the CITY shall be given to the CITY address as follows:

Michael Bornstein, City Manager
City of Lake Worth Beach

7 North Dixie Highway

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460

All notices, demands or requests from the CITY to the CONTRACTOR shall be given to the
CONTRACTOR address as follows:

Shrieve Chemical Company
1755 Woodstead Ct.
The Woodlands, TX 77380

23. SEVERABILITY

23.1  Should any part, term or provision of this Agreement or any document required herein to
be executed be declared invalid, void or unenforceable, all remaining parts, terms and provisions
hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be invalidated, impaired or affected
thereby.

24, DELAYS AND FORCES OF NATURE

24.1  The CONTRACTOR shall not be considered in default by reason of a delay in timely
performance if such delay and failure arises out of causes reasonably beyond the control of the
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors and without their fault or negligence. Upon the
CONTRACTOR's request, the CITY shall consider the facts and extent of any such delay and
failure to timely perform the work for reason beyond the control of the CONTRACTOR and., if the
CONTRACTOR'S delay and failure to timely perform was without it or its subcontractors’ fault or
negligence, as determined by the CITY in its sole discretion, the time of completion shall be
extended for any reasonable time that the CITY, in its sole discretion, may decide; subject to the
CITY'S rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the work at any time. If the
CONTRACTOR is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by any act or neglect of the
CITY or its employees, or by any other contractor employed by the CITY, or by changes ordered
by the CITY or in an unusual delay in transportation, unavoidable casualties, or any causes
beyond the CONTRACTOR'S control, or by delay authorized by the CITY pending negotiation or
by any cause which the CITY, in its sole discretion, shall decide justifies the delay, then the time
of completion shall be extended for any reasonable time the CITY, in its sole discretion, may

Page 7 of 16



decide. No extension of time shall be made for any delay occurring more than five (5) days before
a claim therefore is made in writing to the CITY. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only
one (1) claim is necessary. The CONTRACTOR's sole remedy for a delay in completion of the
work for any reason will be an extension of time to complete the work and CONTRACTOR
specifically waives any right to seek any monetary damages or losses for a delay in completion
of the work, including, but not limited to, waiving any right to seek monetary amounts for lost
profits, additional overhead, salaries, lost productivity, efficiency losses, or any other alleged
monetary losses which may be allegedly suffered by CONTRACTOR due to a delay in completion
of the work.

25. COUNTERPARTS

25.1 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but
all of which shall constitute one and the same document. This Agreement may be executed
electronically.

26. LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

26.1  Under no circumstances shall either party be liable to the other for any consequential,
incidental, special, punitive, or any other form of indirect or non-compensatory damages.

27. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES

27.1 CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been placed
on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid,
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a
public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor
under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in
excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY
TWO for a period of 36 months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.
CONTRACTOR will advise the CITY immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this
statute.

28. PREPARATION

28.1 This Agreement shall not be construed more strongly against either party regardless of
who was more responsible for its preparation.

29. PALM BEACH COUNTY INSPECTOR GENERAL

29.1 In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the CONTRACTOR
acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach
County Inspector General. The CONTRACTOR has reviewed Palm Beach County ordinance
number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance.

30. ENFORCEMENT COSTS

30.1 All parties shall be responsible for their own attorneys’ fees, court costs and expenses if
any legal action or other proceeding is brought for any dispute, disagreement, or issue of

Page 8 of 16



construction or interpretation arising hereunder whether relating to the Contract's execution,
validity, the obligations provided therein, or performance of this Contract, or because of an alleged
breach, default or misrepresentation in connection with any provisions of this Contract.

31. PUBLIC RECORDS

31.1  CONTRACTOR shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, Chapter 119, Florida
Statutes, and, if it is acting on behalf of the CITY as provided under section 119.011(2), the
CONTRACTOR specifically agrees to:

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the CITY to perform the services
under this Agreement.

(b) Upon request from the CITY’s custodian of public records, provide the CITY with a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within
a reasonable tie at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in this Chapter
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

(c) Ensure that said public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by
law for the duration of the Agreement term and following completion of the
Agreement, if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the CITY.

(d) Upon the completion of the Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the CITY all public
records in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records
required by the CITY to perform the services. If the CONTRACTOR transfers all
public records to the CITY upon completion of the Agreement, the CONTRACTOR
shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps
and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, the
CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.
All records stored electronically must be provided to the CITY, upon request from
the CITY’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the
information technology systems of the City.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF
PUBLIC RECORDS AT (561) 586-1660,
DANDREA@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, OR BY MAIL AT CITY
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, ATTN: DEBBORAH ANDREA, 7
NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460.

32. COPYRIGHTS AND/OR PATENT RIGHTS

32.1 CONTRACTOR warrants that there has been no violation of copyrights and/or patent
rights in the manufacturing, producing or selling of the goods, shipped or ordered, as a result of
this Agreement and the CONTRACTOR agrees to hold the City harmless from any and all liability,
loss, or expense occasioned by any such violation.

Page 9 of 16



33. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH

33.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that all material, equipment, etc., contained in this bid meets all
OSHA requirements. CONTRACTOR further certifies that, if the material, equipment, etc.,
delivered is subsequently found to be deficient in any OSHA requirements in effect on date of
delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material, equipment, etc. into compliance with the
aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the CONTRACTOR.

34, FEDERAL AND STATE TAX

341 The CITY is exempt from Federal Tax and State Tax for Tangible Personal Property. The
Procurement Official will sign an exemption certificate submitted by the successful Proposer.
Vendors or contractors doing business with the CITY shall not be exempted from paying sales
tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the CITY, nor shall any
Vendor/Contractor be authorized to use the CITY’s tax Exemption Number in securing such
materials.

35. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

35.1  The CONTRACTOR shall at all times guard against damage or loss to the property of the
CITY or of other vendors or contractors and shall be held responsible for replacing or repairing
any such loss or damage. The CITY may withhold payment or make such deductions as deemed
necessary to insure reimbursement or replacement for loss or damage to property through
negligence of the successful CONTRACTOR or its agents. The CONTRACTOR shall be
responsible to safeguard all of their property such as tools and equipment while on site. The CITY
will not be held responsible for any loss of CONTRACTOR property due to theft or vandalism.

36. DAMAGE TO PERSONS OR PROPERTY

36.1 The responsibility for all damage to person or property arising out of or on account of work
done under this Contract shall rest upon the CONTRACTOR, and he/she shall save the CITY and
political unit thereof harmless from all claims made on account of such damages.

37. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION.

37.1 Inthe performance of this Agreement, the CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable
Federal, State, and local laws governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR 635). The
CONTRACTOR shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and protective equipment and take
any other needed actions as it determines, or as the CITY, may determine to be reasonably
necessary to protect the life and health of employees on the job and the safety of the public and
to protect property in connection with the performance of the work covered by the contract.

37.2 It is a condition of this Agreement, and shall be made a condition of each subcontract,
which the CONTRACTOR enters into pursuant to this Agreement (if authorized), that the
CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance of the
contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or
dangerous to his/her health or safety, as determined under construction safety and health

Page 10 of 16



standards (29 CFR 1926) promulgated by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107
of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).

37.3 Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this Agreement that the Secretary of Labor
or authorized representative thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract performance
to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance with the construction safety and health
standards and to carry out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the Contract Work
Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 333).

38. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDRAL WATER POLUTION
CONTROL ACT (Applicable to all federally funded contracts and any subcontracts of $100,000
or more).

38.1 By execution of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, if applicable, will be deemed to have
stipulated as follows:

(a) Any CITY facility or property that is or will be utilized in the performance of this
Agreement, unless such contract is exempt under the Clean Air Act, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 1857 et seq., as amended by Pub.L. 91-604 ), and under the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., as amended by
Pub.L. 92-500), Executive Order 11738, and regulations in implementation thereof
(40 CFR 15) is not listed, on the date of contract award, on the U.S. Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) List of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20.

(b) CONTRACTOR agrees to comply and remain in compliance with all the
requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the Federal
Water Pollution Control Act and all regulations and guidelines listed thereunder.

(c) CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify the CITY of the receipt of any communication
from the Director, Office of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating that a CITY facility
or property that is or will be utilized for the Agreement is under consideration to be
listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities.

39.  SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

39.1 CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to
section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole
option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false
certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term of this
Agreement.

39.2  If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it and
its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List,
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in
business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant
to Section 287.135, the CITY may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the
CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or
if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with
Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy

Page 11 of 16



Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the
term of this Agreement.

39.3 The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

39.4 The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and
relied upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals.

39.5 The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards
to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the same.

39.6 As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize
the above-stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

40.  SURVIVABILITY

40.1  Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or imposes an obligation
which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or earlier termination.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS

Page 12 of 16



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement for
Goods and Services (93% Sulfuric Acid) on the day and year first above written.
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:
Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:
By:
Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL SUFFICIENCY:
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:
By: By:

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director

CONTRACTOR: SHRIVE CHEMICAL COMPANY

-~ c’—“
By: _ ¢ @é ,2/

L—

[Corporate Seal] Print Name: C}A vis ‘B(/\Vﬁvf
Title: ﬂﬁflw(:m/g na-wa} %8

sTATEOF _Florida )
COUNTYOF _ Psll )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this éot“ day of S fembe 2020,
by Chvis Duvas , who was physically present, as Mavketn, Ylana ititle)‘ of
Shrieve Chemical Company, which is authorized to do business inthe Staté of Florida, and
who is personally known to me or who has produced the following

as identification
Notary Pubhc%ﬂﬂiy_ ;291’_‘/

Print Name:
My commission xplres

ﬂxu Pu%, LYNDAF. FORD
4 , MY COMMISSION # GG 004355
t

@v EXPIRES: October 21, 2020
)"on\-ﬁ" Bonded Thru Budget Notary Services

Page 13 of 16



Exhibit A
CONTRACTOR'S PRICE BID |

(B4)
IFB #20-108
93% Sulfuric Acid

SCHEDULE OF UNIT PRICES

In order to evaluate the total bid amount, each Bidder must identify the un$ prices for the work set forth in
the Scope of Work in the event additional quantities are added 1o the dontract by Change Order. the
following unit prices will be utilized (as applicable). The quantities below a';e estimated annual quantities
City does not guarantee a minimum order and reserves the right to adjustthese quantites as considered
in the best interest of the City. The bidder acknowiedges that no additignal payment will be made ‘o
adjustments in the quantities. Price submitted includes all costs 1

el | Unitof | Annual | ) ‘l
=!  Descipion | Measure | Usage |  UnitPrice | Annual Extended
| 93% Sulfuric Acid _ 35,000 Gal
Full Truckioad Price 1Gal $1.2> iGal 8 43,050 ical

i Partial Truckload Price 1 Gal $/-43 iGal |3 50,050 iGal

Name of Bidder < h ritve Chemical CW"‘P“_'_‘J_.L.. LLC |

Address. | 155 Woosdstead & “The Woodlands _tT"'.__ 2p T80

Phone (M1 ) 3eT1-4226 Emai _@*‘_'_‘J@p“ cve. cum

) ) ) ~ . ; ) P i~ .
Print Name: f L]{t:_ '.D("“ L% Title __r_:‘;‘» et .fI R

pate [ AL

SIGNATURE:

Il

Page 14 of 16



Exhibit B
IFB Scope of Work

1. Delivery Location(s). The City currently requires delivery of 93% Sulfuric Acid at the
below address. The selected bidder understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the City may
elect to add, remove, or revise delivery locations in the future.

Delivery Address: R/O WATER PLANT, 301 COLLEGE STREET, LAKE WORTH
BEACH, FL 33460

Contractor shall comply with any and all applicable Federal, State. County, City
regulations surrounding delivery and handling requirements.

2. Delivery and Order Fulfillment. Delivery shall be successfully completed within 48-72
hours of order placement or as stated by the ordering location. Pertinent and specific delivery
details shall be communicated at time of order placement.

The contractor shall be responsible for pumping the 93% Sulfuric Acid into the City’s storage
tank(s) at the delivery site (City-owned property). Additionally, the contractor shall be responsible
for supplying all required tools and equipment to safely and efficiently offload the 93% Sulfuric
Acid.

The contractor shall be solely responsible for all spills resulting from the failure of its. or its
subcontractor’s, equipment or delivery personnel proper performance of their duties. Contractor’s
delivery personnel, or contracted courier, shall routinely inspect and observe the offloading
operations.

Contractor is required that before, during, and after a public emergency, disaster, hurricane, flood,
or Act of God that the municipal government, through the City, shall require a "first priority" basis
for goods and services. It is vital and imperative that the citizens are protected from any situation
that threatens public health and safety.

Time of Delivery: Monday through Friday 7:00 AM to 3:00 PM; exceptions can be made for
emergencies.

3. Quantities. Quantities specified are based on annual estimates. Prices and quantities are
to be quoted based on gallons, NOT weight. There shall be no minimum order requirements.
Product shall be delivered in thoroughly cleaned tank trucks. The City of Lake Worth Beach
reserves the right to order in quantities less than a tanker load (LTL).

4, Delivery & Invoice Documentation. The City requires all shipments be accompanied by
a packing list or bill of lading stating, at a minimum, a description of the product and quantity.
Shipments shall bear warning labels as specified by USDOT regulations. Invoices shall contain,
at a minimum, the applicable City issued Purchase Order number, delivery date, quantity, product
description, price, and unique invoice number.

Delivery Reports:

A certified report from the manufacturer shall be submitted for each Sulfuric Acid delivery
to the City of Lake Worth Beach. The report shall contain the following data:

Page 15 of 16



A. Date & Time of Manufacture
B. Percent by weight of:

1. Strength in %

2. Iron (ppm)

3. NSF/ANSI Standard 60 Certification
4. Quantity in Gallons

5. Quantity in pounds

C. Specific Gravity (Referenced to a temperature)

No deliveries will be accepted by the City of Lake Worth Beach unless accompanied by said
certified laboratory report for the specific batch of 93% Sulfuric Acid delivered showing the above
data and that it conforms to the required specifications.

5. Quality Assurance (QA) & Returned Goods. The successful bidder shall be solely
responsible for ensuring that the 93% Sulfuric Acid is the correct quantity and that it meets all the
specifications outlined in the Bid document. Deliveries that do not meet bid and purchase order
specifications and requirements, including quality standards, shall be subject to delivery refusal
and return to the vendor, at the expense of the vendor. No costs will be incurred by the City.

6. Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) and Safety Compliance. A current Material Safety
Data Sheet (MSDS) must be submitted for each applicable item within seven (7) calendar days
of notification of award and with each shipment. The successful bidder shall comply with the rules
and regulations of the Florida Department of Commerce regarding industrial safety and with the
standards set forth in the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (OSHA and its
amendments).

Page 16 of 16



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:

Agreement with Department of Environmental Protection for State Revolving Fund loan
for 2-inch Watermain Replacement Project Phase 5 & 6

SUMMARY:

This Agreement authorizes loan DW501750 from Florida Department of Environmental
Protection (FDEP) for the 2-inch watermain replacement Phases 5 & 6 Construction
project in the amount of $2,931,051.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City Water Utility Department has planned the replacement over six years of
approximately 17 miles of 2-inch steel water pipes that are corroded and failing within the
city water distribution system. The Commission directed staff to fund the capital
improvement through water system revenue financing, which has resulted in award of
loans under the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The current agreements
DW501710, DW501720, DW501730, and DW501731 total $8,645,710 and cover the first
4 phases.

This is the final agreement with the FDEP through the State Revolving Fund since the 2-
inch watermain replacement program will be completed in this project. The project will
encompass the final phases 5 & 6 as a single construction document. This project will
also receive a principal forgiveness from the FDEP in the sum of $694,589 or 20% of the
reconciled loan amount, which ever is less.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement for loan DW501750 from Florida Department
of Environmental Protection (FDEP) for the 2-inch watermain replacement Phase 5 & 6
Construction project in the amount of $2,931,051

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
FDEP Lake Worth Beach Offer Letter
Agreement DW501750



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 2,931,051 O 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 694,589 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 2,931,051 O 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project FY21 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

422-7034- Water WT1902 $5,190,000 | $5,190,000 | $2,931,051 | $2,258,949
533.63-15 Distribution

Improve

C. Department Fiscal Review:

Brian Shields — Director

Bruce Miller — Finance Director

Christy Goddeau — Legal
Michael Bornstein — City Manager




FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF RO vemor
Environmental Protection Jeanette Nufiez

Lt. Governor

Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building Noah Valenstei
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard od as:::et::r';
Tallahassee, FL 32399

August 14, 2020

Mr. Giles Rhoads, P.E

Utilities Engineer

City of Lake Worth Beach

301 College Street

Lake Worth Beach, Florida 33460

Re: DW501750 — Lake Worth Beach
Water Main Replacement Phase 5 & 6

Dear Mr. Rhoads:

Attached is a copy of the proposed State Revolving Fund loan agreement for the City’s water
main replacement for phase 5 and 6 project.

Please have the appropriate officials sign and seal two copies and return them to us within
three weeks at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 3505, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-3000.
We will sign the documents and mail a fully executed original to you. Please note that the
Special Conditions listed in Section 10.08 of the Agreement must be provided before any funds
can be released.

We appreciate your participation in the State Revolving Fund loan program. If you have any
questions about the loan agreement, please call Megan Strohl at (850)245-2899.

Sincerely,

.‘/ \ f s

[ odatl, VA

[ dacl, A
X

——
T~

Angel_él Knecht, Program Administrator
State Revolving Fund Management

AK/ms
Attachment

cc. Brian Shields, P.E — City of Lake Worth Beach
Michael Bornstein — City of Lake Worth Beach



STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

AND

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND
CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
DW501750

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
State Revolving Fund Program
Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building
3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, MS 3505
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000




DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT

CONTENTS

PAGE

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS

1.01.
1.02.

WORDS AND TERMS.
CORRELATIVE WORDS.

ARTICLE II - WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS

2.01.
2.02.
2.03.

WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS.
LEGAL AUTHORIZATION.
AUDIT AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS.

ARTICLE II - LOAN REPAYMENT ACCOUNT

3.01.
3.02.
3.03.
3.04.

LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT.

INVESTMENT OF LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT MONEYS.

LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT WITHDRAWALS.
ASSETS HELD IN TRUST.

ARTICLE IV - PROJECT INFORMATION

4.01.
4.02.
. PERMITS AND APPROVALS.
4.04.
4.05.
4.06.
4.07.
4.08.

4.03

PROJECT CHANGES.
TITLE TO PROJECT SITE.

ENGINEERING SERVICES.

PROHIBITION AGAINST ENCUMBRANCES.
COMPLETION MONEYS.

CLOSE-OUT.

DISBURSEMENTS.

ARTICLE V - RATES AND USE OF THE WATER SYSTEM

5.01.
5.02.
5.03.
5.04.
5.05.
5.06.
5.07.

RATE COVERAGE.

NO FREE SERVICE.

RESERVED.

NO COMPETING SERVICE.
MAINTENANCE OF THE WATER SYSTEM.
ADDITIONS AND MODIFICATIONS.
COLLECTION OF REVENUES.

ARTICLE VI - DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

6.01.
6.02.
6.03.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT.
REMEDIES.
DELAY AND WAIVER.

ARTICLE VII - THE PLEDGED REVENUES

7.01.
7.02.

SUPERIORITY OF THE PLEDGE TO THE DEPARTMENT.
ADDITIONAL DEBT OBLIGATIONS.

W =

WD D W W

O O o0 o0 oo



DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT

CONTENTS PAGE
ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL PROVISIONS 14
8.01. DISCHARGE OF OBLIGATIONS. 14
8.02. PROJECT RECORDS AND STATEMENTS. 15
8.03. ACCESS TO PROJECT SITE. 15
8.04. ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS UNDER AGREEMENT. 15
8.05. AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT. 15
8.06. ABANDONMENT, TERMINATION OR VOLUNTARY CANCELLATION. 15
8.07. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. 16
8.08. SIGNAGE. 16
8.09. DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS. 16
8.10. AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL REQUIREMENT. 17
8.11. RESERVERD. 17
8.12. PUBLIC RECORDS ACCESS. 17
8.13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES. 18
8.14. SUSPENSION. 18
ARTICLE IX - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND INSURANCE 19
9.01. AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS. 19
9.02. SUBMITTAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 20
9.03. INSURANCE REQUIRED. 20
ARTICLE X - DETAILS OF FINANCING 20
10.01. PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF LOAN. 20
10.02. LOAN SERVICE FEE. 21
10.03. FINANCING RATE. 21
10.04. LOAN TERM. 21
10.05. REPAYMENT SCHEDULE. 21
10.06. PROJECT COSTS. 2
10.07. SCHEDULE. 2
10.08. SPECIAL CONDITIONS. 23

ARTICLE XI - EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT 24

il



DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND
CONSTRUCTION LOAN AGREEMENT
DWS501750
THIS AGREEMENT is executed by the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (Department) and the CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, (Project Sponsor) existing as a local governmental entity under the laws of the State

of Florida. Collectively, the Department and the Project Sponsor shall be referred to as “Parties”
or individually as “Party”.

RECITALS

Pursuant to Section 403.8532, Florida Statutes and Chapter 62-552, Laws of Florida, the
Department is authorized to make loans to finance or refinance the construction of public water
systems, the planning and design of which have been reviewed by the Department; and

The Department is authorized to allow Principal Forgiveness on Loans funded by the Federal
Drinking Water Act; and

The Project Sponsor has applied for financing of the Project, and the Department has determined
that such Project meets all requirements for a Loan and Principal Forgiveness.

AGREEMENT

In consideration of the Department loaning money to the Project Sponsor, in the principal
amount and pursuant to the covenants set forth below, it is agreed as follows:

ARTICLE I - DEFINITIONS
1.01. WORDS AND TERMS.
Words and terms used herein shall have the meanings set forth below:
(1) “Agreement” or “Loan Agreement” shall mean this construction loan agreement.

(2) “Authorized Representative” shall mean the official of the Project Sponsor
authorized by ordinance or resolution to sign documents associated with the Loan.

(3) “Capitalized Interest” shall mean the finance charge that accrues at the Financing
Rate on Loan proceeds from the time of disbursement until six months before the first
Semiannual Loan Payment is due. Capitalized Interest is financed as part of the Loan principal.

(4) “Depository” shall mean a bank or trust company, having a combined capital and
unimpaired surplus of not less than $50 million, authorized to transact commercial banking or
savings and loan business in the State of Florida and insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.



(5) “Final Amendment” shall mean the final agreement executed between the parties
that establishes the final terms for the Loan such as the final Loan amount, the Financing Rate,
Loan Service Fee, amortization schedule and Semiannual Loan Payment amount.

(6) “Final Unilateral Amendment” shall mean the Loan Agreement unilaterally finalized
by the Department after Loan Agreement and Project abandonment under Section 8.06 that
establishes the final amortization schedule for the Loan.

(7) “Financing Rate” shall mean the charges, expressed as a percent per annum, imposed
on the unpaid principal of the Loan.

(8) “Gross Revenues” shall mean all income or earnings received by the Project Sponsor
from the ownership or operation of its Water System, including investment income, all as
calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Gross Revenues shall
not include proceeds from the sale or other disposition of any part of the Water System,
condemnation awards or proceeds of insurance, except use and occupancy or business
interruption insurance, received with respect to the Water System.

(9) “Loan” shall mean the amount of money to be loaned pursuant to this Agreement
and subsequent amendments.

(10) “Loan Application” shall mean the completed form which provides all information
required to support obtaining construction loan financial assistance.

(11) “Loan Debt Service Account” shall mean an account, or a separately identified
component of a pooled cash or liquid account, with a Depository established by the Project
Sponsor for the purpose of accumulating Monthly Loan Deposits and making Semiannual Loan
Payments.

(12) “Loan Service Fee” shall mean an origination fee which shall be paid to the
Department by the Project Sponsor.

(13) “Local Governmental Entity” means a county, municipality, or special district.

(14) “Monthly Loan Deposit” shall mean the monthly deposit to be made by the Project
Sponsor to the Loan Debt Service Account.

(15) “Operation and Maintenance Expense” shall mean the costs of operating and
maintaining the Water System determined pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles,
exclusive of interest on any debt payable from Gross Revenues, depreciation, and any other
items not requiring the expenditure of cash.

(16) “Parity Debt” shall mean any debt obligations issued that are on an equal
commercial lien position with this Loan.

(17) “Pledged Revenues” shall mean the specific revenues pledged as security for
repayment of the Loan and shall be the Gross Revenues derived yearly from the operation of the
Water System after payment of the Operation and Maintenance Expense and the satisfaction of



all yearly payment obligations on account of the Senior Revenue Debt and any senior or parity
obligations issued pursuant to Section 7.02 of this Agreement.

(18) “Principal Forgiveness” shall mean the amount of money awarded pursuant to this
Agreement and subsequent amendments that is not to be repaid.

(19) “Project” shall mean the works financed by this Loan and shall consist of furnishing
all labor, materials, and equipment to construct the water main replacement phases 5 and 6 in
accordance with the plans and specifications accepted by the Department for the “Lake Worth
Beach 2 Inch Water Main Replacement Phases V & VI” contract.

The Project is in agreement with the planning documentation accepted by the Department
effective July 16, 2015. A Florida Categorical Exclusion Notice was published on July 16, 2015
and no adverse comments were received. The Project is an Equivalency Project as defined in
Chapter 62-552, Florida Administrative Code.

(20) “Semiannual Loan Payment” shall mean the payment due from the Project Sponsor
to the Department at six-month intervals.

(21) “Senior Revenue Debt” shall mean the following debt obligations:

(a) City of Lake Worth, Florida, Utility System Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013,
issued in the amount of $54,030,000, pursuant to Resolution No. 27-2013; amending and
supplementing Resolution No. 63-2004; and

(b) Any refunding bonds issued to refund the obligations identified above provided such
bonds shall not increase annual debt service during the repayment period of this Loan.

(22) “Water System” shall mean all facilities owned by the Project Sponsor for supplying
and distributing water for residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental use.

1.02. CORRELATIVE WORDS.

Words of the masculine gender shall be understood to include correlative words of the
feminine and neuter genders. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, the singular shall
include the plural and the word “person” shall include corporations and associations, including
public entities, as well as natural persons.

ARTICLE II - WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS
2.01. WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS.
The Project Sponsor warrants, represents and covenants that:

(1) The Project Sponsor has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to
comply with the provisions hereof.



(2) The Project Sponsor currently is not the subject of bankruptcy, insolvency, or
reorganization proceedings and is not in default of, or otherwise subject to, any agreement or any
law, administrative regulation, judgment, decree, note, resolution, charter or ordinance which
would currently restrain or enjoin it from entering into, or complying with, this Agreement.

(3) There is no material action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at law or in
equity, before any court or public body, pending or, to the best of the Project Sponsor's
knowledge, threatened, which seeks to restrain or enjoin the Project Sponsor from entering into
or complying with this Agreement.

(4) All permits, real property interests, and approvals required as of the date of this
Agreement have been obtained for construction and use of the Project. The Project Sponsor
knows of no reason why any future required permits or approvals are not obtainable.

(5) The Project Sponsor shall undertake the Project on its own responsibility, to the
extent permitted by law.

(6) To the extent permitted by law, the Project Sponsor shall release and hold harmless
the State, its officers, members, and employees from any claim arising in connection with the
Project Sponsor's actions or omissions in its planning, engineering, administrative, and
construction activities financed by this Loan or its operation of the Project.

(7) All Project Sponsor representations to the Department, pursuant to the Loan
Application and Agreement, were true and accurate as of the date such representations were
made. The financial information delivered by the Project Sponsor to the Department was current
and correct as of the date such information was delivered. The Project Sponsor shall comply
with Chapter 62-552, Florida Administrative Code, and all applicable State and Federal laws,
rules, and regulations which are identified in the Loan Application or Agreement. Minority and
Women's Business Enterprise goals as stated in the plans and specifications apply to this Project.
To the extent that any assurance, representation, or covenant requires a future action, the Project
Sponsor shall take such action to comply with this agreement.

(8) The Project Sponsor shall maintain records using Generally Accepted Accounting
principles established by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. As part of its bookkeeping
system, the Project Sponsor shall keep accounts of the Water System separate from all other
accounts and it shall keep accurate records of all revenues, expenses, and expenditures relating to
the Water System, and of the Pledged Revenues, Loan disbursement receipts, and Loan Debt
Service Account.

(9) In the event the anticipated Pledged Revenues are shown by the Project Sponsor’s
annual budget to be insufficient to make the Semiannual Loan Payments for such Fiscal Year
when due, the Project Sponsor shall include in such budget other legally available non-ad
valorem funds which will be sufficient, together with the Pledged Revenues, to make the
Semiannual Loan Payments. Such other legally available non-ad valorem funds shall be
budgeted in the regular annual governmental budget and designated for the purpose provided by
this Subsection, and the Project Sponsor shall collect such funds for application as provided
herein. The Project Sponsor shall notify the Department immediately in writing of any such



budgeting of other legally available non-ad valorem funds. Nothing in this covenant shall be
construed as creating a pledge, lien, or charge upon any such other legally available non-ad
valorem funds; requiring the Project Sponsor to levy or appropriate ad valorem tax revenues; or
preventing the Project Sponsor from pledging to the payment of any bonds or other obligations
all or any part of such other legally available non-ad valorem funds.

(10) Pursuant to Section 216.347 of the Florida Statutes, the Project Sponsor shall not use
this Loan for the purpose of lobbying the Florida Legislature, the Judicial Branch, or a State
agency.

(11) The Project Sponsor agrees to construct the Project in accordance with the Project
schedule set forth in Section 10.07. Delays incident to strikes, riots, acts of God, and other
events beyond the reasonable control of the Project Sponsor are excepted. If for any reason
construction is not completed as scheduled, there shall be no resulting diminution or delay in the
Semiannual Loan Payment or the Monthly Loan Deposit.

(12) The Project Sponsor covenants that this Agreement is entered into for the purpose of
constructing, refunding, or refinancing the Project which will in all events serve a public
purpose. The Project Sponsor covenants that it will, under all conditions, complete and operate
the Project to fulfill the public need.

(13) The Project Sponsor shall update the revenue generation system annually to assure
that sufficient revenues are generated for debt service; operation and maintenance; replacement
of equipment, accessories, and appurtenances necessary to maintain the system design capacity
and performance during its design life; and to make the system financially self-sufficient.

2.02. LEGAL AUTHORIZATION.

Upon signing this Agreement, the Project Sponsor’s legal counsel hereby expresses the
opinion, subject to laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, that:

(1) This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Project Sponsor and shall constitute
a valid and legal obligation of the Project Sponsor enforceable in accordance with its terms upon
execution by both parties; and

(2) This Agreement identifies the revenues pledged for repayment of the Loan, and the
pledge is valid and enforceable.

2.03. AUDIT AND MONITORING REQUIREMENTS.

The Project Sponsor agrees to the following audit and monitoring requirements.



(1) The financial assistance authorized pursuant to this Loan Agreement consists of the
following:

Federal Resources, Including State Match, Awarded to the Recipient Pursuant to this Agreement
Consist of the Following:

Federal State
Program Federal | CFDA Funding Appropriation
Number Agency | Number CFDA Title Amount Category
Capitalization Grants
FS98452219-0 | EPA | 6646s | 'orDrinking Water |5 653 949 140129
State Revolving
Fund

(2) Audits.

(a) In the event that the Project Sponsor expends $750,000 or more in Federal awards in
its fiscal year, the Project Sponsor must have a Federal single audit conducted in accordance with
the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F. In determining the Federal awards expended in its
fiscal year, the Project Sponsor shall consider all sources of Federal awards, including Federal
resources received from the Department. The determination of amounts of Federal awards
expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F.
An audit of the Project Sponsor conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the
provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, will meet the requirements of this part.

(b) In connection with the audit requirements addressed in the preceding paragraph (a),
the Project Sponsor shall fulfill the requirements relative to auditee responsibilities as provided
in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F.

(c) Ifthe Project Sponsor expends less than $750,000, in Federal awards in its fiscal
year, an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, is not
required. The Project Sponsor shall inform the Department of findings and recommendations
pertaining to the State Revolving Fund in audits conducted by the Project Sponsor. In the event
that the Project Sponsor expends less than $750,000, in Federal awards in its fiscal year and
elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-Federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit
must be paid from Project Sponsor resources obtained from other than Federal entities).

(d) The Project Sponsor may access information regarding the Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) via the internet at www.cfda.gov/index?cck=1&au=&ck=.

(3) Report Submission.

(a) Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F, and required by Subsection 2.03(2) of this Agreement shall be submitted, when
required by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, by or on behalf of the Project Sponsor directly to each of
the following:




(1) The Department at one of the following addresses:
By Mail:
Audit Director
Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Office of the Inspector General, MS40

3900 Commonwealth Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-30000

or

Electronically:
FDEPSingleAudit@dep.state.fl.us

(i1) The Federal Audit Clearinghouse designated in 2 CFR Section 200.501(a) at the
following address:

https://harvester.census.gov/facweb/

(ii1) Other Federal agencies and pass-through entities in accordance with 2 CFR Section
200.512.

(b) Pursuant to 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, the Project Sponsor shall submit a copy of
the reporting package described in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, and any management letters
issued by the auditor, to the Department at the address listed under Subsection 2.03(3)(a)(i) of
this Agreement.

(c) Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to
the Department pursuant to this Agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR
Part 200, Subpart F, Florida Statutes, or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) or 10.650
(nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as applicable.

(d) Project Sponsors, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department
for audits done in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F, or Chapters 10.550 (local
governmental entities) or 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor
General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was delivered to the Project Sponsor
in correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

(4) Record Retention.

The Project Sponsor shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the
terms of this Agreement for a period of five years from the date of the Final Amendment, and
shall allow the Department, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General access to
such records upon request. The Project Sponsor shall ensure that audit working papers are made
available to the Department, or its designee, Chief Financial Officer, or Auditor General upon
request for a period of five years from the date of the Final Amendment, unless extended in
writing by the Department.



(5) Monitoring.

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F,
as revised (see audit requirements above), monitoring procedures may include, but not be limited
to, on-site visits by Department staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart
F., and/or other procedures. By entering into this Agreement, the Project Sponsor agrees to
comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the
Department. In the event the Department determines that a limited scope audit of the Project
Sponsor is appropriate, the Project Sponsor agrees to comply with any additional instructions
provided by the Department to the Project Sponsor regarding such audit. The Project Sponsor
understands its duty, pursuant to Section 20.055(5), F.S., to cooperate with the Inspector General
in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing. The Project Sponsor will comply with
this duty and ensure that any subcontracts issued under this Agreement will impose this
requirement, in writing, on its subcontractors.

ARTICLE IIT - LOAN REPAYMENT ACCOUNT
3.01. LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT.

The Project Sponsor shall establish a Loan Debt Service Account with a Depository and
begin making Monthly Loan Deposits no later than the date set forth for such action in
Section 10.07 of this Agreement.

Beginning six months prior to each Semiannual Loan Payment, the Project Sponsor shall
make six Monthly Loan Deposits. The first five deposits each shall be at least equal to one-sixth
of the Semiannual Loan Payment. The sixth Monthly Loan Deposit shall be at least equal to the
amount required to make the total on deposit in the Loan Debt Service Account equal to the
Semiannual Loan Payment amount, taking into consideration investment earnings credited to the
account pursuant to Section 3.02.

Any month in which the Project Sponsor fails to make a required Monthly Loan Deposit,
the Project Sponsor’s chief financial officer shall notify the Department of such failure. In
addition, the Project Sponsor agrees to budget, by amendment if necessary, payment to the
Department from other legally available non-ad valorem funds all sums becoming due before the
same become delinquent. This requirement shall not be construed to give superiority to the
Department's claim on any revenues over prior claims of general creditors of the Project
Sponsor, nor shall it be construed to give the Department the power to require the Project
Sponsor to levy and collect any revenues other than Pledged Revenues.

3.02. INVESTMENT OF LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT MONEYS.

Moneys on deposit in the Loan Debt Service Account shall be invested pursuant to the
laws of the State of Florida. Such moneys may be pooled for investment purposes. The maturity
or redemption date of investments shall be not later than the date upon which such moneys may
be needed to make Semiannual Loan Payments. The investment earnings shall be credited to the
Loan Debt Service Account and applied toward the Monthly Loan Deposit requirements.



3.03. LOAN DEBT SERVICE ACCOUNT WITHDRAWALS.

The withdrawal of moneys from the Loan Debt Service Account shall be for the sole
purpose of making the Semiannual Loan Payment or for discharging the Project Sponsor’s
obligations pursuant to Section 8.01.

3.04. ASSETS HELD IN TRUST.

The assets in all accounts created under this Loan Agreement shall be held in trust for the
purposes provided herein and used only for the purposes and in the manner prescribed in this
Agreement; and, pending such use, said assets shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the
Department.

ARTICLE IV - PROJECT INFORMATION
4.01. PROJECT CHANGES.

Project changes prior to bid opening shall be made by addendum to plans and
specifications. Changes after bid opening shall be made by change order. The Project Sponsor
shall submit all addenda and all change orders to the Department for an eligibility determination.
After execution of all construction, equipment and materials contracts, the Project contingency
may be reduced.

4.02. TITLE TO PROJECT SITE.

The Project Sponsor shall have an interest in real property sufficient for the construction
and location of the Project free and clear of liens and encumbrances which would impair the
usefulness of such sites for the intended use.

4.03. PERMITS AND APPROVALS.

The Project Sponsor shall have obtained, prior to the Department's authorization to award
construction contracts, all permits and approvals required for construction of the Project or
portion of the Project funded under this Agreement.

4.04. ENGINEERING SERVICES.

A professional engineer, registered in the State of Florida, shall be employed by, or under
contract with, the Project Sponsor to oversee construction.

4.05. PROHIBITION AGAINST ENCUMBRANCES.

The Project Sponsor is prohibited from selling, leasing, or disposing of any part of the
Water System which would materially reduce operational integrity or Gross Revenues so long as
this Agreement, including any amendments thereto, is in effect unless the written consent of the
Department is first secured. The Project Sponsor may be required to reimburse the Department
for the Principal Forgiveness funded cost of any such part, taking into consideration any increase
or decrease in value.



4.06. COMPLETION MONEYS.

In addition to the proceeds of this Loan, the Project Sponsor covenants that it has
obtained, or will obtain, sufficient moneys from other sources to complete construction and place
the Project in operation on, or prior to, the date specified in Article X. Failure of the Department
to approve additional financing shall not constitute a waiver of the Project Sponsor's covenants
to complete and place the Project in operation.

4.07. CLOSE-OUT.

The Department shall conduct a final inspection of the Project and Project records.
Following the inspection, deadlines for submitting additional disbursement requests, if any, shall
be established, along with deadlines for uncompleted Loan or Principal Forgiveness
requirements, if any. Deadlines shall be incorporated into the Loan Agreement by amendment.
The Loan principal shall be reduced by any excess over the amount required to pay all approved
costs. As a result of such adjustment, the Semiannual Loan Payment shall be reduced
accordingly, as addressed in Section 10.05.

4.08. DISBURSEMENTS.

Disbursements shall be made only by the State Chief Financial Officer and only when the
requests for such disbursements are accompanied by a Department certification that such
withdrawals are proper expenditures. Disbursements shall be made directly to the Project
Sponsor for reimbursement of the incurred construction costs and related services.

Disbursements for materials, labor, or services shall be made upon receipt of the
following:

(1) A completed disbursement request form signed by the Authorized Representative.
Such requests must be accompanied by sufficiently itemized summaries of the materials, labor,
or services to identify the nature of the work performed; the cost or charges for such work; and
the person providing the service or performing the work, and proof of payment.

(2) A certification signed by the Authorized Representative as to the current estimated
costs of the Project; that the materials, labor, or services represented by the invoice have been
satisfactorily purchased, performed, or received and applied to the project; that all funds received
to date have been applied toward completing the Project; and that under the terms and provisions
of the contracts, the Project Sponsor is required to make such payments.

(3) A certification by the engineer responsible for overseeing construction stating that
equipment, materials, labor and services represented by the construction invoices have been
satisfactorily purchased, or received, and applied to the Project in accordance with construction
contract documents; stating that payment is in accordance with construction contract provisions;
stating that construction, up to the point of the requisition, is in compliance with the contract
documents; and identifying all additions or deletions to the Project which have altered the
Project’s performance standards, scope, or purpose since the issue of the Department
construction permit.

10



(4) Such other certificates or documents by engineers, attorneys, accountants,
contractors, or suppliers as may reasonably be required by the Department.

ARTICLE V - RATES AND USE OF THE WATER SYSTEM
5.01. RATE COVERAGE.

The Project Sponsor shall maintain rates and charges for the services furnished by the
Water System which will be sufficient to provide, in each Fiscal Year, Pledged Revenues equal
to or exceeding 1.15 times the sum of the Semiannual Loan Payments due in such Fiscal Year.
In addition, the Project Sponsor shall satisfy the coverage requirements of all Senior Revenue
Debt and Parity Debt obligations.

5.02. NO FREE SERVICE.

The Project Sponsor shall not permit connections to, or furnish any services afforded by,
the Water System without making a charge therefore based on the Project Sponsor's uniform
schedule of rates, fees, and charges.

5.03. RESERVED.
5.04. NO COMPETING SERVICE.

The Project Sponsor shall not allow any person to provide any services which would
compete with the Water System so as to adversely affect Gross Revenues.

5.05. MAINTENANCE OF THE WATER SYSTEM.

The Project Sponsor shall operate and maintain the Water System in a proper, sound and
economical manner and shall make all necessary repairs, renewals and replacements.

5.06. ADDITIONS AND MODIFICATIONS.

The Project Sponsor may make any additions, modifications or improvements to the
Water System which it deems desirable and which do not materially reduce the operational
integrity of any part of the Water System. All such renewals, replacements, additions,
modifications and improvements shall become part of the Water System.

5.07. COLLECTION OF REVENUES.

The Project Sponsor shall use its best efforts to collect all rates, fees and other charges
due to it. The Project Sponsor shall establish liens on premises served by the Water System for
the amount of all delinquent rates, fees and other charges where such action is permitted by law.
The Project Sponsor shall, to the full extent permitted by law, cause to discontinue the services
of the Water System and use its best efforts to shut off water service furnished to persons who
are delinquent beyond customary grace periods in the payment of Water System rates, fees and
other charges.

11



ARTICLE VI - DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES
6.01. EVENTS OF DEFAULT.

Upon the occurrence of any of the following events (the Events of Default) all obligations
on the part of Department to make any further disbursements hereunder shall, if Department
elects, terminate. The Department may, at its option, exercise any of its remedies set forth in this
Agreement, but Department may make any disbursements or parts of disbursements after the
happening of any Event of Default without thereby waiving the right to exercise such remedies
and without becoming liable to make any further disbursement:

(1) Failure to make any Monthly Loan Deposit or to make any installment of the
Semiannual Loan Payment when it is due and such failure shall continue for a period of 30 days.

(2) Except as provided in Subsection 6.01(1), failure to comply with the provisions of
this Agreement, failure in the performance or observance of any of the covenants or actions
required by this Agreement or the Suspension of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to
Section 8.14, below, and such failure shall continue for a period of 30 days after written notice
thereof to the Project Sponsor by the Department.

(3) Any warranty, representation or other statement by, or on behalf of, the Project
Sponsor contained in this Agreement or in any information furnished in compliance with, or in
reference to, this Agreement, which is false or misleading, or if Project Sponsor shall fail to
keep, observe or perform any of the terms, covenants, representations or warranties contained in
this Agreement, the Note, or any other document given in connection with the Loan (provided,
that with respect to non-monetary defaults, Department shall give written notice to Project
Sponsor, which shall have 30 days to cure any such default), or is unable or unwilling to meet its
obligations thereunder.

(4) An order or decree entered, with the acquiescence of the Project Sponsor, appointing
a receiver of any part of the Water System or Gross Revenues thereof; or if such order or decree,
having been entered without the consent or acquiescence of the Project Sponsor, shall not be
vacated or discharged or stayed on appeal within 60 days after the entry thereof.

(5) Any proceeding instituted, with the acquiescence of the Project Sponsor, for the
purpose of effecting a composition between the Project Sponsor and its creditors or for the
purpose of adjusting the claims of such creditors, pursuant to any federal or state statute now or
hereafter enacted, if the claims of such creditors are payable from Gross Revenues of the Water
System.

(6) Any bankruptcy, insolvency or other similar proceeding instituted by, or against, the
Project Sponsor under federal or state bankruptcy or insolvency law now or hereafter in effect
and, if instituted against the Project Sponsor, is not dismissed within 60 days after filing.

(7) Any charge is brought alleging violations of any criminal law in the implementation
of the Project or the administration of the proceeds from this Loan against one or more officials
of the Project Sponsor by a State or Federal law enforcement authority, which charges are not
withdrawn or dismissed within 60 days following the filing thereof.

12



(8) Failure of the Project Sponsor to give immediate written notice of its knowledge of a
potential default or an event of default, hereunder, to the Department and such failure shall
continue for a period of 30 days.

6.02. REMEDIES.

All rights, remedies, and powers conferred in this Agreement and the transaction
documents are cumulative and are not exclusive of any other rights or remedies, and they shall
be in addition to every other right, power, and remedy that Department may have, whether
specifically granted in this Agreement or any other transaction document, or existing at law, in
equity, or by statute. Any and all such rights and remedies may be exercised from time to time
and as often and in such order as Department may deem expedient. Upon any of the Events of
Default and subject to the rights of others having prior liens on the Pledged Revenues, the
Department may enforce its rights by, inter alia, any of the following remedies:

(1) By mandamus or other proceeding at law or in equity, cause to establish rates and
collect fees and charges for use of the Water System, and to require the Project Sponsor to fulfill
this Agreement.

(2) By action or suit in equity, require the Project Sponsor to account for all moneys
received from the Department or from the ownership of the Water System and to account for the
receipt, use, application, or disposition of the Pledged Revenues.

(3) By action or suit in equity, enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in
violation of the rights of the Department.

(4) By applying to a court of competent jurisdiction, cause to appoint a receiver to
manage the Water System, establish and collect fees and charges, and apply the revenues to the
reduction of the obligations under this Agreement.

(5) By certifying to the Auditor General and the Chief Financial Officer delinquency on
loan repayments, the Department may intercept the delinquent amount plus six percent,
expressed as an annual interest rate, penalty of the amount due to the Department from any
unobligated funds due to the Project Sponsor under any revenue or tax sharing fund established
by the State, except as otherwise provided by the State Constitution or State law. Penalty interest
shall accrue on any amount due and payable beginning on the 30th day following the date upon
which payment is due.

(6) By notifying financial market credit rating agencies and potential creditors.

(7) By suing for payment of amounts due, or becoming due, with interest on overdue
payments together with all costs of collection, including attorneys' fees.

(8) By accelerating the repayment schedule or increasing the interest rate on the unpaid
principal of the Loan to as much as 1.667 times the Financing Rate.

13



6.03. DELAY AND WAIVER.

No course of dealing between Department and Project Sponsor, or any failure or delay on
the part of Department in exercising any rights or remedies hereunder, shall operate as a waiver
of any rights or remedies of Department, and no single or partial exercise of any rights or
remedies hereunder shall operate as a waiver or preclude the exercise of any other rights or
remedies hereunder. No delay or omission by the Department to exercise any right or power
accruing upon Events of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be
a waiver of any such default or acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be
exercised as often as may be deemed expedient. No waiver or any default under this Agreement
shall extend to or affect any subsequent Events of Default, whether of the same or different
provision of this Agreement, or shall impair consequent rights or remedies.

ARTICLE VII - THE PLEDGED REVENUES
7.01. SUPERIORITY OF THE PLEDGE TO THE DEPARTMENT.

From and after the effective date of this Agreement, the Department shall have a lien on
the Pledged Revenues, which along with any other Department State Revolving Fund liens on
the Pledged Revenues, of equal priority, will be prior and superior to any other lien, pledge or
assignment with the following exception. All obligations of the Project Sponsor under this
Agreement shall be junior, inferior, and subordinate in all respects in right of payment and
security to the Senior Revenue Debt defined in Section 1.01 of this Agreement and to any
additional senior obligations issued with the Department’s consent pursuant to Section 7.02.
The Department may release its lien on such Pledged Revenues in favor of the Department if the
Department makes a determination in its sole discretion, based upon facts deemed sufficient by
the Department, that the remaining Pledged Revenues will, in each Fiscal Year, equal or exceed
1.15 times the debt service coming due in each Fiscal Year under the terms of this Agreement.

7.02. ADDITIONAL DEBT OBLIGATIONS.

The Project Sponsor may issue additional debt obligations on a parity with, or senior to,
the lien of the Department on the Pledged Revenues provided the Department’s written consent
is obtained. Such consent may be granted if the Project Sponsor demonstrates at the time of such
issuance that the Pledged Revenues, which may take into account reasonable projections of
growth of the Water System and revenue increases, plus revenues to be pledged to the additional
proposed debt obligations will, during the period of time Semiannual Loan Payments are to be
made under this Agreement, equal or exceed 1.15 times the annual combined debt service
requirements of this Agreement and the obligations proposed to be issued by the Project Sponsor
and will satisfy the coverage requirements of all other debt obligations secured by the Pledged
Revenues.

ARTICLE VIII - GENERAL PROVISIONS
8.01. DISCHARGE OF OBLIGATIONS.

All Semiannual Loan payments required to be made under this Agreement shall be
cumulative and any deficiencies in any Fiscal Year shall be added to the payments due in the

14



succeeding year and all years thereafter until fully paid. Payments shall continue to be secured
by this Agreement until all of the payments required shall be fully paid to the Department. If at
any time the Project Sponsor shall have paid, or shall have made provision for the timely
payment of, the entire principal amount of the Loan and interest, the pledge of, and lien on, the
Pledged Revenues to the Department shall be no longer in effect. Deposit of sufficient cash,
securities, or investments, authorized by law, from time to time, may be made to effect
defeasance of this Loan. However, the deposit shall be made in irrevocable trust with a banking
institution or trust company for the sole benefit of the Department. There shall be no penalty
imposed by the Department for early retirement of this Loan.

8.02. PROJECT RECORDS AND STATEMENTS.

Books, records, reports, engineering documents, contract documents, and papers shall be
available to the authorized representatives of the Department for inspection at any reasonable
time after the Project Sponsor has received a disbursement and until five years after the Final
Amendment date.

8.03. ACCESS TO PROJECT SITE.

The Project Sponsor shall provide access to Project sites and administrative offices to
authorized representatives of the Department at any reasonable time. The Project Sponsor shall
cause its engineers and contractors to cooperate during Project inspections, including making
available working copies of plans and specifications and supplementary materials.

8.04. ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS UNDER AGREEMENT.

The Department may assign any part of its rights under this Agreement after notification
to the Project Sponsor. The Project Sponsor shall not assign rights created by this Agreement
without the written consent of the Department.

8.05. AMENDMENT OF AGREEMENT.

This Agreement may be amended in writing, except that no amendment shall be
permitted which is inconsistent with statutes, rules, regulations, executive orders, or written
agreements between the Department and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

This Agreement may be amended after all construction contracts are executed to re-establish the
Project cost, Loan amount, Project schedule, and Semiannual Loan Payment amount. A Final
Amendment establishing the final Project and the Loan Service Fee based on actual Project costs
shall be completed after the Department’s final inspection of the Project records.

8.06. ABANDONMENT, TERMINATION OR VOLUNTARY CANCELLATION.

Failure of the Project Sponsor to actively prosecute or avail itself of this Loan (including
e.g. described in para 1 and 2 below) shall constitute its abrogation and abandonment of the
rights hereunder, and the Department may then, upon written notification to the Project Sponsor,
suspend or terminate this Agreement.

15



(1) Failure of the Project Sponsor to draw Loan proceeds within eighteen months after
the effective date of this Agreement, or by the date set in Section 10.07 to establish the Loan
Debt Service Account, whichever date occurs first.

(2) Failure of the Project Sponsor, after the initial Loan draw, to draw any funds under
the Loan Agreement for twenty-four months, without approved justification or demonstrable
progress on the Project.

Upon a determination of abandonment by the Department, the Loan will be suspended,
and the Department will implement administrative close out procedures (in lieu of those in
Section 4.07) and provide written notification of Final Unilateral Amendment to the Project
Sponsor.

In the event that following the execution of this Agreement, the Project Sponsor decides
not to proceed with this Loan, this Agreement can be cancelled by the Project Sponsor, without
penalty, if no funds have been disbursed.

8.07. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable, the remaining
provisions shall be construed and enforced as if such invalid or unenforceable provision had not
been contained herein.

8.08. SIGNAGE.

The Project Sponsor agrees to comply with signage guidance in order to enhance public
awareness of EPA assistance agreements nationwide. A copy of this guidance is listed as on the
Department’s webpage at https://floridadep.gov/wra/srf/content/state-revolving-fund-resources-
and-documents as “Guidance for Meeting EPA’s Signage Requirements”.

8.09. DAVIS-BACON ACT REQUIREMENTS.

(1) The Project Sponsor shall periodically interview 10% of the work force entitled to
Davis-Bacon prevailing wages (covered employees) to verify that contractors or subcontractors
are paying the appropriate wage rates. Project Sponsors shall immediately conduct interviews in
response to an alleged violation of the prevailing wage requirements. As provided in 29 CFR
5.6(a)(5) all interviews must be conducted in confidence. The Project Sponsor must use
Standard Form 1445 or equivalent documentation to memorialize the interviews. Copies of the
SF 1445 are available from the EPA on request.

(2) The Project Sponsor shall periodically conduct spot checks of a representative
sample of weekly payroll data to verify that contractors or subcontractors are paying the
appropriate wage rates. The Project Sponsor shall establish and follow a spot check schedule
based on its assessment of the risks of noncompliance with Davis-Bacon posed by contractors or
subcontractors and the duration of the contract or subcontract. At a minimum, if practicable, the
subrecipient should spot check payroll data within two weeks of each contractor or
subcontractor’s submission of its initial payroll data and two weeks prior to the completion date
the contract or subcontract. Project Sponsors must conduct more frequent spot checks if the

16



initial spot check or other information indicates that there is a risk that the contractor or
subcontractor is not complying with Davis-Bacon. In addition, during the examinations the
Project Sponsor shall verify evidence of fringe benefit plans and payments thereunder by
contractors and subcontractors who claim credit for fringe benefit contributions.

(3) The Project Sponsor shall periodically review contractors and subcontractors use of
apprentices and trainees to verify registration and certification with respect to apprenticeship and
training programs approved by either the U.S Department of Labor (DOL) or a state, as
appropriate, and that contractors and subcontractors are not using disproportionate numbers of
laborers, trainees, and apprentices. These reviews shall be conducted in accordance with the
schedules for spot checks and interviews described in items (1) and (2) above.

(4) Project Sponsors must immediately report potential violations of the Davis-Bacon
prevailing wage requirements to the EPA Davis-Bacon contact Sheryl Parsons at
Parsons.Sheryl@epamail.epa.gov and to the appropriate DOL Wage and Hour District Office
listed at http://www.dol.gov/whd/america2.htm.

8.10. AMERICAN IRON AND STEEL REQUIREMENT.

The Project Sponsor’s subcontracts must contain requirements that all of the iron and
steel products used in the Project are in compliance with the American Iron and Steel
requirement as described in Section 608 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act unless the
Project Sponsor has obtained a waiver pertaining to the Project or the Department has advised
the Project Sponsor that the requirement is not applicable to the Project.

8.11. RESERVERD.
8.12. PUBLIC RECORDS ACCESS.

(1) The Project Sponsor shall comply with Florida Public Records law under Chapter
119, F.S. Records made or received in conjunction with this Agreement are public records under
Florida law, as defined in Section 119.011(12), F.S. The Project Sponsor shall keep and maintain
public records required by the Department to perform the services under this Agreement.

(2) This Agreement may be unilaterally canceled by the Department for refusal by the
Project Sponsor to either provide to the Department upon request, or to allow inspection and
copying of all public records made or received by the Project Sponsor in conjunction with this
Agreement and subject to disclosure under Chapter 119, F.S., and Section 24(a), Article I,
Florida Constitution.

(3) IF THE PROJECT SPONSOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE
PROJECT SPONSOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT’S
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (850)245-2118, by email at
public.services@dep.state.fl.us, or at the mailing address below:

17



Department of Environmental Protection

ATTN: Office of Ombudsman and Public Services
Public Records Request

3900 Commonwealth Blvd, MS 49

Tallahassee, FL. 32399

8.13. SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.

(1) The Project Sponsor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized
Companies that Boycott Israel List. Pursuant to Section 287.135, F.S., the Department may
immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Project Sponsor or its
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Project Sponsor, or its
subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in
the boycott of Israel during the term of the Agreement.

(2) Ifthis Agreement is for more than one million dollars, the Project Sponsor certifies
that it and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan,
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with
business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, F.S. Pursuant to Section
287.135, F.S., the Department may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the
Project Sponsor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false
certification; or if the Project Sponsor, its affiliates, or its subcontractors are placed on the
Scrutinized Companies that Boycott the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged with
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of the Agreement.

(3) The Project Sponsor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable
subcontracts entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement.

(4) As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), F.S., if federal law ceases to authorize these
contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative.

8.14. SUSPENSION.

The Department may suspend any or all of its obligations to Loan or provide financial
accommodation to the Project Sponsor under this Agreement in the following events, as
determined by the Department:

(1) The Project Sponsor abandons or discontinues the Project before its completion,

(2) The commencement, prosecution, or timely completion of the Project by the Project
Sponsor is rendered improbable or the Department has reasonable grounds to be insecure in

Project Sponsor’s ability to perform, or

(3) The implementation of the Project is determined to be illegal, or one or more
officials of the Project Sponsor in responsible charge of, or influence over, the Project is charged

18



with violating any criminal law in the implementation of the Project or the administration of the
proceeds from this Loan.

The Department shall notify the Project Sponsor of any suspension by the Department of
its obligations under this Agreement, which suspension shall continue until such time as the
event or condition causing such suspension has ceased or been corrected, or the Department has
re-instated the Agreement.

Project Sponsor shall have no more than 30 days following notice of suspension
hereunder to remove or correct the condition causing suspension. Failure to do so shall constitute
a default under this Agreement.

Following suspension of disbursements under this Agreement, the Department may
require reasonable assurance of future performance from Project Sponsor prior to re-instating the
Loan. Such reasonable assurance may include, but not be limited to, a payment mechanism
using two party checks, escrow or obtaining a Performance Bond for the work remaining.

Following suspension, upon failure to cure, correct or provide reasonable assurance of
future performance by Project Sponsor, the Department may exercise any remedy available to it
by this Agreement or otherwise and shall have no obligation to fund any remaining Loan balance
under this Agreement.

ARTICLE IX - CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS AND INSURANCE
9.01. AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS.

The following documentation is required to receive the Department's authorization to
award construction contracts:

(1) Proof of advertising.

(2) Award recommendation, bid proposal, and bid tabulation (certified by the
responsible engineer).

(3) Certification of compliance with the conditions of the Department's approval of
competitively or non-competitively negotiated procurement, if applicable.

(4) Certification Regarding Disbarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary
Exclusion.

(5) Certification by the Authorized Representative that affirmative steps were taken to
encourage Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises participation in Project construction.

(6) Current certifications for Minority and Women’s Business Enterprises participating
in the contract. If the goals as stated in the plans and specifications are not met, documentation
of actions taken shall be submitted.

19



(7) Certification that the Project Sponsor and contractors are in compliance with labor
standards, including prevailing wage rates established for its locality by the DOL under the
Davis-Bacon Act for Project construction.

(8) Certification that all procurement is in compliance with Section 8.10 which states
that all iron and steel products used in the Project must be produced in the United States unless
(a) a waiver is provided to the Project Sponsor by the EPA or (b) compliance would be
inconsistent with United States obligations under international agreements.

9.02. SUBMITTAL OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

After the Department's authorization to award construction contracts has been received,
the Project Sponsor shall submit:

(1) Contractor insurance certifications.

(2) Executed Contract(s).

(3) Notices to proceed with construction.
9.03. INSURANCE REQUIRED.

The Project Sponsor shall cause the Project, as each part thereof is certified by the
engineer responsible for overseeing construction as completed, and the Water System (hereafter
referred to as “Revenue Producing Facilities”) to be insured by an insurance company or
companies licensed to do business in the State of Florida against such damage and destruction
risks as are customary for the operation of Water Systems of like size, type and location to the
extent such insurance is obtainable from time to time against any one or more of such risks.

The proceeds of insurance policies received as a result of damage to, or destruction of,
the Project or the other Revenue Producing Facilities, shall be used to restore or replace damaged
portions of the facilities. If such proceeds are insufficient, the Project Sponsor shall provide
additional funds to restore or replace the damaged portions of the facilities. Repair, construction
or replacement shall be promptly completed.

ARTICLE X - DETAILS OF FINANCING
10.01. PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF LOAN.

The total amount awarded is $3,623,940. Of that, the estimated amount of Principal
Forgiveness is $694,589. The estimated principal amount of the Loan to be repaid is $2,931,051,
which consists of $2,929,351 to be disbursed to the Project Sponsor and $1,700 of Capitalized
Interest.

Capitalized Interest is not disbursed to the Project Sponsor, but is amortized via periodic
Loan repayments to the Department as if it were actually disbursed. Capitalized Interest is
computed at the Financing Rate, or rates, set for the Loan. It accrues and is compounded
annually from the time when disbursements are made until six months before the first

20



Semiannual Loan Payment is due. Capitalized Interest is estimated prior to establishing the
schedule of actual disbursements.

10.02. LOAN SERVICE FEE.

The Loan Service Fee is $58,587 for the Loan amount authorized to date. The fee
represents two percent of the Loan amount excluding Principal Forgiveness and Capitalized
Interest; that is, two percent of $2,929,351. The Loan Service Fee is estimated at the time of
execution of the loan agreement and shall be revised with any increase or decrease amendment.
The Loan Service Fee is based on actual Project costs and assessed in the final loan amendment.
The Project Sponsor shall pay the Loan Service Fee from the first available repayment(s)
following the Final Amendment.

10.03. FINANCING RATE.

The Financing Rate on the unpaid principal of the Loan amount specified in
Section 10.01 is 0.07 percent per annum. However, if this Agreement is not executed by the
Project Sponsor and returned to the Department before October 1, 2020, the Financing Rate may
be adjusted.

10.04. LOAN TERM.
The Loan term shall be 20 years.
10.05. REPAYMENT SCHEDULE.

Repayments shall be made semiannually (twice per year). The Semiannual Loan
Payment shall be computed based upon the principal amount of the Loan less the Principal
Forgiveness plus the estimated Loan Service Fee and the principle of level debt service. The
Semiannual Loan Payment amount may be adjusted, by amendment of this Agreement, based
upon revised information. After the final disbursement of Loan proceeds, the Semiannual Loan
Payment shall be based upon the actual Project costs, the actual Loan Service Fee and the Loan
Service Fee capitalized interest, if any, and actual dates and amounts of disbursements, taking
into consideration any previous payments. Actual Project costs shall be established after the
Department's inspection of the completed Project and associated records. The Department will
deduct the Loan Service Fee and any associated interest from the first available repayments
following the Final Amendment.

Each Semiannual Loan Payment shall be in the amount of $75,278 until the payment
amount is adjusted by amendment. The interest portion of each Semiannual Loan Payment shall
be computed on the unpaid balance of the principal amount of the Loan, including Capitalized
Interest. Interest also shall be computed on the unpaid balance of the Loan Service Fee. Interest
shall be computed as of the due date of each Semiannual Loan Payment.

Semiannual Loan Payments shall be received by the Department beginning on
November 15, 2022 and semiannually thereafter on May 15 and November 15 of each year until

21



all amounts due hereunder have been fully paid. Funds transfer shall be made by electronic
means.

The Semiannual Loan Payment amount is based on the total amount to be repaid of
$2,989,638, which consists of the Loan principal plus the Loan Service Fee with its capitalized
interest.

10.06. PROJECT COSTS.

The Project Sponsor and the Department acknowledge that the actual Project costs have
not been determined as of the effective date of this Agreement. Project cost adjustments may be
made as a result of construction bidding or mutually agreed upon Project changes. Capitalized
Interest will be recalculated based on actual dates and amounts of Loan disbursements. If the
Project Sponsor receives other governmental financial assistance for this Project, the costs
funded by such other governmental assistance will not be financed by this Loan. The
Department shall establish the final Project costs after its final inspection of the Project records.
Changes in Project costs may also occur as a result of the Project Sponsor’s Project audit or a
Department audit.

The Project Sponsor agrees to the following estimates of Project costs:

CATEGORY PROJECT COSTS (%)
Construction and Demolition 3,019,951
Contingencies 301,995
Technical Services After Bid Opening 301,994

SUBTOTAL (Disbursable Amount) 3,623,940
Less Principal Forgiveness (694,589)
SUBTOTAL (Loan Amount) 2,929,351
Capitalized Interest 1,700

TOTAL (Loan Principal Amount) 2,931,051

Technical services costs of up to 5% of the construction costs are eligible for Principal
Forgiveness. Costs that exceed 5% of the construction costs are only eligible for Loan funds.

10.07. SCHEDULE.
The Project Sponsor agrees by execution hereof:

(1) This Agreement shall be effective on February 12, 2020. Invoices submitted for
work conducted on or after this date shall be eligible for reimbursement.

(2) Completion of Project construction is scheduled for May 15, 2022.

(3) The Loan Debt Service Account shall be established and Monthly Loan Deposits
shall begin no later than May 15, 2022.

(4) The first Semiannual Loan Payment in the amount of $75,278 shall be due
November 15, 2022.

22



10.08. SPECIAL CONDITIONS.
Prior to any funds being released, the Project Sponsor shall submit the following:

(1) A Legal Opinion addressing the availability of Pledged Revenues, the right to
increase rates, and subordination of the pledge; and

(2) A completed EPA Preaward Compliance Report and Federal Funding Accountability
and Transparency Act (FFATA) form.

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

23



ARTICLE XI - EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

This Loan Agreement DW501750 may be executed in two or more counterparts, any of
which shall be regarded as an original and all of which constitute but one and the same
instrument.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Department has caused this Agreement to be executed on
its behalf by the Secretary or Designee and the Project Sponsor has caused this Agreement to be
executed on its behalf by its Authorized Representative and by its affixed seal. The effective
date of this Agreement shall be as set forth below by the Department.

for
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

Mayor

I attest to the opinion expressed in Section 2.02,
Attest: entitled Legal Authorization.

City Clerk City Attorney
SEAL

for
STATE OF FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Secretary or Designee Date

24



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:

Change Order 01 to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for the Lake Osborne Estates Watermain
Improvement Project Phase 1

SUMMARY:

Change Order 01 authorizes a contract cost increase and time extension to David
Mancini & Sons Inc. on the Lake Osborne Estates Watermain Improvement Project
Phase 1 for $349,429.19 and 232 days.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The water utilities department began Lake Osborne Improvement project early the fiscal
year 2020 to relocate and replace watermains that have limited maintenance access and
are approaching the end of their useful life. The Contractor David Mancini and Sons
(DMSI) began construction in October of 2019 and since the project started there have
been several unforeseen items or changes that need to be addressed in a change order.
This change order addresses both construction time and contract cost.

During construction, Palm Beach County milled and resurfaced High Ridge Road, this
was done prior to the water utility crossing that were planned and permitted in the
watermain improvement project. The Contractor was asked to perform the two watermain
crossings as horizontal direction drills to avoid cutting the newly paved roadway. In
addition, the utility discovered several locations where watermains were missing and not
constructed as shown in the record atlas. Therefore, the utility department fast tracked
a design plan to incorporate the missing mains into DMSI’s contract so that the
distribution system would function as the original design anticipated. Finally, an
unforeseen permitting condition surfaced during the construction phase. The Palm
Beach County Department of Health (DOH) reviews and authorizes “Onsite Sewage
Treatment and Disposal Systems for Construction Permits” and as a condition of granting
the plumbing permits the DOH must authorize these releases.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Change Order 01 to David Mancini and Sons Inc. for the
Lake Osborne Improvement Project Phase 1 with the addition of 232-day time extension
and $349,429.19 added the contract.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Change Order 01



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures $349,429.19 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact $349,429.19 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project Fy21 Current Agenda Balance

Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

422-7034- Water WT1803 $5,190,000 | $5,190,000 | $349,429.19 | $4,840,570.81

533.63-15 Distribution

Improve




p—

Gty of i

Lake Worth WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT
Beach 301 COLLEGE STREET
FLORIDA" LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460
561.586.1710
CHANGE ORDER
Project Number: _WT 1803 Contractor: _David Mancini & Sons Inc.

Project Name: Lake Osborne Estate Watermain Improvement Project — Ph 1

Change Order Number: _01

Change Order Effective Date: _10/06/2020 Contractor Phone: _954-977-3556

Change Order Type: _lIncreasing Existing Purchase Order Number: _181019

Description of Change:

1. Contractor was asked to perform two (2) 8” horizontal direction drills at High Ridge Road
in order to avoid the recently completed roadwork by Palm Beach County. Cost of work
is $37,149.18 and will be paid out of contract construction contingency line. Change
adds 25 contract days.

2. The water utility discovered several missing sections of the Lake Osborne Estates
distribution system previously unknown until field investigations uncovered the
unforeseen condition. The water department fast tracked a design plan to resolve the
missing loops and to standardize the locations of the mains and meters as designed in
Phase 1. In addition, the utility desired to relocate the rear meters on several properties
that could be accommodated by utilizing existing watermains. The contractor has
agreed to do this work under the current Phase 1 contract utilizing contract line items.
The expansion work adds 90 contract days

This task 2 proposal also includes additional administrative and permit costs associated
to the unforeseen requirement established by the Palm Beach County Department of
Health for obtaining “Onsite Sewage Treatment and Disposal Systems for Construction
Permit” as a condition of granting the plumbing permits for the properties. The
unforeseen permit requirement caused a contract delay of 117 days.

The total cost of task 2 expansion work and the unforeseen permit increases the
contract by $349,429.19.

lakeworthbeachfl.gov




1. Horizontal Direction Drill at High Ridge Road

B DAVID MANCINI

& SONS, INCL

3401 N. Miami Ave Miami Florida, 33127 Suite 213,214 2601 Wiles Rd Pompano Beach Florida 33073
PH: (305) 532-8827 FAX: (305) 532-8835 PH: (954) 977-3556 FAX: (954) 944-2040

PROJECT: LAKE OSBORNE ESTATES WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS PHASE |
CONTRACTOR: David Mancini & Sons, Inc. (DMSI)
Date: 3/18/2020

Description: Furnishing and installing two (2) - 8" HDD w.HDPE DR-11 DIPS.

Excludes: Permitting, Restoration Work to be billed under current Pay Items.
Location: +/- Sta. 39+75 and Sta. 53+18

SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS
TOTAL LABOR (DMSI) S 5,517.75
TOTAL EQUIPMENT (DMSI) S 3,290.08
TOTAL MATERIAL (DMSI) S 1,995.81
TOTAL SUB (CENTERLINE & FILLIPELLI) S 21,500.00
Subtotal Direct Cost S 32,303.64
Contractor's Markup 15% S 4,845.55
Total Direct Cost S 37,149.18

SUMMARY OF TIME IMPACT (REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL TIME)

. ___Description DELAY Unit CONTRACT TIME
Additional Time Required to Cover Extra Work START END WORKING DAYS
1 |Additional Time Required to complete the work 25
25.0




DAVID MANCINI
DMS] & SONS, INC. <

LABOR COSTS -
ILABOR BURDEN MULTIPLIER (LBM) 58.20% SUMMARY - LABOR COSTS
Social Security Contributions & Excise and Payroll 6.20% SUPERVISION See Below
Medicate Rate 1.45%
Unemployment 5.49% MAINLINE CREW See Below
Workmens Compensation 7.16% SERVICE CREW See Below
Health Benefits 14.20% RESTORATION See Below
Retirement Benefits 23.70% TOTAL LABOR $ 5,517.75
|vAcaTION MULTIPLIER (Vi) 13.00%
Sick Leave (1 week out of 52)
Vacation (2 weeks out of 52)
Holiday Pay (1 week out of 52)
|insurance Schedule 4.35%
General Liability Insurance 4.35%
| Total Burden Rate 75.55%
SUPERVISION Hourly Rate (Salary) | Hours (Salary) Total Cost
Project Manager (Fabio Angarita) S 55.00 2 S 110.00
Superintendent (Richard Mancini) S 45.00 4 S 180.00
Ass. Project Manager (David Hearns) S 25.00 8 S 200.00
TOTAL SUPERVISION $ 490.00
MAINLINE CREW - Water Main DMSI Hourly Rate OT- Rate Power Tool Rate Hours OT-Hours Power Tools Hours Total Cost
Foreman S 30.00 | $ 45.00 | $ 0.50 20.0 S 1,053.30
Backhoe Operator S 2450 | $ 36.75 | $ 0.50 16.0 S 688.16
Loader Operator S 2450 | $ 36.75 | $ 0.50 16.0 S 688.16
Pipelayer S 19.00 | $ 2850 | S 0.50 20.0 S 667.09
Pipelayer S 21.00 | $ 31.50 | $ 0.50 20.0 S 737.31
Laborer S 18.00 | $ 27.00 | $ 0.50 20.0 S 631.98
Laborer S 16.00 | $ 24.00 | S 0.50 20.0 S 561.76
TOTAL LABOR $ 5,027.75




[EQuUIPMENT cosT

EQUIPMENT COSTS - MAINLINE CREW & RESTORATION

DS DAVID MANCINI

& SONS, INCL

Excavators Hourly Rate Iddle Running HRS Stand By Total Cost
Mini Excavator CAT 308 CR 56.34 | $ 38.61 16 901.44
Loaders Hourly Rate Stand-by | Running HRS Stand By Total Cost
Deere 624 K 70.10 | $ 52.59 16 1,121.60
Trucks Hourly Rate Stand-by | Running HRS Stand By Total Cost
Dump Truck (18 CY) (Falero Rental Rate) 45.00 16 720.00
Pick-Up Truck - Chevy 2500 (DMSI) 2460 | S 2035 16 393.60
Miscellaneous Equipment Hourly Rate Stand-by | Running HRS Stand By Total Cost
3" Trash Pump and Hoses (DMSI) 8.80|S 5.17 16 140.80
Chop Saw (DMSI) 0.79[$ 0.06 16 12.64
TOTAL EQUIPMENT 3,290.08
|MATERIAL cosTS
Material Description QTY Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
8" HDPE DR-11 120 LF S 11.19 | $ 1,342.80
8" HDPE MJ ADAPTERS 4 EA S 93.83|$ 375.32
8" MJ ACCESSORIES 4 EA S 36.78 | $ 147.12
7% Sales Tax S 130.57
TOTAL MATERIAL s 1,995.81
[suBconTRACTORS
Description Qry Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
Installation of 8"HDD Under High Ridge Rd (Excluding materials, pit excavation,
backfilling, restoration hydrostatic testing and As-Builts) 2 EA $ 10,000.00( $ 20,000.00
Survey and As-Builts 1 LS S 1,500.00f $ 1,500.00

TOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS

S 21,500.00




£> EquipmentWatch

www.equipmentwatch.com

All prices shown in US dollars ($)

Rental Rate Blue Book®

March 18, 2020

Caterpillar 308E2 CR
Crawler Mounted Hydraulic Excavators

Size Class:

8.1 -10.0 MTons
Weight:

N/A

Configuration for 308E2 CR

Bucket Capacity - Heaped
Operating Weight

0.1 cuyd
18519 Ibs

Blue Book Rates

Net Horsepower

Power Mode

65 hp
Diesel

** FHWA Rate is equal to the monthly ownership cost divided by 176 plus the hourly estimated operating cost.

Ownership Costs Estimated FHWA Rate**
Operating Costs
Monthly Weekly Daily Hourly Hourly Hourly
Published Rates USD $5,535.00 USD $1,550.00 USD $390.00 USD $59.00 USD $24.89 USD $56.34
Adjustments
Region ( 100%) - - - -
Model Year - - - -
(2020: 100%)
Adjusted Hourly - - - -
Ownership Cost (100%)
Hourly Operating Cost (100%) -
Total: UsD $5,535.00 USD $1,550.00 USD $390.00 USD $59.00 USD $24.89 USD $56.34
Non-Active Use Rates Hourly
Standby Rate USD $16.67
Idling Rate USD $38.61
Rate Element Allocation
Element Percentage Value
Depreciation (ownership) 37% USD $2,047.95/mo
Overhaul (ownership) 46% USD $2,546.10/mo
CFC (ownership) 10% USD $553.50/mo
Indirect (ownership) 6% USD $332.10/mo
Fuel (operating) @ USD 3.07 29% USD $7.16/hr

Revised Date: 1st half 2020

These are the most accurate rates for the selected Revision Date(s). However, due to more frequent online updates, these rates may not match

Rental Rate Blue Book Print. Visit the Cost Recovery Product Guide on our Help page for more information.

The equipment represented in this report has been exclusively prepared for DAVID MANCINI

(dmancinijr@dmsi.co)

All material herein © 2003-2020 Informa All rights reserved.



£> EquipmentWatch.

www.equipmentwatch.com

All prices shown in US dollars ($)

Rental Rate Blue Book® March 18, 2020

Deere 624K (disc. 2016)
4-Wd Articulated Wheel Loaders

Size Class:
175 - 199 HP
Weight:
33477 Ibs

Configuration for 624K (disc. 2016)

Bucket Capacity - Heaped 3.5cuyd Net Horsepower 186.0 hp
Operator Protection ROPS/FOPS Power Mode Diesel

Blue Book Rates
** FHWA Rate is equal to the monthly ownership cost divided by 176 plus the hourly estimated operating cost.

Ownership Costs Estimated FHWA Rate**
Operating Costs

Monthly Weekly Daily Hourly Hourly Hourly
Published Rates USD $6,030.00 USD $1,690.00 USD $425.00 USD $64.00 USD $35.84 USD $70.10
Adjustments
Region ( 100%) - - - -
Model Year - - - -
(2016: 100%)
Adjusted Hourly - - - -
Ownership Cost (100%)
Hourly Operating Cost (100%) -
Total: USD $6,030.00 USD $1,690.00 USD $425.00 USD $64.00 USD $35.84 USD $70.10
Non-Active Use Rates Hourly
Standby Rate USD $21.58
Idling Rate USD $52.59

Rate Element Allocation

Element Percentage Value
Depreciation (ownership) 41% USD $2,472.30/mo
Overhaul (ownership) 37% USD $2,231.10/mo
CFC (ownership) 12% USD $723.60/mo
Indirect (ownership) 10% USD $603.00/mo
Fuel (operating) @ USD 3.07 51% USD $18.33/hr

Revised Date: 1st half 2020

These are the most accurate rates for the selected Revision Date(s). However, due to more frequent online updates, these rates may not match
Rental Rate Blue Book Print. Visit the Cost Recovery Product Guide on our Help page for more information.

The equipment represented in this report has been exclusively prepared for DAVID MANCINI
(dmancinijr@dmsi.co)

All material herein © 2003-2020 Informa All rights reserved.



£> EquipmentWatch.

www.egkiHmentwatch.com

All Hrices shown in US dollars ($)

Rental Rate Blue Book® March 18, 2020

GMC\CHEVY 2500
4 n-Nighway Wght L kty prkczs

Si: e ulass*
200 - 299 HP
F eight*

N/A

Configuration for 2500

ABe uonfigkration 4.0x 2.0 uaCpyHe Crew
NorseHower 280.0 hp Oower Mode Gasoline
pon Pating 3.0/4.0

Blue Book Rates
RRbNF A Pate is egkal to the monthly ownershiH cost divided Cy 176 Hks the hokrly estimated okerating cost.

Ownership Costs Estimated FHWA Rate**
Operating Costs
Monthly Weekly Daily Hourly Hourly Hourly
OkQlished Pates USL $1,110.00 USL $310.00 USL $78.00 USL $12.00 USL $18.2D USL $29.60
Adjustments
Pegion ( 1005 ) - - - -
Model %ear - - - -
(2020* 1005 )
AdXsted Nokrly - - - -
4 wnershiHu ost (1005 )
Nokrly 4 Herating u ost (1005 ) -
Total: UsD $1,110.00 USD $310.00 USD $78.00 USD $12.00 USD $18.29 USD $24.60
Non-Active Use Rates Hourly
StandCy Pate USL $9.60
Idling Pate USL $20.3j
Rate Element Allocation
Element Percentage Value
L eHreciation (ownershir) j 95 USL $j DD.90/mo
4 verhakl (ownershiH) 275 USL $2DD.70/mo
ubu (ownershiH) 75 USL $77.70/mo
Indirect (ownershiH) 125 USL $133.20/mo
bkel (oHerating) @ USL 2.j 1 775 USL $19.09/hr

Pevised Late* 1st half 2020

phese are the most acckrate rates for the selected Pevision Late(s). Nowever, dke to more fregkent online kHdates, these rates may not match
Pental Pate Tlke Tooz Orint. Visit the uost Pecovery Orodkct Gkide on okr NelH Hage for more information.

phe egkiHment reHesented in this reHort has Ceen eBclksively HreHared for LAVIL MAx ulx |
(dmanciniY@dmsi.co)

All material herein © 2003-2020 Informa All rights reserved.



£ EquipmentWatch.

www.equipmentwatch.com

All prices shown in US dollars ($)

Rental Rate Blue Book®

March 18, 2020

Miscellaneous 14 CHOP SAW
Cut-Off Machines

Size Class:
All

Weight:

47 Ibs

Configuration for 14 CHOP SAW

Cut Capacity
Type

Blue Book Rates

To 5' (Pipe O.D.)
14' Chop saw

Power Mode

Electric

** FHWA Rate is equal to the monthly ownership cost divided by 176 plus the hourly estimated operating cost.

Ownership Costs Estimated FHWA Rate**
Operating Costs
Monthly Weekly Daily Hourly Hourly Hourly
Published Rates UsD $11.00 USD $3.00 USD $0.75 USD $0.11 UsD $0.73 USD $0.79
Adjustments
Region ( 100%) - - - -
Model Year - - - -
(2020: 100%)
Adjusted Hourly - - - -
Ownership Cost (100%)
Hourly Operating Cost (100%) -
Total: USD $11.00 USD $3.00 UsD $0.75 USD $0.11 USsD $0.73 UsD $0.79
Non-Active Use Rates Hourly
Standby Rate USD $0.06
Idling Rate USD $0.06
Rate Element Allocation
Element Percentage Value
Depreciation (ownership) 1% USD $7.81/mo
Overhaul (ownership) 0% USD $0.00/mo
CFC (ownership) 17% USD $1.87/mo
Indirect (ownership) 13% USD $1.43/mo

Revised Date: 1st half 2020

Fuel cost data is not available for these rates.

These are the most accurate rates for the selected Revision Date(s). However, due to more frequent online updates, these rates may not match

Rental Rate Blue Book Print. Visit the Cost Recovery Product Guide on our Help page for more information.

The equipment represented in this report has been exclusively prepared for DAVID MANCINI

(dmancinijr@dmsi.co)

All material herein © 2003-2020 Informa All rights reserved.



£ EquipmentWatch.

www.equipmentwatch.com

All prices shown in US dollars ($)

Rental Rate Blue Book®

March 18, 2020

Wacker Neuson PDT 3A
Diaphragm Pumps

Size Class:
3 Inch
Weight:
N/A

Configuration for PDT 3A

Horsepower
Pump Capacity

Blue Book Rates

3.5 hp
88 gal/min Size

Power Mode

Gasoline
3in

** FHWA Rate is equal to the monthly ownership cost divided by 176 plus the hourly estimated operating cost.

Ownership Costs Estimated FHWA Rate**
Operating Costs
Monthly Weekly Daily Hourly Hourly Hourly
Published Rates USD $805.00 USD $225.00 USD $56.00 USD $8.00 USD $4.23 USD $8.80
Adjustments
Region ( 100%) - - - -
Model Year - - - -
(2020: 100%)
Adjusted Hourly - - - -
Ownership Cost (100%)
Hourly Operating Cost (100%) -
Total: USD $805.00 USD $225.00 USD $56.00 USD $8.00 USD $4.23 USD $8.80
Non-Active Use Rates Hourly
Standby Rate UsD $1.10
Idling Rate USD $5.17
Rate Element Allocation
Element Percentage Value
Depreciation (ownership) 16% USD $128.80/mo
Overhaul (ownership) 76% USD $611.80/mo
CFC (ownership) 3% USD $24.15/mo
Indirect (ownership) 5% USD $40.25/mo
Fuel (operating) @ USD 2.51 14% USD $0.60/hr

Revised Date: 1st half 2020

These are the most accurate rates for the selected Revision Date(s). However, due to more frequent online updates, these rates may not match

Rental Rate Blue Book Print. Visit the Cost Recovery Product Guide on our Help page for more information.

The equipment represented in this report has been exclusively prepared for DAVID MANCINI

(dmancinijr@dmsi.co)

All material herein © 2003-2020 Informa All rights reserved.



2601 WILES ROAD - 3401 N. MIAMI AVENUE, SUITE 213/214
POMPANO BEACH, FLORIDA 33073 MIAMI, FLORIDA 33127
[BIYE] DAVID MANCINI

O SUNND, L -

PHONE (954)977-3556 | FAX (954) 944-2040 PHONE (305) 532-8827 | FAX (305) 532-8835

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

BLANKET SUBCONTRACTOR - PURCHASE ORDER

PROJECT NAME:|LAKE OSBORNE ESTATES WATER MAIN PHASE | PROJECT NO.WT1803 BLANKET SUB No.: |19-BL.AFD.08
VENDOR: A. FALERO DISTRIBUTORS P.O. No.: |19-LW.LOWM # 08
VENDOR PHONE:|305-665-9196 | A'I'I'N:lALEX FALERO COUNTY:[PALM BEACH
VENDOR ADDRESS:|10420 SW 77TH AVENUE, SUITE 202, PINECREST, FL 33156 START DATE:|12/9/2019
JOB ADDRESS:|CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH - Lake Osborne Dr & High Ridge Dr, Lake Worth, Fl.
PLEASE FABRICATE/PROCURE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS: After Shop Drawing Approval (If applicable) PRICES FIRM FOR PROJECT DURATION
ITEM| Vendor COST
No. Code DESCRIPTION CODE Q1Y PRICE UM TOTAL PRICE
1 AFALTR |Limerock (Material) 1-100 | 500 |$ 750 | TON | $ 3,750.00
2 AFALTR |Material 57 Rock 1-100 | 100 |$ 1475 | TON | $ 1,475.00
3 AFALTR |Material LBR-40 1-100 | 100 |$ 6.50 | TON | $ 650.00
Subtotal Material| $ 5,875.00
Tax 7%| $ 411.25
4 AFALTR |Limerock (Hauling) 1-100 | 500 |$ 8.00 | TON | $ 4,000.00
5 AFALTR |Hauling 57 Rock 1-100 | 100 |$ 8.00 | TON | $ 800.00
6 AFALTR Hauling of LBR-40 1-100 | 100 | $ 8.00 | TON | $ 800.00
7 AFALTR [Truck by hour 160 hours. 1-100 | 160 |$ 4500 HR |$ 7,200.00
8 AFALTR |Haul and disposal of asphalt 1-100| 20 |$ 150.00( LD |$ 3,000.00
9 AFALTR |Haul and disposal of concrete (Tractor Trailer) 1-100 5 $ 250.00( LD |$ 1,250.00
10 | AFALTR |Haul and disposal of vegetation 1-100 5 $ 500.00| LD |$ 2,500.00
11 | AFALTR [Haul and disposal of muck 1-100 5 $ 150.00 | LD |$ 750.00
IMPORTANT: In order for any payment to be processed, "Blanket SUB No.", "P.O. No." and
"ltem No." MUST APPEAR ON ALL INVOICES **Mail all original invoices and correspondence Total P.O. Amount:| $ 26,586.25
to Main Office (2601 Wiles Road Pompano Beach, Florida 33073)**

**'Subcontractor is required to call in their own locate tickets for any applicable work.**

[The acceptance of this offer to enter into this Blanket Subcontractor - Purchase Order is limited to the terms of this Blanket Subcontractor Purchase Order and referenced Blanket Subcontract. Any different or additional term(s) proposed by Seller,
whether contained in Seller’s acceptance, sales orders, delivery tickets or other like document are objected to by David Mancini & Sons, Inc. (DMSI) and shall not become part of this Blanket Subcontractor - Purchase Order. This Blanket Subcontractor -
Purchase Order becomes a contract when DMSI receives a written acceptance thereto or upon Seller delivering goods to DMSI. The term “goods” includes associated materials, components, services and facilities. Seller shall furnish those goods as set
[forth in this Blanket Subcontractor - Purchase Order. Seller’s form of acceptance, sales order(s), delivery ticket(s), or other like document shall not govern the relationship between the parties, and any different, additional or contradictory terms and
conditions contained in Seller’s document shall not affect DMSI’s or Seller’s rights, remedies and obligations. Reference in this Blanket Subcontractor - Purchase Order to Seller’s quotation, sales literature, or other documents are for purposes of
description and price only.

**'Payment will be made on completed work; no partial payment will be made unless owner agrees. **

**'Payment will be delayed if delivery tickets and pick up tickets are not signed by DMSI personnel **

**'Subcontractor will adhere to applicable Wage Schedule for the year the work is performed.**
**When the term "Contractor" is utilized in prime contract documents, it is understood that "Subcontractor" is responsible for Project requirements
regarding subcontractors works.**

**Vendor will include a copy of the corresponding release and delivery reciept. Failure to do so will result in NON PAYMENT.**

**Bjll line items using Forms AIA G702 & G703 Application for Payment or similar.**

** VVendor agrees NOT to charge restocking fees to DMSI on products included in this Purchase Org‘er Agreement **

DAVID MANCINI & SONS, INC. APPROVAL Zl
-
By: Fabio Angarita Signature: @f .
Titte: Project Manager Date: 12/06/2019"

A. FALERO DISTRIBUTORS APPROVAL

By: Signature:

Title: Date:

Page 1of 1



Bill To:

Ship To:

» . 116717 DAVID MANCINI & SONS INC Quote Number 09041495
DAVID MANCINI & SONS INC COUNTRY CLUB VILLAGE Quote Date 12/12/19
1939 NW 40TH CT INFRASTRUCTURE UPGRADE -
I NDUSTRIE POMPANO BEACH, FL 33064 BOCA RATON, FL 33427 Expiration Date  01/03/20
Page 10of1
Payment Terms Customer JOb/PrOJeCt Name Written By
NET 30 COUNTRY CLUB VILLAGE STEVE HERP, Ext 6665
Frelght Terms Contact Sales Rep
PREPAID AND ALLOW BRYAN FLETCHER
Ship Via Additional Info
Best Way Country Club Village Infrastructure Upgrade (Boca Raton, FL)
# Qty UM Product Description Each Extended
1 480 FT 10181112 18" DR 11 DIPS PIPE HDPE AWWA BLUE STR 47.62 22,857.60
40' JOINTS
2 200 FT 10081110 8" DR 11 DIPS PIPE HDPE AWWA BLUE STR 11.19 2,238.00
40' JOINTS
3 200 FT 10061110 6" DR 11 DIPS PIPE HDPE AWWA BLUE STR 6.50 1,300.00
40' JOINTS
4 2 EA 53181115 18" DR11 DIPS MJ ADAPTER ONLY PE WITHOUT SS STIFFENER 402.75 805.50
5 2 EA 53180037 18" ACCESSORY KIT C110 FOR MJ ADAPTER W/ BOLTS, GASKET 64.64 129.28
9] Z  EA B3T800&T 18 IPS T DIPS GLAND CT1U RING FOR NMJ ADAPTER T30.93 273.80
7 2 EA 53081126 8" DR 11 DIPS MJ ADAPTER ONLY PE WITHOUT SS STIFFENER 93.83 187.66
8 2 EA 53080091 8" ACCESSORY KIT C153 FOR MJ ADAPTER W/GLAND, BOLTS, GASKET 36.78 73.56
J Z EA QoUD T 194 O URTTUIFOSNMIUgAUAFTER UNLY FEWITHAUUT SO STIFFENCR 00.9U 1'70.0U
10 2 EA 53060080 6" ACCESSORY KIT C153 FOR MJ ADAPTER W/GLAND, BOLTS, GASKET 27.95 55.90
11 1 EA 99999998 PRICING INCLUDES FREIGHT DELIVERED TO BOCA RATON, FL 0.00 0.00
Subtotal 28,097.96
UNAPPROVED ALTERNATE ON FPVC
12 1,500 FT 10261710 26" DR 17 IPS PIPE HDPE 49.52 74,280.00
50" JOINTS
13 1,500 FT 10181112 18" DR 11 DIPS PIPE HDPE AWWA BLUE STR 41.34 62,010.00
50" JOINTS
14 1 EA 99999998 PRICING INCLUDES FREIGHT DELIVERED TO BOCA RATON, FL 0.00 0.00
Subtotal 136,290.00
ISCO Standard Terms and Conditions apply. Please visit http://www.isco-pipe.com/terms-and-conditions.aspx
Merchandise Total Tax(1) Freight(2) Quote Total
164,387.96 9,863.28 0.00 | US$ 174,251.24

1 Sales tax will be charged based on the ship to address at the time of
invoice if there is no tax certificate on file.

2 Freight amount in this quote is an estimate only. Actual freight terms and
charges will be determined at the time the order is placed.

Accepted By:

Printed Name:

Date:

100 WITHERSPOON ST * LOUISVILLE, KY 40202

800-345-4726




2. Expansion Work and Unforeseen Permitting

DY DAVID MANCINI

& SONS, INC.

September 24, 2020 VIA Email

Giles Rhodes, P.E.
Assistant Director

Water Utilities

City of Lake Worth Beach

Project: Lake Osborne Estates - Cost Proposal for Water Main Expansion

Dear Mr. Rhodes:

We are hereby submitting a Cost Proposal for a Water Main Expansion for the additional work included in
correspondence received on August 11, 2020 which incorporates seven (7) new water services along Lake
Osborne Drive between Lantana Dr and Crest Dr, three (3) new water services along High Ridge for the
properties 5581, 5573 and 1407, water main extension along High Ridge to connect to the existing water main
South of Lake Geneva Dr, Water Main Expansion along Lake Geneva Drive from High Ridge Road to Cochran
Dr, three (3) new water services along Nanette Ct and new water services for three (3) properties
along Ontario Dr for a notto exceed amount of $349,429.19 and ninety (90) additional contract days.

(Breakdown attached).

The cost proposal also includes in the Item # 51 and 52, all the additional administrative and permit cost
associated to the unforeseen requirement established by the Department of Health of obtaining a “Onsite
Sewage Treatment and Disposal System for Construction Permit” as a condition of granting the Plumbing

Permits for the properties of the Phase I and for the Expansion.

The unforeseen Sewage Permit requirement caused, as of now, a Contract delay of one hundred and
seventeen (117) days which resembles the period between the first correspondence received from the
Florida Department of Health, January 9, 2020 requesting additional information and the date

when we started receiving their approvals May 5, 2020.

Respectfully,

e

Fabio Angarita
Project Manager
David Mancini & Sons Inc.

2601 Wiles Road, Pompano Beach, FL 33073
Ph: 954-977-3556 | Fax: 954-977-2040



Lake Osborne Estates Expansion
Summary of Cost

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY U, PRICE TOTAL
General
1 Mobilization and Demobilization (5%) LS 1.00 15,062.00 15,062.00
2 Maintenance of Traffic (4%) LS 1.00 12,049.00 12,049.00
3 Testing (2%) LS 1.00 6,025.00 6,025.00
4 Survey Stake -out & As-Builts (2%) LS 1.00 6,025.00 6,025.00
5 Erosion Control/ SWPPP w/ all permit fees (3%) LS 1.00 9,037.00 9,037.00
Subtotal 48,198.00
Water Main
6 4" C-900 PVC WM (incl. backfill, subgrade and base) LF 50.00 21.00 1,050.00
7 6" C-900 PVC WM (incl. backfill, subgrade and base) LF 1,364.00 20.00 27,280.00
8 6" DIP WM (incl. backfill, subgrade and base) LF 28.00 32.00 896.00
9 4" GV EA 2.00 1,019.00 2,038.00
10 6" GV EA 4.00 1,166.00 4,664.00
11 DIP Fittings TN 2.00 5,000.00 10,000.00
12 NEW Fire Hydrant Assembly (W/ 6" gv) EA 2.00 4,000.00 8,000.00
13 Connect to Exist. 4" Cl WM (incl. hymax coupling or equal and trust block) EA 1.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
14 Connect to Exist. 4" ACPI WM (incl. hymax coupling or equal and trust block) EA 1.00 2,700.00 2,700.00
15 Connect to Exist. 6" PVC WM (incl. hymax coupling or equal and trust block) EA 1.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
16 Connect to Exist. 6" ACP WM (incl. hymax coupling or equal and trust block) EA 1.00 2,700.00 2,700.00
17 Connect to Exist. 8" PVC WM (incl. hymax coupling or equal and trust block) EA 1.00 2,500.00 2,500.00
18 1" PE Short Single Water Service (open cut), inc. Meter Box EA 9.00 811.00 7,299.00
19 1" PE Short Double Water Service (open cut), inc. Meter Box EA 5.00 955.00 4,775.00
20 2" PE Long Single Water Service (open cut), inc. Meter Box EA 1.00 3,000.00 3,000.00
21 1" PE Long Single Water Service (trenchless with 2" casing) inc Meter Box EA 16.00 965.00 15,440.00
22 1" PE Long Double Water Service (trenchless with 2" casing) inc Meter Box EA 3.00 1,170.00 3,510.00
23 Sample Point (Inc. Bacteriological Sampling) EA 5.00 375.00 1,875.00
24 Rejro.ute existing house service from rear to front property including relocation of EA 37.00 1,165.00 43.105.00
existing meter
25 Connect to existing meter s at Frontage EA 2.00 750.00 1,500.00
26 6" WM CAP w/ 2" Blowoff Assembly EA 1.00 1,480.00 1,480.00
Subtotal 147,812.00
Demo
27 Grout Fill & Abandon-In-Place Existing 4" ACP WM (R/W Areas) LF 50.00 5.50 275.00
28 Grout Fill & Abandon-In-Place Existing 6" ACP WM (R/W Areas) LF 33.00 6.00 198.00
29 Grout Fill & Abandon -In-Place Existing 6" DIP WM (R/W Areas) LF 473.00 7.00 3,311.00
33 Cut/ Cap Existing 6" ACP WM EA 6.00 810.00 4,860.00
34 Cut/ Cap Existing 6" AClI WM EA 4.00 810.00 3,240.00
36 Remove Exi sting FH assembly EA 1.00 500.00 500.00
Subtotal 12,384.00
Restoration ltems
37 Asphalt Driveway Restoration SY 20.00 109.00 2,180.00
38 Concrete Driveway Restoration SY 126.00 54.00 6,804.00
39 Paver Driveway Restoration SY 25.00 61.00 1,525.00
40 Asphalt Pavement 1.5" Milling (MINIMUM CHARGE) LS 1.00 3,500.00 3,500.00
41 Asphalt Resurface with 1.5" FOOT SP12.5 (incl. WM trenchless) SY 709.50 11.45 8,123.78
42 Asphalt Path Restoration SY 38.50 15.25 587.13
43 Concrete Sidewalk Restoration - 4" thick SY 244.20 43.00 10,500.60
44 Concrete Sidewalk Restoration - 6" thick at driveways SY 546.70 53.00 28,975.10
45 ADA HC Ramps EA 2.00 480.00 960.00
46 Detectable warnings EA 2.00 393.00 786.00
47 Concrete Curb Restoration LF 20.00 30.00 600.00
48 Sod and Swale restoration (incl. grading) per PBC Standards SY 1,538.90 6.70 10,310.63
49 New wood fencing (Lake Osborne Drive) LF 28.00 -
50 Remove and replace existing fencing in R/W LF 50.00 23.00 1,150.00
Subtotal 76,002.23




ITEM DESCRIPTION

UNIT QTY U, PRICE TOTAL
Additional Items related to the DOH Sewer Application
Additional administrative and labor cost related to the unforeseen requirement by
DOH of appliying for "ONSITE SEWAGE TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL
51 SYSTEM FOR CONSTRUCTION" as a requirement to obtain a Plumbing Permit LS 1.00 | 42,677.96 42,677.96
to perform the transfers of the water meters from the back to the front of the
properties.
52 Additional Permit Fees by DOH EA 263.00 85.00 22,355.00
Subtotal 65,032.96

TOTALS

349,429.19




PROJECT: LAKE OSBORNE ESTATES WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS PHASE |

CONTRACTOR: David Mancini & Sons, Inc. (DMSI)
Date: 9/15/2020

BV DAVID MANCINI

&L SONS, INCL

2601 Wiles Rd Pompano Beach Florida 33073
PH: (954) 977-3556 FAX: (954) 944-2040

Description: Total administrative, labor and permit fees related to the unforeseen requirement by the DOH of filling an application for "ONSITE SEWAGE
TREATMENT AND DISPOSAL SYSTEM FOR CONSTRUCTION" with sketches showing location of existing water meter, proposed water meter and clearances

between proposed pipes and existing septic tanks and drain fields.

SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS
TOTAL LABOR (DMSI) s 37,111.27
TOTAL EQUIPMENT (DMSI) s -
TOTAL MATERIAL (DMSI) s -
TOTAL SUB s -
Subtotal Direct Cost S 37,111.27
Contractor's Markup 15% S 5,566.69
Total Direct Cost S 42,677.96
Permit Fees 263 $85/property S 22,355.00
Grand Total 5 65,032.96
SUMMARY OF TIME IMPACT (REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL TIME)
ipti DELAY i
# Additional Time Rz:;;':::zgltznmver Extra Work START END WORK:J;(I; DAYS CONTRACT TIME
1 Additional Time Related to Unforeseen Requirement by 1/9/2020 5/5/2020 117 117

~__|DOH

117.0




LABOR COSTS -

ILABOR BURDEN MULTIPLIER (LBM) 58.20%
Social Security Contributions & Excise and Payroll 6.20%
Medicate Rate 1.45%
Unemployment 5.49%
Workmens Compensation 7.16%
Health Benefits 14.20%
Retirement Benefits 23.70%

I VACATION MULTIPLIER (VM) 13.00%
Sick Leave (1 week out of 52)

Vacation (2 weeks out of 52)
Holiday Pay (1 week out of 52)

|insurance Schedule 4.35%
General Liability Insurance 4.35%

| Total Burden Rate 75.55%

SUMMARY - LABOR COSTS

DAVID MANCINI

& SONS, INC.

SUPERVISION See Below
MAINLINE CREW See Below
SERVICE CREW See Below
RESTORATION See Below

TOTAL LABOR $ 37,111.27

Elaboration of 245 sketches showing location of existing meter, proposed meter ontop of sketch received from CAS showing location of existing drain fields and septing tanks and

related field work.

SUPERVISION Hourly Rate (Salary) [ Hours (Salary) Labor Burden Total Cost
Project Manager (Fabio Angarita) S 57.50 40 75.55% S 4,037.65
Ass. Project Manager (Leydis Colomina) S 31.25 480.0 75.55% $  26,332.50
TOTAL SUPERVISION $  30,370.15
MAINLINE CREW - Water Main DMSI Hourly Rate OT- Rate Power Tool Rate Hours OT-Hours Power Tools Hours Total Cost
Foreman S 30.00 | $ 45.00 | S 0.50 80.0 S 4,213.20
Laborer S 18.00 | $ 27.00 | $ 0.50 80.0 S 2,527.92
TOTAL LABOR $ 6,741.12




Price of Original Contract: $ 2,618,649.00 authorized by Commission on 08/06/2019 Agenda
ltem 9.J.

Current Price of Contract (including Change Orders): $2,618,649.00

Price of Current Change Order: $349,429.19

New Contract Price: $2,968,078.19

Basis of Price Change: _X_Unit Price X _Time & Material __Lump Sum
Contract Time Change

___No Change _X_ Extended Decreased by _232_work days
The CONTRACTOR and the OWNER agree that this CHANGE ORDER represents the complete
agreement of the parties with respect to these matters as of t date of this CHANGE ORDER. By
approving this Change Order, the CONTRACTOR releases any and all claims that it may have
against the OWNER under the subject contract including, but not limited to claims for equitable
adjustments, which occurred or accrued prior to the effective date of this CHANGE ORDER.
This Change Order may be executed in counterparts and is not effective until approved by

either the City Manager or City Commission (as designated on the last page of this Change
Order).

Reviewed and Accepted by: Fabio Angarita, David Mancini and Sons, Inc.

e

/{ (Contractor Name)
Project Manager 9/25/2020
Contractor Representative (Signature) Title Date

Approved by: ‘%Q/ Glaghe
ao&‘m ghg(e_ljs (Department Director) ~ / afesr— (Date)




e 'l I

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER/CITY has approved this Change Order No. 01 to the
Lake Osborne Estates Watermain Improvement Phase 1 Project on October ___, 20 .

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

ATTEST:
By: By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk Pam Triolo, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY
By: By:

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:

Change Order 01 to David Mancini & Sons Inc. for the Park of Commerce Phase 1B
Project

SUMMARY:

Change Order 01 authorizes a contract cost increase and time extension to David
Mancini & Sons Inc. on the Park of Commerce Phase 1 Project for $48,196.80 and 83
days.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City’s Park of Commerce Phase 1B project started the beginning of this calendar
year with David Mancini and Sons as the prime contractor. The project is continuing its
progress and working toward completion, however several changes are required to be
memorialized per the contract.

The 4™ Ave N roadway section was realigned to avoid the relocation of several power
poles in the segment of roadway. In addition, on 7" Ave N between Barnett Dr and the
Fitch ditch it was determined that the sidewalk, roadway shoulder and a several
driveways should be modified to better suit the conditions that existed in the northside of
this right of way. This work will add 45 days to the contract. Another utility conflict was
identified with the proposed stormwater installation in 4" Ave N. This resulted in the need
to deflect the watermain system around the proposed utility and to replumb several water
services. This work will add 10 days to the contract. The watermain system located on
the northside of the LWDD canal was evaluated and a portion of the existing main was
determined to be past its useful life. The water utility determined the need to install an
additional 200 LF of 12” watermain and pipe fitting to connect the system. This work will
add $6,241.49 and 15 days to the contract. Finally, the City entered a cost sharing
agreement with 1937 7" Ave N LLC on 9/1/20 for installation of water infrastructure in
this project. This change order will address the adding reimbursable cost and time with
this agreement.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Change Order 01 to David Mancini and Sons Inc. for the
Park of Commerce Phase 1B project with the addition of 83-day time extension and
$48,196.80 added the contract.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Change Order 01



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 48,196.80 O 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 48,196.80 O 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time

Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0

B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:

Account Account Project FY21 Current Agenda Balance

Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

422-7034- Water $730,051 $730,051 $48,196.80 | $681,854.20

533.63-60 Distribution SG1803

Improve




City of

Lake Worth WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT

Beach 301 COLLEGE STREET

FLORID/ LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460
561.586.1710

CHANGE ORDER

Project Number: _SG 1803 Contractor: _David Mancini & Sons Inc.

Project Name: _Park of Commerce Phase 1B — Infrastructure Improvements

Change Order Number: _01

Change Order Effective Date: _10/06/2020 Contractor Phone: _954-977-3556

Change Order Type: _Increasing Existing Purchase Order Number: _182735

Description of Change:
1. Realignment of 4" Ave North from Sta 60+87.58 to 66+75.83 to avoid pole conflicts.
Addition of a driveway apron at the City’s electrical substation on 7" Ave N at Sta. 50+50
+/-, and miscellaneous sodding and crushed concrete on the north side of 7" Ave N
between Stations 50+00 and 56+00. 45 day extension

2. Installation of 8” line stop to facilitate WM deflection around Str. S-8, installation of
sample point and re-installation of three (3) 1” water services at 4" Ave N Sta 70+31.
Additional cost of $9,235.56 to be paid from General Allowance Drainage Conflicts, 10
day extension.

3. Installation of additional 200 LF of 12" WM Pipe and Fittings to connect to the 6" WM
located about 180’ west of the plan connection point on the north side of the LWDD L-11
canal west of the Keller Canal for an additional total cost of $56,241.49. The portion of
$50,000 to be paid from the contract line for General Allowance for Utility Conflicts and
the balance of $6,241.49 to be added to the contract and 15 day extension.

4. Installation of water utilities on 7" Ave N per a Cost Sharing contract between 1937 7™
Ave N LLC and the City of Lake Worth Beach approved in the September 1, 2020
commission meeting. The cost sharing agreement was for the installation of
miscellaneous utility infrastructure to be added under the City’s construction contract.
Following the installation of the miscellaneous utilities the developer of 1937 7" Ave N
will the reimburse the City $41,955.31, the cost added to the contract via this change
order. The utility improvements add a 13 day extension. Cost sharing agreement
approved on September 1, 2020 previously increased the contract by $12,544.33 for

utilities the City's agreed to install that benefit the surrounding properties.

lakeworthbeachfl.gov




REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL # 1

ADDITIONAL SCOPE - 4TH AVE. N.

m [N NN I

2601 Wiles Rd Pompano Beach Florida 33073
PlI: (p54) R77-3558 FAX: (854) 044-2040

PROJECT #: PARK OF COMMERCE PHASE 1B
CONTRACTOR: David Mancinl & Sons, Inc. {DMSI)

Date:

7462020

Description: Installation of 8" Linestop for facilitate WM deflexion around $-8, installation of sample point and re-i

T}

ion of 3-1" Water services.

Location: 4TH Avenue N - +/-Sta. 70+31.
SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS

CONTRACT ITEMS |
TEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK unNmr QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL
Furnish Utility Crew & Equipment {Uncovering and backfill pipe at linestop location
_ [3Hrs), installation of 3-1" water services from new pipe and connect to existing 1" a0 5,00 8200 43500
SUBTOTAL 3,435.00
ERIAL COSTS |
MA TERI;H DESCRIPTION B unir QUANTITY UNIT COoST TOTAL
8"w1" S5 Saddle EA 3 $ 85005 255.00
1" Boll Corp Stop EA 3 5 6200($ 186,00
1" insert FA 6 $ 150 | & 9.00
1x100 Blue PE Tubing CTS LF 0 S 0451 1350
Comp. Coupling CTSXCTS EA 3 s 35.00 | § 105.00 |
8"%3/4" SS Saddle EA 1 s 8500|$ 85.00
3/4" Ball Corp Stop EA 1 $ 40,00 | § 40,00
3/4x100 Blue PE Tubing CTS LE 15 s [(EL B 450
——— s
$
SUBTOTAL MATERIAL 69800
TAX 48.86
MATERIAL MARKUP {15%) PER GC 12.04.C 104.70
TOTAL MATERIAL 851.56
SUBCONTRACTORS |
DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL
8" Linestop EA 1 5 4,500.00 4,500.00
SUBTOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS 4,500.00
SUBCONTRACTORS MARKLIP {10%) PER GC 11.04.C 450.00
TOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS 4,950.00
TOTAL CONTRACT ITEMS + MATERIALS + SUBCONTRACTORS 9,236.56
SUMMARY OF TIME IMPACT {REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL TIME]
[ Description Unlt Qry
Pracurement of Matarlals {Linestop Fitting) DAY 10.00
[SUBTOTAL 10.00
Working
TIME ADDED TO CONTRACT Days 10.00




ADDITIONAL SCOPE - WEST OF KELLER CANAL

RFP #3
[DOMSI I\)}\__II > NEANC N

49601 Wlles Rd Pompano Beach Florida 33073
PLI; (054) B77-3550 FAX: (54) BA4-2040

PROJECT #: PARK OF COMMERCE PHASE 1B
CONTRACTOR: Davld Mancini & Sons, Inc. (DMSI)
Date:  7/6/2020

Description: Additional 12" WM Pipe and Fittings due to unforeseen conditions found at the west connection point, the 10" pipe was not in service
therefore we needed to connect to the 6" WM located about 180" West of the original location.

Location: 7TH Avenue N, Sta 386+80 to Sta 388+40

SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS
CONTRACT ITEMS |
TEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL
W-2 |12” DIP {CL 350) Cement Lined Watermaln LF 20000 85.00 17,000.00
W-4 |12” Gate Valve w/bax EA 1.00 2,760.00 2,.760.00

Furnish Uttilty Crew & Equipment (Soft Dig to expase existing WM (4Hrs), Tapping
W-8 |Sfeeve + Valve Installation, test and support for Tap Sub (8Hrs}, Pipe Uncovering HR 36.00 687.00 24,732.00
and Remaval 16 hrs + Deflection under existing Force Moalins 8 Hrs)

W-9 |Furnish Additi Ductife Iron Fittings {cement lined) 18 33600 120 403.20
K-14 |sod sania tury 3735307 SY 1,243.00 5.00 6.215.00
SUBTOTAL 51,110.20
|MATERIAL COSTS |
MATERIAL DESCRIPTION uNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL
6X6 TYLER 5149 M/ TAP SLV DI €153 COMPACT F/DIP #377139 EA 1 S 1163.76 | $ 1,163.76
6 F6114 MU RW TAP VLV OL L/ACC EA 1 5 1,18846 | § 1,188.46
6 EBAA MEGALUG MJ D1 1106 RSTR F/DI PIPE , BLACK EA 1 $ 5331 $ 5331
6 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND(LESS GLAND) EA 1 $ 3000 $ 30.00
6X1/8 FLG ACC FF 30455 EA 1 $ 2000 | § 40.00
_|6X1/8 FLG FF NEOPRENE GASKET EA 1 $ S8 | $ 358
461-S VALVE 80X L/LID DOM 107, 158, NO LD EA 1 $ 109.00 | § 109.00
5-1/4 VB LID M/WATER USA EA 1 $ 19.00 | § 19.00
|BRZ DISC £/6" VLY (VLV MARKER) EA 1 $ 2100 21.00
SUBTOTAL MATERIAL 2,628.11
TAX 183.97
MATERIAL MARKUP (15%) PER GC 11.04.C 394.22
TOTAL MATERIAL 3,206.29
|suBconTRACTORS |
DESCRIPTION unIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL
Test and Tapping Evisting 6" WM (By EA Tappin LS 1 $ 500.00 500.00
Fence Restoration LS 1 5 750.00 750.00
Disposal of trash (Existing Plpe) Load 1 $ 500.00 500.00
SUBTOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS 1,750.00
SUBCONTRACTORS MARKUP (10%) PER GC 11.04.C 175.00
TOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS 1,925.00
TOTAL CONTRACT ITEMS + MATERIALS + SUBCONTRACTORS 56,241.49

# Destription Unit ary
P af I DAY 10.00
Pipes and Fittings DAY 500
(sUBTOTAL 1500
Working
TIME ADDED TO CONTRACT Days 15.00




ADDITIONAL SCOPE - 7TH AVE N

DR OAVID MANCINI
S SONS, INC.

2601 Wiles Rd Pompano Beach Florida 33073
PH: (954) 977-3556 FAX: (954) 944-2040

PROJECT #: PARK OF COMMERCE PHASE 1B
CONTRACTOR: David Mancini & Sons, Inc. (DMSI)
Date: 5/22/2020

Description: RE: Furnishing and installing 2-12x8 and 1-12x6 Water Main stub outs for the future, 1-12x2 Service Tap and meter box, 1- Fire Hydrant
assembly, 1-8" Sanitary sewer connection and clean out up to the R/O/W line, temporary restoration & As-Builts.
Location: 7TH Avenue N at 1939 7th Ave N

SUMMARY OF DIRECT COSTS
CONTRACT ITEMS I
ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL
W8 Furnish Utility Crew & Equipment (10 Hours per each 8X2 tap + stub out, 8 hour per tap HR 48.00 687.00 | $ 32.976.00
and FH Assy, 16 hour per sanitary sewer connection and 4 hours for 8x2 tap + service) : : o
SUBTOTAL 32,976.00
Water Utility to pay for the cost of the Fire Hydrant Assembly: Total Labor Cost FH Assy  (5,496.00)
MATERIAL COSTS I
SUBTOTAL MATERIAL (Breakdown attached) 14,712.00
TAX 7% 1,029.84
MATERIAL MARKUP (15%) PER GC 11.04.C 2,206.80
TOTAL MATERIAL 17,948.64
Water Utility to pay for the cost of tax, mark-up and material cost of Fire Hydrant assy (6,498.33)
|SUBCONTRACTORS |
DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT COST TOTAL
2INCH TAP EA 1 $ 300.00 | $ 300.00
6 INCH TAP EA $ 500.00 | $ 500.00
8 INCH TAP EA 2 $ 600.00 | $ 1,200.00
Survey & As-Built LS 1 $ 800.00 | $ 800.00
ADD MOT LS 1 $ 450.00 | $ 450.00
SUBTOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS 3,250.00
SUBCONTRACTORS MARKUP (10%) PER GC 11.04.C 325.00
TOTAL SUBCONTRACTORS . . 3,575.00
‘Water Utility to pay for the cost of 6-inch tap and mark up for tap (550.00)
TOTAL CONTRACT ITEMS + MATERIALS + SUBCONTRACTORS 54,499.64 I
TOTAL OF WATER UTILITIES COST FOR FH ASSY (12,544.33)
TOTAL DEVELOPER'S COST PER UTILITY AGREEMENT $41,955.31
SUMMARY OF TIME IMPACT (REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL TIME)

# Description Unit Qry
Procurement of Materials DAY 5.00
Scheduling Subcontractor DAY 2.00
Work DAY 6.00

SUBTOTAL 13.00

TIME ADDED TO CONTRACT Working Days 13.00



grhoads
Highlight

grhoads
Rectangle


BN DAVID MANCINI

& SONS, INC.

|MATERIAL COSTS
Material Description QTY Unit Unit Cost Total Cost
ITEM F-12: 12X6 TAPN SLV & VLV
12X6 H615 MJ TAP SLV BLK F/DI 1.00 EA S 2,300.00 | $ 2,300.00
6 F6114 MJ RW TAP VLV OL L/ACC 1.00 EA S 675.00 | $ 675.00
6 EBAA MEGALUG MJ DI 1106 RSTR F/DI PIPE BLACK 1.00 EA S 23.00|$ 23.00
6X1/8 FLG FF NEOPRENE GASKET 1.00 EA S 3.50 | $ 3.50
6 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND 1.00 EA S 13.00 | $ 13.00
461-S VALVE BOX IMPORT 1.00 EA S 92.00 | S 92.00
5-1/4 VLV BOX LID M/WATER 1.00 EA S 17.00 | $ 17.00
BRZ DISC F/6" VLV (VLV MARKER) 1.00 EA S 13.00 | $ 13.00
ROADWAY TRACER BOX BLUE WATER PART# RB14BTP 1.00 EA S 65.00 | $ 65.00
3 -
ITEM 73: 12X8 TAP ASSEMBLY S -
12X8 H615 MJ TAP SLV BLK F/DI 2.00 EA S 2,465.00 | S 4,930.00
8T2361-19 MJ RW TAP VLV OL ON 2.00 EA S 1,063.00 | $ 2,126.00
8X1/8 FLG FF NEOPRENE GASKET 2.00 EA S 6.00 S 12.00
8 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND 2.00 EA S 14.00 | $ 28.00
8 MJ PLUG C153 IMP 2.00 EA S 55.00 | $ 110.00
461-S VALVE BOX IMPORT 2.00 EA S 75.00 | S 150.00
5-1/4 VLV BOX LID M/WATER 2.00 EA S 20.00 | $ 40.00
BRZ DISC F/8" VLV (VLV MARKER) 2.00 EA S 15.00 | $ 30.00
ROADWAY TRACER BOX BLUE WATER PART# RB14BTP 2.00 EA S 65.00 | $ 130.00
ITEM 7-16: FH ASSEMBY GV & TEE
6 F6100 MJ RW GV OL ON L/ACC CLOW GATE VALVE EPOXY COATED W/STAINLESS STEEL BOLTS & NUTS - EA S 475.00 | $ -
6 EBAA MEGALUG C900&IPS 2006PV RED - EA S 28.00|$ -
6 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND - EA S 13.00 | $ -
461-S VALVE BOX IMPORT - EA S 92.00 | S -
5-1/4 VLV BOX LID M/WATER - EA S 17.00 | $ -
ROADWAY TRACER BOX BLUE WATER PART# RB14BTP - EA S 65.00 | $ -
BRZ DISC F/6" VLV (VLV MARKER) - EA S 13.00 | $ -
5-1/4V0 MED HYD 4'B 6MJ YELLOW 1.00 EA S 1,700.00 | $ 1,700.00
6 EBAA MEGALUG C900&IPS 2006PV RED 1.00 EA S 28.00 | $ 28.00
6 MJ REGULAR ACC SET L/GLAND 1.00 EA S 13.00 | $ 13.00
3/4 HOT DIP GALV ALL THRD ROD PV35797 12.00 FT S 275 (S 33.00
3/4 HOT DIPPED GALV FLAT WASHE 8.00 EA S 0.50 | $ 4.00
3/4 HEAVY HEX NUT HD GALV 8.00 EA S 0.50 | $ 4.00
2-W 1-C #DB BLUE REFLEC MARKER 1.00 EA S 3.00| S 3.00
6 TJ CL50 PR350 DI PIPE 20.00 FT S 17.00 | $ 340.00
ITEM 79: 2" SNGL WTR SRVC & BOX S -
404-1320-15CC 12X2CC SADDLE 1.00 EA S 138.00 | $ 138.00
FB1000-7NL 2 BALL CORP STOP CCXPJ CTS NO LEAD 1.00 EA S 243.00 | $ 243.00
#55 2 SS INSERT F/CTS PE 2.00 EA S 3.00| S 6.00
2X100' BLUE PE TUBING CTS 200 PSI 50.00 FT S 2.00($ 100.00
4 SCH40 PVC PIPE SWB 20' 20.00 FT S 2.00(S 40.00
COPPERHEAD 1245B-EHS-500 #12 100.00 FT S 0.25|$ 25.00
BFA43-777WNL 2" ANG BALL METER BALL METER VALVE PJCTSXMF LOW LEAD 1.00 EA S 329.00 | $ 329.00
66 METER BOX BODY ONLY 1.00 EA S 99.00 | $ 99.00
B36 LID 30-1/2X17-1/2 M/WATER 1.00 EA S 71.00 | S 71.00
3 -
CUT-IN 8X6" LATERAL S -
8 PVC SDR26 HW SWR PIPE (G) 14' 14.00 FT S 475| S 66.50
1002-88RC 8 CLAYXCI/PVC CPLG STRONGBACK 2.00 EA S 75.00 | S 150.00
8X6 HW SWR SDR26 T-WYE GXG 1.00 EA S 63.00|$ 63.00
6X14' SDR26 HW PVC SWR PIPE G 28.00 FT S 3.00 | S 84.00
3 -
CLEAN-OUT ASSEMBLIES S -
6 SDR35 CLEANOUT ADPT HXF L/PL 1.00 EA S 14.00 | $ 14.00
6 BRASS CO PLUG W/CNTR SUNK 1.00 EA S 18.00 | $ 18.00
7621 REV. HANDHOLE R&C M/SEWER 1.00 EA S 43.00 | S 43.00
3 -
COLD ASPHALT FOR TEMPORARY RESTORATION 4.00 TON S 85.00 | S 340.00
$ 14,712.00




[ S e el e e e S e e S e e e e R e e e SRR v s e

Price of Original Contract: $ 1,695,685.50 authorized by Commission on 12/12/19 Agenda
Item 9.C

Current Price of Contract (including Change Orders): $1,695,685.50

Price of Current Change Order: $48,196.80

New Contract Price: $1,743,882.30

Basis of Price Change: _X Unit Price X_Time & Material ___Lump Sum
Contract Time Change
___No Change _X_Extended Decreased by 83 work days

The CONTRACTOR and the OWNER agree that this CHANGE ORDER represents the complete
agreement of the parties with respect to these matters as of the date of this CHANGE ORDER. By
approving this Change Order, the CONTRACTOR releases any and all claims that it may have
against the OWNER under the subject contract including, but not limited to claims for equitable
adjustments, which occurred or accrued prior to the effective date of this CHANGE ORDER.

This Change Order may be executed in counterparts and is not effective until approved by

either the City Manager or City Commission (as designated on the last page of this Change
Order).

Fabio Angarita, David Mancini and Sons, Inc.

Reviewed and Accepted by:
= /{ (Contractor Name)
Project Manager 9/25/2020
Contractor Representative (Signature) Title Date

A ved by: - %f glielrs
j ?Z'kaﬂ ;‘Shg e S (Department Director)— 604'1‘€ e (Date)




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the OWNER/CITY has approved this Change Order No. 01 to the
Park of Commerce Phase 1B Project on October __,20__ .

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

ATTEST:
By: By:

Deborah M. Andrea, City Clerk Pam Triolo, Mayor
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: SUFFICIENCY
By: By:

Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney Bruce T. Miller, Financial Services Director




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2020-09 — Second Reading — Amend the Comprehensive Plan to include an
updated water supply plan and transmit the plan to the State of Florida for review

SUMMARY:

The ordinance amends policies in the infrastructure element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan,
adopts the 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan by reference and transmits the plan
to the State of Florida for review.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City of Lake Worth’'s Comprehensive Plan was last adopted October 20, 2009 (with
amendments approved October 17, 2017). Atthat time, a 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work
Plan was adopted to coordinate with South Florida Water Management District's (SFWMD)
Lower East Coast (LEC) Water Supply Plan. Work Plans are required to be updated every five
(5) years to coordinate with 5-year updates to the LEC. The purpose of this report is to update
the City’s 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan in order to keep the City current with overall
planning strategies and projection data. SFWMD updated the LEC Water Supply Plan, which
was adopted by the SFWMD governing board in November 2018. The City has 18 months from
the date of adoption of the LEC, or by May 2020, to revise their Comprehensive Plan to
incorporate the updated 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan. However, due to various
COVID-19 delays, the City is submitting this update now. Work Plan details are included in
Exhibit A, and recommended Comprehensive Plan updates are included in Exhibit B.

The Historic Resources Preservation Board at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 10, 2020
reviewed the amendments to the Comprehensive Plan and voted to recommend approval to the
City Commission.

On June 17, 2020, the Planning & Zoning Board at its regularly scheduled meeting discussed
the amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and voted to recommend approval to the City
Commission.

On July 7, 2020, the City Commission voted unanimously to transmit the proposed
Comprehensive Plan text amendment to the Department of Economic Opportunity for review
under the Expedited State Review Process.

On August 14, 2020, the Department of Economic Opportunity notified the City via letter that
the state review process had been completed. No comments or objections related to adverse
impacts to important state resources and facilities were identified.



MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2020-09 on second reading to amend the
Comprehensive Plan to include an updated water supply plan and transmit the plan to the State
of Florida for review.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — not applicable
P&ZB Staff Report

2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Plan
Comp Plan Amendment

Ordinance 2020-09



WATER UTILITIES DE PAR‘FF

301 College Street

C@ O'F Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460
Lake Worth 561-566-1712
'\ %—-f*”‘ﬁ Beach
MEMORANDUM DATE: June 3, 2020
AGENDA DATE: June 10, 2020 and June 17, 2020
TO: Chair and Members of the Historic Resources Preservation Board and

Planning and Zoning Board
RE: 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan

FROM: Brian Shields, Water Utilities Director
Julie Parham, Assistant Water Utilities Director

TITLE: PZB/HRPB 20-00400002: Consideration to recommend to the City
Commission totransmit tothe State of the Florida the City's 2020 10-Year
Water Supply Facilities Work Plan for review including the adoption of
related amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan was last adopted October 20, 2009, with an
amendment approved October 19, 2017. At that time, a 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan
(“Water Supply Plan”) was adopted to coordinate with South Florida Water Management District’s
(SFWMD) Lower East Coast (LEC) Water Supply Plan. The City’s Water Supply Plan is required to be
updated every five (5) years to coordinate with 5-year updates to the LEC.

Section 373.709, Florida Statutes, Section 163.3177(6)(c)3, Florida Statutes, further requires that the
Water Supply Plan be updated within 18 months after a water management district's governing board
approves an updated regional water supply plan to reflect applicable changes.

The SFWMD governing board adopted updates tothe LEC Water Supply Plan in November 2018. Pursuant
to the aforementioned statute, the City has to revise the overall planning strategiesand projection data
of its Comprehensive Plan by May 2020.

The attached 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan is presented at this time in order meet this
requirement. The amendments associated with the Goals, Objectives and Policies recommended for
adoption in the City’s Comprehensive Plan are provided in attachment B of this report.

The decision of the Boards will be a recommendation to the City Commission, which will subsequently
make the final decision to transmit the 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan to the State of
Florida for review including the adoption of related amendments to the Comprehensive Plan.



PZEFRPEY

10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan
Page |2

POTENTIAL MOTION:

| MOVE TO RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND PZB/HRPB PR No. 20-00400002 to the City Commission to
transmit tothe State of the Florida the 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan for review including
the adoption of related amendments to the Comprehensive Plan..

ATTACHMENTS:
A. 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan
B. Comprehensive Plan Amendment — Goals, Objectives and Policies

C. Ordinance 2020-09




CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

City of
Lake Worth

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
2020 10-YEAR WATER SUPPLY
FACILITIES WORK PLAN

prepared by

MOCKe® ROOS

CONSULTING ENGINEERS

Engineer’s Project No. B9019.00

MOCK+ROOS



City of Lake Worth Beach
2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work

Plan
Table of Contents
Page
Section 1 Introduction
1.1 Project BaCKGroUNQ............coeuiiiiririireineisiee e 1-1
1.2 Project PUrPOSE and SCOPE........cvuiueiiieieesee st 1-1
Section 2 Overview of Lake Worth Beach’s Existing Water Supply System
2.1 SEIVICE ATBA ...ttt bbbt bbb 2-1
2.2 SFWMD Water Use Permit...........cccocevieicueiicecesieeeeseeeve e 2-1
2.3 RAW WALBI SOUICES ...ttt 2-3
24 Water Treatment FACIlItIES ..........ceeeieirieeceee s 29
2.5 Water Storage FaClities........cccvieierieiicscseses e 2-10
2.6 Water Distribution System and Interconnects with Other
MUNICIPANIIES ...t 2-10
2.7 Domestic Self-Supply SYSIEMS ........ccvevvicrcsceeee s 2-11
2.8 Conservation Program ...........cccceieiereiense e ssssesnns 2-13
2.9 REUSE.....e s 2-14
210  Regional Water SUPPIY ISSUES ........covveviueiieeiieiee et 2-14
Section 3 Potable Water Needs Assessment
3.1 Population ProJECHONS .........coiiieiiicirsce e 3-1
3.2 Historical Potable Water Demands and Levels of Service...........cccoovviverinninnnnes 3-5
3.3 Water Demand Projections and Capacity Evaluation............cccccoceeevieiicinincnnns 3-6
Section 4 Capital Improvements Program
4.1 Capital Improvements Program (CIP) SUMMArY .........ccccoceiviveivererieeecie e 4-1
Section 5 Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives and Policies (GOP)
5.1 Comprehensive PIan GOP ... 51

MockeRoos



Table of Contents (Cont.)

Page
Appendices
Appendix A - City of Lake Worth Beach Bulk Water Service Contract
Appendix B - City of Lake Worth Beach Historical Water Flows
List of Tables
Table 2.1 Lake Worth Beach WUP Raw Water Withdrawal Limitations............ccccoeevvevrennnnsnnnnne. 2-1
Table 2.2 Lake Worth Beach Raw Water Wellfield............cooeverenrrereseeeeesee e 2-4
Table 2.3 Lake Worth Beach Potable Water Interconnects .............ccoeeveenienieneenesseseesene 2-11
Table 3.1 Lake Worth Beach Water Service Area Population Projections through 2040................... 3-3
Table 3.2 Lake Worth Beach Potable Water Levels of SErviCe ... 3-6
Table 3.3 Lake Worth Beach Water Demand ProjeCtions...........cccocrninienininnnssesssseeineineis 3-7
Table 4.1 Lake Worth Beach Water System Capital Improvement Program ...........cccocvvnncineninnes 4-2
List of Figures
Figure 2-1 Lake Worth Beach Water Supply SErviCe Ar€a.........ccouevieriernieieieessessessse e nnes 2-2
Figure 2-2 Lake Worth Beach Surficial Aquifer Wellfield ............ccoevenenicesceececcesceee e 2-5
Figure 2-3 Monitoring Well Chloride Data 1-Year Rolling AVerage...........cccooveeervenieeessiesseeseeens 2-6
Figure 2-4 Lake Worth Beach Floridan Aquifer Wellfield............ccoeviencneeescecceceeeeeeeeeee 2-8
Figure 2-5 Floridan Aquifer Wells 3-Month Average Chloride Concentrations..........ccccccvvevieiienennes 2-9
Figure 2-6 Lake Worth Beach Water Distribution System ..o 2-12
Figure 3-1 Lake Worth Beach Service Area and TAZ Map ........cccovevienicniiesseeeseees e 3-2
Figure 3-2 Lake Worth Beach Historical Water FIOWS ............ccccvviievniiencecce e 3-6

MockeRoos



SECTION 1

\ ity of
.\ Lake Worth

— iBeach‘"
% FLORIDA

Introduction




Section 1
Infroduction

1.1 Project Background

Adopted by the 1985 Florida Legislature, the “Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land
Development Regulation Act’ (reference Chapter 163, Part I, F.S., also known as Florida's “Growth
Management Act’) requires all of Florida's 67 counties and 410 municipalities to adopt Local Government
Comprehensive Plans that guide future growth and development. Comprehensive plans contain chapters or
"elements" that address future land use, housing, transportation, infrastructure, coastal management,
conservation, recreation and open space, intergovernmental coordination, and capital improvements. The
City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan was last adopted April 2018 (with amendments approved
April 2019).

Water Supply Facilites Work Plans are required to be developed by Local Governments in order to
identify specific water supply planning needs. The Work Plans are subsequently coordinated with the Local
Government's Comprehensive Plan amendments, and these work plans are required to be updated every
five (5) years to coordinate with 5-year updates to the South Florida Water Management District's
(SFWMD) Lower East Coast (LEC) Water Supply Plan.

1.2 Project Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this report is to serve as the City’s 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan in order to
keep the City current with overall planning strategies and projection data. The City’s Work Plan will be used
to coordinate with SFWMD and their recent update to the LEC Water Supply Plan which was adopted by
the SFWMD governing board on November 2018. The City has 18 months from the date of adoption of the
LEC, or by May 2020, to revise their Comprehensive Plan to incorporate the 10-Year Water Supply
Facilites Work Plan. Work Plan details are included in Sections 2 through 4 of this report and
recommended Comprehensive Plan updates are included in Section 5.

1-1 MockeRoos



SECTION 2

N City of
) Lake Worth

Overview of Lake Worth’s
Existing Water Supply System




Section 2

Existing Water Supply System

2.1 Service Area

The City of Lake Worth Beach is a coastal community located in central Palm Beach County, Florida. The
City’s water service area includes approximately 10 square miles of residential and commercial property,
and serves a population of approximately 38,261 within the City, and a population of approximately 11,118
outside of the municipal boundaries for a total population of approximately 49,379 (2018 basis).. There are
approximately 20,621 ERUs in the City’s service area, and the City current serves approximately 13,965
water accounts. The water service area includes areas in unincorporated Palm Beach County, and one (1)
large/bulk water area which serve Lake Clarke Shores/Hypoluxo Village (bulk water sales agreement) (refer
to Appendix A for a copy of the bulk water agreement).  The City’s water service area is shown in Figure
241,

2.2 SFWMD Water Use Permit

The City’s existing Water Use Permit No. 50-00234-W was issued by the South Florida Water Management
District (SFWMD) on October 29, 2012 and has a 20-year permit duration (through October 29, 2032). A
letter modification was issued December 15, 2016 with the same expiration date. The current permit
provides for an annual allocation of 4,106 million gallons per year (MGY) (which equates to an equivalent
annual average daily flow of 11.25 MGD) and a maximum monthly allocation of 356.5 million gallons. The
City’s raw water sources are the Surficial Aquifer System and the Floridan Aquifer System.

The following withdrawal limitations from specified sources are stipulated:

Table 2.1
Lake Worth Beach WUP Raw Water Withdrawal Limitations
Surficial Floridan
Criteria Aquifer System | Aquifer System
Annual Withdrawal, MG (equiv. MGD) 1,916 (5.25) 2,190 (6.0)
Maximum Monthly Withdrawal, MG (equiv. MGD) 180 (5.92) 206 (6.77)
Monthly Average Dry Season (Dec. thru May), MG (equiv. MGD) 152 (5.0) n/a
Monthly Average Wet Season (Jun. thru Nov.), MG (equiv. MGD) 168 (5.5) n/a
SAS Wells 1-15, Monthly Average Dry Season (Dec. thru May), 101 (3.3) n/a
MG (equiv. MGD)
SAS Wells 1-15 Monthly Average Wet Season (Jun. thru Nov.), 112 (3.68) n/a
MG (equiv. MGD)

Source: SFWMD WUP No. 50-00234-W issued October 29, 2012.

2-1

MockeRoos




Section 2

Existing Water Supply System

Figure 2-1
Lake Worth Beach Water Supply Service Area

—— —
———

g =)

Pis

10th Ave N

u

i

Lake Worth Rq

r

Lantana Rd

Legend

H 3 Municpal Boundary

Water Service Area
- Incorporated Lake Worth

- Unincorporated PBC

- Lake Clarke Shores/Hypoluxo Village

4

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community f ]

2-2 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

2.3 Raw Water Sources

The Surficial Aquifer and the Floridan Aquifer are the sources that are utilized by the City of Lake Worth
Beach for its raw water supply. The wells consist of casings that are 12-inch to 16-inch in diameter. The
raw water is withdrawn by either submersible turbine pumps (Surficial) or surface mounted horizontal split
case pumps (Floridan) that discharge through a raw water collection and transmission system.

Well descriptions and details are included in Table 2.2.

The total wellfield capacity is approximately 22 MGD but is limited to average annual and maximum
monthly withdrawal per the SFWMD water use permit described above in Section 2.2.

2.3.1 Surficial Aquifer Source

There are fourteen (14) Surficial Aquifer wells as shown in Figure 2-2. Ten (10) wells are active, and two
(2) wells are proposed. The Surficial Aquifer wells provide raw water to be treated at the City’s Lime
Softening Water Treatment Plant.

The Surficial Aquifer source is a renewable water resource, but must be managed to maintain the salt water
interface at a significant distance from the wellfield. The Water Use Permit discussed previously
recognized that a higher allocation was appropriate during the rainy season when Surficial Aquifer water
resources were more plentiful. In addition, capturing some of the rainy season rainfall can benefit aquifer
recharge. The City has implemented multiple approaches to achieve this goal including:

e Installing infiltration trench storm drains on many roadway projects,

e Installing or enlarging dry detention areas for City projects,

e Working with developers to provide dry detention for stormwater, and

e Working with other agencies to provide dry detention for stormwater.

The implementation of these strategies had resulted in increases in the seasonal ground water elevations
to the benefit of the Surficial Aquifer.

2.3.1.1 Salt Water Interference

The City monitors the salt water interface through a series of eight monitoring wells located along the length
of 5th Avenue South as well as other strategically located monitoring wells. Figure 2-3 is a plot of the
chloride levels from 2007 to 2020 for monitoring wells LW-2 and LW-4. Monitoring Well LW-2 is located at
Palmway and 5th Avenue South and is located vertically near the face of the salt water wedge. Monitoring
Well LW-4 is located at ‘M’ Street and 5th Avenue South and is located vertically near the bottom of the
fresh water interface with the salt water zone. A one-year rolling average is utilized to smooth out the data
points.

2-3 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

Table 2.2
Lake Worth Beach Raw Water Wellfield
Diameter | Depth Year Initial Capacity

Well No. Status (in.) (feet) Installed (gpm)
Surficial Aquifer Wells
LW-1 Active Primary 12 250 1980 1000
LW-3 Active Standby 14 250 2000 800
LW-4 Active 12 110 1944 750
LW-6 Active Primary 14 175 1988 800
LW-7 Active Primary 14 150 1986 1000
LW-8 Active Primary 14 138 1987 700
LW-9R Active Primary 12 258 2005 800
LW-11 Active Primary 14 102 1952 750
LW-12 Active Standby 14 160 2003 800
LW-14 Active 12 250 1974 800
LW-15R Active Primary 14 280 2010 800
LW-16 Active Primary 16 284 2014 800
LW-17 Proposed Primary 16 TBD TBD 800
LW-18 Proposed Primary 16 TBD TBD 800

Total Active + Proposed | 11,200 (16)
Capacity, gpm (MGD):

Total Active + Proposed Firm | 10,200 (14.7)
Capacity, gpm (MGD):

Floridan Aquifer Wells

F-1 Active 16 1520 2004 1500
F-2 Active 16 1484 2005 1500
F-3 Active 16 1490 2006 1500
F-4 Proposed (2020) 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-5 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-6 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-7 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-8 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-9 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
F-10 Proposed 16 1550 TBD 1500
Total Active Capacity, gpm | 4,500 (6.48)
(MGD):
Total Active Firm Capacity, gpm | 3,000 (4.32)
(MGD):
Total Active & Proposed Capacity, | 15,000 (21.6)
gpm (MGD):

Total Active & Proposed | 13,500 (19.4)
Firm Capacity, gpm (MGD):

2-4 MockeRoos



Section 2

Existing Water Supply System

Figure 2-2
Lake Worth Beach Surficial Aquifer Wellfield

b

3

7P

-

Source: SFWMD WUP No. 50-00234-W issued October 29, 2012. Wells LW-2, LW-5, LW-10 and LW-13 have

been abandoned.

MockeRoos

2-5



SectionSection 2
Potable Water Needs Assessment

2500

2450

2400

2350

2300

2250

2200

2150

2100

2050

2000

Chlorides
[ [
[{e] [(e]
o (S
o o

1850

1800

1750

1700

1650

1600

1550

1500

1450

1400

F:Alwu_\wu_wsfp\ENG-DES\CALC\Well Chloride and Water Table Data-2015 Update.xIsx Da.t

Figure 2-3: Monitoring Well Chloride Data -Year Rolling Average

- LW 2 Locatlon
LW-4 Location:

Palmway & 5th Avenue South

'M' Street & 5th Avenue South

LW-2 .

LW-4

Jul-07

Jul-08

Jan-08
Jan-09

Jul-09

Jan-10
Jul-10
Jan-11
Jul-11
Jan-12
Jul-12
Jan-13
Jul-13
Jan-14
Jul-14
Jan-15
Jul-15
Jan-16
Jul-16
Jan-17
Jul-17

(0]

Jan-18

Jul-18

Jan-19

Jul-19
Jan-20

2-6

MockeRoos




Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

After the RO plant started operation and demands on the surficial aquifer were reduced, the chloride
concentration in both of these monitoring wells trended down. Initially Monitoring Well LW-2 trended down
more sharply indicating that the salt water wedge was retreating oceanward.  Since 2014 the chloride
concentration in this well has been contained in a small range indicating that it is relatively stable.
Monitoring Well LW-4 trended lower more slowly until 2016 and then began a gradual rise. In 2019 the well
experienced a sharp drop in chlorides continuing to date. This drop in chlorides indicates that the surficial
aquifer water table elevation likely increased exerting more pressure to depress the salt water interface.
Overall the salt water interface has been retreating since 2012. This is a very positive indication that the
City is managing its surficial aquifer withdrawals in a responsible manner.

2.3.2 Floridian Aquifer Source

There are three (3) existing and seven (7) proposed Floridan Aquifer wells as shown in Figure 2-4. The
Floridan Aquifer wells provide brackish raw water to be treated at the City’s Reverse Osmosis (RO) Water
Treatment Plant.

The Floridan Aquifer wells were first placed in operation in 2011. Therefore, they have been in operation
for approximately nine years. In the operation of a Floridan Aquifer wellfield, it is critically important to
rotate operation and rest the wells. While some increase in chloride concentration is anticipated over the
life of the well, over pumping the wells can cause undesirable increases in the chloride concentration.

Figure 2-5 shows a plot of the three-month rolling average of the chloride concentration for all three wells

starting in 2011. The average starting chloride concentration was 2,025 mg/l while the current average
concentration is 2,106 mg/l. This represents a very minor 4-percent increase over the first nine years of
wellfield operation. This minor increase in chlorides is proof that the City is doing an excellent job operating
the Floridan Aquifer wellfield in an appropriate manor of resting and rotating the wells. Figure 2-4 even
demonstrates that Well F-3 had maintained a lower chloride concentration for the last four years than when
it initially started production.

For reference the RO plant was designed to treat an average raw water chloride concentration of 3,000
mg/l as a minimum. The variable speed membrane feed pumps adjust their speed and pressure to
accommodate an increasing chloride concentration. Based on other Floridan Aquifer well data in the
County, the Floridan waters in some wells can increase to 4,000 mg/l chloride while other wells remain at a
much lower concentration. Thus, an average blended concentration of 3,000 mg/l chlorides was utilized in
the RO WTP Design Assumptions. Based on the current chloride concentrations noted above, the City’s
Floridan Aquifer wells are substantially below these typical levels and appear that they will remain so for the
foreseeable future.

MockeRoos
2-7



SectionSection 2
Existing Water Supply System

Figure 2-4
Lake Worth Beach Floridan Aquifer Wellfield

:{7 ' ‘_ ﬂ Application A

¢ WELL Map Date: 2012-08-15
J Application Number: 101215-11 Permit Number: 50-00234-W
Kq Sec 28, 29 / Twp 44 / Rge 43

Project Name: LAKE WORTH UTILITIES

0 2,000 4,000
_:] Feet

Source: SFWMD WUP No. 50-00234-W issued October 29, 2012.

2-6 0C e 00



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

Figure 2-5
Floridan Aquifer Wells
3-Month Rolling Average Chloride Concentration

2600

2500 h A A
2400 “

2300 Al ho/\*0 A ! ‘
T N fia
/i:\‘ Li_h'lt e v | ,"

Chlorides, PPM

" Fu !&r ]2 \ .'V'._!l

\ |

A M\ L /A A

-
W\ B

1600

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Date
e Well -1 el Well F-2  =miem Well F-3

2.4 \Water Treatment Facilities

The City owns and operates the City of Lake Worth Beach Water Treatment Plant (WTP) which provides
potable water to the City’s water service area. The plant includes two (2) treatment processes: a lime
softening treatment plant which utilizes raw water from the Surficial Aquifer, and a Reverse Osmosis (RO)
treatment plant which utilizes raw water from the Floridan Aquifer.

The lime softening WTP provides 12.9 MGD capacity, and includes lime softening, filtration, chemical
addition and disinfection treatment processes. The lime softening facility consists of a rapid-mix chamber,
two (2) horizontal flocculation and sedimentation basins (settling basins), and six (6) multimedia gravity
filters. Each gravity filter has a capacity of 3.0 MGD, but is operated at a capacity of 2.5 MGD, yielding a
total capacity of 15 MGD. Consequently, the overall capacity of the water treatment facilities is limited only
by the 12.9 MGD capacity of the lime softening unit process.

The RO WTP was constructed in 2011 and provides 4.5 MGD total capacity, with three (3) membrane
trains each rated at 1.5 MGD. The RO WTP is designed to be expanded in the future for a total capacity of
9.0 MGD, with six (6) membrane trains at 1.5 MGD each. Each membrane train is expandable by 15%
capacity by the addition of 6 pressure vessels on the top row of the membrane train frame.

2-9 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

The RO WTP includes cartridge filtration, membrane feed pumps, chemical addition (acid, scale inhibitor
and caustic), degasification/odor control, and disinfection treatment processes. RO concentrate is
disposed through a deep injection well. The RO WTP is designed for a recovery rate of 75%.

A raw water bypass blend line and pipeline connection has been provided to allow 5 to 10 percent of the
Floridan raw feed water to be blended with the permeate water stream. The purpose of this blend water
stream is to add Hardness back to the permeate water flow.

The finished water from the two treatment processes is blended together prior to distribution.
2.5 Water Storage Facilities

The City’s water storage facilities include a 1.8 MG clearwell (used for disinfection contact time), a 1.0 MG
clearwell, a 1.5 MG ground storage tank and a 0.3 MG elevated storage tank at the water treatment facility.
Total water storage volume at the water treatment plant site (not including the 1.8 MG clearwell) is 2.8 MG.

The City’s water storage facilities also include several off-site facilities, including a 0.3 MG elevated storage
tank at 22" Avenue N and N “D” Street, a 0.5 MG ground storage tank at the South Booster Station, and a
0.5 MG ground storage tank at the North Booster Station. Total water storage volume at the offsite facilities
is 1.3 MG.

The water storage facilities are shown on Figure 2-6. The City’s total water storage volume for the plant
and for the offsite facilities combined is 5.9 MG and provides sufficient capacity to meet peak hourly and
fire flow demands, and to provide adequate contract time for disinfection prior to distribution.

2.6 Water Distribution System and Interconnects with Other
Municipalities

The water distribution system consists of a piping network made up of transmission mains sized 12-inch to
36-inch in diameter, and distribution mains sized 2-inch to 10-inch in diameter. The majority of the
distribution piping is 6-inch diameter and smaller.  Most of the 2-inch lines are galvanized steel. The 4-
inch through 36-inch lines are a combination of cast iron, PVC and ductile iron.

The water distribution system is supplied by five (5) high service water distribution pumps. Two (2) of the
pumps (#1 and #2) are rated for 5,000 gpm (300 Hp), one (1) pump (#5) is rated for 3,900 gpm (250 Hp)
and two (2) of the pumps (#3 and #4) are rated for 2,500 gpm (150 Hp) at a design system operating
pressure of 72 psi. This provides a total pumping capacity of 18,900 gpm, and a total firm pumping
capacity of 13,900 gpm with the largest unit as stand by.

The water distribution system includes two (2) booster pumping stations: the North Booster Station and the
South Booster Station. The North Booster Station includes two (2) 1,500 gpm pumps, and the South
Booster Station has two (2) 1,125 gpm pumps, for a total pumping capacity of 5,250 gpm, and a total firm
pumping capacity of 2,625 gpm.

2-10 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

Five (5) interconnects exist between the City of Lake Worth Beach and neighboring water suppliers, which
are listed in Table 2.3 as follows:

Table 2.3
Lake Worth Beach Potable Water Interconnects
Interconnecting Interconnect
Municipality Type Interconnect Location Size

Palm Beach County Emergency | 6t Avenue South and Congress 10-inch
Avenue

Palm Beach County Emergency | Lake Worth Road and Congress 8-inch
Avenue

West Palm Beach Emergency | West Palm Beach Canal / C-51 16-inch
and Gregory Road

Lantana Emergency Ridge Road 6-inch

Lantana Emergency | Dixie Highway B-inch

These interconnects can be used to maintain water supply within the City during emergency conditions, or
to provide emergency water to the neighboring utility from the City of Lake Worth Beach. Currently, one of
the interconnects with the Town of Lantana (on Dixie Highway) is disconnected.

The City’s water distribution system and interconnects are shown in Figure 2-6.

2.7 Domestic Self-Supply Systems

Domestic self-supply systems are private water wells used by customers for their own domestic water
supply source. These private systems are regulated by the Palm Beach County Environmental Control
Rule Il (ECR 1), which is implemented and enforced through the Palm Beach County Health Department.
The ECR Il requires private water systems to connect to an approved community water system if there is
an available water main within 100 feet in a public right-of-way (ROW) or easement abutting the property
on which the building(s) are located.

There are a few, isolated individual homes within the City of Lake Worth Beach’s service area that use
private wells for water supply. Currently, the City does not require connection to the City’s water system but
encourages connection on a voluntary basis. Due to the few numbers of these private systems, connection
of these systems will not affect or impact the City’s projected water supply needs.

2-11 MockeRoos



Section 2

Existing Water Supply System

Figure 2-6
Lake Worth Beach Water Distribution System

WPB 16"

North Repump,

Station Lo 110
al==
;__- == EE
p==Ti 5
Z = = 1 | "
10th Ave N %j___ E i
N =
il |
= B mi L
PBC 8" T’_E
Lake Worth Rq * —. Ly I 1-I , ni
] AT
PBC 10[' ] F 5 1
6th Ave S Fﬁ
° r l.I | Lake Worth
; - L Lagoon
g
5 i |
s
o _ Lake Osborne
%]
NI
i U
gz:,’zg;ﬁ South R'epump =
Airport Station L .r
Lantana 6" antars
Lantana Rd
‘ Legend
- Potable Water Lines

@ Emergency Interconnect

Repump Station

NI

community

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user.

2-12

MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

2.8 Conservation Program
The City of Lake Worth Beach Implemented a Water Conservation Program which includes the following:
¢ lrrigation Ordinance

The City of Lake Worth Beach Implemented year-round landscape irrigation conservation measures in
times of water shortage. The City adopted Florida Adminstration Code 40E which describes water use
restriction during different levels of water shortage. During times of water shortage, the City allows
irrigation for three days per week. Irrigation during these times are prohibited during the hours from
10:00 am to 4:00pm.

The City allows year-round watering seven (7) days a week if the home owner uses low volume
irrigation, micro-irrigation, low-volume hand watering methods, and rain barrels, cisterns, or other
similar rain-harvesting devices.

The City is currently reviewing their irrigation ordinance and comparing it with the model ordinances in
the SFWMD Local Government Model Ordinances and Codes webpage. The goal is to update their
irrigation ordinance with the appropriate new provisions.

¢ Landscape Regulations

The City’s Ordinance Section 23.6 “Landscaping Regulations” focuses on the conservation of potable
and non-potable water by setting landscape design standards to promote planting of native species,
using shade trees, limiting lawn grass, and designing yard to retain storm runoff.

¢ Public Education Programs

The City promotes water conservation though handouts which are distributed at Board Meeting,
Commission Meetings, Public Meetings, and with Utility bills. The handouts contain AWWA and
SFWMD information which educates the public on the benefits of conserving water, water
conservation tips and how to check and replace leaky faucets, shower heads, toilets and irrigation
systems. The City also supports the “Florida-Friendly Landscaping” Program.

¢ Ultra-Low Volume Plumbing Fixture Ordinance

The City previously adopted the Standard Plumbing Code (1997 ed.) that requires the use of ultra-low
volume plumbing fixtures.

¢ Water Conservation Rate Structure

The City previously adopted a Water Conservation Rate Structure. The rate structure establishes
block rates based on volume of water usage, with increasing rates at higher usage.

2-13 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

¢ Leak Detection Program

The City has taken a number of steps to reduce unaccounted-for water losses. A meter replacement
program has been in place to improve metered flow accuracy to large users. The City is currently
replacing 2-inch galvanized water mains that are 50 years plus old with a 6-year phased program that
began in 2015. This program is showing benefits since the 2019 unaccounted for water has been
reduced to 6.24%.

¢ Rain Sensor Device Ordinance

The City has adopted a Rain Sensor Device Ordinance. The Ordinance will require that customers
install rain sensors on new irrigation systems. The sensors detect when it is raining and automatically
turn the irrigation system off.

¢ Automatic Meter Infrastructure

The City has implemented an Automatic Meter Infrastructure (AMI) and is accumulating data for future
analysis.

2.9 Reuse

The City of Lake Worth Beach’s wastewater treatment is provided by the East Central Regional Water
Reclamation Facility (ECRWRF) located in West Palm Beach, Florida. The City’s wastewater is conveyed
to the ECRWRF through Lake Worth Beach’s and Palm Beach County’s wastewater collection and
transmission systems. The ECRWRF is approximately 10-miles northwest of Lake Worth Beach. The
ECRWRF has implemented a reuse water program that primarily provides reuse water to FPL under
separate contract with PBC. There are no facilities in the vicinity of Lake Worth Beach that provide reuse
water from the ERCWRF. Currently, reuse water is not an alternative water supply that is available to the
City of Lake Worth Beach from the ERCWRF or any other water reclamation facility.

2.10 Regional Water Supply Issues

The City of Lake Worth Beach shares common goals with the Lower East Coast (LEC) Region, such as
decreasing the regions dependency on the Surficial Aquifer, lowering per capita water use, increasing
conservation and continuing reclaimed water efforts.

The City constructed a Reverse Osmosis (RO) Treatment Process at their Water Treatment Plant to take in
brackish water from the Floridan Aquifer. Currently the RO Treatment Process consists of three treatment
trains rated at 1.5 MGD each for a total of 4.5 MGD. The RO Treatment Process is designed to be
expandable to over 9.0 MGD. Treating water from the Floridan Aquifer reduces the regional dependency on
the Surficial Aquifer. Currently, the City has three (3) Floridan Aquifer wells and plans to add an additional
seven (7) Floridan wells to increase withdrawal from the Floridan Aquifer and decrease withdrawal from the
Surficial Aquifer.

2-14 MockeRoos



Section 2
Existing Water Supply System

The City has implemented an extensive CIP and R&R program which included $32 million dollars’ worth of
water system improvements between 2014 and 2020. Projects included water main replacement, Water
Treatment Plant maintenance, high service pump maintenance, well replacement, and storage tank
rehabilitation. These projects increased overall water system efficiency and reduced water loss from the
City’s water main system.

In order to continually achieve lower per capita water use, the City created a strong conservation program
which includes strict irrigation hours, ultra-low volume plumbing fixtures, block rate structure (to decrease
demand), leak detection programs, rain sensor devices with automatic irrigation shut-off, and a public
education program.

The East Central Regional Water Reclamation Facility (ECRWREF) treats wastewater from the City of Lake
Worth Beach, the City of West Palm Beach, Palm Beach County and the Town of Palm Beach. A portion of
the ECRWRF’s wastewater is converted to reclaimed water which is used by Florida Power and Light for
cooling water for their power plant located on SR 80. Lake Worth Beach participates in this regional group
to promote the use of reclaimed water as an alternative water supply source.

2-15 MockeRoos



SECTION 3

™ .\ Lake Worth

\—~=,! Beach-
\% FLORIDA

Potable Water
Needs Assessment




Section 3
Potable Water Needs Assessment

3.1 Population Projections

Each year, the Bureau of Economic and Business Research (BEBR) at the University of Florida prepares
the official population projections, in five-year intervals, for each Florida County. Since BEBR issues only a
single countywide figure for each county, the Planning Division of the Palm Beach County (PBC) Planning
Department annually allocates these figures to smaller geographies for localized planning efforts.

PBC prepares the Population Allocation Model every other year as a tool for long-range service delivery
planning in Palm Beach County. Ch. 163.3177(1)(f)3, F.S., requires that each comprehensive plan be
based upon population projections published by the Office of Economic and Demographic Research
(OEDR) or generated by the local government based upon professionally acceptable methodology. The
OEDR publishes the projections prepared by BEBR. PBC utilizes the OEDR/BEBR medium range
projections for the County’s Population Allocation Model.

The population projections developed for the City of Lake Worth Beach are based on the PBC Planning
Departments’ 2019 Population Allocation Model. The projected population for the City of Lake Worth
Beach water service area was estimated by overlaying a map of Lake Worth Beach’s service area onto
PBC’s GIS base map containing population segregated into Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ) (refer to Figure
3-1). Population projections for the City were developed by assessing a percentage of service area located
within each TAZ and summing the population projections of the individual TAZs within the overall service
area. A summary of the final population projections is included in Table 3.1.

3-1 MockeRoos



Section 3

Potable Water Needs Assessment

Figure

3-1

Lake Worth Beach Water Service Area and TAZ Map

[r————— o]
s 1347, 374 381
g2 314
1351
I3A+ 1349
313
10th Ave N / 315 375 1352
319 1759 L
1317,
316 1350 r
317 928 929
I 376 382
- 131
Lake W#_ljtb Rd /1321 1319 =
Lo e ;g | ]
2
Y 365 1346 | 311 | X 383
2l Q 378
/_ 6th Ave a
[
by La
. 366 &
2 369 372 \ 379 384
)
Lake Osborne
380
373 1353
368
367
Palm Beach
County Park
Airport
Lantana Rd
406
1359 | 409
407
Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS us/er
community ' I
-2 MockeRoos



SectioSection 3n
Potable Water Needs Assessmend

Table 3-1

Lake Worth Beach Water Service Area

Population Projections through 2040

% of TAZ Percent
TAZ Pooulation in 2018 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Growth
2018-2040
Incorporated Lake Worth Beach
312 30% 262 266 266 269 271 279 6%
313 100% 181 194 194 194 316 370 104%
314 100% 2,809 2,904 3,286 3,584 3,694 3,760 34%
315 100% 946 946 948 948 956 977 3%
316 100% 5 5 5 5 255 262 5140%
317 100% 499 697 1,091 1,326 1,361 1,384 177%
368 30% 582 592 598 623 636 647 11%
369 95% 1,276 1,307 1,379 1,401 1,417 1,443 13%
370 90% 532 544 550 584 620 639 20%
371 100% 2,705 2,718 2,743 2,832 2,860 2,910 8%
372 100% 3,475 3,544 3,599 3,621 3,644 3,719 7%
373 100% 2,532 2,587 2,644 2,734 2,760 2,811 11%
374 100% 605 615 624 637 645 659 9%
375 100% 741 741 750 783 794 809 9%
376 100% 1,331 1,360 1,420 1,499 1,700 1,758 32%
377 100% 400 401 406 445 535 649 62%
378 100% 1,734 1,774 1,797 1,813 1,832 1,872 8%
379 100% 2,314 2,365 2,419 2,500 2,525 2,570 11%
380 100% 727 740 741 741 745 761 5%
381 100% 629 644 652 668 676 690 10%
382 100% 740 752 762 803 815 831 12%
383 100% 1,112 1,137 1,152 1,160 1,172 1,194 7%
384 100% 265 277 308 326 330 338 28%
928 100% 1,268 1,272 1,677 2,036 2,087 2,126 68%
929 100% 3,571 3,588 3,634 3,738 3,764 3,830 7%
1317 100% 440 444 449 459 465 475 8%
1318 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
1319 80% 10 10 10 10 10 10 8%
1320 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
1321 30% 359 362 363 368 374 383 7%
1346 100% 40 42 46 a7 47 49 23%
1347 100% 341 347 351 358 362 370 9%
1348 100% 359 371 375 384 454 541 51%
1349 100% 1069 1082 1096 1133 1145 1170 9%
1350 100% 1539 1573 1657 1735 1756 1794 17%
1351 100% 730 738 757 769 778 794 9%
1352 100% 652 666 675 693 702 718 10%
1353 100% 601 609 617 657 666 680 13%
1575 100% 881 895 907 945 1006 1040 18%
Total 38,261 39,108 40,948 42,829 44,176 45,312 18%
3-3 MockeRoos




Section 33
Potable Water Needs Assessment

Table 3-1
Lake Worth Beach Water Service Area
Population Projections through 2040

% of TAZ Percent
TAZ Population in 2018 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 Growth
Service Area 2018-2040
Unincorporated Palm Beach County
319 100% 542 563 572 607 625 642 18%
364-PBSC 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
365-Park 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
366-Park 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
367-Airport 100% 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%
368 60% 1,163 1,184 1,196 1,246 1,271 1,293 11%
369 5% 67 69 73 74 75 76 13%
370 10% 59 60 61 65 69 71 20%
406 100% 757 806 887 914 929 952 26%
407 100% 1,220 1,278 1,292 1,316 1,329 1,343 10%
408 100% 3,357 3,487 3,583 3,609 3,626 3,648 9%
410 30% 539 541 542 544 624 641 19%
1319 20% 2 2 2 3 3 3 8%
1321 70% 837 844 846 858 872 894 7%
1759 100% 1122 1166 1174 1176 1177 1187 6%
Total 9,666 10,000 10,228 10,411 10,599 10,750 11%
Lake Clarke Shores/Hypoluxo Village
409 100% 594 626 632 647 659 676 14%
1359 100% 858 913 940 969 982 1006 17%
Total 1,452 1,539 1,572 1,616 1,641 1,682 16%
Total 49,379 50,647 52,748 54,856 56,416 57,744 0
Source: PBC Planning Department 2019 Population Allocation Model
34 MockeRoos




Section 3
Potable Water Needs Assessment

3.2 Historical Potable Water Demands and Levels of Service

Data from 2012 through 2019 was evaluated to establish recent historical potable water demands for the
City of Lake Worth Beach. Consumption data records from the City’s billing accounts, as well as raw and
finished water flow data from the City’s water treatment plant operation records were reviewed and
summarized.

Lake Worth Beach’s historical raw, finished and billed/consumed water flows are shown in Figure 3-2. A
complete summary of the City’s historical water data is provided in Appendix B.

Figure 3-2
Lake Worth Beach Historical Water Flows
[ 7.0 A
6.0
5.0
(]
(D 4.0
=
2
0O 30
L
2.0
1.0
0.0
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
e Total Raw Water s Total Finished Water ~ esss»Treatment Losses
L s N ater Imported Total Water to System esss»\Nater Billed/ Consumed y

3-5 MockeRoos



Section 3
Potable Water Needs Assessment

Based upon the historical demand evaluation, Table 3.2 shows the Levels of Service that are established
for the City:
Table 3.2

Lake Worth Beach Potable Water Levels of Service

Service Item Value
Average Per Capita Finished Water 105 gal/capita/day
Demand
Average Person per Household? 2.65
Max. Month: Average Day Demand 1.16
Factor
Max. Day: Average Day Demand Factor 1.5
Peak Hour: Max Day Demand Factor? 2.0
Minimum Water Distribution System 30 psi
Pressure at Peak / Fire Flow
Conditions?
Minimum Fire Flow Requirements? 1,000 gpm Residential
2,000 gpm Multi-Family,
Commercial, and Industrial

(1) Source: U.S. Census 2010 data.
(2) Source: Lake Worth Beach Water Distribution System Hydraulic Model, by Mock Roos

3.3 Water Demand Projections and Capacity Evaluation

The population projections established under Section 3.1 were coupled with the projected Levels of
Service established under Section 3.2 to develop water demand projections for the City. The water
demand projections are provided in Table 3.3.

Based on the projections, in the next 10 years, the City is anticipated to have a total finished water demand
(average day) of 5.8 MGD and a maximum day demand of 8.7 MGD in the Year 2030. The water treatment
plant currently has a permitted capacity of 17.4 MGD, which provides for sufficient capacity to meet the
City’s water demand needs over the next 10-year planning period.

However, the plant capacity is limited by the volume of raw water which is permitted to be withdrawn by the
South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) through the City's Water Use Permit (WUP). The
current WUP allows for withdrawal of 4,106 million gallons per year, which is equivalent to an average daily
withdrawal of 11.25 MGD, with a maximum monthly allocation of 356.5 million gallons (equivalent to 11.72
MGD maximum month average daily flow). The projected raw water needs in 2030 are 6.8 MGD average
daily flow, and 10.2 MGD maximum month average daily flow. Based on the projections, the current permit
is sufficient to meet the 10-year water supply needs of the City (through Year 2030).

Based on the projections, raw water capacity of the current WUP will meet the water supply needs of the
City for the 20-year duration of the permit (through the Year 2032) and beyond.

3-6 MockeRoos



Section 3

Potable Water Needs Assessment

Service Area Population Water Demand
Permitted
Incorp. [ Unincorp. Lake Average Aygrage Average | Gallons | Projected Water Ce\llg)/;:;ty Ce\llg)/;:;ty Permi.tted Wellfigld
Year Lake Palm Clarke Raw Finished Congumed per M.aX' Day Treatment| Surplus/ | Surplus/ Wellflgld Allocation,
wierin | Begen | ohees | TEED s | o B DBITEG ) SRteiE, | HARISIEE | oo ettt || et |ty | Sl
Beach County Hypoluxo MGD Waterl, Waterz, per Da)3/, Watez, MGD ADDF MDF AADI: (Deficit),
Village MGD MGD GPCD MGD MGD MGD MGD AADF
MGD
2015 36,617 10,206 1,481 48,304 5.4 4.6 4.2 86.1 17.4
2016 37,165 10,026 1,471 48,662 6.4 5.3 4.5 92.3 17.4
2017 37,713 9,846 1,462 49,021 6.5 5.1 4.6 93.2 17.4
2018 38,261 9,666 1,452 49,379 6.30 5.2 4.9 99.2 17.4
2019 38,685 9,833 1,496 50,013 6.54 5.3 45 90.8 17.4
2020 39,108 10,000 1,539 50,647 6.67 5.6 53 105.0 8.5 17.4 10.73 7.63 11.25 4.58
2025 40,948 10,228 1,572 52,748 6.95 5.9 5.5 105.0 8.8 17.4 10.45 7.23 11.25 4.30
2030 42,829 10,411 1,616 54,856 7.22 6.1 5.8 105.0 9.2 17.4 10.18 6.82 11.25 4.03
2035 44,176 10,599 1,641 56,416 7.43 6.3 5.9 105.0 9.4 17.4 9.97 6.52 11.25 3.82
2040 45,312 10,750 1,682 57,744 7.60 6.4 6.1 105.0 9.7 17.4 9.80 6.26 11.25 3.65
Legend and Notes:
I:I = Historical Data
I:I = Projected Data
AADF = Annual Average Design Flow
MDF = Maximum Day Flow
(1) Average Treatment Plant Water Loss = 15.38%
(2) Average Distribution System Water Loss = 6.36%
(3) Comprehensive Plan Level of Service Standard of 105 GPCD used for future projections.
(4) Maximum Day/Average Day Demand = 1.5
(5) Wellfield capacity based on SFWMD WUP AADF withdrawal allocation for Surficial + Floridan Aquifer
systems.
3-7 MockeRoos



Section 3
Potable Water Needs Assessment

Regarding the City’s water distribution system, a “Water Distribution System Hydraulic Model” was
developed by the City's Engineering Consultant, Mock<Roos, in December 2005, with an update provided
in April 2013. The hydraulic model evaluated the City's water distribution system under future water
demand and fire flow conditions. Deficiencies noted in the evaluation were developed into a water system
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) (refer to Section 4).

The Hydraulic Model utilized the following assumptions for future flow conditions:

e Average Water Demand (existing) = 7.1 MGD

e Future Average Water Demand = 8.52 MGD (current demand x 1.2 peak factor)

e Future Maximum Day Demand = 12.78 MGD (future average demand x 1.5 peak factor)

e Future Peak Hour Demand = 25.56 MGD (future maximum day demand x 2.0 peak factor)

When compared to the water demand projections presented above, the assumptions utilized in the City’s
Hydraulic Model exceed the projected 10-year Average Day Demand of 5.8 MGD and Maximum Day
Demand of 8.7 MGD. Therefore, with implementation of the recommended CIP projects, the distribution
system has adequate capacity to serve the City’s 10-year water supply needs.

Regarding the City’s water distribution high service pumps and booster pump stations, it was previously
noted in Section 2.6 that the City has a firm pumping capacity of 13,900 gpm. The 10-year water demand
projections estimate a Maximum Daily Flow of 8.7 MGD in 2030, with a Peak Hour Flow of 17.4 MGD
(12,083 gpm). Since the firm pumping capacity of 13,900 gpm exceeds the projected peak hour demand of
12,083 gpm, the water distribution high service pumps and booster pump stations have adequate capacity
to serve the City’s 10-year peak hour water demands.

3-8 MockeRoos



SECTION 4

\ City of
A Lake Worth

Capital Improvements
Program




Section 4
Capital Improvement Program

4.1 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) Summary

The City of Lake Worth Beach Water Utility Department creates a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to
outline the necessary capital improvement and renewal & replacement upgrades that are required for the
water distribution system and Water Treatment Plant. The City’s 5-Year CIP is listed in Table 4.1 and
consists of $19M of water system improvements between 2021 and 2025.

The City is continuing an extensive water main replacement program which includes replacing 2-inch lines
and upgrading pipes to provide improved fire protection. The Water Treatment Plant is scheduled to
replace one (1) High Service Pump and rehabilitate the ground storage tanks. The City also plans to
complete construction of well LW-17, LW-18, F-4, and F-5.

4-1 MockeRoos



Section 4

Capital Improvement Program

Table 4.1

Lake Worth Beach Water System
5-Year Capital Improvement Program

Lake Worth Beach Water System CIP

Description Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed Total

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025
Water Distribution System Projects
Lake Bass Canal WM Reloc. $ 450,000 $ 450,000
6th Ave. So. Bridge WM Adjust $ 250,000 $ 250,000
é(f)itrrl]alAt\;e.Cgﬁé:/(\els’! i\)jteénsmn Westol $ 725,000 $ 725,000
AC/Transite WM Replacement $ 100,000 $ 100,000
EOC Complex/Fleet Maint. Bldg $ 1,000,000 | $ 1,000,000 | $ 2,000,000
2" WM Replacement - Phase V/VI $ 4,000,000 $ 4,000,000
Floral Park/Lanair WM Expansion $ 900,000 | $ 750,000 $ 1,650,000
Subtotal Water Distribution System $ 4,000,000 | $ 1,525,000 [ $ 900,000 | $ 1,750,000 | $ 1,000,000 | $ 9,175,000
Water Treatment Projects
RO Membrane Replacement $ 250,000 | $ 250,000 [ $ 250,000 |$ 250,000 | $ 1,000,000
Scrubber/Degas Packing Replacement $ 250,000 $ 250,000
WTP Roof Evaluation/Redo $ 90,000 $ 90,000
WTP Structural Enhancements/Hardening $ 575,000 $ 575,000
Clearwell Structural Imp., etc. $ 175,000 $ 175,000
Wash Water Recovery Basin $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000
S Booster Station Upgrades $ 600,000 $ 600,000
East Clearwell Roof Coating $ 425,000 $ 425,000
HS Pump #5 Replacement $ 500,000 $ 500,000
MIT Deep Injection Well $ 150,000 $ 150,000
Surficial Well Rehab $ 140,000 [ $ 140,000 [ $ 140,000 [ $ 140,000 [ $ 140,000 | $ 700,000
Well No. 17 Construction $ 60,000 | $ 662,000 $ 722,000
Flash Mixer Struct. Mod $ 500,000 $ 500,000
Well No. 18 Construction $ 60,000 [ $ 662,000 $ 722,000
Dual Zone Monitoring Well $ 1,000,000 $ 1,000,000
Floridan Aquifer Well F-4 Construction $ 80,000 | $ 1,500,000 $ 1,580,000
Floridan Aquifer Well F-5 Construction $ 80,000 | $ 1,500,000 $ 1,580,000
Radio Upgrade Project Phase 1 & 2 $ 50,000 [ $ 200,000 $ 250,000
Water Treatment Projects Subtotal $ 615,000 | $ 3,412,000 | $ 4,882,000 | $ 2,890,000 | $ 390,000 ( $ 12,189,000
Grand Total $ 4,615,000 | $ 4,937,000 [ $ 5,782,000 | $ 4,640,000 | $ 1,390,000 | $ 21,364,000

4-2 MockeRoos




SECTION 5

\ City of
.\ Lake Worth

\—~=>! Beach"
Jé FLORIDA

Comprehensive Plan Goals,
Objectives and Polices (GOP)




Section 5
Comprehensive Plan Goals, Objectives

and Policies (GOP)

5.1 Comprehensive Plan GOP

As noted in 163.3177(6)(c)3, F.S., local governments are required to update their Water Supply Facilities
Work Plan through an amendment to their Comprehensive Plan within 18 months of the SFWMD
Governing Board’s adoption of the regional Water Supply Plan.

The most recent update to the LEC Water Supply Plan was adopted by the SFWMD governing board in
November 2018. Therefore, by May 2020, the City is required to revise their Comprehensive Plan to
incorporate the updated 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan.

The City's Goals, Objectives and Policies should be amended as follows in the City’s 2020
Comprehensive Plan amendments:

INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT

Policy 4.1.1.3: The City will continue to provide annual review of system demand and supply, and to update
facility demand and capacity information based on issuance of development permits. The City will also
prepare and include considerations of being a regional provider that may sell water in the future.

Policy 4.1.7.3: The City will maintain a water supply facilities work plan that is coordinated with SFWMD’s
2018 Lower East Coast Regional Water Supply Plan and Palm Beach County by updating its own work
plan within 18 months of an update to SFWMD’s 2018 Lower East Coast Regional Water Supply Plan.
Policy 4.1.7.4: By March 2027, the City shall coordinate with SFWMD and update the City’s 10-year water
supply facilities work plan considering the Lower East Coast (LEC) Regional Water Supply Plan. The City
hereby adopts by reference the “City of Lake Worth 2020 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan.” The
City shall send a letter to SFWMD which identifies projects for future water supply needs of the City.
Projects must be selected from the LEC Regional Water Supply Plan or must be prior approved by
SFWMD.

5-1 MockeRoos



APPENDIX A

City of Lake Worth Beach
Bulk Water Service Contract

Appendix A



C-294-H
2/15/11 RM
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT Con-D
BETWEEN THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND
THE TOWN OF LAKE CLARKE SHORES FOR THE
PURCHASE AND SALE OF BULK POTABLE WATER

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this A3~ day of
Fibmﬁg:‘_, 2011, by and between THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH, FLORIDA, a
municipality organized under the laws of the State of Florida (hereinafter “CITY”), and
the TOWN OF LAKE CLARKE SHORES, FLORIDA, a municipality organized under
the laws of the State of Florida (hereinafter “TOWN”).

WHEREAS, Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, known as the "Florida
Interlocal Cooperation Act of 1969" authorizes local governments to make the most
efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a
basis of mutual advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities that will
harmonize geographic, economic, population and other factors influencing the needs
and development of local communities; and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto have the common power to provide
essential public utility services within their respective geographic jurisdictions; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN entered into an Interlocal Agreement with the
CITY on October 13, 1993, for the CITY to provide bulk water sales to the Seminole
Manor service area; and

WHEREAS, in October 2002 the TOWN paid for an additional 82
equivalent residential units to serve the Hypoluxo Village Service Area; and

WHEREAS, this previous Interlocal Agreement expired on October 13,
2008; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN owns and operates a Community Public Water
System to serve residents living within the Seminole Manor Service Area and Hypoluxo
Village Service Area as shown on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN wishes to purchase bulk potable water from the
CITY for distribution and sale to its customers within the Hypoluxo Village Service
Area; and

WHEREAS, the CITY wishes to sell the TOWN bulk potable water
within the Hypoluxo Village Service Area pursuant to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN and CITY both wish to discontinue bulk potable
water sales from the CITY to the Seminole Manor Service Area; and

WHEREAS, the TOWN and CITY both wish to leave the water

connection from the CITY to the Seminole Manor Service Area active in case it is
needed as an emergency service connection; and

Page - 2 Appendix A



WHEREAS, as a consecutive system, the TOWN and CITY wish that
the TOWN implement and facilitate conservation of water resources in accordance with
the direction of the CITY, and restrictions in effect on the CITY’s system; and

WHEREAS, the physical, chemical and biological quality of all treated
potable waters produced by the CITY currently meets or exceeds all Federal, State and
local laws, regulations and requirements, and the CITY will take reasonable steps to
maintain the quality of treated waters to the Point of Connection (as later defined in this
Agreement); and

WHEREAS, it is solely the responsibility of the TOWN to operate and maintain the
water delivery system on the discharge side of the Point of Connection so that the
physical, chemical and biological quality of the treated water meets or exceeds all
Federal, State and local laws, regulations and requirements.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of these premises, the
mutual undertakings and Agreements herein contained and assumed, the CITY and
TOWN hereby covenant and agree as follows:

1. The foregoing statements are true and correct and are incorporated herein by
reference.

2. Scope of Agreement. The CITY agrees to furnish, and the TOWN agrees to
purchase and accept, a supply of Potable Water in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement. The CITY shall furnish, and the TOWN shall
accept, the Potable Water at the Point(s) of Connection shown in Exhibit “A.”

3. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date of this Agreement
and continue for a term of ten (10) years. The Term of this Agreement may be
extended for successive periods of five (5) years each, upon the same terms and
conditions as herein provided, by written agreement of both of the parties to this
Agreement prior to expiration of the initial term of this Agreement or any
renewal thereof.

4, Effective Date. This Agreement shall become effective upon approval by both
parties. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be the date the Agreement is
ratified by the City of Lake Worth Commission.

5. Prior Agreements: This document, upon its execution by both parties shall
supersede any and all prior negotiations, correspondence, conversations,
agreements, including the expired prior agreement and any amendments thereto,
or understandings applicable to the matters contained herein and the parties
agree that there are no commitments, agreements or understandings concerning
the subject matter of this Agreement that are not contained in this document.
Accordingly, it is agreed by the parties that there shall be no deviation from the
terms hereof which shall be predicated upon any prior representation or
agreements whether oral or written, unless said are specifically provided for
herein.

Page - 3 Appendix A



Definitions. The following definitions and references are given for the purpose
of interpreting the terms as used in this Agreement and apply unless the context
indicates a different meaning:

(a) “Average Daily Flow (ADF)” — the average daily flow rate of potable
water collectively measured through all Points of Connection. The
Average Daily Flow rate is calculated by dividing the total amount of
Potable Water flowing through the Points of Connection in any one
fiscal year by the number of days in that same fiscal year;

(b) “Capacity Fee” — A one-time fee to be paid by the TOWN to the CITY
based on the ADF of capacity reserved. This fee is assessed irrespective
of the actual quantity of Potable Water flowing through the Point(s) of
Connection.

(c) “CITY’s Potable Water System” — the system owned and/or operated by
the CITY for the production and distribution of Potable Water to all retail,
wholesale, and/or bulk customers of the CITY, said system being located
on the CITY’s side of the various Points of Connection and including all
Potable Water meters and related appurtenances located at the Point(s) of
Connection.

(d) “Commodity Rate” - A fee to be paid by the TOWN to the CITY on a
monthly basis for the supply of Potable Water to the TOWN at the
Point(s) of Connection.

(e) “Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU)” - A factor used to convert a given
average dally flow of bulk supply to equivalent number of residential
connections. For this purpose of this Agreement, the average daily flow
of one Equivalent Residential Unit is set at 350 gallons per day.

® “Point(s) of Connection” — The location(s) where the CITY’s Potable
Water System is connected with the TOWN’s Potable Water System, as
shown in Exhibit “A”, which is incorporated herein and attached hereto.
The Potable Water System of the CITY shall include the water meter(s)
and related appurtenances located at the Point(s) of Connection, with

said water meter(s) being utilized for the measurement and payment of
bulk Potable Water obtained by the TOWN.

(2) “Potable Water” — Water for human consumption which meets all
applicable Federal, State, and County standards.

(h) “Reserved Capacity” — the amount of Potable Water capacity in the
CITY’s Potable Water System that the TOWN has reserved through
payment of Capacity Fees.

(1) Service Areas:

Page - 4 Appendix A



10.

(a)

(b)

a. “Hypoluxo Village Service Area” - That area within which
TOWN owns and maintains a potable water distribution system
including present and future water customers, that will receive
bulk water sales from the CITY as shown on Exhibit A.

b. “Seminole Manor Service Area” - That area within which TOWN
owns and maintains a potable water distribution system, as shown
on Exhibit A, which has been provided bulk water from the
CITY, and for which the CITY and TOWN have agreed to
discontinue from bulk water service from the CITY’s supply.

€)) “TOWN’s Potable Water System” — the system owned and/or operated
by the TOWN for the distribution of potable water, said system being
located on the TOWN’s side of the Point(s) of Connection.

Point(s) of Connection: The parties hereto agree that the Points of Connection of
the TOWN System to the CITY System and meter locations shall be as set forth
below:

Hypoluxo Village Service Area: Within the Right-of-Way of Windward
Lane adjacent to the south west side of 6975 S. Congress Avenue.

Seminole Manor Service Area: Within the Right-of-Way of Ute Circle
adjacent to the south west side of 3570 Lantana Road.

Obligation to Accept Service: Except as otherwise provided herein, TOWN agrees
that during the term of this Agreement, the City shall be the exclusive provider of
bulk potable water services to the Hypoluxo Village service area set forth in
Exhibit “A,” and the Town shall only accept potable water services from the CITY
for the Hypoluxo Village service area as set forth in Exhibit “A.”

Discontinuation of Service to Seminole Manor Service Area: In non-emergency
situations, the TOWN expressly agrees to discontinue bulk water purchases
from the CITY to the Seminole Manor Service Area, which is shown in Exhibit
“A,” on or before the effective date of this Agreement. The TOWN herein
expressly agrees to obtain potable water services for the Seminole Manor
Service Area from another water service provider and to discontinue service
from the CITY. The TOWN agrees that effective with the signing of this
agreement the water commodity rate will become 200-percent of the commodity
rate in effect for all water sold through the Seminole Manor Service Area
point(s) of connection, except in the case of a declared emergency as defined
later in this Agreement. The Town agrees that the increased commodity rate
shall remain in effect until such time as service to this area is discontinued.

Each party agrees that they are responsible for all improvements, maintenance and
repairs related to their respective equipment on their side of the Point of
Connection and that the point to determine compliance with the contract terms is
the Point of Connection.

Page - 5 Appendix A



11.

12.

13.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

It is mutually agreed that by entering into this Agreement, the CITY does not
incur any responsibility beyond the Points of Connection prior to, or after, the
date that delivery of water begins under this Agreement.

Existing Reservation of Capacity. While the reservation of capacity under the
Interlocal Agreement between the CITY and TOWN that was executed on October
13, 1993, along with said Agreement’s associated amendments, ended with the
expiration of said agreement, the CITY acknowledges this capacity should not be
re-purchased for the existing TOWN system to remain on the CITYs bulk delivery
system. Therefore, the following capacity shall remain allocated to the TOWN:

Hypoluxo Village Service Area: A survey of this service area showed a
needed reserve capacity of 200,000 gallons per day for service within this
service area. Therefore this amount of capacity is re-established for the
TOWN for the life of this Agreement.

Seminole Manor Service Area: The TOWN, as part of this Agreement, has
agreed to discontinue bulk water purchases from the CITY to this service
area. If service to this area continues past the execution of this Agreement
the increased rate identified above shall be imposed.

All capacity allocations not addressed above shall be considered vacated
with the expiration of the previous 1993 agreement.

Operation of Seminole Manor Interconnect Facility in an Emergency: The
piping to serve Seminole Manor will be left intact in case of a need for an
emergency connection to Seminole Manor in the event of a potable water system
failure causing an emergency in the Seminole Manor service area, the valves
will be opened so as to permit the flow of potable water to the Seminole Manor
service area. No supply of potable water shall be provided except in case of an
emergency and upon the following terms and conditions to be determined by the
CITY:

There must be a sufficient surplus of potable water available after the CITY
meets all of its anticipated needs.

The CITY may reasonably limit the amount of potable water to be supplied
to the TOWN.

The CITY shall determine that the provision of potable water to the TOWN
will not impose a danger to the health, safety or welfare of its citizens of the
CITY. Any resultant expenses incurred by the CITY as a result of the

connection to the Seminole Manor system shall be reimbursed by the
TOWN.

The CITY may reasonably limit the hours or days of supply of the potable
water to the TOWN.

Page - 6 Appendix A



14.

(e)

®

(g)

(h)

The CITY may require the TOWN to impose use restrictions on its
customers as prescribed by the CITY.

With prior written notice to the TOWN, the CITY may place a reasonable
termination date for the emergency supply period.

Water shall be considered the property and responsibility of the TOWN once
it has passed through the Point(s) of Connection. The CITY and TOWN
each shall have the sole and exclusive right to sell and distribute the water in
its respective water system on its respective side of the Point(s) of
Connection.

Procedure to Activate Interconnect:

a. In case of an emergency, a written or verbal communication from the
TOWN’s Town Administrator, or his/her designated representative,
setting forth the emergency and estimated time of need of emergency
surplus potable water, shall be made and shall be the only request
necessary to open the valves. The request shall be made to the City of
Lake Worth’s Utilities Director or designated representative. If said
communication is made verbally, said notice shall be immediately
followed by a written communication. Notwithstanding the provisions
above, the request by the TOWN to the CITY to turn off the valves and
discontinue providing the emergency surplus potable water supply shall
be handled by the same procedure.

b. If the TOWN’s required surplus potable water supply needs lasts more
than 24 hours, then within 36 hours of the valve opening, the Director of
the TOWN’s utility shall transmit a letter to the CITY’s Utility Director,
outlining the reasons for the required needs, the probable duration of
such requirements, the estimated usage in gallons per day and the
maximum peak hour request.

c. The TOWN expressly acknowledges the right of the CITY to refuse to
provide the emergency potable water service, as set forth in this
Agreement, if the CITY determines that the provision of such service
would not be in its best interest or would constitute a danger to the
health, safety and welfare of its citizens. In the event of such refusal, the

TOWN hereby expressly waives any and all claims of loss or damage
against the CITY.

Additional/Future Capacity Fees: If additional capacity is required to meet the
needs of the TOWN, the TOWN shall be required to pay additional capacity
charges as calculated in accordance with Section 18-29 of the CITY Code of
Ordinances, and at a cost per ERU as established by Section 18-31 of the CITY
Code of Ordinances, for all new water connections within the Service Area(s). It
is further agreed that these capacity fees are the property of the CITY but that
the TOWN may charge their own additional connection charges, surcharges or

Page -7 Appendix A



15.

16.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

®

equivalent to its new customers. All additional capacity requirements will be
calculated in accordance with the schedule provided in Exhibit “B.”

Monthly Billed Usage. The TOWN shall be billed the Commodity Rate on a
monthly basis for actual metered water service delivered by the CITY in
accordance with the following conditions:

The CITY shall charge the TOWN a bulk service rate of $0.303 cents per
hundred gallons commencing upon the execution of this Agreement. Future
rate changes will be allowed only at the time of the CITY’s Water System
rate increases. The new rate to be charged will be equal to the current rate
plus the monetary change in the rate of the lowest tier residential water rate
placed into effect at the time of the new rate change.

The CITY agrees to notify the TOWN whenever the CITY advertises for a
rate Public Hearing.

The CITY agrees to provide the TOWN with written notification of all rate
increases upon passage of the rate ordinance or 30-days before rates go into
effect, whichever greater. In the case of multiple-year rate authorizations, a
separate notice will be sent 30-days prior to each incremental change
approval.

The TOWN agrees to pay for all potable water received from the CITY and
to make payments to the CITY within thirty (30) days from the date the bill
is rendered by CITY. A one percent (1%) per month interest charge will be
assessed on any outstanding balance thereafter. If payment has not been
received after sixty (60) days from the date of the original bill, the CITY
may discontinue services provided to the TOWN by this Agreement.

A 25% surcharge shall be added to the Commodity Fee for all usage
exceeding the Reserved Capacity in any month. However, the CITY is under
no obligation to provide potable water in any quantity for which capacity has
not been reserved.

Payments required herein shall be governed by the provisions of Chapter
218, Part VII, Florida Statutes, the “Local Government Prompt Payment
Act,” or its successor in function, or as otherwise mutually agreed to
between the parties hereto.

Presumed Consumption and Required Payment In Case of Billing Meter Failure.
Both parties agree that, if at any time a billing meter fails, the TOWN will pay to
the CITY at a daily consumption rate equal to the average consumption of the
ninety (90) day period prior to the date the meter failed. The CITY shall make
all efforts to restore the meter to working order as soon as possible.

Page - 8 Appendix A



17.

18.

19.

20.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Termination of Agreement

Termination for Cause. The parties hereto expressly covenant and agree that
in the event either party is in default of its obligations herein, the party not in
default shall provide to the party in default ninety (90) days written notice to
cure said default before exercising any of its rights as provided for in this
Agreement. Failure to cure said default within ninety (90) days following
notice may be grounds for termination of this Agreement. Termination of
this Agreement by either party shall require thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the other party prior to the termination date. The parties may
mutually agree to extend the time for cure and/or termination.

Termination by Mutual Agreement. This Agreement may be terminated by
law or at any time by the written agreement of the CITY and TOWN. The
TOWN will not be entitled to a refund of any Capacity Fees or other
reimbursements, and all service will be discontinued upon the termination
date if so terminated.

Termination Upon Expiration: This Agreement shall be considered
terminated on the expiration date of the agreement as adjusted by extensions
approved in accordance with Paragraph 3 of this Agreement. The TOWN
will not be entitled to a refund of any Capacity Fees or other
reimbursements, and all service will be discontinued upon the expiration
date.

Water Shortages. In the event the South Florida Water Management District or
other government unit with authority declares a water shortage, then the CITY
shall have the right to restrict service to the TOWN by the same percentage, level
and/or manner as the CITY restricts service to customers located within the
CITY’s service area.

Water Conservation Program: The TOWN agrees to comply with the CITY’s
water conservation efforts and implement a water conservation program. This
program shall follow industry best management practices to meet conservation
goals as set by the CITY for its service areas, or in accordance with regulatory
restrictions in effect on the CITY’s system. The TOWN shall report its
accomplishments annually at the end of each fiscal year to the CITY. Said report
shall discuss current and future conservation goals, existing activities and
programs relating to water conservation efforts, as well as recommendations for
changes that will further enhance opportunities for effective implementation of
water conservation within the TOWN's system(s). The CITY shall submit to the
TOWN; its goals for the CITY’s water conservation program at least 6-months
prior to the end of the fiscal year to allow the TOWN time to assess the CITY’s
program and develop its own program to match the CITY’s water conservation
program goals.

Water Quality - The physical, chemical and biological quality of all waters
delivered to the TOWN by the CITY currently meets or exceeds all Federal,
State and local laws, regulations and requirements, and the CITY shall take

Page - 9 Appendix A



21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

reasonable steps to maintain the quality of treated waters to the Point of
Connection.

Employee Status: Persons employed by one party in the performance of services
and functions pursuant to this Interlocal Agreement shall have no claim to
salary, pension, workers’ compensation, civil service, or other employee rights
or privileges granted by any other party to its officers and employees.

Laws of Florida: This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
Florida notwithstanding contrary principles or conflicts of law, if any, and it
shall be and become effective immediately upon execution by both parties.
Venue shall be Palm Beach County, Florida.

Costs and Attorney’s Fees: In the event the CITY or TOWN is required to
enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or by instituting suit, the prevailing
party shall be entitled to recover from the other party all costs and reasonable
attorney’s fees including fees on appeal.

Force Majeure: In the event that the performance of this Agreement by either
party to this Agreement is prevented or interrupted in consequence of any cause
beyond the control of either party including, but not limited to, Acts of God or
of the public enemy, war, national emergency, allocation of or other
governmental restrictions upon the use or availability of labor or materials,
rationing, civil insurrection, riot, racial or civil rights disorder or demonstration,
strike, embargo, flood, tidal wave, fire, explosion, bomb detonation, nuclear
fallout, windstorm, hurricane, earthquake, or other casualty or disaster or
catastrophe, said party shall not be liable for such nonperformance. This
provision shall not affect the payment terms outlined under paragraphs 2 and 3of
this Agreement.

Successors and Assigns: The CITY and the TOWN each binds itself and its
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns to the other party and
to the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other
party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither the CITY nor the
TOWN shall assign, sublet, convey, or transfer its interest in this Agreement
without prior written consent of the other party. Such consent will not be
unreasonably withheld.

Severability: If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, to any person or circumstance shall, to any extent, be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, then the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or
circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable,
shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this Agreement shall
be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.

Notice: All notices provided for herein shall be in writing and transmitted by
mail or by courier, and, if to CITY, shall be mailed or delivered to CITY at:

Page - 10 Appendix A



28.

29.

30.

City of Lake Worth

7 N. Dixie Highway

Lake Worth, Florida 33460

Attn: Susan A. Stanton, City Manager

with copies to:

Rebecca Mattey

Utility Director

City of Lake Worth
1900 2™ Avenue North
Lake Worth, FL 33461

and

Elaine A. Humphreys
City Attorney

7 North Dixie Highway
Lake Worth, FL 33460

and if to Town, shall be mailed or delivered at:

Town of Lake Clarke Shores
1701 Barbados Road

Lake Clarke Shores

West Palm Beach, FL 33406
Attn: Town Administrator

Filing: This Agreement shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court for
Palm Beach County.

Amendment and Modification: This Agreement may only be amended,
modified, changed, supplemented or discharged by an instrument in writing
signed by the parties hereto.

Liability:

(a) The CITY and TOWN acknowledge the waiver of sovereign immunity for
liability in tort contained in Florida Statutes 768.28, the State of Florida’s
partial waiver of sovereign immunity, and acknowledge that such statute
permits actions at law to recover damages in tort for money damages up to the
limits set forth in such statute for death, personal injury or damage to property
caused by the negligent or wrongful acts or omissions of an employee acting
within the scope of the employee’s office or employment. The CITY and
TOWN agree to be responsible for all such claims and damages, to the extent
and limits provided in Florida Statutes Section 768.28, arising from the actions
of their respective employees. The parties acknowledge that the foregoing shall
not constitute an agreement by either party to indemnify the other, nor a waiver

Page - 11 Appendix A



31.

32.

33.

of sovereign immunity, nor a waiver of any defense the parties may have under
such statute, nor as consent to be sued by third parties.

(b) Should a party be sued for actions that are believed to be the result of the
other party, the other party shall be notified of such suit and, thereupon, shall
have the duty to defend the suit. The party being sued shall have the right, at
its option, to participate in the defense of any third party claim, without
relieving the other party of any of its obligations hereunder. If the the other
party assumes control of the defense of any third party claim in accordance
with this paragraph, that other party shall obtain the prior written consent of
the party being sued before entering into any settlement of such claim.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section, the other party
shall not assume or maintain control of the defense of any third party claim,
but shall pay the fees of counsel retained by the party being sued and all
expenses, including experts' fees, if (i) an adverse determination with respect
to the third party claim would, in good faith judgment of the party being
sued, be detrimental in any material respect to the reputation of the party
being sued; (ii) the third party claim seeks an injunction or equitable relief
against the party being sued; or (iii) the other party has failed or is failing to
prosecute or defend vigorously the third party claim. Each party shall
cooperate, and cause its agents to cooperate, in the defense or prosecution of
any third party claim and shall furnish or cause to be furnished such records
and information, and attend such conferences, discovery proceedings,
hearings, trials, or appeals, as may be reasonably requested in connection
therewith.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to constitute a transfer
of powers in any way whatsoever. This Agreement is solely an Interlocal
Agreement to provide services as authorized by Chapter 163, Florida Statutes.
The governing bodies for the CITY and the TOWN shall each maintain all
legislative authority with regard to their respective municipality. All of the
privileges and immunities from liability, exemptions from laws, ordinances, and
rules; and pensions and relief, disability, workers compensation, and other
benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents, or employees of any
public agents or employees of any public agency when performing their
respective functions within the territorial limits for their respective agencies
shall apply to the same degree and extent to the performance of such functions
and duties of such officers, agents, or employees extra-territoriality under the
provisions of any such Interlocal Agreement.

Waiver: No delay by either party in enforcing any covenant or right hereunder
shall be deemed a waiver of such covenant or right, and no waiver by either
party of any particular provision hereof shall be deemed a waiver of any other
provision or a continuing waiver of such particular provision, and except as so
expressly waived, all provisions hereof shall continue in full force and effect.

Entirety of Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of
the parties with respect to the provision of public water supply services. It may
not be modified, or any of its provisions waived, unless such modification

Page - 12 Appendix A



34.

and/or waiver is in writing and is agreed to and signed by both parties. The
parties expressly agree that any uncertainties or ambiguities contained herein
shall not be construed against or in favor of either party.

Indemnity: To the extent permitted by law and subject to the limitations of
Florida Statutes, Section 768.28, TOWN agrees to indemnify and hold harmless
from and against any loss, damage, liability, claim or obligation of any kind or
nature whatsoever, which CITY may incur or which may be asserted against
CITY as a result of any actions or conditions on the discharge side of the Point
of Connection affecting quality, water service or water availability.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)

Page - 13 Appendix A



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, Town and City have executed or have caused this
Agreement, with the named Exhibits attached, to be duly executed in several
counterparts, each of which counterpart shall be considered an original executed copy
of this Agreement.

ATTEST:
TOWN OF LAKE CLARKE TOWN OF LAKE CLARKE
SHORES CLERK SHORES, BY ITS TOWN
COUNCIL
@% )/@ZW By: S k“ @C (
Town Cler Mayor
(SEAL)
APPROVED AS TG ¥ORM AND TO
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY /
Town Attorney
ATTEST: CITY OF LAKE WORTH,
FLORIDA BY ITS CITY
. COMMISSION
By: ﬂgz ,,Z o | /7 o’?//o”/u

Pamela J. Lopez, ey 4 /Rene A. Vare qyor

(SEAL)

REVIEWED AND APPROVED FOR

EXECUTION:
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND TO
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY
o & / By: —
By: A/ﬂ -/ u ity Manager

Elaine A. Humphreys, City Attor

Page - 14 Appendix A



T e - CUEMILARY TAL i ) o T
. . ‘ ‘ : i )
,,,,, - - @ b3
) ks gL 2
; : %
b B e
b . ! ]
p w N - .
i G OSHUAN  NGaHUA L + .
ENR I e
) + r
rorn.. ‘ W & 5
% : HG LLY LN 3 o ke
6] : .t
w - c- -4 :; l‘u
B NG SO R GIWALN Gy N GLAN WY = &
‘k\ \ \\\ EXTTEN " WEIE LN 3
P = ~ -
RTINS \\"‘\ ; \\~.' S ELN I -
\ \ R G ™ N
L, i . - S5 n -
- R Pracome Lo -

\,.‘(é\

CYi

N \\\ 7.‘ :

HAIECH LK

FHAH N

s

{odlidog

Ay
0 /’-‘

s
NS

NS
N
NN s
< \\_\E-’ ‘
< Nl
N \‘_‘ \\\li—-i\
B 28 wy =
P »V\;,CD
h- 3 \::\ ‘N\
w5 RN
m o,
0.
&
A
- »
=7 : |
‘f,

i
” iy
N — oo S
: = 3
5 - | s @ e
T 4 COREREAAVE 25 i
= ) - .
E s = 5
a 2’ I ’;:
o ) K
5 S “
[ in o
. - m

SVIYV 30INY3S ¥IALVAM T18V10d

noon in

oA

m "

o

-0 m o

g - >

sk e LT OLNCONGREST R . Lo
— e - L ™
w o v Z
e < . .j:‘
- S

Page - 16 Appendix A

SVHEV dOIAYAS - V LIdIHXA




EXHIBIT B — GPD CAPACITY CALCULATION SCHEDULE

Type of Structure Specific Condition or Unit Water Per
Unit (GPD)
Airports, bus terminals, train stations, port & dock facilities: (a) per passenger 5
(b) add per employee per 8 hour shift 20
Assembly Halls (a) per seat 2
Barber and Beauty Shops (a) per dry service chair 100
(b) per wet service chair 200
Bar and cocktail lounges (a) per seat 20
(Not including food service)
Bowling alleys (a) per lane 100
(Not including food service)
Camps (a) day, no food service 25
(b) luxury resort, per person 100
(c) labor, per person 100
Camper or RV trailer park (a) per space 150
Car wash (a) automatic type 3500
(b) automatic type (recycled water) 350
(c) Hand wash 1750
Churches (Not including food service) (a) per sanctuary seat 3
Dance halls (a) per person 2
Dentist offices (a) per dentist 250
(b) plus per wet service chair 200
Doctor offices (a) per physician 250
(b) plus per square foot of office space 0.20
Drive-in theater (a) per car space 5
Fire station (a) per bed 100
Health spa (Not including food service) (a) per square foot 0.35
Hospitals/Nursing Homes (Not including public food service or offices) a) per bed space 210
Institutions (a) per person, including resident staff 100
Kennels (a) per animal space 30
(b) per veterinarian 250
Laundries (a) per coin-operated machine 400
(b) per non-coin operated machine 650
Marinas (Does not include office, repair & leisure facilities) (a) per boat slip 40
Office Building (a) per square foot of floor space 0.20
Parks, public with comfort stations (a) per visitor 10
Pet grooming parlors (Does not include retail sales areas) (a) per wash basin 200

Recreation/pool buildings

(a) per person

2 (300 gal min)

Residences (a) Single family, detached 350
(Maximum 3-beadroom 2 1/2 Bath)
(b) Multiple family per dwelling unit 300
(c) Motel/hotel units, per bedroom 150
(d) Bedroom additions to SFH 150
(e) Mobil homes, each 350
Retaurants (a) open 24 hours, per seat incl bar 50
(b) open iess than 24 hours, per seat incl bar 30
(c) open less than 24 hours, with drive-thru 35
window, per seat including bar
(d) drive-ins, per space 50
(e) carry out food service only per 100 square | 50
feet
Schools: Elementary/Middle (a) per pupil per day 10
(b) add for shower/pupil 5
(c) add for cafeteria/pupil 5
Schools: High School (a) per pupil per day 15
(b) add for shower/pupil 5
(c) add for cafeteria/pupil 5
Schools: Boarding School (a) per pupil 100
Service stations and auto repair shops (a) per water closet 250
(b) plus per service bay 100
Shopping centers and retail shops (a) per square foot of floor space 0.10
(Not including food service or laundry)
Theaters and auditoriums (a) per seat 5
Warehouse-Mini Storage, with resident manager (a) per square foot of floor space 0.01
(b) plus residence 250
Warehouses (a) per square foot of floor space 0.10

Page - 16

Appendix A



APPENDIX B

City of Lake Worth Beach
Historical Water Flows

Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line #|Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2012
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W
Name of Person Completing Form: Doug Lovelace
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
1.0 |match pumpage reports submitted | 139,423,000 | 120,424,000 | 154,947,000 | 138,870,000 | 140,938,000 | 124,559,000 | 144,222,000| 149,725,000 | 120,132,000 | 114,609,000 | 120,366,000 | 126,592,000 | 1,594,807,000
to SFWMD)
2.0 [Volume of Finished Water Produced | 122,078,000 | 105,174,000 | 130,094,000 | 108,686,000 | 112,531,000 | 107,714,000 | 126,753,000 132,491,000 | 98,380,000 | 95,311,000 | 103,648,000 | 109,998,000 | 1,352,858,000
3.0 :r';:::‘i”nee”;;°“es (subtractline2 | 17 50 000 | 15,250,000 | 24,853,000 | 30,184,000 | 28,407,000 | 16,845,000 | 17,469,000 | 17,234,000 | 21,752,000 | 19,298,000 | 16,718,000 | 16,594,000 | 241,949,000
4.0 lf’nzrf)atmem LosCiicelineby 12.44% 12.66% 16.04% 21.74% 20.16% 13.52% 12.11% 11.51% 18.11% 16.84% 13.89% 13.11% 15.17%
Total Volume of Water Imported (if
50 | icable 23,085,000 | 25,630,000 | 14,586,000 | 30,624,000 | 23,240,000 | 19,732,000 | 12,962,000 0 26,716,000 | 35,218,000 | 33,656,000 | 28,794,000 | 274,243,000
System Input (Finished Water
6.0 |Produced plus Total Water 145,163,000 | 130,804,000 | 144,680,000 | 139,310,000 | 135,771,000 | 127,446,000 | 139,715,000 | 132,491,000 | 125,096,000 | 130,529,000 | 137,304,000 | 138,792,000 | 1,627,101,000
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
Billed Authorized Consumption
7.0 |(total volume of water billed 133,384,000 | 126,011,900 | 122,713,300 | 121,988,300 | 124,469,500 | 117,738,700 | 115,417,400 | 117,218,100 | 112,870,100 | 113,426,400 | 116,503,700 | 132,054,000 | 1,453,795,400
including Exports-if applicable)
Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
8.0 |authorized non-billed uses). An 1,814,538 | 1635050 | 1,808,500 | 1,741,375 | 1,697,138 | 1,593,075 | 1,746,438 | 1,656,138 | 1,563,700 | 1,631,613 | 1,716,300 | 1,734,900 | 20,338,763
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
Total Authorized Consumption
9.0 |(Billed Authorized Consumption plus| \ 35 1 g9 539 | 157 646,950 | 124,521,800 | 123,729,675 | 126,166,638 | 119,331,775 | 117,163,838 | 118,874,238 | 114,433,800 | 115,058,013 | 118,220,000 | 133,788,900 | 1,474,134,163
Unbilled Authorized Consumption)
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 E‘:;)\Na‘e““ses(L'”esm'"us 9,964,463 | 3,157,050 | 20,158,200 | 15,580,325 | 9,604,363 | 8,114,225 | 22,551,163 | 13,616,763 | 10,662,200 | 15,470,988 | 19,084,000 | 5,003,100 | 152,966,838
11.0 g")water e (MMELIIY| Gy 2.01% 13.93% 11.18% 7.07% 6.37% 16.14% 10.28% 8.52% 11.85% 13.90% 3.60% 9.40%
Page - 1 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line #|Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2013
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W

Name of Person Completing Form:

Timothy Sloan

Jan

Feb

Apr

May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Total

1.0

Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 75%
recovery

126,679,000

111,386,000

144,448,000

130,652,000

114,419,000 | 136,581,000 | 153,861,000 | 174,894,000 [ 152,358,000 [ 170,008,000 | 164,180,000 | 166,300,000

1,745,766,000

20 |Volume of Finished Water Produced | 1 g 554 000 | 95,490,000 | 125,889,000 | 115,429,000 | 99,637,000 | 117,780,000 | 131,885,000 | 148,643,000 | 130,607,000 | 145,927,000 | 141,559,000 | 144,051,000 | 1,505,151,000
3.0 ;f::?::tl)““es(SUb”a“""ez 18,425,000 | 15,896,000 | 18,559,000 | 15,223,000 | 14,782,000 | 18,801,000 | 21,976,000 | 26,251,000 | 21,751,000 | 24,081,000 | 22,621,000 | 22,249,000 | 240,615,000
40 ?n:r:'ftme"t Losedvicelineloiby 14.54% 14.27% 12.85% 11.65% 12.92% 13.77% 14.28% 15.01% 14.28% 14.16% 13.78% 13.38% 13.78%
5.0 |Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable)Bulk PBC purchase 28,963,000 | 32,592,000 | 17,300,000 | 24,769,000 | 34,977,000 | 13,243,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 151,844,000
6.0 |System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 137,217,000 | 128,082,000 | 143,189,000 | 140,198,000 | 134,614,000 | 131,023,000 | 131,885,000 | 148,643,000 | 130,607,000 | 145,927,000 | 141,559,000 | 144,051,000 | 1,656,995,000
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 |Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 125,214,348 | 122,358,692 | 127,005,368 | 120,441,852 | 116,205,064 | 110,862,032 | 116,476,112 | 116,365,772 | 123,569,380 | 130,372,372 | 139,116,488 | 132,393,508 | 1,480,380,988
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 [Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 1,715213 | 1,601,025 | 1,789,863 | 1,752,475 | 1,682,675 | 1,637,788 | 1,648,563 | 1,858,038 | 1,632,588 | 1,824,088 | 1,769,488 | 1,800,638 20,712,438
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 [Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 126,929,561 [ 123,959,717 | 128,795,231 | 122,194,327 | 117,887,739 | 112,499,820 | 118,124,675 | 118,223,810 | 125,201,968 | 132,196,460 | 140,885,976 | 134,194,146 | 1,501,093,426
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus line
9 10,287,440 | 4,122,283 | 14,393,770 | 18,003,673 | 16,726,261 | 18,523,181 | 13,760,326 | 30,419,191 | 5,405,033 | 13,730,541 | 673,025 | 9,856,855 | 155,901,575
T Z")Wate' Hoes({liee A CTlec by e 7.50% 3.22% 10.05% 12.84% 12.43% 14.14% 10.43% 20.46% 4.14% 9.41% 0.48% 6.84% 9.41%
Page 2 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line #

Utility Name:

City of Lake Worth

Permit Name:

Lake Worth Utilities

Reporting Period:

2014

Water Use Permit #:

50-00234-W

Name of Person Completing Form:

Timothy Sloan

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
1.0 |match pumpage reports submitted | ) 54 406 [ 147 788,000 | 162,226,000 | 169,559,505 | 190,971,760 | 174,391,768 | 159,102,752 | 167,467,136 | 159,873,872 | 171,704,240 | 175,137,704 | 172,924,440 | 2,015,350,177
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 75%
recovery
2.0 |Volume of Finished Water Produced | 142,621,500 | 127,241,200 | 142,850,700 | 146,618,800 | 160,530,400 | 145,037,300 | 137,189,600 | 143,004,300 | 137,755,000 | 141,029,900 | 147,967,600 | 149,182,000 | 1,721,028,300
3.0 :rr;::‘:e”tl)m“es(S“b"a“"”ez 21,581,500 | 20,546,800 | 19,375,300 | 22,940,705 | 30,441,360 | 29,354,468 | 21,913,152 | 24,462,836 | 22,118,872 | 30,674,340 | 27,170,104 | 23,742,440 | 294,321,877
= —
4.0 If’n?‘l*)a‘me"‘L°“(d"”de""‘*3 By 13.14% 13.90% 11.94% 13.53% 15.94% 16.83% 13.77% 14.61% 13.84% 17.86% 15.51% 13.73% 14.60%
5.0 Total Volume of Water Imported (if 0
" |applicable)Bulk PBC purchase
System Input (Finished Water
6.0 |Produced plus Total Water 142,621,500 | 127,241,200 | 142,850,700 | 146,618,800 | 160,530,400 | 145,037,300 | 137,189,600 | 143,004,300 | 137,755,000 | 141,029,900 | 147,967,600 | 149,182,000 | 1,721,028,300
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
Billed Authorized Consumption
7.0 |(total volume of water billed 134,810,200 | 119,305,000 | 129,659,300 | 118,489,300 | 127,048,600 | 164,868,170 | 119,593,400 | 126,505,300 | 126,145,800 | 120,147,000 | 129,905,300 | 130,284,200 | 1,546,761,570
including Exports-if applicable)
Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
8.0 |authorized non-billed uses). An 80,000 80,000 80,000 62,052 76,946 590,849 90,849 90,849 605,426 79,544 579,544 75,048 2,491,107
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
Total Authorized Consumption
9.0 |(Billed Authorized Consumption plus | ; 3 096 504 | 119 385,000 | 129,739,300 | 118,551,352 | 127,125,546 | 165,459,019 | 119,684,249 | 126,596,149 | 126,751,226 | 120,226,544 | 130,484,344 | 130,359,248 | 1,549,252,677
Unbilled Authorized Consumption)
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 ;;"a'Wate”"“es(L'”eem'”“"”e 7,731,300 | 7,856,200 | 13,111,400 | 28,067,448 | 33,404,854 | -20,421,719 | 17,505,351 | 16,408,151 | 11,003,774 | 20,803,356 | 17,482,756 | 18,822,752 | 171,775,623
= - — -
11.0 :) peiegeslinaiv dedioyine 5.42% 6.17% 9.18% 19.14% 20.81% -14.08% 12.76% 11.47% 7.99% 14.75% 11.82% 12.62% 9.98%
Page - 3 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line #

Utility Name:

City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2015
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W
Name of Person Completing Form: Timothy Sloan
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1.0 |Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD) RO Plant operates at 169,032,712 | 155,868,128 | 190,303,560 | 185,887,056 | 184,473,528 | 175,490,512 | 184,437,328 | 185,461,096 | 161,032,104 | 170,492,880 | 175,229,544 | 177,294,368 | 2,115,002,816
75% recovery
2.0 |Volume of Finished Water Produced
145,163,600 | 133,349,200 | 162,145,800 | 159,569,100 | 160,470,200 | 157,009,800 | 162,224,700 | 161,911,300 | 143,718,200 | 153,706,000 | 159,967,900 | 158,055,000 | 1,857,290,800
30 :r'::::‘i"nee”;;“m““bt’a“""ez 23,869,112 | 22,518,928 | 28,157,760 | 26,317,956 | 24,003,328 | 18,480,712 | 22,212,628 | 23,549,796 | 17,313,904 | 16,786,880 | 15,261,644 | 19,239,368 | 257,712,016
0 lf’nzrf)a‘me"‘ less (k2R3 by 14.12% 14.45% 14.80% 14.16% 13.01% 10.53% 12.04% 12.70% 10.75% 9.85% 8.71% 10.85% 12.18%
5.0 |Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable) Bulk PBC purchase 0
6.0 |System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 145,163,600 | 133,349,200 | 162,145,800 | 159,569,100 | 160,470,200 | 157,009,800 | 162,224,700 | 161,911,300 | 143,718,200 | 153,706,000 | 159,967,900 | 158,055,000 | 1,857,290,800
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 |Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 140,595,400 | 122,882,700 | 123,452,200 | 135,090,900 | 127,790,400 | 136,301,100 | 144,708,600 | 126,404,500 | 131,426,900 | 124,439,700 | 127,982,600 | 139,924,600 | 1,580,999,600
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 |Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 9,494,500 | 21,658,500 | 25,251,950 | 15,639,950 | 7,611,900 | 8,916,150 | 6,870,500 | 5,871,600 824,950 131,250 16,035,400 | 20,421,800 | 138,728,450
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 |Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 150,089,900 | 144,541,200 | 148,704,150 | 150,730,850 | 135,402,300 | 145,217,250 | 151,579,100 | 132,276,100 | 132,251,850 | 124,570,950 | 144,018,000 | 160,346,400 | 1,719,728,050
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus
line 9) -4,926,300 | -11,192,000 | 13,441,650 | 8,838,250 | 25,067,900 | 11,792,550 | 10,645,600 | 29,635,200 | 11,466,350 | 29,135,050 | 15,949,900 | -2,291,400 | 137,562,750
LD Z")Water Loss (line 10 divided by line| 5 390, -8.39% 8.29% 5.54% 15.62% 7.51% 6.56% 18.30% 7.98% 18.96% 9.97% -1.45% 7.41%
Page - 4 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line #|Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2016
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W
Name of Person Completing Form: Timothy Sloan
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1.0 |Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 182,157,000 | 166,601,000 | 197,010,000 | 218,620,000 | 179,657,000 | 190,285,000 | 211,294,000 | 200,460,000 | 181,135,000 | 190,140,000 | 211,240,000 | 211,370,642 | 2,339,969,642
75% recovery
2.0 |Volume of Finished Water Produced
148,929,464 | 139,582,696 | 159,737,512 | 166,048,488 | 166,600,352 | 155,246,328 | 177,567,735 | 166,164,425 | 153,922,328 | 161,750,264 | 173,867,601 | 162,162,616 | 1,931,579,809
30 :r'::::‘i"nee”;;“m““bt’a“""ez 33,227,536 | 27,018,304 | 37,272,488 | 52,571,512 | 13,056,648 | 35,038,672 | 33,726,265 | 34,295,575 | 27,212,672 | 28,389,736 | 37,372,399 | 49,208,026 | 408,389,833
0 lf’nzrf)a‘me"‘ less (k2R3 by 18.24% 16.22% 18.92% 24.05% 7.27% 18.41% 15.96% 17.11% 15.02% 14.93% 17.69% 23.28% 17.45%
5.0 |Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable)Bulk PBC purchase 0
6.0 |System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 149,281,800 | 140,698,600 | 160,415,100 | 162,818,700 | 166,505,300 | 152,007,400 | 174,422,800 | 165,986,400 | 153,285,300 | 160,360,900 | 172,713,600 | 163,305,200 | 1,921,801,100
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 |Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 141,046,700 | 124,544,700 | 129,832,600 | 131,539,435 | 139,951,397 | 142,186,650 | 137,227,582 | 147,452,479 | 134,973,976 | 132,602,888 | 126,433,589 | 151,040,827 | 1,638,832,823
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 |Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 11,151,000 | 8,730,900 | 11,535,100 | 11,297,000 | 15,600,050 | 7,968,600 | 5,335,300 | 5,978,750 | 19,018,450 | 24,330,750 | 28,019,750 | 3,142,805 152,108,455
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 |Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 152,197,700 | 133,275,600 | 141,367,700 | 142,836,435 | 155,551,447 | 150,155,250 | 142,562,882 | 153,431,229 | 153,992,426 | 156,933,638 | 154,453,339 | 154,183,632 | 1,790,941,278
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus
line 8) -2,915,900 | 7,423,000 | 19,047,400 | 19,982,265 | 10,953,853 | 1,852,150 | 31,859,918 | 12,555,171 | -707,126 3,427,262 | 18,260,261 9,121,568 130,859,822
LD Z")Water Loss (line 10 divided by line |y 55, 5.28% 11.87% 12.27% 6.58% 1.22% 18.27% 7.56% -0.46% 2.14% 10.57% 5.50% 6.81%
Page -5 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line # |Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2017
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W
Name of Person Completing Form: Timothy Sloan
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1.0 |Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 208,939,974 | 188,072,156 | 202,528,062 | 208,932,464 | 208,196,707 | 192,610,917 | 203,031,952 | 204,459,728 | 198,385,336 | 194,597,031 | 175,764,869 | 190,208,236 | 2,375,727,432
75% recovery
2.0 [Volume of Finished Water Produced
167,747,576 | 147,883,818 | 159,697,358 | 163,812,056 | 165,315,504 | 151,029,976 | 161,349,752 | 160,727,704 | 156,427,792 | 153,341,368 | 138,392,136 | 150,446,832 | 1,876,171,872
3.0 :r'::::‘i"nee”;;°“es““bt’a“""ez 41,192,398 | 40,188,338 | 42,830,704 | 45,120,408 | 42,881,203 | 41,580,941 | 41,682,200 | 43,732,024 | 41,957,544 | 41,255,663 | 37,372,733 | 39,761,404 | 499,555,560
a4 lf’nzrf)atme"'L°“(d"”de"”e3 5 19.71% 21.37% 21.15% 21.60% 20.60% 21.59% 20.53% 21.39% 21.15% 21.20% 21.26% 20.90% 21.03%
5.0 [Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable)Bulk PBC purchase 0
6.0 [System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 170,136,200 | 152,894,700 | 165,594,500 | 169,715,000 | 168,761,000 | 153,638,100 | 165,547,500 | 167,161,900 | 161,065,200 | 158,851,800 | 142,783,000 | 151,612,400 | 1,927,761,300
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 [Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 146,285,852 | 132,186,726 | 133,284,397 | 137,818,600 | 147,386,128 | 143,678,796 | 144,059,652 | 143,855,074 | 133,525,879 | 150,193,537 | 137,839,626 | 116,826,127 | 1,666,940,394
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 |Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 16,815,300 | 12,708,450 | 15,756,550 | 14,697,971 | 14,011,893 | 21,942,750 | 15,143,161 | 26,473,400 | 27,760,044 | 17,766,350 | 9,374,800 | 16,215,900 | 208,666,569
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 [Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 163,101,152 | 144,895,176 | 149,040,947 | 152,516,571 | 161,398,021 | 165,621,546 | 159,202,813 | 170,328,474 | 161,285,923 | 167,959,887 | 147,214,426 | 133,042,027 | 1,875,606,963
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus
line 8) 7,035,048 | 7,999,524 | 16,553,553 | 17,198,429 | 7,362,979 | -11,983,446 | 6,344,687 | -3,166,574 | -220,723 | -9,108,087 | -4,431,426 | 18,570,373 52,154,337
L Z")Water L (e WEREKIBYIT| o g 5.23% 10.00% 10.13% 4.36% -7.80% 3.83% -1.89% -0.14% -5.73% -3.10% 12.25% 2.71%
Page - 6 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line # |Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2018
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W

Name of Person Completing Form:

Timothy Sloan

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1.0 (Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 183,610,496 | 185,136,432 | 209,707,544 | 206,521,040 | 181,368,448 | 169,749,956 | 185,919,933 | 205,092,264 | 196,879,135 | 204,763,501 | 187,379,144 | 179,765,244 | 2,295,893,137
75% recovery
2.0 |Volume of Finished Water Produced
156,633,120 | 153,826,560 | 172,924,680 | 168,896,304 | 154,426,992 | 144,419,688 | 158,434,968 | 169,469,472 | 164,369,056 | 166,033,800 | 152,003,568 | 152,522,720 | 1,913,960,928
30 :r’:;t?nee”;)“’“es““btrac“'”ez 26,977,376 | 31,309,872 | 36,782,864 | 37,624,736 | 26,941,456 | 25,330,268 | 27,484,965 | 35,622,792 | 32,510,079 | 38,729,701 | 35,375,576 | 27,242,524 | 381,932,209
0 m’:;‘tme”t Lossddelin by 14.69% 16.91% 17.54% 18.22% 14.85% 14.92% 14.78% 17.37% 16.51% 18.91% 18.88% 15.15% 16.64%
5.0 |Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable)Bulk PBC purchase 0
6.0 |System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 156,633,120 | 153,826,560 | 172,924,680 | 168,896,304 | 154,426,992 | 144,419,688 | 158,434,968 | 169,469,472 | 164,369,056 | 166,033,800 | 152,003,568 | 152,522,720 | 1,913,960,928
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 |Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 140,188,500 | 125,833,300 | 136,456,200 | 142,412,300 | 129,916,500 | 126,253,900 | 133,941,400 | 132,649,400 | 139,855,100 | 148,954,400 | 139,422,900 | 128,782,600 | 1,624,666,500
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 |Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 9,710,900 | 13,649,350 | 12,340,400 | 15,621,044 | 13,904,200 | 13,845,500 | 13,202,450 | 13,930,674 | 14,025,895 | 8,132,527 | 9,663,712 | 7,828,400 145,855,052
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 |Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 149,899,400 | 139,482,650 | 148,796,600 | 158,033,344 | 143,820,700 | 140,099,400 | 147,143,850 | 146,580,074 | 153,880,995 | 157,086,927 | 149,086,612 | 136,611,000 | 1,770,521,552
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus
line 9) 6,733,720 | 14,343,910 | 24,128,080 | 10,862,960 | 10,606,292 | 4,320,288 | 11,291,118 | 22,889,398 | 10,488,061 | 8,946,873 | 2,916,956 | 15,911,720 | 143,439,376
LD Z’)W“er“’“(””e 10divided byline |, 350, 9.32% 13.95% 6.43% 6.87% 2.99% 7.13% 13.51% 6.38% 5.39% 1.92% 10.43% 7.49%
Page - 7 Appendix B



Annual Water Balance Summary

line # |Utility Name: City of Lake Worth
Permit Name: Lake Worth Utilities
Reporting Period: 2019
Water Use Permit #: 50-00234-W
Name of Person Completing Form: Timothy Sloan
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total
1.0 |Total Raw Water Withdrawn (should
match pumpage reports submitted
to SFWMD)RO Plant operates at 188,500,437 | 168,829,219 | 193,545,136 | 202,601,416 | 203,309,688 | 198,660,840 | 211,700,044 | 208,263,596 | 192,545,528 | 229,721,388 | 194,941,548 | 196,114,272 | 2,388,733,112
75% recovery
2.0 [Volume of Finished Water Produced
149,067,896 | 131,718,744 | 149,745,344 | 159,345,666 | 162,053,814 | 158,514,376 | 164,670,152 | 159,640,104 | 174,426,322 | 188,562,498 | 167,497,982 | 160,748,094 | 1,925,990,992
3.0 :r'::::‘i"nee”;;°“es““bt’a“""ez 39,432,541 | 37,110,475 | 43,799,792 | 43,255,750 | 41,255,874 | 40,146,464 | 47,029,892 | 48,623,492 | 18,119,206 | 41,158,890 | 27,443,566 | 35,366,178 | 462,742,120
a4 lf’nzrf)a‘me"‘ less (el (e 3 by 20.92% 21.98% 22.63% 21.35% 20.29% 20.21% 22.22% 23.35% 9.41% 17.92% 14.08% 18.03% 19.37%
5.0 [Total Volume of Water Imported (if
applicable)Bulk PBC purchase 0
6.0 [System Input (Finished Water
Produced plus Total Water 154,961,500 | 137,421,100 | 156,829,500 | 165,546,400 | 162,727,800 | 156,884,300 | 167,212,600 | 163,048,200 | 176,993,100 | 191,920,900 | 167,497,982 | 160,748,094 | 1,961,791,476
Imported) (line 2 plus line 5)
7.0 [Billed Authorized Consumption
(total volume of water billed 143,406,500 | 126,193,000 | 128,644,100 | 134,736,200 | 145,258,700 | 150,783,000 | 144,521,600 | 139,622,900 | 130,344,300 | 144,056,000 | 132,357,700 | 137,583,700 | 1,657,507,700
including Exports-if applicable)
8.0 |Unbilled Authorized Consumption
(include estimates of fire protection,
line flushing, and other utility-
authorized non-billed uses). An 8,307,500 | 8,082,450 | 8,944,550 8,159,300 10,999,750 | 12,074,100 | 16,055,886 | 20,727,495 | 26,681,175 | 27,242,200 | 19,555,880 | 15,098,200 | 181,928,486
estimate of 1.25% of the System
Input can be used if no other data is
available.
9.0 [Total Authorized Consumption
(Billed Authorized Consumption plus
Unbilled Authorized Consumption) | 151,714,000 | 134,275,450 | 137,588,650 | 142,895,500 | 156,258,450 | 162,857,100 | 160,577,486 | 160,350,395 | 157,025,475 | 171,298,200 | 151,913,580 | 152,681,900 | 1,839,436,186
(line7 plus line 8)
10.0 |Total Water Losses (Line 6 minus
line 8) 3,247,500 | 3,145,650 | 19,240,850 | 22,650,900 6,469,350 -5,972,800 6,635,114 | 2,697,805 | 19,967,625 | 20,622,700 | 15,584,402 | 8,066,194 122,355,290
L Z")Water Lo (e MEREIBYIT] 5 aap 2.29% 12.27% 13.68% 3.98% -3.81% 3.97% 1.65% 11.28% 10.75% 9.30% 5.02% 6.24%
Page - 8 Appendix B



N -

O OVWoO~NO Ol W

16
17
18
19

20
21
22

23
24

25

26
27
28
29

30
31
32

33
34
35
36

37
38
39
40

2020-09

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-09 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, AMENDING POLICIES IN THE INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT
OF THE CITY’'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AND ADOPTING THE 2020
WATER SUPPLY PLAN BY REFERENCE; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. BY
INCORPORATING A WATER SUPPLY PLAN AND AMENDING THE
INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT,; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY,
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Florida Community Planning Act, Chapter 163, Part I, section
163.3161, et seq., Florida Statutes (The Act), requires each municipality to adopt a
comprehensive plan and authorizes amendments thereto; and

WHEREAS, the City previously adopted an Evaluation and Appraisal Report (EAR)
comprehensive plan amendment on October 17, 2017; and

WHEREAS, in the 2017 EAR amendment, the City adopted its 2014 10-Year
Water Supply Facilities Work Plan (Water Supply Plan) to coordinate with the South
Florida Water Management District's (SFWMD) Lower East Coast (LEC) Water Supply
Plan; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 373.709 and Section 163.3177(6)(c)3,
Florida Statutes, the City’s Water Supply Plan must be updated when SFWMD updates
its LEC Water Supply Plan; and

WHEREAS, SFWMD adopted updates to its LEC Water Supply Plan in November
2018; and

WHEREAS, the City must now adopt updates to its Water Supply Plan; and

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2020, the City of Lake Worth Beach Planning and Zoning
Board, sitting as the Local Planning Agency, recommended for approval the proposed
update to the Water Supply Plan and associated comprehensive plan amendments,
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2020, the City Historic Resources Preservation Board
also recommended for approval the attached update to the Water Supply Plan and
associated comprehensive plan amendments; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered the attached update to the Water
Supply Plan and associated comprehensive plan amendments; the report prepared by
Mock Roos & Associates, Inc.; and, the recommendations of staff, the Local Planning
Agency and the Historic Resources Preservation Board; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds amending the comprehensive plan by
incorporating the attached update to the Water Supply Plan and adopting the associated
comprehensive plan amendments is in the best interests of the city and serves a valid
public purpose.



41
42

43
44

45
46
47
48

49
50
51

52
53

54
55
56
57

58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

66
67
68

69
70
71
72
73

74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81

Pg. 2, Ord. No. 2020-09

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and accurate and are expressly incorporated
herein by reference and made a part hereof.

Section 2. The City’s comprehensive plan is amended by incorporating the Water
Supply Plan, dated May 2020, and adopting the associated comprehensive plan
amendments attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein. The associated
amendments amend the Infrastructure Element.

Section 3. The City Manager or designee shall provide this ordinance and all other
necessary documents to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity and other
reviewing agencies in accordance with section 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes.

Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

Section 5. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any person
or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 6. Pursuant to section 163.3184(3)(c)4, Florida Statutes, this ordinance does
not become effective until 31 days after the state land planning agency notifies the City
that the plan amendment package is complete. If this ordinance as a comprehensive
plan amendment is timely challenged, this ordinance does not become effective until the
state land planning agency or the Administration Commission enters a final order
determining the adopted amendment to be in compliance. No development orders,
development permits, or land uses dependent on this ordinance may be issued or
commenced before it has become effective.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Maxwell, seconded by Vice Mayor Amoroso, and upon being put to a vote, the vote
was as follows:

Mayor Pam Triolo AYE
Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso AYE
Commissioner Scott Maxwell AYE
Commissioner Omari Hardy AYE
Commissioner Herman Robinson AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
7t day of July, 2020.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner
, seconded by Commissioner , and upon being
put to a vote, the vote was as follows:




82
83
84
85
86

87
88

89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98

Mayor Pam Triolo

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso
Commissioner Scott Maxwell
Commissioner Omari Hardy
Commissioner Herman Robinson

Pg. 3, Ord. No. 2020-09

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed onthe __ day of :

2020.

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Pam Triolo, Mayor



City of Lake Worth Beach

EXHIBIT 2

10 Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan
Associated Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Goals, Objectives and Policies

As a reference, the following represents Comprehensive Plan associated amendments related to
the City’s 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan Update and are in bold and underline

(proposed new provisions) or strikethrough (proposed deleted provisions) format.

As GOPs are often amended outside of the cycle for Water Supply Plan amendments (i.e.
Evaluation and Appraisal Report amendments every seven (7) years), these GOPs are being
provided as reference and not made part of the officially adopted Water Supply Facility Work
Plan. These amendments will be processed concurrently with, but not made part of, the WSP

update.

INFRASTRUCTURE ELEMENT

Policy 4.1.1.3:

Policy 4.1.7.3:

Policy 4.1.7.4:

The City will continue to provide annual review of system demand
and supply, and to update facilty demand and capacity
information based on issuance of development permits. The City
will also prepare and include considerations of being a
regional provider that may sell water in the future.

The City will maintain a water supply facilities work plan that is
coordinated with SFWMD’s 20183 Lower East Coast Regional
Water Supply Plan and Palm Beach County by updating its own
work plan within 18 months of an update to SFWMD’s 20183
Lower East Coast Regional Water Supply Plan.

By March, 20275, the City shall coordinate with SFWMD and
update develep the City’s a 10-year water supply facilities work
plan considering the Lower East Coast (LEC) Regional Water
Supply Plan. The City hereby adopts by reference the “City of
Lake Worth 202014 10-Year Water Supply Facilities Work Plan”,
dated December2014. The City shall send a letter to SFWMD
which identifies projects for future water supply needs of the City.
Projects must be selected from the LEC Regional Water Supply
Plan or must be prior approved by SFWMD.




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Mayor Triolo

TITLE:

Grant Request for the Palm Beach County Food Bank to partially offset the City building
permit fees

SUMMARY:

The Grant will assist the Palm Beach County Food Bank with the cost of City Building
Permit Fees for the construction of a 28,000 sqg. ft. warehouse facility in the Park of
Commerce. The Fees including PBC Fire Department review and total $58,561.88. The
Grant of $22,000 will be taken from this Fiscal Year’s unused Commission Travel budget
and the Clerk’s Special Election Account line.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Palm Beach County Food Bank distributes over 10 million pounds of food annually
to the residents of Palm Beach County through nearly 150 partner agencies consisting
of food pantries and soup kitchens. Over 35 of these agencies are based in Lake Worth
Beach and unincorporated Lake Worth. They are building a new warehouse that will be
over 28,000 sg. ft. and will contain over 1,200 pallet positions including freezer, cooler
and dry storage with 6 loading docs as well as offices for their organization. Nearly 30
people will work out of the warehouse and offices. The main permit for the build out of
the interior has yet to be issued and will require the sum of over $58,500.00 which cannot
be legally waived by the City. During this time of pandemic, it is more important than
ever to assure that the Palm Beach County Food Bank will have the facility it needs to
continue with providing the residents with the food they need to feed their families.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove a Grant to assist with Building Permit Fees for the Palm
Beach County Food Bank in the amount of $22,000 and to authorize the City Manager to
execute the Grant transaction.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Letter from Jim Greco, EO, PBC Food Bank
List of LWB Participating Entities



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project FY20 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure

C. Department Fiscal Review:




PREPARED 9/04/20, 8:09:43 PAYMENT DUE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH PROGRAM BP820L
APPLICATION NUMBER: 20-00002540 701 BOUTWELL RD A2
FEE DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DUE
SURCHARGE BLDG DCA 528.75
SURCHARGE BLDG DBPR 793.13
FD PLAN REVIEW 4250.00
FD ADMIN FEE LW 25.00
COMMERCIAL BUILDING 52875.00
ZONE REV NEW NON RSU 90.00
TOTAL DUE 58561.88

Please present this receipt to the cashier with full payment.



Jim

James J. Greco

Interim CEO

Palm Beach County Food Bank
203-641-8641

Agency Name City
Eglise De La Mission Semence Inc. Lake Worth
The Lord's Place - Burckle's Women Campus Lake Worth
God's Army Raising Youth (G.A.R.Y. Foundation) Lake Worth
Shammah Baptist Worship Center Lake Worth
Salem Haitian Evangelical Lutheran Church Lake Worth
CROS Lighthouse Food Pantry Lake Worth
St. Rita's Catholic Church Lake Worth
Palm Beach Recovery Coalition Lake Worth
Barton Elementary School Lake Worth
CROS Lake Worth Food Pantry Lake Worth
CROS Ministries Mobile Pantry Lake Worth
Un Nuevo Comienzo Lake Worth
Palm Beach State College - Panther's Pantry Lake Worth
Barton Elementary School Lake Worth
The Lord's Place - Burckle's Women Campus Lake Worth
Palm Beach Recovery Coalition Lake Worth
Salem Haitian Evangelical Lutheran Church Lake Worth
Arms of Hope Community, Inc Lake Worth
Palm Beach State College - Panther's Pantry Lake Worth

5




Un Nuevo Comienzo

Lake Worth

Martha's Kitchen Lake Worth
St. Rita's Catholic Church Lake Worth
Eglise De La Mission Semence Inc. Lake Worth
God's Army Raising Youth (G.A.R.Y. Foundation) Lake Worth
Bethel Church of God, Inc. Lake Worth
Farmworker Coordinating Council - Lake Worth Lake Worth
Extended Arm, Inc. Lake Worth
Farmworker Coordinating Council - Lake Worth Lake Worth
Bethel Church of God, Inc. Lake Worth
God's Army Raising Youth (G.A.R.Y. Foundation) Lake Worth
Guatemala Maya Center Lake Worth
Martha's Kitchen Lake Worth
Eben-Ezer French SDA Church Lake Worth
Hands Together for Haitians Lake Worth
Extended Arm, Inc. Lake Worth
CROS Camp Lake Worth
Martha's Kitchen Lake Worth
Indian Pines Elementary School Lake Worth




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2020-13 — First Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23
Land Development Regulations (development orders)

SUMMARY:

Ordinance No. 2020-13 provides for a series of amendments related to consistency and clarity
for development order time extensions and expirations in Chapter 23 “Land Development
Regulations,” including building permits, variances, site plan review, historic preservation, and
other zoning permits.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The subject LDR amendments are intended to provide consistency and clarity for time
extensions for all development order types and to provide uniform language related to the
development order expiration.

The proposed amendments consolidate language related to the expiration of development
orders into a new code section that provides for finality to approvals and construction projects.
Currently, time limitations related to development orders are addressed in separate sections by
development order type. The proposed ordinance would also amend language, for clarity and
consistency, related to building permit application timeframes for development orders and time
limitations related to issued building permits. The proposed amendments to the Land
Development Regulations have been reviewed by staff for consistency with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.

At the September advisory board meetings, both the Planning & Zoning Board and Historic
Resources Preservation Board discussed the amendments and both recommended
unanimously for the City Commission to approve the proposed amendments.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2020-13 on first reading and set the second reading
and public hearing for xxxx.

ATTACHMENT(S):

PZB/HRPB Staff Report
Ordinance 2020-13



Lake Worth, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.s™
City Of Lake Worth

Department for Community Sustainability
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North - Lake Worth - Florida 33461- Phone: 561-586-1687

DATE: August 26, 2020

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards

FROM: William Waters, Director Community Sustainability

MEETING: September 2, 2020 and September 9, 2020

SUBJECT: PZHP 20-03100005: Consideration of an ordinance (Ordinance # 2020-13) to amend Chapter 23

“Land Development Regulations” to provide consistency and clarity for time limitations related to
development orders and building permits.

BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL:

On March 5, 2020, the City Commission held a workshop on the prioritization of amendments to the City’s Land
Development Regulations (LDR) that were previously identified by staff and the Commission. The subject LDR
amendments address the third series of prioritized items identified at the March meeting, which include
modifications to provide consistency and clarity for time extension for all development order types and to provide
uniform language related to the development order expiration.

The proposed amendments consolidate language related to the expiration of development orders into a new code
section that provides for finality to approvals and construction projects. Currently, time limitations related to
development orders are addressed in separate sections by development order type. The proposed ordinance
would also amend language, for clarity and consistency, related to building permit application timeframes for
development orders and time limitations related to issued building permits. The proposed amendments to the
Land Development Regulations have been reviewed by staff for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed LDR amendments for Chapter 23 will modify the following sections of the City’s Code of
Ordinances:

e Sec. 23.2-37. - Expiration of Development Orders (New Section)
e Sec 23.1-11 -Time Limitations ef-Apprevals - building permits

e Sec. 23.2-26. - Variances

e Sec. 23.2-29. — Conditional use permits

e Sec. 23.2-30. —Site plan review

e Sec. 23.5-4. - Historic preservation

e Sec. 23.7-4. - Permits

e Sec. 23.2-20 —Site Plan Review




STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2020-13: PZB (HRPB Project Number 20-03100005)

POTENTIAL MOTION:

| move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text
amendments included in PZB / HRPB Project Number 20-03100005 (Ordinance 2020-13).

Attachments
A. Draft Ordinance 2020-13



O 0O NOULL D WN B

DDA DDDODDDDDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNRRREPRRERRRP R PR
CONO U DWNRPROOVOENIOTUITDNWNRPROOOMNOODUDWNROWVLONOGOUDNWNLEPRO

2020-13

ORDINANCE 2020-13 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION,”
DIVISION 3 “PERMITS,” BY ADDING A NEW SECTION “EXPIRATION
OF DEVELOPMENT ORDERS” TO PROVIDE FINALITY TO
APPROVALS AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS; AMENDING ARTICLE
1 “GENERAL PROVISIONS,” DIVISION 1 “GENERALLY,” SECTION
23.1-11 “TIME LIMITATIONS OF APPROVALS,” TO PROVIDE
UNIFORM TIME LIMITATIONS ON BUILDING PERMITS FOR ALL USES
IN THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND AMENDING THE
SPECIFIC REGULATIONS TO REFLECT THE UNIFORMITY;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN
CONFLICT, CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State
of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the
“City”), a municipal corporation, enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary
powers necessary to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions, and
render municipal services, and may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except
as expressly prohibited by law; and

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited
by law; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend its regulations to provide a final expiration
date of no more than three years for approvals without specific expiration dates and for a
period of no more than four years when as a condition of approval, an expiration date is
included in the development order; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend its regulations to provide time limitations to
apply for building permits as it relates to approved projects in the City; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance provides uniformity finality to building permits and
approvals throughout the land development regulations; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning
agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public
hearing; and



49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-13

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments and
has determined that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and general
welfare of the City to adopt this ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance as if set forth herein.

Section 2. Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2
“‘Administration,” “Division 3 “Permits,” of the City’'s Code of Ordinances, is hereby
amended by adding a new Section 23.2-37 “Expiration of Development Orders” as
indicated in Exhibit A (underlined type is added).

Section 3. Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 1, “General
Provisions,” Division 1 “Generally,” Section 23.1-11 “Time limitations of approvals,” is
hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting the words

struck-through as indicated in Exhibit B.

Section 4. Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” section 23.2-26(c)
“Time limit for variances,” section 23.2-29(k) “Expiration of conditional use approval,”
section 23.2-30(f) “Expiration of site plan approval,” section 23.5-4(j) “Issuance of
certificate of appropriateness; commencement of permitted improvements,” and section
23.7(4)(e) “Expiration” as it relates to flood plain permits, are hereby amended to be
consistent with and provide uniformity with the regulations set forth in Exhibits A and B.
These sections are amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and deleting
the words struek-threugh as indicated in Exhibit C.

Section 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions thereof.

Section 6. Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 7. Caodification. The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or
any other appropriate word.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after
passage.




Pg.3, Ord. 2020-13

96 The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by
97 , seconded by , and upon
98 being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:
99

100 Mayor Pam Triolo

101 Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso

102 Commissioner Scott Maxwell

103 Commissioner Omari Hardy

104 Commissioner Herman Robinson

105

106 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the

107 day of , 2020.

108

109

110 The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by

111 , seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,

112  the vote was as follows:

113

114 Mayor Pam Triolo

115 Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso

116 Commissioner Scott Maxwell

117 Commissioner Omari Hardy

118 Commissioner Herman Robinson

119

120

121 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of

122 , 2020.

123

124

125 LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

126

127

128 By:

129 Pam Triolo, Mayor

130

131 ATTEST:

132

133

134

135  Deborah Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

136




137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182

Pg. 4, Ord. 2020-13

EXHIBIT A

Chapter 23

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS ARTICLE 2 “ADMINISTRATION”

*kk

Article 2, “Administration,” Division 3 “PERMITS”

Sec. 23.2-37. — Expiration of Development Orders.

a)

b)

d)

Generally. A development order shall automatically expire three (3) years from the
date of issuance. If these LDRs provide for a shorter period of expiration, then
those time limitations shall apply. If a development order expires, the approval
shall terminate and become void. In such event, the applicant or property owner
shall be required to make application for a new approval, subject to any changes
in the law.

As a Condition of Approval. The planning and zoning board, the historic resources
preservation board or the city commission, as applicable, may condition the
approval of a development order on a period of time not exceeding four (4) years
or on a final expiration date of up to four (4) years. If certificates of use, completion,
or occupancy are not issued by the appropriate city official at the end of the period
or on the date specified in the development order, then the development order
shall automatically expire at the end of the period or on the date specified in the
development order. In such event, the applicant or property owner shall be
required to make application for a new approval, subject to any changes in the law.

Phased Plans. If a phased site plan expires, the following shall apply as applicable.

1. The allocation of dwelling units granted for any principal structure that has not
received a certificate of occupancy or equivalent certification shall expire at the
time the site plan expires, or

2. The portion of the property not developed prior to the expiration shall not be
developed without the applicant or property owner submitting an application for
and receiving an approval of a new site plan.

Finality. This section is intended to add finality to development orders and
construction projects. In no event may the expiration of a development order
exceed the number of years set forth in this section.




183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217

Pg.5, Ord. 2020-13

EXHIBIT B

Chapter 23
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
Article 1, “General Provisions,” Division 1 “Generally”

Sec. 23.1-11. -Time limitations -- building permits apprevals.

a) Application.
1. Unless specified otherwise herein, approvals granted pursuant to these

regulations shall require the owner to submit an application for a building
permit(s) within eighteen-{18) twelve (12) months from time the date of the
approval. Failure to submit an application for a building permit(s) within that
timeframe shall render the approval null and void unless an extension is
granted as set forth herein.

I

Building permit application Permitted time frames do not change with
successive owners, provided however—ene—1); two (2) separate but

successive six (6) month extensions of time to apply for a building permit may

b) Building permit. After a building permit application has been approved, a request
to extend the building permit may be granted by the building official or designee in
the building official’s or designee’s discretion in six (6) month increments or as
otherwise provided by the Florida Building Code. In no event may a building permit
exceed the time limitations set forth in section 23.2-37, nor may it be interpreted
as extending the time limitations of the underlying order as set forth in section 23.2-
37.




218
219
220
221
222
223

224

225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238

239
240
241
242
243

244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262

Pg. 6, Ord. 2020-13

EXHIBIT C

Chapter 23

LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS

Article 2, “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits”

Sec. 23.2-26. — Variances.

c)

*kk

Time limit for variances. Any variance granted under this section shall be subject to
the time limits set forth in section 23.1-11 regarding building permits and section 23.2-

37 reqardlnq the explratlon of development orders Jeeeem&nuhendAfmqudeﬁne

Sec. 23.2-29. — Conditional use permits.

K)

k%%

Expiration of conditional use approval. Any approval of a conditional use granted by
the planning and zoning board, the historic resources preservation board or by the
city commission shall be subject to the time limits set forth in section 23.1-11
regarding building permits and section 23.2-37 regarding the expiration of

development orders verdeneél%ye&ea#eﬁheda@eeﬁhe&ppmx%uniess&bwidmg




263
264

265

266
267
268
269

270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284

285

286
287
288
289

290
291
292
293
294
295

296
297
298
299

300
301

Pg.7, Ord. 2020-13

*k%k

Sec. 23.2-30. — Site plan review.

*k%k

f)  Expiration of site plan approval unless-building-permit{s)}-issued-within-one{1)-year.

Any site plan approval shall be_subject to the time limits set forth in section 23.1-11
regarding building permits and section 23.2-37 regarding the expiration of

development orders. veid-one{l)yearafterthe-date-ofthe-approvatunless-abuilding

h} g) Compliance with LDRs required. In all cases requiring site plan review, no
structure, or part thereof, shall be erected or used, or land or water used, or any
change of use consummated, nor shall any building permit be issued, unless a site
plan has been reviewed and approved, and in no instance shall the decisionmaking
body modify the written standards of these LDRs in approving a site plan; except as
provided for in this section.

B h) Violations. Failure to complete and continually maintain all approved elements of
an approved site plan including landscape, appearance and other site development
features, shall be a violation of these LDRs subject to enforcement and penalty
procedure of the City Code of Ordinances.

*k%k



302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331

332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347

Pg. 8, Ord. 2020-13

Article 5, “Substantial Regulations”

*k%

Sec. 23.5-4. - Historic preservation.

*k%k

J) Issuance of certificate of appropriateness; time limits-commencement-of permitted
imprevements. If the department for community sustainability or HRPB approves an

application, a certificate of appropriateness shall be issued in a timely manner.
Issuance of a certificate of appropriateness shall not relieve the applicant from
obtaining all other required development permits, orders and approvals required by
law. No building permit or other development order for a designated landmark or a
property within a historic district shall be valid unless accompanied by a certificate of
appropriateness. A certificate of appropriateness approval shall be subject to the time
limits set forth in section 23.1-11 regarding building permits and section 23.2-37

reqardlnq the explratlon of development orders Genstreetren—&ppreved—by—a

k%%

Article 7, “Floodplain Management,” Division 1 “Administration”

Sec. 23.7-4. - Permits.

*kk

e) Expiration. A floodplain development permit or approval shall be subject to the time
limits set forth in section 23.1-11 reqgarding building permits and section 23.2-37
reqardlnq the explratlon of development orders beeeme—rnvahd—uetess—the—werk




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2020-14 — First Reading - Amend the City’s Code of Ordinances Chapter 23
Land Development Regulations to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land use and
zoning matters

SUMMARY:

Ordinance 2020-14 provides for a series of amendments related to changes to update and clarify
the quasi-judicial process for land use and zoning matters including appeals in Chapter 23 “Land
Development Regulations.”

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The subject LDR amendments are intended to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for
land use and zoning matters including appeals. The proposed amendments to the Land
Development Regulations have been reviewed by staff for consistency with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed LDR amendments for Chapter 23 will modify Sec. 23.2-16. “Quasi-judicial
procedures” and Sec. 23.3-17 “Appeals.”

At the September advisory board meetings, both the Planning & Zoning Board and Historic
Resources Preservation Board discussed the amendments and both recommended
unanimously for the City Commission to approve the proposed amendments.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2020-14 on first reading and set the second reading
and public hearing for October 20, 2020.

ATTACHMENT(S):

PZB/HRPB Staff Report
Ordinance 2020-14



Lake Worth, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.s™
City Of Lake Worth

Department for Community Sustainability
Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division
1900 Second Avenue North - Lake Worth - Florida 33461- Phone: 561-586-1687

DATE: August 26, 2020

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards

FROM: William Waters, Director Community Sustainability

MEETING: September 2, 2020 and September 9, 2020

SUBJECT: PZHP 20-03100006: Consideration of an ordinance (Ordinance # 2020-14) to amend Chapter 23

“Land Development Regulations” to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land use and
zoning matters.

BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL:

On March 5, 2020, the City Commission held a workshop on the prioritization of amendments to the City’s Land
Development Regulations (LDR) that were previously identified by staff and the Commission. The subject LDR
amendments address the third series of prioritized items identified at the March meeting. These include changes
to update and clarify the quasi-judicial process for land use and zoning matters including appeals. The proposed
amendments to the Land Development Regulations have been reviewed by staff for consistency with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.

The proposed LDR amendments for Chapter 23 will modify the following sections of the City’s Code of
Ordinances:

e Sec. 23.2-16. - Quasi-judicial procedures
e Sec. 23.2-17. - Appeals

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2020-14 (PZB / HRPB Project Number PZHP 20-03100006).

POTENTIAL MOTION:

| move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text
amendments included in PZB / HRPB Project Number 20-03100006 (Ordinance 2020-14).

Attachments
A. Draft Ordinance 2020-14



oo NOYTULLDS, WN B

UDDADNDEDNDEDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNRRPRREPRRERR,RPR
O LVLWUOODUNDHEWNRPROOVLONIOOTULTDNWNRPRPROOVOOMYIOOUDRNRWNRPROWOLONOODTUDWNIERO

2020-14

ORDINANCE 2020-14 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE 2, “ADMINISTRATION”,
DIVISION 2 “PROCEDURES,” SECTION 23.2-16 “QUASI-JUDICIAL
PROCEDURES” AND SECTION 23.2-17 “APPEALS” TO UPDATE AND
CLARIFY THE QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCESS FOR LAND USE AND
ZONING MATTERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL
OF LAWS IN CONFLICT, CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIl of the Constitution of the State
of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the
“City”), a municipal corporation, enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary
powers necessary to conduct municipal government, perform municipal functions, and
render municipal services, and may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except
as expressly prohibited by law; and

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any
subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited
by law; and

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend its regulations pertaining to quasi-judicial
procedures and appeals to provide clarity to the processes; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning
agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public
hearing; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the proposed amendments and
has determined that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety, and general
welfare of the City to adopt this ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance as if set forth herein.

Section 2. Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2,
“‘Administration,” Divisions 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-16 “Quasi-Judicial Procedures”
of the City’s Code of Ordinances, is hereby amended by adding the words shown in
underlined type and deleting the words as struek-through.



51

52

53
54
55

56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

78
79

80
81

82
83
84
85
86

87
88
89
90
91
92

Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-14

Sec. 23.2-16. - Quasi-judicial procedures.

a)

In general. The provisions of this section apply to all quasi-judicial hearings held
pursuant to these LDRs. Quasi-judicial hearings shall be conducted generally in
accordance with the following order of presentation:

1. Disclosure of ex parte communications and personal investigations
pursuant to subsection h below.

2. Presentation by city staff.

3. Presentation by the applicant.

4 Presentation by affected party, if applicable.

45.  Public comment.

56. Cross-examination by city staff.

67. Cross-examination by the applicant.

8. Cross-examination by affected party, if applicable.

#9. Cress-examination Questions by the decisionmaking body.
810. Rebuttal or closing argument by the applicant.

911. Closing of the public hearing.

1012. Deliberation by the decisionmaking body. Metier-by-the-decisionmaking
hody-with-explanation-

. . . I { the deeisi Kina body.

12.13. Action by the decisionmaking body making reference to and-entry-of
specific findings. In the case of denials a citation(s) shall be provided
referencing te the legal authority (e.g., code citation) forming the basis
of the denial.

The chairperson, upon motion or by consensus of the decisionmaking body, may
change the order of presentation. Each party shall have the right to call and examine
witnesses, to introduce evidence/exhibits into the record, to cross-examine opposing
witnesses on any relevant matter, subject to the rules contained herein, and to rebut
evidence.

b)

c)

d)

Sworn testimony. The applicant, staff, and all participants requesting to speak shall
be collectively sworn by oath or affirmation.

Waiver by applicant. The applicant may waive its right to make a presentation if it

agrees with the staff recommendation and-re-ene-from-the-audience-wishesto-speak

for—or—against-the—application. The decisionmaking body may then take public
comment and vote on the item, based upon the staff report and any other materials

entered by staff from the official file into the record of the hearing.

Decorum. The chair shall keep order, and without requiring an objection, may direct
a party conducting cross-examination to stop a particular line of questioning that
merely harasses, intimidates or embarrasses the individual being cross-examined; is
unduly repetitious and not relevant; or is beyond the scope of the testimony by the
individual being cross-examined. If the party conducting the cross-examination
continuously violates directions from the chair to end a line of questioning deemed



93
94

95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106

107
108
109
110
111
112

113
114
115
116
117
118
119

120
121
122

123
124
125

126
127
128

129

130
131

132
133

134
135
136

f)

9)

h)

Pg.3, Ord. 2020-14

irrelevant and merely designed to harass, intimidate or embarrass the individual, the
chair may terminate the cross-examination.

Affected parties. Affected parties, as defined in section 23.1-12 (Definitions), (1) shall
be allowed to present evidence, to produced witnesses, and to cross-examine
witnesses produced by others; (2) may appeal final decisions of staff, HRPB, planning
and zoning board, or city commission; and (3) may file suit to enforce the provisions
of this article should the city fail or decline to do so. Notwithstanding the foregoing;
however, in any suit brought by an affected party, the applicable circuit court shall
determine whether the affected party has the requisite standing to bring suit. An
affected party who wishes to participate as a party in the quasi-judicial hearing must
fill out a city form and deliver it to the Department of Community Sustainability at least
five (5) days before the hearing. Failure to follow the process shall be deemed a
waiver and the affected party will not be allowed to participate in the quasi-judicial

hearing.
Deliberation. After the presentations, and at the conclusion of any continuances, the

decisionmaking body shall deliberate on the application erappeal—as-the-case-may
be. Once the decisionmaking body begins its deliberations no further presentations
or testimony shall be permitted except at the sole discretion of the decisionmaking
body. The decisionmaking body's decisions must be based upon competent
substantial evidence in the record.

Continuance. The decisionmaking body may, on its own motion or at the request of
an applicant, continue the hearing to a fixed date, time and place. The applicant shall
have the right to one (1) continuance; however, all subsequent continuances shall be
granted at the sole discretion of the decisionmaking body. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, a continuance shall not be granted if to do so would delay a decision on
an appeal from the HRPB regarding a certificate of appropriateness beyond the
ninety-day requirement specified in section 23.2-17.

Ex parte communications. Members of the decisionmaking body shall disclose on the
record any ex parte communications and personal investigations regarding pending
quasi-judicial decisions in accordance with applicable Florida law.

1. Members of the decision-making body shall disclose on the record any ex parte
communications, site visits, expert opinions sought, and personal investigations
regarding pending quasi-judicial decisions prior to any final action on the matter.

2. The substance of any ex parte communication shall be disclosed including the
subject of the communication and the identity of the person, group, or entity with
whom the communication took place.

Any written communication shall be made part of the record.

Any site visit, personal investigation or expert opinions received shall be
disclosed and made part of the record.

5. Pursuant to section 286.0115(1), Florida Statutes, the foregoing process
removes the presumption of prejudice from ex parte communications.

Official file. All written communication received by a decisionmaking body or staff
concerning an application, the staff report on the application, any petitions or other
submissions from the public, and all other documents pertaining to the application



137
138
139
140

141
142
143
144

145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152

153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164

165
166
167

168
169

170
171
172
173

174
175
176
177
178
179

180
181

Pg. 4, Ord. 2020-14

)

K)

upon receipt shall be filed in the official file for the application, which shall be
maintained by staff. The comprehensive plan and the City Code of Ordinances shall
be deemed to be part of the official file. The official file shall be available for inspection
during normal business hours.

Record of the hearing. All evidence admitted into the record at the hearing, and the
adopted development order of the decisionmaking body shall be maintained by the
city in a hearing file available for public review for a period of at least forty-five (45)
days from the rendering of the decision.

First Reading. For all quasi-judicial matters which require more than one (1) reading,

the first reading shall constitute the quasi-judicial hearing. If a decision is rendered to
grant or grant with conditions the relief sought by the applicant, then the second
reading shall be procedural in nature with the quasi-judicial body ratifying and
affirming its prior decision. If new evidence is introduced which, if brought to the
attention of the quasi-judicial body at the first reading, would have had a material
impact on its decision, the quasi-judicial body may reopen the quasi-judicial hearing
and give all parties the opportunity to address the new evidence.

Section 3. Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2,

“‘Administration,” Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-17 “Appeals” of the City’s Code of
Ordinances, is hereby amended by adding the words shown in underlined type and
deleting the words as struck through.

Sec. 23.2-17. - Appeals.

a) To planning and zoning board and historic resources preservation board. An
applicant may appeal a final decision of the development review official to the
planning and zoning board or the historic resources preservation board, as
applicable;. The procedures set forth below and in subsection d) shall be followed.

The applicant shall submit to the development review official, a notice of appeal
within thirty (30) days of the official's written decision. The appeal shall be in writing
on a form provided by city staff. and

|~

N

The appeal shall be accompanied by the applicable fee and filed with the
development review official.

The appeal shall be heard-at-a—quasi-udicial-hearing—and based on the record
made-in-the proceeding-below-—evidence relied upon by the development review

official in making his/her decision, which shall include submissions from the
applicant.

Notwithstanding the above, on appeals of administrative decisions regarding
certificates of appropriateness, the process shall be guided by Section 23.5-
4(n)(1), which provides that a notice of appeal must be submitted within fourteen
(14) days of the administrative decision, and that the administrative decision must
be reviewed within sixty (60) days and may be reversed only if it was contrary to
law or arbitrary and capricious.

|

|~

b) To city commission. Should an applicant for development approval or an affected
party with demonstrated standing decide to appeal a decision of the planning and



Pg.5, Ord. 2020-14

182 zoning board or the historic resources preservation board the procedures set forth
183 below and in subsection d) shall be followed.

184 1. heThe applicant or affected party shall submit to the development review official
185 a notice of appeal within fourteen (14) days of the issuance-ef-the board’s written
186 decision.

187 2. Thereatfter, the applicant or affected party shall submit to the development review
188 official in writing the basis for the appeal within thirty (30) days of the board's
189 written decision; except appeals from decisions pertaining to variances shall be
190 appealed directly to circuit court as described in subsection c). The basis of
191 appeal must relate to the evidence and testimony presented to the planning and
192 zoning board or the HRPB. The basis of appeal should include all evidence the
193 appealing party would like to have the city commission review. New evidence is
194 not allowed and shall not be considered.

195 3. The appeal shall be submitted with a city application and the applicable fee and
196 filed with the development review official. An affected party must have
197 participated in the hearing before the planning and zoning board or HRPB to
198 participate in an appeal before the city commission.

199 4. The development review official shall forward the appeal, the staff report and
200 other relevant documents reviewed at the planning and zoning board or HRPB
201 meeting, and the board's decision to the city commission for review.

202 5. The development review official may also have the right to appeal a decision of
203 the planning and zoning board or the HRPB.

204 16. After courtesy notice as provided in this article, the city commission shall conduct
205 a guasi-udictal hearing, and shall consider those applications on appeal from the
206 planning and zoning board or the HRPB based on the record made—in—the
207 proceeding—below created at the planning and zoning board or the HRPB
208 meeting. The considerations substantiating the decision of the city commission
209 shall be discussed. The city commission shall convey its decision in writing to the
210 appelant applicant, affected parties, if applicable, and to the development review
211 official. Fhe-considerations—substantiating-—the-decision-of-the—city—commission
212 shall-be-documented-

213 27. For appeals from the decisions of the HRPB regarding certificates of
214 appropriateness, the city commission shall consider the appeal within ninety (90)
215 days after the filing of the appeal. The city commission may uphold or reverse
216 the HRPB’s decision in whole or |n part or remand Wlth instructions for further
217 consideration.

218 within—ninety {90)-days—after-thefiling—of the—appeal- A reversal of an HRPB HRPB
219 decision, whether in whole or in part, efthe-historic resourcespreservation-board
220 shall require no less than four (4) votes of the full city commission or by no less
221 than three (3) votes of those in attendance, and in accordance with Section 23.5-
222 4(n)(2), a reversal shall be rendered only if the city commission determines that
223 the HRPB decision was contrary to law or arbitrary and capricious.

224 ¢) To circuit court. Any person or persons, jointly or severally, or entity, aggrieved by
225 any the decision of the city commission, after first exhausting all administrative
226 remedies, may shall present to a circuit court a petition for issuance of a writ of



227
228
229
230
231

232
233
234
235
236

237
238

239
240
241
242
243

244
245
246
247
248
249

250
251

252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272

Pg. 6, Ord. 2020-14

certiorari pursuant to the Florida law. If a planning and zoning board or HRPB
variance determination is being appealed and is a part of an overall order being
appealed for certificates of appropriateness, site plans, etc., then the entire order shall
be appealed to the circuit court and it is not necessary to exhaust administrative
remedies by appealing any portion of the order to the city commission.

d) Appeal procedure. Hearings on appeals shall be conducted generally in accordance
with the following order of presentation, which may be adjusted by the chairperson.
At these hearings no new evidence may be introduced and presentations will be
limited to ten (10) minutes per party unless the time is extended by majority vote of
the decisionmaking body.

Disclosure of ex parte communications and personal investigations.
Presentation by city staff.

Presentation by appealing party.

Presentation by applicant, if not the appealing party.

Questions by the decisionmaking body.

Closing of the public hearing.

Deliberation by the decisionmaking body. The decisionmaking body shall
be restricted to the record developed from the hearing before the
appropriate board which shall include submissions from the applicant and
affected party, if applicable. The standard of review for these
deliberations shall be competent, substantial evidence unless indicated
otherwise in these LDRs.

8. Action by the decisionmaking body.

N S AN Eall o N o

Section 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or
portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining
portions thereof.

Section 5. Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 6. Caodification. The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of
the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to

accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or
any other appropriate word.

Section 7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon

being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:



273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296

297

298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308

Pg.7, Ord. 2020-14

Mayor Pam Triolo

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso
Commissioner Scott Maxwell
Commissioner Omari Hardy
Commissioner Herman Robinson

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
day of , 2020.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,

the vote was as follows:

Mayor Pam Triolo

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso
Commissioner Scott Maxwell
Commissioner Omari Hardy
Commissioner Herman Robinson

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2020.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah Andrea, CMC, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Consideration of PZB 20-00600001 — Request for an Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver for the
specialty distillery Dr. Spirits

SUMMARY:

This a request to consider an Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver to allow the packaged sales
of alcohol at 604 Lake Avenue for the specialty distillery Dr. Spirits

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Applicant, Daniel De Liege of Deli Brands, on behalf of David Kislin of Lucerne Ave
Development, LLC, is requesting approval of an Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver to allow the
packaged sales of alcohol at 604 Lake Avenue as part of a new business to be known as Dr.
Spirits, a specialty distillery. The subiject site is located in the north 600 Block of Lake Avenue,
on the northwest corner of Lake Avenue and North L Street. Per LDR Section 23.2-9, Alcohol
Beverage Distance Waiver requests that involve packaged sales requires review by the City
Commission.

The 8,500 square foot site is comprised of a two-story, +/-9,029 square foot building which will
be occupied by Dr. Spirits, a specialty distillery/bar (+/- 2,647 sf), and Doc Holliday’s BBQ, a sit-
down restaurant (+/- 6,274 sf). The sale of packaged alcohol products is proposed to take place
within the specialty distillery component and would be limited to alcohol products produced on
premises through condition of approval.

The overall project is split into two phases:

. Phase | — Remodel +/- 2,647 square feet of the first floor of the building into Dr. Spirits, a
specialty distillery with a tasting room. The conditional use permit and alcohol waiver for on-site
consumption was approved by the Planning and Zoning Board on September 2, 20202 to allow
for the specialty distillery use. The minor site plan amendment for exterior improvements is
under administrative review as of 9/23/20. The renderings of the proposed exterior
improvements are in Attachment B.

. Phase Il — Remodel the remaining +/- 6,274 square feet of the first and second floor of
the building into Doc Holliday’s BBQ, a restaurant with a bar and accessory office. The
administrative use permit for the restaurant component is concurrently under review with the
minor site plan amendment.

The Applicant is requesting an Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver to sell packaged alcohol
products produced by the specialty distillery, Dr. Spirits, on the premises of the subject site. The
land development regulations require all Alcohol Beverage Distance Waivers to be analyzed for
consistency with Chapter 5-5(d). Staff has reviewed the application against this section and has
determined that the proposed Waiver requested is consistent with the following standards for
review:



1. Whether approval of the waiver will result in two or more alcoholic beverage establishments
having a license within 500 feet of a protected land use or each other, or within 500 feet of a
property zoned for residential use.

Staff Analysis: The approval of the waiver would result in the proposed business being within
500 feet of 19 other business that hold an alcohol beverage license. A full list of those
businesses is included in Attachment A. The property is greater than 500 feet from a residential
zoning district and is similar in nature and function to the other restaurant/bar uses within the
downtown core area. The proposed specialty distillery/bar is not anticipated to create adverse
Impacts to the surrounding area as the downtown area is an entertainment commercial district.
Meets Criterion.

2. Whether the license is being added to or is a license upgrade of an existing use or to an
establishment which is relocating to the subject location.

Staff Analysis: There appears to have been alcohol beverage licenses at this location for the
onsite consumption of alcohol linked to previous operating businesses at this site such as
Rosie’s Key West Grill, Ray’s Key West Grill, and Lake Worth Rum Shack. The requested
alcohol beverage distance waiver would allow for packaged sales in addition to on-site
consumption. If approved, the proposed specialty distillery/bar will be subject to the limited
hours of sale outlined in Chapter 5-4, which states that establishments with an alcohol license
for packaged sales shall only sell between the hours of 7am — 10pm. Meets Criterion.

3. If the property contains a structure which is on the National Register of Historic Places or
otherwise has been designated by the city as having historic architectural significance, whether
the structure will be preserved or developed so as to retain its architectural and historic character

Staff Analysis: The property is not on the National Register of Historic Places nor is it
designated as a local contributing historic structure. Meets Criterion.

4. Whether the waiver promotes the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood and the
public.

Staff Analysis: The waiver is crucial to the operations of the proposed specialty distillery/bar.
The Applicant states that the proposed use will enhance the City by establishing a unique use
within the City that will be well utilized by locals and tourists. Meets Criterion.

Based on the data and analysis in this report, the proposed Alcohol Beverage Distance Waiver
request is consistent with the required review criteria.



MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove PZB 20-00600001 with a condition limiting package sales to
products produced on-site based on the data and analysis in the staff report for an Alcohol
Beverage Distance Waiver to allow for packaged sales of alcoholic beverages at 604 Lake
Avenue.

ATTACHMENT(S):

List of businesses with alcohol sales within 500 ft.
Renderings of Dr. Spirits distillery and Doc Holidays BBQ restaurant



604 Lake Avenue ABT

License Proximity Map |

Item Number Business Name
1 Alacranes Cuba Cigar Company
2 Brogues Down Under
3 Rock Irish Pub
4 Cafe Tecun Inc
5 Vincent'S Bistro
6 Sugar Plum And Grumbling Growler
7 Brick Oven Pizza
8 Downtown Pizza
9 C.W.S 2nd
10 Lake Worth Playhouse The nd Ave N
11 Lulu'S Grill Inc
12 Igot'S Martiki Bar
13 Pelican Restaurant Enterprises
14 Paradiso Restaurant
15 Rustico Italiano
16 Social House - ~—
17 Daves Last Resort & Raw Bar /
>
18 Suri \ 2
19 Lilo'S Street Food And Bar / & I 9 & =
=z
bos| 1 z 5 16 & g
L
I 6 15 ucerne Ave
Worth o 14 \
4
7L1 8 l
o .12 17 3 '
I . . Greenline Vape
B Lake Ave l
\.10 18 19 2 Nature's Way I
. . . Cafe
———— — ’
1st Ave S 2
] o - N T
wv (%] wv E
- ~ “
v o " z
@
Lake Worth ~
Beach:.onion
Map Legend T
@ Licensed Business Location (ABT) L[] 604 Lake Avenue 0 0.010.02  0.04 Miles N
C~ 400 Ft Buffer
Created: June 29, 2020
Source: City of Lake Worth Beach, FL




OWNER

ALACRANES CUBA CIGAR COMPANY LLC
AUSSIE BOOMERANG BAR ON THE AVENUE INC
BBA GROUP LLC

CAFE TECUN INC

CVHC LLC

DIVALICIOUS ADVENTURES INCORPORATED
CRUST BRICK OVEN PIZZA INC

DOWNTOWN PIZZA EIRINI CORPORATION
LAKE WORTH BOYS, LLC

LAKE WORTH PLAYHOUSE INC THE

LULU'S GRILLINC

PALFARYN INC

PELICAN RESTAURANT ENTERPRISES INC
PARADISO RESTAURANT OF LAKE WORTH, INC.
RUSTICO ITALIANO INC

SOCIAL HOUSE LUCERNE LLC

SZABO INC

SURI RESTAURANT GROUP LLC

WINNIFRED INC

SERIES MODIFER BA

RTPD ALACRANES CUBA CIGAR COMPANY
4cop BROGUES DOWN UNDER

4COP  SFS ROCK IRISH PUB

2CopP CAFE TECUN INC

2CoP VINCENT'S BISTRO

2cop SUGAR PLUM AND GRUMBLING GROWLER
2CopP BRICK OVEN PIZZA

2CopP DOWNTOWN PIZZA

4cop CW.s

11PA LAKE WORTH PLAYHOUSE THE
2cop LULU'S GRILL INC

4cop IGOT'S MARTIKI BAR

2Cop PELICAN RESTAURANT ENTERPRISES
4COP  SFS PARADISO RESTAURANT

2cop RUSTICO ITALIANO

2cop SOCIAL HOUSE

4COP  SFS DAVES LAST RESORT & RAW BAR
4cop SURI

4COP  SFS LILO'S STREET FOOD AND BAR

ADDRESS_LI

708 LUCERNE AVE
621 LAKE AVE

614 LAKE AVENUE

7 NORTHL ST

516 LUCERNE AVENUE
711 LUCERNE AVE
726 LAKE AVENUE
608 LAKE AVE

522 LUCERNE AVE
713 LAKE AVENUE
720 LAKE AVE

702 LAKE AVE

610 LAKE AVENUE
625 LUCERNE AVE.
701 LUCERNE AVENUE
512 LUCERNE AVE
632 LAKE AVENUE
707 LAKE AVE

701 LAKE AVENUE

aTy_1
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH
LAKE WORTH

STATE_1 ZIP_1 COUNTY_1

-

L
FL
FL
L
FL
FL
L
FL
FL
FL
L
L
L
L
L
FL
FL
L
FL

-

-

e e e

-

33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460
33460

Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach
Palm Beach

LICENSE

TOB6013900
BEV6000053
BEV6017833
BEV6017213
BEV6017467
BEV6017509
BEV6016987
BEV6013808
BEV6011591
BEV6015098
BEV6017584
BEV6005587
BEV6013475
BEV6011306
BEV6012230
BEV6017839
BEV6011926
BEV6015902
BEV6017148

PRIMARY_ST SECONDARY_ ORGINAL_LI

Current Active 3/14/2014 0:00
Current Active 7/15/2011 0:00
Current Active 7/5/2019 0:00
Current Active 2/2/2017 0:00
Current Active 1/28/2020 0:00
Current Active 3/16/2018 0:00
Current Active 3/21/2016 0:00
Current Active 6/1/2018 0:00
Current Active 9/25/2015 0:00
Current Active 11/18/2009 0:00
Current Active 7/3/2018 0:00
Current Active 12/13/2004 0:00
Current Active 4/29/2004 0:00
Current Active 10/7/1997 0:00
Current Active 11/3/2000 0:00
Current Active 7/11/2019 0:00
Current Active 11/2/1999 0:00
Current Active 5/29/2014 0:00
Current Active 11/30/2016 0:00

EFFECTIVE_

3/14/2014 0:00
9/8/2011 0:00
7/30/2019 0:00
4/14/2017 0:00
1/31/2020 0:00
4/6/2018 0:00
5/9/2016 0:00
6/13/2018 0:00
5/25/2016 0:00
1/11/2010 0:00
7/31/2018 0:00
2/3/2005 0:00
12/23/2016 0:00
3/1/2002 0:00
3/12/2002 0:00
7/11/2019 0:00
3/20/2002 0:00
5/30/2019 0:00
1/9/2017 0:00

EXPIRATION

1/15/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2020 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00
3/31/2021 0:00

ItemNo

VNV WN R

PR R R R R R R e
©®O®YUOOns®NRO



PROPOSED RENDERINGS

DRAWING TITLE: PROJECT ADDRESS: 604 Lake Ave Lake Worth FL 33460 deli Brands
International
DATE : 08/ 16/2020 N




deli Brands
International

DRAWING TITLE: PROJECT ADDRESS: 604 Lake Ave Lake Worth FL 33460

DATE: 0B8/16/2020




deli Brands

DRAWING TITLE: PROJECT ADDRESS: 604 Lake Ave Lake Worth FL 33460 h K
A International

DATE : 08/ 16/2020




deli Brands

International

DRAWING TITLE: PROJECT ADDRESS: 604 Lake Ave Lake Worth FL 33460

DATE: 0B8/16/2020




DisTILLERY

:|,|||||_!i!'”!!|!5f?:‘ﬂm___ _l -

OPEN KITCHEN

deli Brands
International

DRAWING TITLE: PROJECT ADDRESS: 604 Lake Ave Lake Worth FL 33460

DATE: 0B8/16/2020




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Finance

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2020-16 — First Reading -- providing authority for the issuance of taxable utility
bonds to fully fund reserves

SUMMARY:

Ordinance 2020-16 will authorize the issuance of taxable utility bonds. The City intends to issue
some taxable bonds as part of the Series 2020 issue.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City’s electric, water and sewer utilities each have capital improvement needs based on the
capital improvement plans for each utility. Some projects go back many years as the City was
unable to properly fund and execute a consistent and appropriate infrastructure replacement
and rebuilding program. While there have been great strides in each utility to do more to invest
in infrastructure projects, there is still much left to address in order to assure utility services
continue without significant threat of failure now and into the future. By issuing bonds pledged
against revenues the City will be able to make the required investments into the utility
infrastructure to insure safe, consistent and efficient operations for the customers.

Additionally, current debt will be rolled into the bond amounts along with the borrowing for new
projects as market conditions for bonds are favorable. The finance team recommends combing
electric, water and sewer revenues into a single consolidated utility pledge, and using this to
finance both capital improvements and a refinancing of the existing debt. The ordinance is
designed to provide additional legal authority for issuing taxable utility bonds for non-capital
purposes. There will be separate resolutions specifically authorizing the financing.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2020-16 on first reading and schedule the second
reading and public hearing for October 20, 2020.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Ordinance No. 2020-16



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Total Funding 120,385,000 O 0 0 0
Annual Debt Service 0 1,650,278 5,421,950 5,418,200 6,592,050
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project FY20 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure




OCOoO~NOOITR~WNEF

2020-16

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-16 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE INCURRENCE BY THE CITY OF DEBT
OBLIGATIONS TO FUND RESERVES FOR CASH FLOW PURPOSES
RELATED TO THE CITY’S CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM;
PROVIDING THAT SUCH OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY DO NOT
CREATE A GENERAL DEBT OR OBLIGATION OF THE CITY OR THE
STATE BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM UTILITY
REVENUES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Commission (the “Commission”) of the City of Lake Worth
Beach, Florida (the “City”) desires to consider a financing plan to provide for the funding
of utility reserves for cash flow purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Commission hereby deems such financing to be for an essential
public purpose and to constitute a “project” within the meaning of Section 166.111, Florida
Statutes, as amended,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS. When used in this ordinance, the following terms shall have
the following meanings, unless the context clearly otherwise requires:

“City” shall mean the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation
and public body corporate and politic.

“Obligations” shall mean debt obligations issued by the City, the proceeds from the
sale of which shall be used to finance the Project.

“Project” shall mean the establishment of reserves for and the payment by the City
of costs of operation of the City’s consolidated Utility System, including salaries and
benefits of City employees and other operating costs necessary to provide essential
services to citizens of the City, for which City Utility Revenues are otherwise insufficient.

“Utility Revenues” shall mean revenues derived by the City from the provision of
Utility Services to its customers.

“Utility Services” shall mean the provision of electric, water, and sewer service to
the City’s customers throughout the Utility System service territories.

“Utility System” shall mean the City’s public electric, water, and sewer utilities as
operated within their respective territories.

The words “herein”, “hereunder”, “hereby”, “hereto, “hereof”, and any similar terms
shall refer to this ordinance.



49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95

Pg. 2, Ord. 2020-16
Words importing the singular number include the plural number, and vice-versa.

SECTION 2. FINDINGS. The City Commission of the City hereby finds and determines
that:

(@) The City is in the process of incurring indebtedness to finance needed
improvements to the Utility System, and to refinance certain indebtedness of the Utility
System.

(b) It is vital to the citizens of the City and customers of the Utility System that
Utility Services are provided in a reliable manner.

(c) The City desires to incur Obligations to provide a reserve to continue to fund
essential Utility Services as a Project vital to the needs of customers of the Utility System.

SECTION 3. ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS.

(&) The City Commission shall have the power, and it is hereby authorized to
provide by resolution, to incur Obligations to finance the Project. The
proceeds from the Obligations shall be used to finance the cost of the
Project, to pay interest on the Obligations, if needed, and to pay costs of
issuance.

(b)  The Obligations shall be payable from Utility Revenues, moneys in certain
funds and accounts held by the City and moneys derived from any credit enhancement
of the Obligations.

SECTION 4. OBLIGATIONS NOT DEBT OF CITY. Obligations issued under the
provisions of any resolution shall not be deemed to constitute a debt of the City or a
pledge of the faith and credit or taxing power of the City, but such Obligations shall be
payable solely from Utility Revenues as described herein. The obligation of the City to
repay such Obligations is a limited and special obligation.

SECTION 5. REMEDIES OF OBLIGATION HOLDERS. Any holder of Obligations,
except to the extent the rights herein given may be restricted by the resolution authorizing
the issuance of such Obligations, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action,
mandamus or other proceeding, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of
the State or granted hereunder or under such resolution, and may enforce and compel
the performance of all duties required by such resolution to be performed by the City or
by any officer thereof.

SECTION 6. ALTERNATIVE METHOD. This ordinance shall be deemed to provide an
additional and alternative method for the doing of the things authorized hereby, shall be
regarded as supplemental and additional to powers conferred by other laws, and shall not
be regarded as in derogation of any powers now existing or which may hereafter come
into existence. This ordinance, being necessary for the welfare of the inhabitants of the
City and its Utility System customers, shall be liberally construed to affect the purposes
thereof.




96

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

Pg. 3, Ord. 2020-16

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its
enactment.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by
Commissioner , seconded by , and upon being
put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Pam Triolo

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso
Commissioner Scott Maxwell
Commissioner Omari Hardy
Commissioner Herman Robinson

The Mayor thereupon declares this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
6" day of October, 2020.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by Commissioner
, seconded by Commissioner , and upon being
put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Pam Triolo

Vice Mayor Andy Amoroso
Commissioner Scott Maxwell
Commissioner Omari Hardy
Commissioner Herman Robinson

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed and enacted on the 20t
day of October, 2020.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

By:

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: October 6, 2020 DEPARTMENT: Finance

TITLE:

Resolution No. 45-2020 — authorizing the issuance of Consolidated Utility Revenue Bonds of
the City

SUMMARY:

Resolution No. 45-2020 will authorize the issuance from time to time of Consolidated Utility
Revenue Bonds of the City, secured by a pledge of net revenues of the City’s electric, water and
sewer utilities. Finance staff intends to bring forth a supplemental resolution at the City’s October
20, 2020 meeting to set specific terms of proposed Series 2020 Bonds.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City has outstanding certain indebtedness with respect to its electric and water systems,
and capital improvement needs with respect to said systems and its sewer system. The finance
team recommends combing electric, water and sewer revenues into a single consolidated utility
pledge, and using this to finance both such improvements and a refinancing of the existing debt.
The resolution under consideration is a master resolution designed to facilitate this and future
utility financings.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 45-2020 authorizing the issuance of Consolidated
Utility Revenue Bonds of the City.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Resolution 45-2020



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Total Funding 120,385,000 O 0 0 0
Annual Debt Service 0 1,650,278 5,421,950 5,418,200 6,592,050
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project FY20 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure




CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

Resolution 45-2020

CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS RESOLUTION

ADOPTED OCTOBER 6, 2020




SECTION 1.01.
SECTION 1.02.
SECTION 1.08.
SECTION 1.04.

SECTION 2.01.
SECTION 2.02.
SECTION 2.08.
SECTION 2.04.
SECTION 2.05.
SECTION 2.06.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
ARTICLE I
GENERAL
DEFINITIONS ... 1
AUTHORITY FOR RESOLUTION.......cccoiiiiiiiienicnecieeeeee 11
RESOLUTION TO CONSTITUTE CONTRACT .....cccooviiiieriee 12
FINDINGS ..o 12
ARTICLE Il
AUTHORIZATION, TERMS, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS
AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS ......cooiiiiiiieee e 13
EXECUTION OF BONDS ......ccoiiiiiiiieee e 13
AUTHENTICATION.....coiieieieeee e 14
TEMPORARY BONDS ... 14
BONDS MUTILATED, DESTROYED, STOLEN OR LOST ....... 14
INTERCHANGEABILITY, NEGOTIABILITY AND
TRANSFER ... 14
FORM OF BONDS. ...t 16

SECTION 2.07.

SECTION 3.01.
SECTION 3.02.
SECTION 3.03.
SECTION 3.04.
SECTION 3.05.

SECTION 4.01.
SECTION 4.02.
SECTION 4.08.
SECTION 4.04.
SECTION 4.05.
SECTION 4.06.

SECTION 4.07.
SECTION 4.08.

ARTICLE I
REDEMPTION OF BONDS

PRIVILEGE OF REDEMPTION .....cccoiiiiiiiicceee e 24
SELECTION OF BONDS TO BE REDEEMED...........cccccoviiinene. 24
NOTICE OF REDEMPTION ....cccoiiiiiiiiiiiec e 24
REDEMPTION OF PORTIONS OF BONDS..........cccooiiiiiiiiee 25
PAYMENT OF REDEEMED BONDS. ........cccoooiiiiiiice 25
ARTICLE IV
SECURITY; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; APPLICATION OF GROSS REVENUES

BONDS NOT TO BE INDEBTEDNESS OF ISSUER................... 26
SECURITY FOR BONDS ... 26
SEPARATE ACCOUNTS ... 26
CONSTRUCTION FUND .....ooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 27
CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS ..o 28
DISPOSITION OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND GROSS

REVENUES ... 29
REBATE FUND ....ooviiii s 36
RATE STABILIZATION FUND .....c.cooiiiieiec e 36
INVESTMENTS ... 37

SECTION 4.09.



SECTION 5.01.
SECTION 5.02.
SECTION 5.03.

SECTION 5.04

SECTION 5.05.
SECTION 5.06.
SECTION 5.07.
SECTION 5.08.
SECTION 5.09.
SECTION 5.10.

SECTION 5.11.
SECTION 5.12.
SECTION 5.13.
SECTION 5.14.
SECTION 5.15.
SECTION 5.16.

SECTION 5.17.

SECTION 5.18

SECTION 6.01.
SECTION 6.02.
SECTION 6.03.
SECTION 6.04.

SECTION 7.01.
SECTION 7.02.
SECTION 7.08.

SECTION 7.04.
SECTION 7.05.
SECTION 7.06.

ARTICLE V

COVENANTS
GENERAL ... 38
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE ... 38
ANNUAL BUDGET ..o 38
RATES .o e 38
BOOKS AND RECORDS ..o 39
ANNUAL AUDIT ..ottt 39
NO MORTGAGE OR SALE OF THE SYSTEM .......cccoovviiiiinn. 40
INSURANCE ... 41
NO FREE SERVICE........cooi e 42
NO IMPAIRMENT OF RIGHTS; NO COMPETING
SYSTEM Lo 42
COMPULSORY CONNECTIONS ... 42
ENFORCEMENT OF CHARGES ..o 42
UNIT BILLS ..o 43
COVENANTS WITH CREDIT BANKS AND INSURERS........... 43
CONSULTING ENGINEERS ........oooiiiee e 43
FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION COVENANTS; TAXABLE
BONDS . s 43
COVENANTS RELATING TO FEDERAL SUBSIDY
BONDS .. 44
INSPECTION......coiiiiiiiie e 44

ARTICLE VI

SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS AND ADDITIONAL BONDS

SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS. ... 46
ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL BONDS.......cccooiiieieieeeeeen 46
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES ... 49
ACCESSION OF SUBORDINATED INDEBTEDNESS TO
PARITY STATUS WITH BONDS ..o 49

ARTICLE VII

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES

EVENTS OF DEFAULT .....ooiiiiiieee e 50
REMEDIES ... 50
DIRECTIONS TO TRUSTEE AS TO REMEDIAL
PROCEEDINGS ... ol
REMEDIES CUMULATIVE ....oooiiiiee e 51
WAIVER OF DEFAULT .....ooiiie e 51
APPLICATION OF MONEYS AFTER DEFAULT........ccccviinens ol
CONTROL BY INSURER ......cooiiiiiiiiiiiie e 92

SECTION 7.07.



SECTION 8.01.

SECTION 8.02.

SECTION 8.03.

SECTION 9.01.

SECTION 10.01.
SECTION 10.02.
SECTION 10.03.
SECTION 10.04.
SECTION 10.05.
SECTION 10.06.
SECTION 10.07.
SECTION 10.08.
SECTION 10.09.
SECTION 10.10.
SECTION 10.11.
SECTION 10.12.

SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTIONS

SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITHOUT
BONDHOLDERS' CONSENT .....oooiiiiicccse e
SUPPLEMENTAL RESOLUTION WITH BONDHOLDERS'
AND INSURER'S CONSENT ......ooiiiiieee e
AMENDMENT WITH CONSENT OF INSURER ONLY ............

ARTICLE IX
DEFEASANCE

DEFEASANCE ... e

ARTICLE X
MISCELLANEQOUS

CAPITAL APPRECIATION BONDS .......cccooiiiiiiieese e
SALE OF BONDS ..o
SEVERABILITY OF INVALID PROVISIONS..........cccoiiiiine
VALIDATION AUTHORIZED .......ccooviiiiiiiieieeeeeeeee
EFFECT OF COVENANTS ..o
FURTHER ACTS ...
HEADINGS NOT PART OF RESOLUTION........ccccooiiiiiieine
BENEFICIARIES UNDER RESOLUTION ......ccoooiiiiieiienieniee
ACTION REQUIRED ON NON-BUSINESS DAY ......cccoeiivennn.
GOVERNING LAW; VENUE ........ooiiie e
REPEAL OF INCONSISTENT RESOLUTIONS...........ccoveiiieen.
EFFECTIVE DATE ..o



RESOLUTION NO. 45-2020

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS FROM TIME TO TIME
FOR THE PRINCIPAL PURPOSES OF FINANCING AND REFINANCING
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND EQUIPPING OF CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM
AND FOR OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES; PLEDGING THE NET
REVENUES OF THE CITY’S CONSOLIDATED UTILITY SYSTEM TO
SECURE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON
BONDS ISSUED HEREUNDER; PROVIDING FOR PAYMENT OF THE
BONDS FROM SUCH REVENUES; PROVIDING FOR THE RIGHTS OF
THE HOLDERS OF BONDS ISSUED HEREUNDER; MAKING CERTAIN
OTHER COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS IN CONNECTION WITH
BONDS ISSUED HEREUNDER; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE
DATE FOR THIS RESOLUTION.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA that:

ARTICLE I
GENERAL

SECTION 1.01. DEFINITIONS. When used in this Resolution, the following terms
shall have the following meanings, unless the context clearly otherwise requires:

"Accreted Value' shall mean, as of any date of computation with respect to any Capital
Appreciation Bond, an amount equal to the principal amount of such Capital Appreciation Bond
(the principal amount at its initial offering) plus the interest accrued on such Capital Appreciation
Bond from the date of delivery to the original purchasers thereof to the Interest Date next preceding
the date of computation or the date of computation if an Interest Date, such interest to accrue at a
rate not exceeding the legal rate, compounded semiannually, plus, with respect to matters related
to the payment upon redemption or acceleration of the Capital Appreciation Bonds, if such date of
computation shall not be an Interest Date, a portion of the difference between the Accreted Value
as of the immediately preceding Interest Date and the Accreted Value as of the immediately
succeeding Interest Date, calculated based on the assumption that Accreted Value accrues during
any semi-annual period in equal daily amounts on the basis of a 360-day year.

"Act" shall mean the City Charter, Chapter 166, Part Il, Florida Statutes, and other
applicable provisions of law.

"Additional Bonds'" shall mean the obligations issued at any time under the provisions of
Section 6.02 hereof on parity with any Outstanding Bonds.

"Annual Audit" shall mean the annual audit prepared pursuant to the requirements of
Section 5.06 hereof.



"Annual Budget' shall mean the annual budget prepared pursuant to the requirements of
Section 5.03 hereof.

"Annual Debt Service™ shall mean the aggregate amount of Debt Service on the Bonds
for each applicable Fiscal Year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any interest payments or principal
payments or Sinking Fund Installments with respect to any Outstanding Bonds or proposed
Additional Bonds that are due and payable on October 1, shall be considered to be due and payable
on the immediately preceding September 30 for purposes of determining Annual Debt Service for
such Bonds hereunder.

"Authorized Investments' shall mean any investments that may be made by the Issuer
under applicable law and which are allowed under the Issuer's investment policy.

"Authorized Issuer Officer' shall mean the City Manager (or such person’s designee),
and when used in reference to any act or document, also means any other person authorized by
resolution of the Issuer to perform such act or sign such document.

""Bond Counsel™ shall mean Nabors, Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. or any other attorney at
law or firm of attorneys, of nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax
exemption of interest on obligations issued by states and political subdivisions, and duly admitted
to practice law before the highest court of any state of the United States of America.

"Bond Insurance Policy' shall mean the municipal bond new issue insurance policy or
policies issued by an Insurer guaranteeing the payment of the principal of and interest on any
portion of the Bonds.

""Bondholder* or ""Holder™ or "*holder™ or any similar term, when used with reference
to a Bond or Bonds, shall mean any person who shall be the registered owner of any Outstanding
Bond or Bonds as provided in the registration books of the Issuer.

"Bonds' shall mean any Bonds, notes or other forms of indebtedness issued and
designated as Bonds pursuant to this Resolution and any Subordinated Indebtedness which accedes
to the status of Bonds pursuant to Section 6.04 hereof.

""Business Day"" shall mean a day other than (i) a Saturday, Sunday or day on which banks
located in the city in which the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar and Paying Agent
is located are required or authorized by law or executive order to close for business, and (ii) a day
on which the New York Stock Exchange is closed.

""Capital Appreciation Bonds™ shall mean those Bonds of a Series so designated under
the authority of the Issuer, whether by Supplemental Resolution, purchase contract, or otherwise,
which may be either Serial Bonds or Term Bonds and which shall bear interest payable at maturity
or redemption. In the case of Capital Appreciation Bonds that are convertible to Bonds with
interest payable prior to maturity or redemption of such Bonds, such Bonds shall be considered
Capital Appreciation Bonds only during the period of time prior to such conversion.

""Capital Government Grant," when used with respect to the System, shall mean any
sum of money heretofore or hereafter received by the Issuer from the United States of America or



any agency thereof or from the State of Florida or any agency or political subdivision thereof as
or on account of a grant or contribution, not repayable by the Issuer, for or with respect to the
construction, acquisition or other development of an addition, extension or improvement to any
part of the System or any costs of any such construction, acquisition or development.

"Clerk™ shall mean the City Clerk of the Issuer, or such other person as may be duly
authorized to act on his or her behalf.

""Code"" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations
and rules thereunder in effect or proposed.

"Connection Fees" shall mean, collectively, the Sewer Connection Fees, the Water
Connection Fees, and any similar charge imposed and related to capacity of any other portion of
the System.

"Construction Fund™ shall mean the fund established pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof.

"Consulting Engineers' shall mean any engineering firm of reputation for skill and
experience with respect to the construction, maintenance and operation of facilities similar to the
facilities that make up all or a portion of the System, which is duly licensed under the laws of the
State of Florida and designated by the Issuer to perform the duties of the Consulting Engineers
under the provisions hereof.

""Cost," when used in connection with a Project, shall mean (1) the Issuer's cost of physical
construction; (2) costs of acquisition by or for the Issuer of such Project; (3) costs of land and
interests therein and the cost of the Issuer incidental to such acquisition; (4) the cost of any
indemnity and surety bonds and premiums for insurance during construction; (5) all interest due
to be paid on the Bonds and other obligations relating to the System during the period of acquisition
and construction of such Project and for such period subsequent to completion as the Issuer shall
determine and shall be allowable under applicable provisions of the Code; (6) engineering, legal
and other consultant fees and expenses; (7) costs and expenses of the financing, including audits,
fees and expenses of any Paying Agent, Registrar, escrow agent or depository; (8) amounts, if any,
required by this Resolution to be paid into the Interest Account upon the issuance of any Series of
Bonds; (9) payments, when due (whether at the maturity of principal or the due date of interest or
upon redemption) on any indebtedness of the Issuer (other than the Bonds) incurred for a Project
for the System; (10) costs of machinery, equipment and supplies and reserves required by the
Issuer for the commencement of operation of such Project; and (11) any other costs properly
attributable to such construction or acquisition, as determined by generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to public utility systems similar to the System, and shall include
reimbursement to the Issuer for any such items of Cost heretofore paid by the Issuer and interest
on any interfund loan related thereto. Any Supplemental Resolution may provide for additional
items to be included in the aforesaid Costs.

"Counterparty' shall mean the entity entering into a Hedge Agreement with the Issuer.
Counterparty shall also include any guarantor of such entity's obligations under such Hedge
Agreement.



"Credit Bank™ shall mean as to any particular Series of Bonds, the Person (other than an
Insurer) providing a letter of credit, a line of credit or other credit or liquidity facility, as designated
in the Supplemental Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds.

""Credit Facility' shall mean as to any particular Series of Bonds, an irrevocable letter of
credit, a line of credit or other credit or legal liquidity facility (other than a Bond Insurance Policy),
as approved in the Supplemental Resolution providing for the issuance of such Bonds.

""Debt Service' shall mean, at any time, the aggregate amount in the then applicable period
of time of (1) interest required to be paid on the Outstanding Bonds during such period of time,
except to the extent that such interest is to be paid from deposits in the Interest Account or
Construction Fund made from Bond proceeds for such purpose, (2) principal of Outstanding Serial
Bonds maturing in such period of time, and (3) the Sinking Fund Installments scheduled to be paid
during such period of time. For purposes of this definition, (A) all amounts payable on a Capital
Appreciation Bond shall be considered a principal payment in the year it becomes due, (B) with
respect to debt service on any Bonds which relate to a Qualified Hedge Agreement, interest on
such Bonds during the term of such Qualified Hedge Agreement shall be deemed to be the Hedge
Payments coming due during such period of time, (C) if any Series of Bonds has 25% or more of
the aggregate principal amount of such Series coming due in any one year, Debt Service shall be
determined on such Series during such period of time as if the principal of and interest on such
Series were being paid from the date of issuance thereof in substantially equal annual amounts
over a period of 25 years, (D) the amount, if any, on deposit in the Reserve Account (or any
subaccount thereof), on any date of calculation of Debt Service shall be deducted from the amount
of principal due at the final maturity of the Bonds which are secured by such Reserve Account (or
subaccount thereof) and in each preceding year until such amount is exhausted, and (E) with
respect to debt service on any Federal Subsidy Bonds, when determining the interest on such Bonds
for any particular Interest Date the amount of the corresponding Federal Subsidy Payment shall be
deducted from the amount of interest which is due and payable to the holders of such Bonds on
the Interest Date, but only to the extent that the Issuer reasonably believes that it will be in receipt
of such Federal Subsidy Payment on or prior to such Interest Date.

""Debt Service Reserve Fund Policy Agreement shall mean any agreement securing the
obligation of the Issuer to repay Policy Costs associated with a Reserve Account Letter of Credit
or Reserve Account Insurance Policy.

"Federal Securities™ shall mean non-callable direct obligations of the United States of
America (including obligations issued or held in book-entry form on the books of the Department
of Treasury) or non-callable obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States of America. All such obligations shall not permit redemption
prior to maturity at the option of the obligor.

"Federal Subsidy Bonds™ shall mean bonds issued under Section 54AA of the Code,
Section 1400U-2 of the Code or any other applicable provision of the Code, the interest on which
is not exempt from federal income taxation, with respect to which the Issuer elects to receive, or
is otherwise entitled to receive, Federal Subsidy Payments from the United States Department of
the Treasury.



""Federal Subsidy Payments™ shall mean the direct payments made by the United States
Department of the Treasury to the Issuer with respect to any Federal Subsidy Bonds pursuant to
Sections 54AA(g), 6431 and 1400U-2 of the Code, or any other applicable provision of the Code.

"Fiscal Year™ shall mean the period commencing on October 1 of each year and
continuing through the next succeeding September 30, or such other period as may be prescribed
by law.

"Fitch' means Fitch Ratings and any assigns and successors thereto.

""Governing Body" shall mean the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida, or its successor in function.

"Gross Revenues™ shall mean all income and moneys received by the Issuer from the
rates, fees, rentals, charges and other income to be made and collected by the Issuer for the use of
the products, services and facilities to be provided by the System, or otherwise received by the
Issuer or accruing to the Issuer in the management and operation of the System, calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to public utility systems
similar to the System, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (1) proceeds
from use and occupancy insurance on the System, (2) Investment Earnings, and (3) Operating
Government Grants. "Gross Revenues” shall not include (A) Capital Government Grants, (B)
proceeds of Bonds or other Issuer debt, (C) moneys deposited to the Rate Stabilization Fund from
the Utility Reserve Fund, (D) Connection Fees, (E) proceeds of Special Assessments, and (F) any
gain resulting from the valuation of investment securities or Hedge Agreements at market value
and any other gain that does not require or result in the receipt of cash.

""Hedge Agreement’ shall mean an agreement in writing between the Issuer and the
Counterparty pursuant to which (1) the Issuer agrees to pay to the Counterparty an amount, either
at one time or periodically, which may, but is not required to, be determined by reference to the
amount of interest (which may be at a fixed or variable rate) payable on a notional amount specified
in such agreement during the period specified in such agreement and (2) the Counterparty agrees
to pay to the Issuer an amount, either at one time or periodically, which may, but is not required
to, be determined by reference to the amount of interest (which may be at a fixed or variable rate)
payable on all or a portion of a notional amount specified in such agreement during the period
specified in such agreement. Hedge Agreement shall also include any financial product or
agreement which is used by the Issuer as a hedging device with respect to its obligations to pay
interest on Bonds, or any portion thereof, which is designated by the Issuer as a "Hedge
Agreement."

""Hedge Payments'* shall mean any amounts payable by the Issuer as interest on the related
notional amount under a Qualified Hedge Agreement; excluding, however, any payments due as a
penalty or a fee or by virtue of termination of a Qualified Hedge Agreement or any obligation to
provide collateral.

""Hedge Receipts’ shall mean any amounts receivable by the Issuer on the related notional
amount under a Qualified Hedge Agreement.



"Insurer' shall mean such Person as shall be in the business of insuring or guaranteeing
the payment of principal of and interest on municipal securities and whose credit is such that, at
the time of any action or consent required or permitted by the Insurer pursuant to the terms of this
Resolution, all municipal securities insured or guaranteed by it are then rated, because of such
insurance or guarantee, in one of the three highest categories (without regard to gradations, such
as "+" or "-"or "1, 2 or 3" of such categories) by at least one of the Rating Agencies.

"Interest Account™ shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established
pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof.

"Interest Date™ or ""interest payment date'" shall be such date or dates for the payment
of interest on the Bonds as provided pursuant to Section 2.01 hereof and by Supplemental
Resolution.

"Investment Earnings' shall mean all income and earnings derived from the investment
of moneys in the funds and accounts established hereunder, other than the Rebate Fund.

"Issuer™ shall mean the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, a municipal corporation and
public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida, or any successor thereto.

""Maximum Annual Debt Service' shall mean the largest aggregate amount of the Annual
Debt Service becoming due in any Fiscal Year in which Bonds are Outstanding.

"Maximum Interest Rate' shall mean, with respect to any particular Variable Rate
Bonds, a numerical rate of interest, which shall be set forth in, or determined in accordance with,
the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of such Bonds, or in such other
documentation relating to such Variable Rate Bonds, that shall be the maximum rate of interest
such Bonds may at any particular time bear.

""Mayor"" shall mean the Mayor or Vice-Mayor of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
and such other person as shall be duly authorized to act on his or her behalf.

""Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors Service, and any assigns and successors thereto.
""Net Revenues' shall mean Gross Revenues less Operating Expenses.

""Operating Expenses' shall mean the Issuer's expenses for operation, maintenance and
repairs with respect to the System and shall include, without limiting the generality of the
foregoing, administration and other indirect expenses of the Issuer related and apportioned to the
System, payments for the purchase of materials essential to or used in the operation of the System,
including bulk purchases of water, sewage, or electric services, fees for the management of the
System or any portion thereof, accounting, legal and engineering expenses, ordinary and current
rentals of equipment or other property, refunds of moneys lawfully due to others, payments to
others for disposal of sewage or other wastes, payments to pension, retirement, health and
hospitalization funds, and any other expenses required to be paid for or with respect to proper
operation or maintenance of the System, including appropriate reserves therefor, all to the extent
properly attributable to the System in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to public utility systems similar to the System, and disbursements for the expenses,



liabilities and compensation of any Paying Agent or Registrar under this Resolution, but does not
include any costs or expenses in respect of original construction or improvement other than
expenditures necessary to prevent an interruption or continuance of an interruption of service or
of Gross Revenues or minor capital expenditures necessary for the proper and economical
operation or maintenance of the System, or any payments in lieu of taxes or franchise fees made
to the Issuer's general fund, or any provision for interest, depreciation, amortization or similar
charges, any non-cash charges, or any loss resulting from the valuation of investment securities or
Hedge Agreements at market value and any other loss that does not require or result in the
expenditure of cash.

""Operating Government Grant," when used with respect to the System, shall mean any
sum of money heretofore or hereafter received by the Issuer from the United States of America or
any agency thereof or from the State of Florida or any agency or political subdivision thereof as
or on account of a grant or contribution, not repayable by the Issuer, for the purpose of funding
Operating Expenses or paying Debt Service on Bonds or otherwise allowed by the terms thereof
to be used to pay Operating Expenses or Debt Service.

"Operation and Maintenance Fund™ shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section
4.05(B) hereof.

"Outstanding,™ when used with reference to Bonds and as of any particular date, shall
describe all Bonds theretofore and thereupon being authenticated and delivered except, (1) any
Bond in lieu of which other Bond or Bonds have been issued under agreement to replace lost,
mutilated or destroyed Bonds, (2) any Bond surrendered by the Holder thereof in exchange for
other Bond or Bonds under Sections 2.05 and 2.06 hereof, (3) Bonds deemed to have been paid
pursuant to Section 9.01 hereof and (4) Bonds cancelled after purchase in the open market or
because of payment at, or redemption prior to, maturity.

"Paying Agent™ shall mean for each Series of Bonds, the paying agent appointed by the
Issuer for such Series of Bonds and its successor or assigns, if any.

"Person™ shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint
stock company, a trust, any unincorporated organization, governmental entity or other legal entity.

"Pledged Funds' shall mean (1) the Net Revenues, and (2) until applied in accordance
with the provisions of this Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds and
accounts established hereunder, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys therein shall
be required to pay the Operating Expenses of the System in accordance with the terms hereof, and
(C) any moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account if such moneys shall
be pledged solely for the payment of a Series of Bonds for which it was established in accordance
with the provisions hereof.

"Policy Costs'* shall mean, collectively, the repayment of draws, reasonable expenses and
interest related to a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit.

"Prerefunded Obligations® shall mean any bonds or other obligations of any state of the
United States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local governmental unit of any such
state (1) which are (A) not callable prior to maturity or (B) as to which irrevocable instructions



have been given to the fiduciary for such bonds or other obligations by the obligor to give due
notice of redemption and to call such bonds for redemption on the date or dates specified in such
instructions, (2) which are fully secured as to principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest
by a fund held by a fiduciary consisting only of cash or Federal Securities, secured in substantially
the manner set forth in Section 9.01 hereof, which fund may be applied only to the payment of
such principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on such bonds or other obligations on
the maturity date or dates thereof or the specified redemption date or dates pursuant to such
irrevocable instructions, as the case may be, (3) as to which the principal of and interest on the
Federal Securities, which have been deposited in such fund along with any cash on deposit in such
fund are sufficient, as verified by an independent certified public accountant or other expert in
such matters, to pay principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest on the bonds or other
obligations on the maturity date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or dates specified in the
irrevocable instructions referred to in clause (1) above and are not available to satisfy any other
claims, including those against the fiduciary holding the same, and (4) which are rated in the
highest rating category (without regard to gradations, such as "+" or "-" or "1, 2 or 3" of such
categories) of one of the Rating Agencies.

"Principal Account™ shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established
pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof.

"Project™ shall mean any structure, property or facility for public use which the Issuer
from time to time may determine to construct, acquire or equip as part of the System, together with
all equipment, structures and other facilities necessary or appropriate in connection therewith
which are financed in whole or in part with the indebtedness secured by this Resolution. This term
is to be broadly construed as including any lawful undertaking which will accrue to the benefit of
the System, including, without limitation, financing improvements to the Issuer's facilities, joint
ventures and acquisition of partial interests or contractual rights, and including modification,
disposal, replacement or cancellation of a Project previously authorized, should such modification,
disposal, replacement or cancellation be permitted under this Resolution.

"Qualified Hedge Agreement' shall mean a Hedge Agreement with a Counterparty that
at the time it enters into such Hedge Agreement is rated "A-" or better by Standard & Poor's and
"A3" or better by Moody's.

"Rate Consultant™ shall mean any accountant, engineer or consultant or firm of
accountants, engineers or consultants chosen by the Issuer with reputation for skill and experience
in reviewing and recommending rates, fees and charges for utility systems similar to the System.

"Rate Stabilization Fund™ shall mean the "Rate Stabilization Fund" established pursuant
to Section 4.05(F) hereof.

""Rating Agencies' means Fitch, Moody's and Standard & Poor's.

"Rebate Fund™ shall mean the Rebate Fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(E)
hereof.



""Redemption Price" shall mean, with respect to any Bond or portion thereof, the principal
amount or portion thereof, plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon redemption thereof
pursuant to such Bond or this Resolution.

""Refunding Securities' shall mean Federal Securities and Prerefunded Obligations.

"Registrar' shall mean for each Series of Bonds, the bond registrar appointed by the
Issuer for such Series of Bonds and its successor or assigns, if any.

"Renewal and Replacement Fund' shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section
4.05(D) hereof.

""Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement"* shall mean, on the date of calculation,
an amount of money equal to (1) five percent of the Gross Revenues received by the Issuer in the
immediately preceding Fiscal Year, or (2) such greater or lesser amount as may be certified to the
Issuer by the Consulting Engineers as an amount appropriate for the purposes of this Resolution.

"Reserve Account™ shall mean the separate account in the Sinking Fund established
pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof.

"Reserve Account Insurance Policy" shall mean the insurance policy deposited in the
Reserve Account in lieu of or in partial substitution for cash on deposit therein pursuant to Section
4.06(B)(4).

""Reserve Account Letter of Credit™ shall mean a letter of credit or line of credit or other
credit facility (other than a Reserve Account Insurance Policy) deposited in the Reserve Account
in lieu of or in partial substitution for cash on deposit therein pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof.

"Reserve Account Requirement™ shall mean, as of any date of calculation for the
Reserve Account or subaccount therein, an amount equal to the lesser of (1) Maximum Annual
Debt Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, (2) 125% of the average Annual Debt
Service for all Outstanding Bonds secured thereby, or (3) the maximum amount of Bond proceeds
which may be deposited to the Reserve Account without subjecting the same to yield restriction
under the Code, or causing interest on any of the Bonds secured thereby (other than Taxable
Bonds) to be included in gross income for purposes of federal income taxation or otherwise
violating applicable provisions of the Code; provided, however, the Issuer may establish by
Supplemental Resolution a different Reserve Account Requirement with respect to any particular
Series of Bonds pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof, which Reserve Account Requirement may
be $0.00. In computing the Reserve Account Requirement in respect of a Series of Bonds that
constitutes Variable Rate Bonds, the interest rate on such Bonds shall be assumed to be (A) if such
Variable Rate Bonds have been Outstanding for at least 12 months prior to the date of calculation,
the highest of (i) the actual rate of interest on the date of calculation, (ii) the average interest rate
borne by such Variable Rate Bonds for the 12-month period immediately preceding each date of
calculation, and (iii) the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index most recently published prior to the
time of calculation, and (B) if such Variable Rate Bonds have not been Outstanding for at least 12
months prior to the date of calculation, the higher of (i) the actual rate of interest on the date of
calculation, and (ii) the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index most recently published prior to the time



of calculation. The Reserve Account Requirement shall be calculated as of April 1 of each year
with respect to the next succeeding Fiscal Year.

""Resolution™ shall mean this Resolution, as the same may from time to time be amended,
modified or supplemented by Supplemental Resolution.

"Revenue Fund' shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 4.05(A) hereof.
""Serial Bonds' shall mean all of the Bonds other than the Term Bonds.

"Series" shall mean all the Bonds delivered on original issuance in a simultaneous
transaction and identified pursuant to Section 2.01 hereof or a Supplemental Resolution
authorizing the issuance by the Issuer of such Bonds as a separate Series, regardless of variations
in maturity, interest rate, Sinking Fund Installments or other provisions.

"Sewer Connection Fees" shall mean the fees and charges, if any, which relate to
acquiring, constructing, equipping or expanding the capacity of the sewer facilities of the System
for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such
acquisition, construction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the sewer facilities or expansion
thereof in order to serve new users of the sewer facilities of the System, to the extent the same are
lawfully levied, collected and pledged. "Sewer Connection Fees" include those fees and charges
currently known under Florida law as "impact fees" but shall not include fees and charges imposed
for the cost of physically hooking up or connecting to the System.

""Sinking Fund"* shall mean the fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof.

""Sinking Fund Installment™ shall mean an amount designated as such by Supplemental
Resolution and established with respect to the Term Bonds.

""Special Assessments’ means any and all assessments against property benefited by the
System or any part thereof.

""Standard and Poor's" or ""'S&P" shall mean S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of
Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC, and any assigns and successors thereto.

"'State"" shall mean the State of Florida.

""Subordinated Indebtedness' shall mean that indebtedness of the Issuer, subordinate and
junior to the Bonds, issued in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.01 hereof or deemed
subordinate and junior to the Bonds in accordance with the provisions hereof or in accordance with
the provisions of such Subordinated Indebtedness.

"Supplemental Resolution™ shall mean any resolution of the Issuer amending or
supplementing this Resolution enacted and becoming effective in accordance with the terms of
Sections 8.01, 8.02 and 8.03 hereof.

"System™ shall mean any and all water production, transmission, treatment and
distribution facilities, sewage collection, transmission, treatment and disposal facilities, reclaimed

10



water (reuse) facilities, and electric production, transmission and distribution facilities now owned
or hereafter owned by the Issuer, which System shall also include any and all improvements,
extensions and additions thereto hereafter constructed or acquired either from the proceeds of
Bonds or from any other sources, together with all property, real or personal, tangible or intangible,
now or hereafter owned or used in connection therewith, including all contractual rights, rights to
capacity and obligations or undertakings associated therewith. "System™ shall also include any
other utility facilities if and to the extent the Issuer determines by Supplemental Resolution to
include such utility or facilities within the System as described herein.

"Taxable Bonds' means any Bond, other than Federal Subsidy Bonds, which states, in
the body thereof, that the interest income thereon is includable in the gross income of the Holder
thereof for federal income taxation purposes or that such interest is subject to federal income
taxation. Except as otherwise provided herein, Taxable Bonds shall not include Federal Subsidy
Bonds.

"Term Bonds™ shall mean those Bonds which shall be designated as Term Bonds hereby
or by Supplemental Resolution.

"Term Bonds Redemption Account™ shall mean the separate account in the Sinking
Fund established pursuant to Section 4.05(C) hereof.

""Utility Reserve Fund™ shall mean the fund created pursuant to Section 4.05(G) hereof.

"Variable Rate Bonds' shall mean Bonds issued with a variable, adjustable, convertible
or other similar rate which is not fixed in percentage for the entire term thereof at the date of issue.

"Water Connection Fees" shall mean the fees and charges, if any, which relate to
acquiring, constructing, equipping or expanding the capacity of the water facilities of the System
for the purpose of paying or reimbursing the equitable share of the capital cost relating to such
acquisition, construction, expansion or equipping of capacity of the water facilities or expansion
thereof in order to serve new users of the water facilities of the System, to the extent the same are
lawfully levied, collected and pledged. "Water Connection Fees" include those fees and charges
currently known under Florida law as "impact fees" but shall not include fees and charges imposed
for the cost of physically hooking up or connecting to the System.

The terms "herein,” "hereunder,"” "hereby," "hereto,” "hereof,” and any similar terms, shall refer to
this Resolution; the term "heretofore™ shall mean before the date of adoption of this Resolution;
and the term "hereafter” shall mean after the date of adoption of this Resolution.

Words importing the masculine gender include every other gender.
Words importing the singular number include the plural number, and vice versa.

SECTION 1.02. AUTHORITY FOR RESOLUTION. This Resolution is adopted
pursuant to the provisions of the Act. The Issuer has ascertained and hereby determined that
adoption of this Resolution is necessary to carry out the powers, purposes and duties expressly
provided in the Act, that each and every matter and thing as to which provision is made herein is
necessary in order to carry out and effectuate the purposes of the Issuer in accordance with the Act

11



and to carry out and effectuate the plan and purpose of the Act, and that the powers of the Issuer
herein exercised are in each case exercised in accordance with the provisions of the Act and in
furtherance of the purposes of the Issuer.

SECTION 1.03. RESOLUTION TO CONSTITUTE CONTRACT. In
consideration of the purchase and acceptance of any or all of the Bonds by those who shall hold
the same from time to time, the provisions of this Resolution shall be a part of the contract of the
Issuer with the Holders of the Bonds, and shall be deemed to be and shall constitute a contract
between the Issuer, the Holders from time to time of the Bonds and any Insurer or Credit Bank.
The pledge made in the Resolution and the provisions, covenants and agreements herein set forth
to be performed by or on behalf of the Issuer shall be for the equal benefit, protection and security
of the Holders of any and all of said Bonds and any Insurer or Credit Bank, but only to the extent
and in accordance with the terms hereof. All of the Bonds, regardless of the time or times of their
issuance or maturity, shall be of equal rank without preference, priority or distinction of any of the
Bonds over any other thereof except as expressly provided in or pursuant to this Resolution.

SECTION 1.04. FINDINGS. ltis hereby ascertained, determined and declared that:

(A)  The Issuer has heretofore determined that it is necessary and in the best interests of
the health, safety and welfare of the Issuer and its inhabitants that the Issuer own, operate, maintain,
improve, manage and expand the System.

(B)  Itisnecessary and desirable and in the best interests of the Issuer to borrow moneys
from time to time to improve and expand the System and to refinance certain indebtedness related
to the System.

(C)  The Bonds issued hereunder shall be secured by the Pledged Funds as provided
herein and such Pledged Funds have not been pledged or encumbered except with respect to certain
previously issued indebtedness which shall be refunded simultaneously with or prior to the first
issuance of Bonds hereunder.

(D)  The estimated Gross Revenues to be derived in each year hereafter from the
operation of the System will be sufficient to pay all the Operating Expenses, the principal of and
interest on the Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness, as the same become due, and all other
payments provided for in this Resolution.

(E)  The principal of and interest on the Bonds and Subordinated Indebtedness and all
other payments provided for in this Resolution will be paid solely from the Pledged Funds in
accordance with the terms hereof; and the ad valorem taxing power of the Issuer will never be
necessary or authorized to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and Subordinated
Indebtedness, or to make any other payments provided for in this Resolution, and neither the Bonds
nor any Subordinated Indebtedness shall constitute a lien upon the System or upon any other
property whatsoever of or in the Issuer.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

12



ARTICLE Il
AUTHORIZATION, TERMS, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS

SECTION 2.01. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS. This Resolution creates an
issue of Bonds of the Issuer to be designated as "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated
Utility Revenue Bonds" which may be issued in one or more Series as hereinafter provided. The
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds which may be executed and delivered under this
Resolution is not limited except as is or may hereafter be provided in this Resolution or as limited
by the Act.

The Bonds may, if and when authorized by the Issuer pursuant to this Resolution, be issued
in one or more Series, with such further appropriate particular designations added to or
incorporated in such title for the Bonds of any particular Series as the Issuer may determine and
as may be necessary to distinguish such Bonds from the Bonds of any other Series. Each Bond
shall bear upon its face the designation so determined for the Series to which it belongs.

The Bonds shall be issued for such purpose or purposes; shall bear interest at such rate or
rates not exceeding the maximum rate permitted by law; and shall be payable in lawful money of
the United States of America on such dates; all as determined by Supplemental Resolution.

The Bonds shall be issued in such denominations and such form, whether coupon or
registered; shall be dated such date; shall bear such numbers; shall be payable in such manner and
at such place or places; shall contain such redemption provisions; shall have such Paying Agents
and Registrars; shall mature in such years and amounts; shall have such Interest Dates and the
proceeds shall be used in such manner; all as determined or provided for by Supplemental
Resolution. The Issuer may issue Bonds which may be secured by a Credit Facility or by a Bond
Insurance Policy all as shall be determined by Supplemental Resolution. All other terms and
provisions with respect to any Series of Bonds shall be determined in accordance with a
Supplemental Resolution. The Governing Body may delegate approval of the terms, details and
sale of a Series of Bonds to an Authorized Issuer Officer pursuant to a Supplemental Resolution.

SECTION 2.02. EXECUTION OF BONDS. The Bonds shall be executed in the
name of the Issuer with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor, and the official seal of the
Issuer shall be imprinted thereon, attested and countersigned with the manual or facsimile
signature of the Clerk. In case any one or more of the officers who shall have signed or sealed any
of the Bonds or whose facsimile signature shall appear thereon shall cease to be such officer of the
Issuer before the Bonds so signed and sealed have been actually sold and delivered, such Bonds
may nevertheless be sold and delivered as herein provided and may be issued as if the person who
signed or sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such office. Any Bond may be signed and
sealed on behalf of the Issuer by such person who at the actual time of the execution of such Bond
shall hold the proper office of the Issuer, although at the date of such Bond such person may not
have held such office or may not have been so authorized. The Issuer may adopt and use for such
purposes the facsimile signatures of any such persons who shall have held such offices at any time
after the date of the adoption of this Resolution, notwithstanding that either or both shall have
ceased to hold such office at the time the Bonds shall be actually sold and delivered.

13



SECTION 2.03. AUTHENTICATION. No Bond of any Series shall be secured
hereunder or entitled to the benefit hereof or shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose unless
there shall be manually endorsed on such Bond a certificate of authentication by the Registrar or
such other entity as may be approved by the Issuer for such purpose. Such certificate on any Bond
shall be conclusive evidence that such Bond has been duly authenticated and delivered under this
Resolution. The form of such certificate shall be substantially in the form provided in Section 2.07
hereof.

SECTION 2.04. TEMPORARY BONDS. Until the definitive Bonds of any Series
are prepared, the Issuer may execute, in the same manner as is provided in Section 2.02 hereof,
and deliver, upon authentication by the Registrar pursuant to Section 2.03 hereof, in lieu of
definitive Bonds, but subject to the same provisions, limitations and conditions as the definitive
Bonds, except as to the denominations thereof, one or more temporary Bonds substantially of the
tenor of the definitive Bonds in lieu of which such temporary Bond or Bonds are issued, in
denominations authorized by the Issuer by subsequent resolution and with such omissions,
insertions and variations as may be appropriate to temporary Bonds. The Issuer, at its own
expense, shall prepare and execute definitive Bonds, which shall be authenticated by the Registrar.
Upon the surrender of such temporary Bonds for exchange, the Registrar, without charge to the
Holder thereof, shall deliver in exchange therefor definitive Bonds, of the same aggregate principal
amount and Series and maturity as the temporary Bonds surrendered. Until so exchanged, the
temporary Bonds shall in all respects be entitled to the same benefits and security as definitive
Bonds issued pursuant to this Resolution. All temporary Bonds surrendered in exchange for
another temporary Bond or Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds shall be forthwith cancelled
by the Registrar.

SECTION 2.05. BONDS MUTILATED, DESTROYED, STOLEN OR LOST. In
case any Bond shall become mutilated, or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer may, in its
discretion, issue and deliver, and the Registrar shall authenticate, a new Bond of like tenor as the
Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, in exchange and substitution for such mutilated Bond
upon surrender and cancellation of such mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for the Bond
destroyed, stolen or lost, and upon the Holder furnishing the Issuer and the Registrar proof of his
ownership thereof and satisfactory indemnity and complying with such other reasonable
regulations and conditions as the Issuer or the Registrar may prescribe and paying such expenses
as the Issuer and the Registrar may incur. All Bonds so surrendered shall be cancelled by the
Registrar. If any of the Bonds shall have matured or be about to mature, instead of issuing a
substitute Bond, the Issuer may pay the same or cause the Bond to be paid, upon being indemnified
as aforesaid, and if such Bonds be lost, stolen or destroyed, without surrender thereof.

Any such duplicate Bonds issued pursuant to this Section 2.05 shall constitute original,
additional contractual obligations on the part of the Issuer whether or not the lost, stolen or
destroyed Bond be at any time found by anyone, and such duplicate Bond shall be entitled to equal
and proportionate benefits and rights as to lien on the Pledged Funds to the same extent as all other
Bonds issued hereunder.

SECTION 2.06. INTERCHANGEABILITY, NEGOTIABILITY AND
TRANSFER. Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the
Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by the

14



Holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing, may, at the option of the Holder thereof,
be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of registered Bonds of the same Series and
maturity of any other authorized denominations.

The Bonds issued under this Resolution shall be and have all the qualities and incidents of
negotiable instruments under the law merchant and the Uniform Commercial Code of the State of
Florida, subject to the provisions for registration and transfer contained in this Resolution and in
the Bonds. So long as any of the Bonds shall remain Outstanding, the Issuer shall maintain and
keep, at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar, books for the registration and transfer
of the Bonds.

Each Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the Issuer, at the designated
corporate trust office of the Registrar, under such reasonable regulations as the Issuer may
prescribe, by the Holder thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon
surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar duly
executed and guaranteed by the Holder or his duly authorized attorney. Upon the transfer of any
such Bond, the Issuer shall issue, and cause to be authenticated, in the name of the transferee a
new Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount and Series and maturity as the
surrendered Bond. The Issuer, the Registrar and any Paying Agent or fiduciary of the Issuer may
deem and treat the Person in whose name any Outstanding Bond shall be registered upon the books
of the Issuer as the absolute owner of such Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not, for
the purpose of receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or Redemption Price, if
applicable, and interest on such Bond and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made
to any such Holder or upon his order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid and neither the Issuer nor the
Registrar nor any Paying Agent or other fiduciary of the Issuer shall be affected by any notice to
the contrary.

The Registrar, in any case where it is not also the Paying Agent in respect to any Series of
Bonds, forthwith (A) following the fifteenth day prior to an Interest Date for such Series; (B)
following the fifteenth day next preceding the date of first mailing of notice of redemption of any
Bonds of such Series; and (C) at any other time as reasonably requested by the Paying Agent of
such Series, shall certify and furnish to such Paying Agent the names, addresses and holdings of
Bondholders and any other relevant information reflected in the registration books. Any Paying
Agent of any fully registered Bond shall affect payment of interest on such Bonds by mailing a
check to the Holder entitled thereto or may, in lieu thereof, upon the request of such Holder,
transmit such payment by bank wire transfer for the account of such Holder.

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging Bonds or transferring Bonds is exercised,
the Issuer shall execute and deliver Bonds and the Registrar shall authenticate such Bonds in
accordance with the provisions of this Resolution. Execution of Bonds by the Mayor and Clerk
for purposes of exchanging, replacing or transferring Bonds may occur at the time of the original
delivery of the Series of which such Bonds are a part. All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges
or transfers shall be held by the Registrar in safekeeping until directed by the Issuer to be cancelled
by the Registrar. For every such exchange or transfer of Bonds, the Issuer or the Registrar may
make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee, expense or other governmental charge
required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, but no other charge shall be made to

15



any owner of Bonds for the privilege of exchanging or registering the transfer of Bonds under the
provisions of this Resolution.

The Issuer and the Registrar shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or transfer
of Bonds of any Series during the 15 days next preceding an Interest Date on the Bonds of such
Series (other than Capital Appreciation Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds), or, in the case of any
proposed redemption of Bonds of such Series, then, for the Bonds subject to redemption, during
the 15 days next preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption and continuing
until such redemption date.

The Issuer may elect to issue any Bonds as uncertificated registered public obligations (not
represented by instruments), commonly known as book-entry obligations, provided it shall
establish a system of registration therefor by Supplemental Resolution.

SECTION 2.07. FORM OF BONDS. The text of the Bonds, except for Capital
Appreciation Bonds and Variable Rate Bonds, the form of which shall be provided by
Supplemental Resolution, shall be in substantially the following form with such omissions,
insertions and variations as may be necessary and/or desirable and approved by the Mayor prior to
the issuance thereof (which necessity and/or desirability and approval shall be presumed by such
officer's execution of the Bonds and the Issuer's delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser or
purchasers thereof):

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

16



No. R- $

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
STATE OF FLORIDA
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA
CONSOLIDATED UTILITY REVENUE BONDS,

SERIES
Interest Maturity Date of
Rate Date Original Issue CUSIP

Registered Holder:

Principal Amount:

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
a municipal corporation and public body corporate and politic of the State of Florida (the "lssuer"),
for value received, hereby promises to pay, solely from the Pledged Funds hereinafter described,
to the Registered Holder identified above, or registered assigns as hereinafter provided, on the
Maturity Date identified above, the Principal Amount identified above and to pay interest on such
Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue identified above or from the most recent interest
payment date to which interest has been paid at the Interest Rate per annum identified above on
and of each year commencing
, until such Principal Amount shall have been paid, except
as the provisions hereinafter set forth with respect to redemption prior to maturity may be or
become applicable hereto.

Such Principal Amount and interest and the premium, if any, on this Bond are payable in
any coin or currency of the United States of America which, on the respective dates of payment
thereof, shall be legal tender for the payment of public and private debts. Such Principal Amount
and the premium, if any, on this Bond, are payable at the designated corporate trust office of
, as Paying Agent. Payment of each installment of
interest shall be made to the person in whose name this Bond shall be registered on the registration
books of the Issuer maintained by , as Registrar, at the
close of business on the date which shall be the flfteenth day (whether or not a business day) of
the calendar month next preceding each interest payment date and shall be paid by a check of such
Paying Agent mailed to such Registered Holder at the address appearing on such registration books
or, at the request of such Registered Holder, by bank wire transfer for the account of such Holder.
Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

17



This Bond is one of an authorized issue of Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
$ (the "Bonds™) of like date, tenor and effect, except as to maturity date, interest rate,
denomination and number, issued to finance , in and for the
Issuer, under the authority of and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of
Florida, particularly the City Charter, Chapter 166, Part Il, Florida Statutes, and other applicable
provisions of law (the "Act"), and Resolution No. , adopted by the City Commission of
the Issuer on October 6, 2020, as the same may be amended and supplemented (collectively, the
"Resolution™), and is subject to all the terms and conditions of the Resolution.

This Bond and the interest hereon are payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and
a pledge of (1) the Net Revenues (as defined in the Resolution) to be derived from the operation
of the Issuer's consolidated utility system (the "System™), and (2) until applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Resolution, all moneys, including investments thereof, in the funds and
accounts established by the Resolution, except (A) the Rebate Fund, (B) to the extent moneys
therein shall be required to pay the Operating Expenses (as defined in the Resolution) and (C) any
moneys set aside in a particular subaccount of the Reserve Account, if such moneys shall be
pledged solely for the payment of a different Series of Bonds for which it was established in
accordance with the provisions of the Resolution, subject in each case to the application thereof
for the purposes and on the conditions permitted by the Resolution (collectively, the "Pledged
Funds"). It is expressly agreed by the Registered Holder of this Bond that the full faith and credit
of the Issuer are not pledged to the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on
this Bond and that such Holder shall never have the right to require or compel the exercise of any
taxing power of the Issuer to the payment of such principal, premium, if any, and interest. This
Bond and the obligation evidenced hereby shall not constitute a lien upon the System or any other
property of the Issuer, but shall constitute a lien only on, and shall be payable solely from, the
Pledged Funds in accordance with the terms of the Resolution.

IT IS EXPRESSLY AGREED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER OF THIS BOND
THAT THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, OR
ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF, ARE NOT PLEDGED TO THE
PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST ON THIS BOND
AND THAT SUCH HOLDER SHALL NEVER HAVE THE RIGHT TO REQUIRE OR
COMPEL THE EXERCISE OF ANY TAXING POWER OF THE ISSUER, THE STATE OF
FLORIDA, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR AGENCY THEREOF, TO THE
PAYMENT OF SUCH PRINCIPAL, PREMIUM, IF ANY, AND INTEREST. THIS BOND
AND THE OBLIGATION EVIDENCED HEREBY SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE A LIEN
UPON ANY PROPERTY OF THE ISSUER, BUT SHALL CONSTITUTE A LIEN ONLY ON,
AND SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM, THE PLEDGED FUNDS. THE ISSUER MAY
ISSUE ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS ON PARITY WITH THE BONDS IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE TERMS OF THE RESOLUTION.

[The Issuer has established a book-entry system of registration for the Bonds. Except as
specifically provided otherwise in the Resolution, an agent will hold this Bond on behalf of the
beneficial owner thereof. By acceptance of a confirmation of purchase, delivery or transfer, the
beneficial owner of this Bond shall be deemed to have agreed to such arrangement.]

18



This Bond is transferable in accordance with the terms of the Resolution only upon the
books of the Issuer kept for that purpose at the designated corporate trust office of the Registrar
by the Registered Holder hereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing, upon the
surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Registrar
duly executed by the Registered Holder or his attorney duly authorized in writing, and thereupon
a new Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount shall be issued to the transferee in
exchange therefor, and upon the payment of the charges, if any, therein prescribed. The Bonds are
issuable in the form of fully registered Bonds in the denomination of [$5,000 and any integral
multiple thereof,] not exceeding the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds. The Issuer, the
Registrar and any Paying Agent may treat the Registered Holder of this Bond as the absolute owner
hereof for all purposes, whether or not this Bond shall be overdue, and shall not be affected by any
notice to the contrary. The Issuer shall not be obligated to make any exchange or transfer of the
Bonds during the 15 days next preceding an interest payment date or, in the case of any proposed
redemption of the Bonds, then, for the Bonds subject to such redemption, during the 15 days next
preceding the date of the first mailing of notice of such redemption.

(INSERT REDEMPTION PROVISIONS)

Redemption of this Bond under the preceding paragraphs shall be made as provided in the
Resolution upon notice given by first class mail sent at least 30 days prior to the redemption date
to the Registered Holder hereof at the address shown on the registration books maintained by the
Registrar; provided, however, that failure to mail notice to the Registered Holder hereof, or any
defect therein, shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for redemption of other Bonds as to
which no such failure or defect has occurred. In the event that less than the full principal amount
hereof shall have been called for redemption, the Registered Holder hereof shall surrender this
Bond in exchange for one or more Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed
portion of principal, as provided in the Resolution.

[As long as the book-entry only system is used for determining beneficial ownership of the
Bonds, notice of redemption will only be sent to Cede & Co. Cede & Co. will be responsible for
notifying the DTC Participants, who will in turn be responsible for notifying the beneficial owners
of the Bonds. Any failure of Cede & Co. to notify any DTC Participant, or of any DTC Participant
to notify the beneficial owner of any such notice, will not affect the validity of the redemption of
the Bonds.]

Reference to the Resolution and any and all resolutions supplemental thereto and
modifications and amendments thereof and to the Act is made for a description of the pledge and
covenants securing this Bond, the nature, manner and extent of enforcement of such pledge and
covenants, and the rights, duties, immunities and obligations of the Issuer.

It is hereby certified and recited that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, to
happen and to be performed precedent to and in the issuance of this Bond, exist, have happened
and have been performed, in regular and due form and time as required by the laws and
Constitution of the State of Florida applicable thereto, and that the issuance of the Bonds does not
violate any constitutional or statutory limitations or provisions.

19



Neither the members of the City Commission of the Issuer nor any person executing this
Bond shall be liable personally hereon or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by
reason of the issuance hereof.

[This Bond is one of a series of Bonds which were validated by judgment of the Circuit
Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida in and for Palm Beach County, Florida, rendered
on : ]

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until the certificate of
authentication hereon shall have been signed by the Registrar.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida has issued this Bond
and has caused the same to be executed by the manual or facsimile signature of its Mayor and
attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Clerk, and its official seal or a facsimile thereof
to be affixed or reproduced hereon, all as of Date of Original Issue.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA

(SEAL)

Pam Triolo, Mayor

ATTEST:

Deborah M. Andrea, CMC, City Clerk

20



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This Bond is one of the Bonds of the Issue described in the within-mentioned Resolution.

DATE OF AUTHENTICATION:

Registrar

By:
Authorized Officer

21



[Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust
Company to the Issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any
certificate issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by the
authorized representative of The Depository Trust Company and any payment is made to Cede &
Co., ANY TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE
BY OR TO ANY PERSON IS WRONGFUL since the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has
an interest herein.]

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers unto

Insert Social Security or Other Identifying Number of Assignee

(Name and Address of Assignee)

the within  Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and  appoint
, as attorneys to register the transfer of the said Bond on
the books kept for registration thereof with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature must be guaranteed by NOTICE: The signature to this assignment
an institution which is a participant in the must correspond with the name of the
Securities  Transfer  Agent Medallion Registered Holder as it appears upon the face
Program (STAMP) or similar program. of the within Bond in every particular,

without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatever and the Social Security or
other identifying number of such assignee
must be supplied.

22



The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of the within Bond,
shall be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or
regulations:

TEN COM -- as tenants in common

TEN ENT -- as tenants by the entireties

JT TEN -- as joint tenants with right of
survivorship and not as tenants

in common

UNIF TRANS MIN ACT --

(Cust.)

Custodian for

under Uniform Transfers to Minors Act of

(State)

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in list above.

23



ARTICLE Il
REDEMPTION OF BONDS

SECTION 3.01. PRIVILEGE OF REDEMPTION. The terms of this Article IlI
shall apply to the redemption of Bonds other than Capital Appreciation Bonds or Variable Rate
Bonds. The terms and provisions relating to redemption of Capital Appreciation Bonds and
Variable Rate Bonds shall be provided by Supplemental Resolution. The provisions of this Article
Il may also be modified pursuant to Supplemental Resolution to accommodate any redemption
provisions with respect to Federal Subsidy Bonds.

SECTION 3.02. SELECTION OF BONDS TO BE REDEEMED. The Bonds
shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 each and integral multiples thereof. The
Issuer shall, at least 35 days prior to the redemption date (unless a shorter time period shall be
satisfactory to the Registrar) notify the Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal
amount of Bonds to be redeemed and, if less than all of the Outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed,
the particular maturities and portions thereof to be redeemed. For purposes of any redemption of
less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of a single maturity, the particular Bonds or portions of
Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected not more than 45 days and not less than 35 days prior to
the redemption date by the Registrar from the Outstanding Bonds of the maturity or maturities
designated by the Issuer by such method as the Registrar shall deem fair and appropriate (which
may include a pro-rata or pass-through distribution) and which may provide for the selection for
redemption of Bonds or portions of Bonds in principal amounts of $5,000 and integral multiples
thereof. If less than all of a Term Bond is to be redeemed the aggregate principal amount to be
redeemed shall be allocated to the Sinking Fund Installments on a pro-rata basis unless the Issuer,
in its discretion, designates a different allocation.

If less than all of the Outstanding Bonds of a single maturity are to be redeemed, the
Registrar shall promptly notify the Issuer and Paying Agent (if the Registrar is not the Paying
Agent for such Bonds) in writing of the Bonds or portions of Bonds selected for redemption and,
in the case of any Bond selected for partial redemption, the principal amount thereof to be
redeemed.

SECTION 3.03. NOTICE OF REDEMPTION. Notice of such redemption, which
shall specify the Bond or Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed and the date and place for
redemption, shall be given by the Registrar on behalf of the Issuer, and (A) shall be filed with the
Paying Agents of such Bonds, (B) shall be mailed first class, postage prepaid, not less than 30 days
nor more than 45 days prior to the redemption date to all Holders of Bonds to be redeemed at their
addresses as they appear on the registration books kept by the Registrar as of the date of mailing
of such notice, and (C) shall be mailed, certified mail, postage prepaid, at least 35 days prior to the
redemption date to the registered securities depositories and one or more nationally recognized
municipal bond information services as hereinafter provided in this Section 3.03. Failure to mail
such notice to such depositories or services or the Holders of the Bonds to be redeemed, or any
defect therein, shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of Bonds as to which no such failure
or defect has occurred. Such notice shall also be mailed to the Insurer or Credit Bank, if any, of
such Bonds to be redeemed. Failure of any Holder to receive any notice mailed as herein provided
shall not affect the proceedings for redemption of such Holder's Bonds. Notwithstanding the

24



foregoing, the Issuer may establish separate redemption provisions by a Supplemental Resolution
in connection with any Series of Bonds.

Each notice of redemption shall state: (1) the CUSIP numbers and any other distinguishing
number or letter of all Bonds being redeemed, (2) the original issue date of such Bonds, (3) the
maturity date and rate of interest borne by each Bond being redeemed, (4) the redemption date, (5)
the Redemption Price, (6) the date on which such notice is mailed, (7) if less than all Outstanding
Bonds are to be redeemed, the certificate number (and, in the case of a partial redemption of any
Bond, the principal amount) of each Bond to be redeemed, (8) that on such redemption date there
shall become due and payable upon each Bond to be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or
the Redemption Price of the specified portions of the principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be
redeemed in part only, together with interest accrued thereon to the redemption date, and that from
and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue and be payable, (9) that the Bonds to be
redeemed, whether as a whole or in part, are to be surrendered for payment of the Redemption
Price at the designated office of the Registrar at an address specified, (10) the name and telephone
number of a person designated by the Registrar to be responsible for such redemption, (11) unless
sufficient funds have been set aside by the Issuer for such purpose prior to the mailing of the notice
of redemption, that such redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of sufficient funds for such
purpose on or prior to the date set for redemption, and (12) any other conditions that must be
satisfied prior to such redemption.

The Issuer may provide that a redemption may be contingent upon the occurrence of certain
condition(s) and that if such condition(s) do not occur the notice of redemption will be rescinded,
provided notice of rescission shall be mailed in the manner described above to all affected
Bondholders as soon as practicable.

SECTION 3.04. REDEMPTION OF PORTIONS OF BONDS. Any Bond which
is to be redeemed only in part shall be surrendered at any place of payment specified in the notice
of redemption (with due endorsement by, or written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to
the Registrar duly executed by, the Holder thereof or his attorney duly authorized in writing) and
the Issuer shall execute and the Registrar shall authenticate and deliver to the Holder of such Bond,
without service charge, a new Bond or Bonds, of any authorized denomination, as requested by
such Holder in an aggregate principal amount equal to and in exchange for the unredeemed portion
of the principal of the Bonds so surrendered.

SECTION 3.05. PAYMENT OF REDEEMED BONDS. Notice of redemption
having been given substantially as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed
shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the Redemption Price therein specified,
and from and after such date (unless the Issuer shall default in the payment of the Redemption
Price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. Upon surrender of such Bonds
for redemption in accordance with said notice, such Bonds shall be paid by the Registrar and/or
Paying Agent at the appropriate Redemption Price, plus accrued interest. All Bonds which have
been redeemed shall be cancelled and destroyed by the Registrar and shall not be reissued.

25



ARTICLE IV
SECURITY; FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS; APPLICATION OF GROSS REVENUES

SECTION 4.01. BONDS NOT TO BE INDEBTEDNESS OF ISSUER. The
Bonds shall not be or constitute general obligations or indebtedness of the Issuer as "bonds" within
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory provision, but shall be special obligations of the
Issuer, payable solely from and secured by a lien upon and pledge of the Pledged Funds, in the
manner and to the extent provided in this Resolution. No Holder of any Bond shall ever have the
right to compel the exercise of any ad valorem taxing power to pay such Bond, or be entitled to
payment of such Bond from any moneys of the Issuer except from the Pledged Funds in the manner
and to the extent provided herein. The Bonds and the obligations evidenced thereby shall not
constitute a lien upon the System or any other property of the Issuer, but shall constitute a lien only
on, and shall be payable solely from, the Pledged Funds.

SECTION 4.02. SECURITY FOR BONDS. The payment of the principal of or
Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds shall be secured forthwith equally and
ratably by a pledge of and lien upon the Pledged Funds; provided, however, a Series of Bonds may
be further secured by a Credit Facility or Bond Insurance Policy in addition to the security provided
herein; and provided further that a Series of Bonds may be secured independently of any other
Series of Bonds by the establishment of a separate subaccount in the Reserve Account for such
Series of Bonds or by not being secured in any manner by the Reserve Account as provided in a
Supplemental Resolution. Issuers of a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account
Letter of Credit shall be secured in accordance with the provisions hereof. In addition, the Issuer
does hereby irrevocably pledge and grant a lien upon the Pledged Funds to the payment of the
Policy Costs in accordance with the provisions hereof; provided, however, such pledge and lien
shall be junior and subordinate in all respects to the pledge of and lien upon such Pledged Funds
granted hereby to the Bondholders. The Issuer does hereby irrevocably pledge the Pledged Funds
to the payment of the principal of or Redemption Price, if applicable, and interest on the Bonds in
accordance with the provisions hereof. Except as otherwise provided by Supplemental Resolution,
the obligation of the Issuer to make Hedge Payments to a Counterparty pursuant to a Qualified
Hedge Agreement shall be on parity with the Bonds as to lien on and pledge of the Pledged Funds
in accordance with the terms hereof (any other payments related to a Qualified Hedge Agreement,
including fees, penalties, termination payments and the obligation to collateralize, shall be
Subordinated Indebtedness of the Issuer).

The Pledged Funds shall immediately be subject to the lien of this pledge without any
physical delivery thereof or further act, and the lien of this pledge shall be valid and binding as
against all parties having claims of any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the Issuer.

SECTION 4.03. SEPARATE ACCOUNTS. The moneys required to be accounted
for in each of the funds, accounts and subaccounts established in this Resolution, particularly those
described in this Article IV, may be deposited in a single bank account, and funds allocated to the
various funds, accounts and subaccounts established herein may be invested in a common
investment pool, provided that adequate accounting records are maintained to reflect and control
the restricted allocation of the moneys on deposit therein and such investments for the various
purposes of such funds, accounts and subaccounts as herein provided.

26



The designation and establishment of the various funds, accounts and subaccounts in and
by this Resolution shall not be construed to require the establishment of any completely
independent, self-balancing funds as such term is commonly defined and used in governmental
accounting, but rather is intended solely to constitute an earmarking of certain revenues for certain
purposes and to establish certain priorities for application of such revenues as herein provided.

SECTION 4.04. CONSTRUCTION FUND. The lIssuer covenants and agrees to
establish a special fund to be known as the "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated
Utility System Construction Fund,” which shall be used only for payment of the Cost of a Project.
Moneys in the Construction Fund, until applied in payment of any item of the Cost of a Project in
the manner hereinafter provided, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor of the Holders of
the Bonds and for the further security of such Holders.

There shall be paid into the Construction Fund the amounts required to be so paid by the
provisions of this Resolution, and there may be paid into the Construction Fund, at the option of
the Issuer, any moneys received for or in connection with a Project by the Issuer from any other
source. The Issuer shall establish within the Construction Fund a separate account for each Project
the Cost of which is to be paid in whole or in part out of the Construction Fund.

The proceeds of insurance maintained pursuant to this Resolution against physical loss of
or damage to a Project, or of contractors' performance bonds with respect thereto pertaining to the
period of construction thereof, shall be deposited into the appropriate account of the Construction
Fund.

Any moneys received by the Issuer from the State or from the United States of America or
any agencies thereof for the purpose of financing part of the Cost of a Project shall be deposited
into the appropriate account of the Construction Fund and used in the same manner as other Bond
proceeds are used therein; provided that separate accounts or subaccounts may be established in
the Construction Fund for moneys received pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph whenever
required by federal or State law.

The Issuer covenants that the acquisition, construction and installation of each Project will
be completed without delay and in accordance with sound engineering practices. The Issuer shall
make disbursements or payments from the applicable account of the Construction Fund to pay
Costs of the Project for which it was established, except as otherwise provided below. The Issuer
shall keep records of such disbursements and payments and shall retain all such records for such
period of time as required by applicable law. The Issuer shall make available the records at all
reasonable times for inspection by any Holder of any of the Bonds or the agent or representative
of any Holder of any of the Bonds.

Notwithstanding any of the other provisions of this Section 4.04, to the extent that other
moneys are not available therefor, amounts in an account of the Construction Fund shall be applied
to the payment of principal and interest on Bonds.

The date of completion of the acquisition, construction and equipping of a Project shall be
documented by an Authorized Issuer Officer or the Clerk in the appropriate records of the Issuer.
Promptly after the date of the completion of a Project, and after paying or making provision for

27



the payment of all unpaid items of the Cost of such Project, the Issuer shall deposit in the following
order of priority any balance of moneys remaining in an account in the Construction Fund in (A)
another account of the Construction Fund for which an Authorized Issuer Officer has determined
that there are insufficient moneys present to pay the Cost of the related Project, (B) the Reserve
Account, to the extent of a deficiency therein, and (C) such other fund or account established
hereunder as shall be determined by the Issuer or for any other lawful purpose, provided the Issuer
has received the prior approval of Bond Counsel to the effect that such transfer shall not adversely
affect the exclusion, if any, of interest on the Bonds (other than Taxable Bonds) from gross income
for purposes of federal income taxation or shall not otherwise affect the status of any Outstanding
Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds or the Issuer's receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments with
respect to any Outstanding Federal Subsidy Bonds.

SECTION 4.05. CREATION OF FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS. The Issuer
covenants and agrees to establish the following funds and accounts:

(A)  The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Revenue Fund."

(B) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Operation and
Maintenance Fund.”

(C)  The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Sinking Fund.” The
Issuer shall maintain four separate accounts in the Sinking Fund: the "Interest Account,” the
"Principal Account,” the "Term Bonds Redemption Account” and the "Reserve Account."

(D) The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Renewal and
Replacement Fund."

(E)  The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Rebate Fund."

(F)  The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Rate Stabilization
Fund."

(G)  The "City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Consolidated Utility Reserve Fund".

Moneys in the aforementioned funds and accounts (except for moneys in the Rebate Fund),
until applied in accordance with the provisions hereof, shall be subject to a lien and charge in favor
of the Holders of the Bonds and for the further security of such Holders, to the extent provided
herein.

The Issuer may at any time and from time to time appoint one or more depositaries to hold,
for the benefit of the Bondholders, any one or more of the funds and accounts established hereby.
Such depositary or depositaries shall perform at the direction of the Issuer the duties of the Issuer
in depositing, transferring and disbursing moneys to and from each of such funds or accounts as
herein set forth, and all records of such depositary in performing such duties shall be open at all
reasonable times to inspection by the Issuer and its agents and employees. Any such depositary
shall be a bank or trust company duly authorized to exercise corporate trust powers and subject to
examination by federal or state authority, of good standing, and be qualified under applicable State
law.

28



Notwithstanding the foregoing, none of the aforementioned funds and accounts are
required to be established prior to the time any such fund or account is required to be funded or
otherwise utilized hereunder.

SECTION 4.06. DISPOSITION OF GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND GROSS
REVENUES. (A) (1) In the event the Issuer receives a Government Grant, the use and withdrawal
of moneys from such Government Grant shall be governed by the terms of the Government Grant
and applicable law.

2 The Issuer shall deposit promptly, as received, all Gross Revenues into the Revenue
Fund.

Moneys in the Revenue Fund shall first be used each month to deposit in the Operation and
Maintenance Fund such sums as are necessary to pay Operating Expenses for the ensuing month;
provided the Issuer may transfer moneys from the Revenue Fund to the Operation and
Maintenance Fund at any time to pay Operating Expenses to the extent there is a deficiency in the
Operation and Maintenance Fund for such purpose. Amounts in the Operation and Maintenance
Fund shall be paid out from time to time by the Issuer for Operating Expenses, including any
expenses relating to the purchase or redemption of Term Bonds as provided in Section 4.06(B)(3)
hereof.

The remaining moneys in the Revenue Fund shall be applied in accordance with Section
4.06(B) hereof.

(B)  Any deposits remaining in the Revenue Fund after the aforementioned transfers to
the Operation and Maintenance Fund shall be disposed of by the Issuer on or before the 25th day
of each month, commencing in the month immediately following the delivery of any of the Bonds
to the purchasers thereof, or such later date as hereinafter provided, in the following manner and
in the following order of priority:

1) Interest Account. The Issuer shall deposit or credit to the Interest Account the sum
which, together with the balance in said Account, shall equal the interest on all Bonds Outstanding
(except as to Capital Appreciation Bonds) accrued and unpaid and to accrue to the end of the then
current calendar month. All Hedge Receipts and Federal Subsidy Payments shall be deposited
directly to the Interest Account upon receipt. With respect to interest on Bonds which have
corresponding Hedge Payments, interest on such Bonds during the term of the Qualified Hedge
Agreement shall also be deemed to include the corresponding Hedge Payments. Moneys in the
Interest Account shall be applied by the Issuer (a) for deposit with the Paying Agents to pay the
interest on the Bonds on or prior to the date the same shall become due and (b) for Hedge Payments.
Any Federal Subsidy Payments deposited to the Interest Account shall be deemed to have been
applied to the payment of interest on the Federal Subsidy Bonds to which such Payments relate.
The Issuer shall adjust the amount of the deposit to the Interest Account not later than a month
immediately preceding any Interest Date so as to provide sufficient moneys in the Interest Account
to pay the interest on the Bonds coming due on such Interest Date. No further deposit need be
made to the Interest Account when the moneys therein are equal to the interest coming due on the
Outstanding Bonds on the next succeeding Interest Date. With respect to debt service on any
Bonds which are subject to a Qualified Hedge Agreement, any Hedge Payments due to the

29



Counterparty to the Qualified Hedge Agreement relating to such Bonds shall be paid to such
Counterparty on a parity basis with the aforesaid required payments into the Sinking Fund. In
computing the interest on Variable Rate Bonds which shall accrue during a calendar month, the
interest rate on such Variable Rate Bonds shall be assumed to be (A) if such Variable Rate Bonds
have been Outstanding for at least 24 months prior to the commencement of such calendar month,
the highest average interest rate borne by such Variable Rate Bonds for any 30-day period, and
(B) if such Variable Rate Bonds have not been Outstanding for at least 24 months prior to the date
of calculation, the Bond Buyer Revenue Bond Index most recently published prior to the
commencement of such calendar month.

2 Principal Account. Commencing in the month which is one year prior to the first
principal payment date, the Issuer shall next deposit into the Principal Account the sum which,
together with the balance in said Account, shall equal the principal amounts on all Bonds
Outstanding accrued and unpaid and that portion of the principal next due which would have
accrued on such Bonds during the then current calendar month if such principal amounts were
deemed to accrue monthly (assuming that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months having
30 days each) except for the Sinking Fund Installments to be deposited pursuant to Section
4.06(B)(3) hereof, in equal amounts from the next preceding principal payment due date, or, if
there be no such preceding payment due date, from a date no later than one year preceding the due
date of such principal amount. Moneys in the Principal Account shall be applied by the Issuer for
deposit with the Paying Agents to pay the principal of the Bonds on or prior to the date the same
shall mature, and for no other purpose. Serial Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be payable from
the Principal Account in the years in which such Bonds mature and monthly payments into the
Principal Account on account of such Bonds shall commence in the twelfth month immediately
preceding the maturity date of such Bonds. The Issuer shall adjust the amount of the deposit to
the Principal Account not later than the month immediately preceding any principal payment date
so0 as to provide sufficient moneys in the Principal Account to pay the principal on Bonds becoming
due on such principal payment date. No further deposit need be made to the Principal Account
when the moneys therein are equal to the principal coming due on the Outstanding Bonds on the
next succeeding principal payment date.

3) Term Bonds Redemption Account. Commencing in the month which is one year
prior to the first Sinking Fund Installment due date, there shall be deposited to the Term Bonds
Redemption Account the sum which, together with the balance in such Account, shall equal the
Sinking Fund Instaliments on all Bonds Outstanding accrued and unpaid and that portion of the
Sinking Fund Installments of all Bonds Outstanding next due which would have accrued on such
Bonds during the then current calendar month if such Sinking Fund Installments were deemed to
accrue monthly (assuming that a year consists of 12 equivalent calendar months having 30 days
each) in equal amounts from the next preceding Sinking Fund Installment due date, or, if there is
no such preceding Sinking Fund Installment due date, from a date not later than one year preceding
the due date of such Sinking Fund Installment. Moneys in the Term Bonds Redemption Account
shall be used to purchase or redeem Term Bonds in the manner herein provided, and for no other
purpose. Term Capital Appreciation Bonds shall be payable from the Term Bonds Redemption
Account in the years in which such Bonds mature and monthly payments into the Term Bonds
Redemption Account on account of such Bonds shall commence in the twelfth month immediately
preceding the due date of the related Sinking Fund Installments. The Issuer shall adjust the amount
of the deposit to the Term Bonds Redemption Account in the month immediately preceding any

30



Sinking Fund Installment Date so as to provide sufficient moneys in the Term Bonds Redemption
Account to pay the Sinking Fund Instaliments becoming due on such date. Payments to the Term
Bonds Redemption Account shall be on parity with payments to the Principal Account.

Amounts accumulated in the Term Bonds Redemption Account with respect to any Sinking
Fund Installment (together with amounts accumulated in the Interest Account with respect to
interest, if any, on the Term Bonds for which such Sinking Fund Installment was established) may
be applied by the Issuer, on or prior to the 60th day preceding the due date of such Sinking Fund
Installment, (a) to the purchase of Term Bonds of the Series and maturity for which such Sinking
Fund Installment was established, or (b) to the redemption at the applicable Redemption Prices of
such Term Bonds, if then redeemable by their terms. Amounts in the Term Bonds Redemption
Account which are used to redeem Term Bonds shall be credited against the next succeeding
Sinking Fund Installment which shall become due on such Term Bonds. The applicable
Redemption Price (or principal amount of maturing Term Bonds) of any Term Bonds so purchased
or redeemed shall be deemed to constitute part of the Term Bonds Redemption Account until such
Sinking Fund Instaliment date, for the purposes of calculating the amount of such Account. As
soon as practicable after the 60th day preceding the due date of any such Sinking Fund Installment,
the Issuer shall proceed to call for redemption on such due date, by causing notice to be given as
provided in Section 3.03 hereof, Term Bonds of the Series and maturity for which such Sinking
Fund Installment was established (except in the case of Term Bonds maturing on a Sinking Fund
Installment date) in such amount as shall be necessary to complete the retirement of the unsatisfied
balance of such Sinking Fund Installment. The Issuer shall pay out of the Term Bonds Redemption
Account and the Interest Account to the appropriate Paying Agents, on or before the day preceding
such redemption date (or maturity date), the amount required for the redemption (or for the
payment of such Term Bonds then maturing), and such amount shall be applied by such Paying
Agents to such redemption (or payment). All expenses in connection with the purchase or
redemption of Term Bonds shall be paid by the Issuer from the Operation and Maintenance Fund.

4) Reserve Account. There shall be deposited to the Reserve Account an amount
which would enable the Issuer to restore the funds on deposit in the Reserve Account to an amount
equal to the Reserve Account Requirement applicable thereto. All deficiencies in the Reserve
Account must be made up no later than 12 months from the date such deficiency first occurred,
whether such shortfall was caused by an increase in the applicable Reserve Account Requirement,
a decrease in the aggregate market value of the investments therein of more than 5% or withdrawal
(whether from cash or a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit).
On or prior to each principal payment date and Interest Date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than
the 25th day of the month next preceding such payment date), moneys in the Reserve Account
shall be applied by the Issuer to the payment of the principal of or Redemption Price, if applicable,
and interest on the Bonds to the extent moneys in the Interest Account, the Principal Account and
the Term Bonds Redemption Account shall be insufficient for such purpose, but only to the extent
the moneys transferred from the Utility Reserve Fund for such purposes pursuant to Section
4.06(B)(8) hereof shall be inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency. Whenever there shall
be surplus moneys in the Reserve Account by reason of a decrease in the Reserve Account
Requirement or as a result of a deposit in the Reserve Account of a Reserve Account Letter of
Credit or a Reserve Account Insurance Policy, such surplus moneys, to the extent practicable, shall
be deposited by the Issuer into the Utility Reserve Fund. The Issuer shall promptly inform each

31



Insurer and Credit Bank of any draw upon the Reserve Account for purposes of paying the
principal of and interest on the Bonds.

Upon the issuance of any Series of Bonds under the terms, limitations and conditions as
herein provided, the Issuer shall fund the Reserve Account in an amount at least equal to the
applicable Reserve Account Requirement to the extent such Series of Bonds are to be secured by
the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein; provided, however, nothing herein shall be
construed to require the Issuer to fund the Reserve Account or any subaccount for any Series of
Bonds. Upon the adoption of the Supplemental Resolution authorizing the issuance of a Series of
Bonds, the Issuer shall determine whether such Series of Bonds shall be secured by the Reserve
Account or any subaccount therein and, if the Issuer determines that the Series of Bonds will be
secured by the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein, the Issuer shall also establish the
Reserve Account Requirement applicable thereto. Such required amount, if any, shall be paid in
full or in part from the proceeds of such Series of Bonds or may be accumulated in equal monthly
payments to the Reserve Account over a period of months from the date of issuance of such Series
of Bonds, which shall not exceed 36 months.

Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, in lieu of or in substitution of any required
deposits into the Reserve Account, the Issuer may cause to be deposited into the Reserve Account
a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for the benefit of the
Bondholders in an amount equal to the difference between the Reserve Account Requirement
applicable thereto and the sums then on deposit in the Reserve Account, if any. The Issuer may
also substitute a Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for
cash on deposit in the Reserve Account upon compliance with the terms of this Section 4.06(B)(4).
Such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit shall be payable
to the Paying Agent (upon the giving of notice as required thereunder) on any Interest Date or
redemption date on which a deficiency exists which cannot be cured by moneys in any other fund
or account held pursuant to this Resolution and available for such purpose. Upon the initial deposit
of any such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit, the
provider thereof shall be either (a) an insurer whose municipal bond insurance policies insuring
the payment, when due, or the principal of and interest on municipal bond issues results in such
issues being rated in one of the three highest rating categories by a Rating Agency (without regard
to gradations, such as "plus™ or "minus™ or "1," "2" or "3"), or (b) a commercial bank, insurance
company or other financial institution which has been assigned a rating in one of the two highest
rating categories by a Rating Agency (without regard to gradations, such as "plus™ or "minus” or
"1,""2" or "3"). Any Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or Reserve Account Letter of Credit
shall equally secure all Bonds secured by the Reserve Account or subaccount into which such
Policy or Letter of Credit is deposited.

Each Reserve Account Insurance Policy and Reserve Account Letter of Credit shall
provide for a revolving feature under which the amount available thereunder will be reinstated to
the extent of any reimbursement of draws or claims paid. If the revolving feature is suspended or
terminated for any reason, the right of the provider of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or
Reserve Account Letter of Credit to reimbursement will be further subordinated to cash
replenishment of the Reserve Account to an amount equal to the difference between the full
original amount available under the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter
of Credit and the amount then available for further draws or claims. If the provider of a Reserve

32



Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit becomes insolvent, the obligation
to reimburse the provider of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of
Credit shall be subordinate to the cash replenishment of the Reserve Account. Where applicable,
the amount available for draws or claims under a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve
Account Letter of Credit may be reduced by the amount of cash or investments deposited in the
Reserve Account pursuant to the provisions hereof.

If three days prior to an interest or principal payment date, or such other period of time as
shall be required by the terms of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter
of Credit, the Issuer shall determine that a deficiency exists in the amount of moneys available to
pay in accordance with the terms hereof interest and/or principal due on the Bonds on such date,
the Issuer shall immediately notify (a) the issuer of the applicable Reserve Account Insurance
Policy and/or the issuer of the Reserve Account Letter of Credit and submit a demand for payment
pursuant to the provisions of such Reserve Account Insurance Policy and/or the Reserve Account
Letter of Credit, (b) the Paying Agent, and (c) the Insurer or Credit Bank, if any, of the amount of
such deficiency and the date on which such payment is due.

In the event the Reserve Account or any subaccount therein contains both a Reserve
Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit and cash, the cash shall be drawn
down completely prior to any draw on the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account
Letter of Credit. In the event more than one Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account
Letter of Credit meeting the criteria set forth herein is on deposit in the Reserve Account, amounts
required to be drawn thereon shall be done on a pro-rata basis. The Issuer agrees to pay all Policy
Costs owing in regard to any Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of
Credit from the Pledged Funds. Pledged Funds shall be applied in accordance with this Section
4.06(B)(4), first, to reimburse the issuer of the Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve
Account Letter of Credit for amounts advanced under such instruments, second, to replenish any
cash deficiencies in the Reserve Account, and, third, to pay the issuer of the Reserve Account
Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit applicable expenses and interest on amounts
advanced under such instruments. This Resolution shall not be discharged or defeased while any
obligations are owing in regard to a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter
of Credit on deposit in the Reserve Account. The Issuer agrees not to optionally redeem Bonds
unless all amounts owing in regard to a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account
Letter of Credit on deposit in the Reserve Account have been paid in full.

The Issuer may evidence its obligation to reimburse the issuer of any Reserve Account
Letter of Credit or Reserve Account Insurance Policy by executing and delivering to such issuer a
promissory note or other evidence therefor; provided, however, any such note or evidence (a) shall
not be a general obligation of the Issuer the payment of which is secured by the full faith and credit
or taxing power of the Issuer, and (b) shall be payable solely from the Pledged Funds in the manner
provided herein. The obligation to reimburse the provider of a Reserve Account Insurance Policy
or Reserve Account Letter of Credit for any Policy Costs shall be subordinate to the payment of
debt service on the Bonds.

Any consent or approval of any Insurer described in this Section 4.06(B)(4) shall be
required only so long as there are Outstanding Bonds secured by a Bond Insurance Policy issued
by such Insurer which is in full force and effect and the commitments of which have been honored

33



by such Insurer. The term "Paying Agent" as used in this Section 4.06(B)(4) may include one or
more Paying Agents for the Outstanding Bonds.

Whenever the amount of cash in the Reserve Account, together with the other amounts in
the Debt Service Fund, are sufficient to fully pay all Outstanding Bonds in accordance with their
terms (including principal or applicable Redemption Price and interest thereon), the funds on
deposit in the Reserve Account may be transferred to the other Accounts of the Sinking Fund for
the payment of the Bonds.

The Issuer may also establish a separate subaccount in the Reserve Account for any Series
of Bonds and provide a pledge of such subaccount to the payment of such Series of Bonds apart
from the pledge provided herein. To the extent a Series of Bonds is secured separately by a
subaccount of the Reserve Account, the Holders of such Bonds shall not be secured by any other
moneys in the Reserve Account. Moneys in a separate subaccount of the Reserve Account shall
be maintained at the Reserve Account Requirement applicable to such Series of Bonds secured by
the subaccount; provided the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Series of Bonds may
establish the Reserve Account Requirement relating to such separate subaccount of the Reserve
Account at such level as the Issuer deems appropriate. In the event the Issuer by Supplemental
Resolution establishes the Reserve Account Requirement for a particular Series of Bonds to be
zero (0.00) or it shall determine that such Series are not to be secured in any manner by the Reserve
Account or a subaccount, then it shall not be required to establish a separate subaccount; provided,
however, such Series of Bonds shall have no lien on or pledge of any moneys on deposit in the
Reserve Account. Moneys used to replenish the Reserve Account shall be deposited in the separate
subaccounts in the Reserve Account and in the Reserve Account on a pro-rata basis. In the event
the Issuer shall maintain a Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit
and moneys in any subaccount, the moneys shall be used prior to making any disbursements under
such Reserve Account Insurance Policy or Reserve Account Letter of Credit.

(5) Renewal and Replacement Fund. There shall be deposited to the Renewal and
Replacement Fund monthly such sums as shall be sufficient to pay 1/12 of the Renewal and
Replacement Fund Requirement until the amount accumulated in such Fund is equal to the
Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement, taking into account the market value of investments
in such Fund; provided, however, that (a) such Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement may
be increased or decreased as the Consulting Engineers shall certify to the Issuer is necessary for
the purposes of the Renewal and Replacement Fund, and (b) in the event that the Consulting
Engineers shall certify that the Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement is excessive for the
purposes of the Renewal and Replacement Fund, such excess amount as may be on deposit therein
may be transferred by the Issuer from the Renewal and Replacement Fund for deposit into the
Utility Reserve Fund. The moneys in the Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be applied by the
Issuer for the purpose of paying the cost of major extensions, improvements or additions to, or the
replacement or renewal of capital assets of, the System, or extraordinary repairs of the System;
provided, however, that on or prior to each principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in
no event earlier than the 25th day of the month next preceding such payment date), moneys in the
Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be applied for the payment into the Interest Account, the
Principal Account, and the Term Bonds Redemption Account when the moneys therein are
insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds coming due, but only to the extent
moneys transferred from the Utility Reserve Fund for such purpose pursuant to Section 4.06(B)(8)

34



hereof, together with moneys available in the Reserve Account for such purpose pursuant to
Section 4.06(B)(4) hereof, shall be inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency. Moneys in
the Renewal and Replacement Fund may also be transferred to the Operation and Maintenance
Fund to fund Operating Expenses to the extent Gross Revenues shall be insufficient for such
purpose; provided, however, such transfer shall be treated as an interfund loan and shall be repaid
from Gross Revenues as described in this Section 4.06(B)(5) within one year from the date of such
transfer.

(6) Subordinated Indebtedness. Gross Revenues in the Revenue Fund shall next be
applied by the Issuer for the payment of any accrued debt service on Subordinated Indebtedness
incurred by the Issuer in connection with the System and in accordance with the proceedings
authorizing such Subordinated Indebtedness.

@) Sinking Fund. There shall be deposited to the Interest Account, the Principal
Account and the Term Bonds Redemption Account, in that order, sufficient moneys such that the
amounts on deposit therein shall equal, respectively, the interest, principal and Sinking Fund
Installment next coming due on the Bonds Outstanding; provided, however, no deposit need be
made to the Principal Account or Term Bonds Redemption Account until a date one year preceding
the due date of such principal amount or Sinking Fund Installment.

(8) Utility Reserve Fund. The balance of any Gross Revenues remaining in said
Revenue Fund shall be deposited in the Utility Reserve Fund and applied to the payment, on or
prior to each principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th
day of the month next preceding such payment date), into the Interest Account, the Principal
Account and the Term Bonds Redemption Account when the moneys therein shall be insufficient
to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds coming due. Moneys not required to meet such
a deficiency shall be deposited to the Reserve Account to make up any deficiency therein, and
thereafter to the Rebate Fund to the extent moneys are required to be deposited therein. Thereafter,
moneys in the Utility Reserve Fund may be applied for (A) the purchase or redemption of Bonds,
(b) payment of Subordinated Indebtedness, (c) payment of other obligations incurred with respect
to the System, (d) deposit to the Rate Stabilization Fund, (e¢) improvements, renewals and
replacements to the System or for (f) any lawful purpose of the Issuer up to a maximum amount
with respect to clause (f) of 10% of the Gross Revenues of the System for such Fiscal Year;
provided, however, that none of such revenues shall ever be used for the purposes provided in this
Section 4.06(B)(8) unless all payments required in Sections 4.06(B)(1) through 4.06(B)(6) hereof,
including any deficiencies for prior payments, have been made in full to the date of such use.

(C)  Whenever moneys on deposit in the Sinking Fund are sufficient to fully pay all
Outstanding Bonds in accordance with their terms (including principal or applicable Redemption
Price and interest thereon), no further deposits to the Sinking Fund need be made. If on any
payment date the Gross Revenues are insufficient to deposit the required amount in any of the
funds or accounts or for any of the purposes provided above, the deficiency shall be made up on
the subsequent payment dates.

The Issuer, in its discretion, may use moneys in the Principal Account and the Interest
Account to purchase or redeem Bonds coming due on the next principal payment date, provided

35



such purchase or redemption does not adversely affect the Issuer's ability to pay the principal or
interest coming due on such principal payment date on the Bonds not so purchased or redeemed.

(D) In the event the Issuer shall issue a Series of Bonds secured by a Credit Facility,
the Issuer may establish separate subaccounts in the Interest Account, the Principal Account and
the Term Bonds Redemption Account to provide for payment of the principal of and interest on
such Series; provided payment from the Pledged Funds of one Series of Bonds shall not have
preference over payment of any other Series of Bonds. The Issuer may also deposit moneys in
such subaccounts at such other times and in such other amounts from those provided in Section
4.06(B) as shall be necessary to pay the principal of and interest on such Bonds as the same shall
become due, all as provided by the Supplemental Resolution authorizing such Bonds.

In the case of Bonds secured by a Credit Facility, amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund
may be applied as provided in the applicable Supplemental Resolution to reimburse the Credit
Bank for amounts drawn under such Credit Facility to pay the principal of, premium, if any, and
interest on such Bonds or to pay the purchase price of any such Bonds which are tendered by the
holders thereof for payment; provided such Credit Facility shall have no priority over Bondholders
or an Insurer to amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund. Other payments due to a Credit Bank in
relation to obligations arising under its Credit Facility may be on parity with the Bonds as to source
of and security for payment to the extent provided in the Supplemental Resolution relating thereto.

SECTION 4.07. REBATE FUND. Amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be
held in trust by the Issuer and used solely to make required rebates to the United States (except to
the extent the same may be transferred to the Revenue Fund) and the Bondholders shall have no
right to have the same applied for debt service on the Bonds. For any Series of Bonds for which
the rebate requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code are applicable, the Issuer agrees to undertake
all actions required of it in its arbitrage certificate relating to such Series of Bonds, including, but
not limited to:

(A)  making a determination in accordance with the Code of the amount required to be
deposited in the Rebate Fund;

(B)  depositing the amount determined in clause (A) above into the Rebate Fund;

(C)  paying on the dates and in the manner required by the Code to the United States
Treasury from the Rebate Fund and any other legally available moneys of the Issuer such amounts
as shall be required by the Code to be rebated to the United States Treasury; and

(D)  keeping such records of the determinations made pursuant to this Section 4.07 as
shall be required by the Code, as well as evidence of the fair market value of any investments
purchased with proceeds of the Bonds.

The provisions of the above-described arbitrage certificates may be amended without the
consent of any Holder, Credit Bank or Insurer from time to time as shall be necessary, in the
opinion of Bond Counsel, to comply with the provisions of the Code.

SECTION 4.08. RATE STABILIZATION FUND. The Issuer may transfer into
the Rate Stabilization Fund such moneys which are on deposit in the Utility Reserve Fund as it

36



deems appropriate. The Issuer may transfer such amount of moneys from the Rate Stabilization
Fund to the Revenue Fund as it deems appropriate; provided, however, that on or prior to each
principal and interest payment date for the Bonds (in no event earlier than the 25th day of the
month next preceding such payment date), moneys in the Rate Stabilization Fund shall be applied
for the payment into the Interest Account, the Principal Account and the Term Bonds Redemption
Account when the moneys therein are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds
coming due, but only to the extent moneys transferred from the Utility Reserve Fund and Renewal
and Replacement Fund for such purposes pursuant to Sections 4.06(B)(8) and 4.06(B)(5) hereof,
together with moneys available in the Reserve Account for such purpose pursuant to Section
4.06(B)(4) hereof, shall be inadequate to fully provide for such insufficiency.

SECTION 4.09. INVESTMENTS. Moneys on deposit in the Revenue Fund, the
Construction Fund, the Sinking Fund, the Operation and Maintenance Fund, the Utility Reserve
Fund, the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Renewal and Replacement Fund shall be continuously
secured in the manner by which the deposit of public funds are authorized to be secured by the
laws of the State. Moneys on deposit in the Construction Fund, the Revenue Fund, the Operation
and Maintenance Fund, the Principal Account, the Interest Account, the Term Bonds Redemption
Account, the Renewal and Replacement Fund, the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Utility Reserve
Fund shall be invested and reinvested by the Issuer in Authorized Investments, maturing not later
than the dates on which such moneys will be needed for the purposes of such fund or account.
Moneys on deposit in the Reserve Account shall be invested in Authorized Investments, maturing
no later than ten years from the date of investment. All investments shall be valued at cost;
provided, however, that the amounts on deposit in the Reserve Account shall be valued at the
market price thereof. Investments in the Reserve Account shall be valued by the Issuer on an
annual basis as of April 1 of each year.

Any and all income received from the investment of moneys in each separate account of
the Revenue Fund, the Construction Fund, the Interest Account, the Principal Account, the Term
Bonds Redemption Account, the Utility Reserve Fund, the Renewal and Replacement Fund (to the
extent such income and other amounts in such Fund do not exceed the Renewal and Replacement
Fund Requirement), the Rate Stabilization Fund and the Reserve Account (to the extent such
income and the other amounts in the Reserve Account does not exceed the Reserve Account
Requirement), shall be retained in such respective Fund or Account.

Any and all income received from the investment of moneys in the Renewal and
Replacement Fund (only to the extent such income and the other amounts in such Fund exceed the
Renewal and Replacement Fund Requirement) and the Reserve Account (only to the extent such
income and the other amounts in the Reserve Account exceeds the Reserve Account Requirement),
shall be deposited upon receipt thereof in the Revenue Fund.

Nothing in this Resolution shall prevent any Authorized Investments acquired as
investments of or security for funds held under this Resolution from being issued or held in
book-entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury of the United States.

37



ARTICLE V
COVENANTS

SECTION 5.01. GENERAL. The Issuer hereby makes the following covenants, in
addition to all other covenants in this Resolution, with each and every successive Holder of any of
the Bonds so long as any of said Bonds remain Outstanding.

SECTION 5.02. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE. The Issuer will maintain
or cause to be maintained the System and all portions thereof in good condition and will operate
or cause to be operated the same in an efficient and economical manner, making or causing to be
made such expenditures for equipment and for renewals, repairs and replacements as may be
proper for the sound and economical operation and maintenance thereof. The Issuer may contract
with a responsible Person which has experience in the operation of utility systems similar to the
System for the operation and maintenance of the System.

SECTION 5.03. ANNUAL BUDGET. The Issuer shall annually prepare and adopt,
prior to the beginning of each Fiscal Year, an Annual Budget in accordance with applicable law.
No expenditure for Operating Expenses shall be made in any Fiscal Year in excess of the aggregate
amount provided for Operating Expenses in the Annual Budget until the Governing Body shall
have approved the increased expenditures by resolution or ordinance. The amount expended for
Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year will not exceed the reasonable and necessary amount
therefor, and the Issuer will not expend any amount for maintenance, repair and operation of the
System from Gross Revenues in excess of the total amount provided for Operating Expenses in
the Annual Budget, as the same may be amended. Nothing in this Section shall limit the amount
which the Issuer may expend for Operating Expenses in any Fiscal Year, provided any amounts
expended therefor in excess of the total amount provided in the Annual Budget shall be received
by the Issuer from some source other than the Gross Revenues.

If for any reason the Issuer shall not have adopted the Annual Budget before the first day
of any Fiscal Year, other than the first Fiscal Year, the preliminary budget for such year, if it be
approved by the Consulting Engineers or Rate Consultant, or otherwise the Annual Budget for the
preceding Fiscal Year, shall be deemed to be in effect for such Fiscal Year until the Annual Budget
for such Fiscal Year is adopted.

The Issuer shall mail copies of such Annual Budgets and amended Annual Budgets and all
resolutions and ordinances authorizing increased expenditures for operation and maintenance to
any Credit Bank or Insurer of Bonds who shall file its address with an Authorized Issuer Officer
or the Clerk and request in writing that copies of all such Annual Budgets and resolutions and
ordinances be furnished to it and shall make available all such Annual Budgets and resolutions and
ordinances authorizing increased expenditures for operation and maintenance of the System at all
reasonable times to any Holder or Holders of Bonds or to anyone acting for and on behalf of such
Holder or Holders.

SECTION 5.04 RATES. The Issuer shall fix, establish, maintain and collect such
rates, fees and charges for the product, services and facilities of the System, and revise the same
from time to time, whenever necessary, so as always to provide (A) Net Revenues in each Fiscal
Year (excluding from the computation of Operating Expenses for any Fiscal Year any amount

38



received from any source other than Gross Revenues and applied to the payment of Operating
Expenses in such Fiscal Year) equal to at least 120% of the Annual Debt Service becoming due in
such Fiscal Year, plus 105% of (i) any amounts required by the terms hereof to be deposited in the
Reserve Account or with any issuer of a Reserve Account Letter of Credit or Reserve Account
Insurance Policy in such Fiscal Year to pay Policy Costs, (ii) all required deposits during such
Fiscal Year to the Renewal and Replacement Fund and (iii) debt service in such Fiscal Year on all
Subordinated Indebtedness.

Such rates, fees or other charges shall not be so reduced so as to be insufficient to provide
adequate Net Revenues for the purposes provided therefor by this Resolution.

If, in any Fiscal Year, the Issuer shall fail to comply with the requirements contained in
this Section 5.04, it shall promptly cause the Rate Consultant to review its rates, fees, charges,
income, Gross Revenues, Operating Expenses and methods of operation and to make written
recommendations in a timely manner as to the methods by which the Issuer may seek to comply
with the requirements set forth in this Section 5.04. The Issuer shall forthwith commence to
implement such recommendations to the extent required so as to cause it to thereafter comply with
said requirements. So long as the Issuer implements such recommendations within 120 days of
the receipt thereof, the Issuer's failure to comply with this Section 5.04 shall not be considered an
Event of Default under Section 7.01 hereof, so long as the Gross Revenues, together with moneys
in the Funds and Accounts created in Article IV of this Resolution and available for the purposes
described therein, are sufficient to pay in cash the Operating Expenses and Annual Debt Service
for such Fiscal Year.

Anything in this Resolution to the contrary notwithstanding, if the Issuer shall fail to
comply with the recommendations of the Rate Consultant described above, the registered owners
of not less than ten percent (10%) in principal amount of all Bonds then Outstanding may institute
and prosecute an action or proceeding in any court or before any board or commission having
jurisdiction to compel the Issuer to comply with the recommendations and the requirements of the
preceding paragraph of this Section 5.04. So long as the issuer of a Bond Insurance Policy or
Credit Facility issued for the benefit of any Outstanding Bonds shall not be in default in its payment
obligations under such Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility, the Insurer or Credit Bank, as
applicable, shall be deemed to be the registered owner of all Bonds covered by the applicable
Bond Insurance Policy or Credit Facility for purposes of this paragraph.

SECTION 5.05. BOOKS AND RECORDS. The Issuer shall keep books, records
and accounts of the revenues and operations of the System, which shall be kept separate and apart
from all other books, records and accounts of the Issuer, and the Holders of any Bonds Outstanding
or the duly authorized representatives thereof shall have the right at all reasonable times to inspect
all books, records and accounts of the Issuer relating thereto.

SECTION 5.06. ANNUAL AUDIT. The Issuer shall, immediately after the close of
each Fiscal Year, cause the books, records and accounts relating to the System to be properly
audited by a recognized independent firm of certified public accountants, and shall require such
accountants to complete their report of such Annual Audit in accordance with applicable law. Each
Annual Audit shall be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to

39



governmental entities, and shall, either as part of said Annual Audit or in a separate report,
demonstrate compliance by the Issuer with the rate covenant set forth in Section 5.04 hereof. A
copy of each Annual Audit shall regularly be furnished to any Credit Bank or Insurer who shall
have furnished its address to the Clerk and requested in writing that the same be furnished to it.

SECTION 5.07. NO MORTGAGE OR SALE OF THE SYSTEM. The Issuer
irrevocably covenants, binds and obligates itself not to sell, lease, encumber or in any manner
dispose of the System as a whole or any substantial part thereof (except as provided below) until
all of the Bonds and all interest thereon shall have been paid in full or provision for payment has
been made in accordance with Section 9.01 hereof.

The foregoing provision notwithstanding, the Issuer shall have and hereby reserves the
right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any of the property comprising a part of the System in
the following manner, if any one of the following conditions exist: (A) such property is not
necessary for the operation of the System, (B) such property is not useful in the operation of the
System, (C) such property is not profitable in the operation of the System, or (D) in the case of a
lease of such property, such lease will be advantageous to the System and will not materially
adversely affect the security for the Bondholders.

Prior to any such sale, lease or other disposition of said property: (1) if the amount to be
received therefor is not in excess of five percent (5%) of the market value of the gross plant of the
System, an Authorized Issuer Officer shall make a finding in writing determining that one or more
of the conditions for sale, lease or disposition of property provided for in the second paragraph of
this Section 5.07 have been met; or (2) if the amount to be received from such sale, lease or other
disposition of said property shall be in excess of five percent (5%) of the market value of the gross
plant of the System, (a) an Authorized Issuer Officer and the Consulting Engineers shall each first
make a finding in writing determining that one or more of the conditions for sale, lease or other
disposition of property provided for in the second paragraph of this Section 5.07 have been met,
(b) the Governing Body shall, by resolution, duly adopt, approve and concur in the finding of the
Authorized Issuer Officer and the Consulting Engineers, and (c) the Issuer shall obtain an opinion
of Bond Counsel to the effect that such sale, lease or other disposition is not in violation of the Act
and will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds (other than
Taxable Bonds) for federal tax purposes or shall not otherwise affect the status of any Outstanding
Bonds issued as Federal Subsidy Bonds or the Issuer's receipt of Federal Subsidy Payments with
respect to any Outstanding Federal Subsidy Bonds.

Except as otherwise required under applicable provisions of the Code, the proceeds from
any such sale or other disposition shall be deposited, first, into the Renewal and Replacement Fund
to the extent necessary to make the amount therein equal to the Renewal and Replacement Fund
Requirement, and, second, into the Utility Reserve Fund. Proceeds from any lease of assets of the
System shall constitute Gross Revenues and shall be deposited in the Revenue Fund.

The transfer of the System as a whole from the control of the Governing Body to some
other board or authority which may hereafter be created for the purpose of owning, operating or
controlling the System and which constitutes a governmental entity, interest on obligations issued
by which are excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income taxation (other than
obligations similar to Taxable Bonds or Federal Subsidy Bonds), shall not be deemed prohibited

40



by this Section 5.07 and such successor board or authority shall fall within the definition of "Issuer"
in Section 1.01 hereof.

Notwithstanding the fore